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FROM THE FRONT! AT A GLANCE

FLAGSHIP

The word flagship denotes the lead ship in a fleet. The name
isusually given to the bestand largest ships, expeditionsand
taskforces. A flagship, as a rule, is a command and control
ship for a commander, flag officer or headquarters and
display's the senior officer's flag.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS'

01.01.2018 01.01.2017

Key figures at year-end

Loans to customers 3,251,102 9,783 2,319,583 6,960
Total assets 8,857,781 26,654 5,348,483 16,048
Amounts due to customers 6,131,750 18451 3,820,662 11,464
Debt securities issued 962,396 2,896 584,933 1,755
Amounts due to credit institutions 255,151 162,134 486

ToTAL EQUITY T DT O

Net interest income 181,221 556 146,706 429
Fees and commissions, net 87,640 269 57,697 169
Operating expenses (excluding im-

pairment losses on assets held for sale) (112330 344 (68559) 201
Net income 173,362 532 131,412 385

Return on average common equity 227 22.3%
Return on average assets 26 2.8%
Net interest margin 4.9% 5.5%
Net interest spread 54% 6.3%
Cost-to-income 295 28.1%
Cost-to-average assets 1.7% 1.6%
Common equity tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (CET1) 16.9% 19.4%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 16.9% 19.4%
Total capital adequacy ratio 18.9% 19.4%

On a consolidated basis

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS/ACCOUNTS AT YEAR-END

Retail accounts, min 85 59 54
Corporate clients 3,935 1,672 1,621
Payment cards, min 9.0 63 55
Retail loans, min 09 068 067
Mortgage loans 40,761 20,012 21,455
Other consumer loans 878,795 661,088 652,311
Plastic cards of payroll programme 44 30 29
customers (individuals), min

Payroll programme clients (legal 43873 21870 23001
entities, including public organisations) ! ! !
Internet banking users:

-individuals 2,960,989 1,204,067 918,210
- legal entities 93,384 17,223 15,065

Calculated using the official National Bank of Kazakhstan rate on the corresponding date

Calculated using the official National Bank of Kazakhstan average rate for the corresponding period
Restated based on the presentation of Altyn Bank as discontinued operations; see Note 16 to the Financial Statements
**x% - Ratios for 2016 restated to account for Altyn Bank

INTERNATIONAL CREDIT RATINGS OF HALYK BANK
AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018

Moody's Investors Service Bal Stable
Fitch Ratings BB Stable
Standard & Poor's BB Negative

AT A GLANCE




STRUCTURE OF HALYK GROUP

HOLDING
GROUP
ALMEX

73.6% 25.05%

HALYK BANK

KAZKOMMERTSBANK

MOSKOMMERTSBANK KAZKOMMERTSBANK TAJIKISTAN

ALTYN BANK (SUBSIDIARY HALYK BANK GEORGIA HALYK BANK KYRGYZSTAN
& 100% 100%

OF HALYK BANK) 100% 100% 100%

NBK-BANK HALYK FINANCE HALYK-LEASING
100% 100% 100%

KAZKOMMERTS LIFE KAZKOMMERTS-POLICY
100% 99.97%

HALYK-LIFE KAZTELEPORT
100% 100%

QPAYMENTS
100%

KAZAKHINSTRAKH KAZKOMMERTS SECURITIES
100% 100%

KUSA KKB-1 KUSA KKB-2 KUSA KKB-3

HALYK PROJECT HALYK COLLECTION
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

KAZKOMMERTS INTERNATIONAL B.V. KAZKOMMERTS FINANCE Il B.V.
100% 100%

AT A GLANCE




DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

- 22 regional branches

- 122 sub-regional offices

- 62 personal service centres
- 2VIP centres

- 1 bank service centre

- 280 cash settlement units
2,367 ATMs

23,213 POS terminals

360 multi-service kiosks

576 payment terminals

210 outlets
2227 ATMs
51,389 POS terminals

575 payment terminals

KAZAKHINSTRAKH 18 BRANCHES, 193 POINTS OF SALE

HALYK-LIFE 17 BRANCHES, 4 REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

HALYK-LEASING 1BRANCH

HALYK COLLECTION 18 BRANCHES, 37 OUTLETS

ALTYN BANK 4 BRANCHES, 2 OUTLETS

HALYK BANK KYRGYZSTAN 9 BRANCHES, 10 CASH SETTLEMENT UNITS

HALYK BANK GEORGIA 7 BRANCHES

NBK-BANK 2 LENDING AND CASH SETTLEMENT UNITS

KAZKOMMERTS-POLICY 18 BRANCHES, 68 OUTLETS

KAZKOMMERTS LIFE 16 BRANCHES, 6 AGENT OUTLETS

MOSKOMMERTSBANK 2 BRANCHES, 4 OUTLETS

KAZKOMMERTSBANK TAJIKISTAN 2 BRANCHES, 5 OUTLETS

As of 31 December 2017, Halyk Group had 18410 full-time equivalent employees.

SHAREHOLDERS OF HALYK GROUP WITH AT LEAST
5% OF SHARES ISSUED AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018":

Ne § Name Total
shares

Total shares authorised 25,000,000,000 -
Holding Group ALMEX 8,086451,772  73.6%
Unified Accumulative Pension Fund 716,281,746 6.5%

GDRs (ISIN: US46627J3023,
US46627J2033) 16.8%

1

2

3

4 16.8%

5 Other 338,204,581 3.1% 338,204,581 3.1%

m N B
Shares bought back by the Bank  (1,693,389,285) - (1693389285 -

Shares retained by companies
in the Group (1,650,955) (1,650,955)

Common
shares

Proportion

of common
shares in
circulation
25,000,000,000 -
8086451772 73.6%

716,281,746 6.5%

circulation

1,852,878,720 1,852,878,720

TOTAL SHARES IN CIRCULATION
(CONSOLIDATED BASIS, FOR EPS
CALCULATION)

10,993,816,819 10,993,816,819

TOTAL SHARES IN CIRCULATION
(AS PER KASE LISTING RULES)

MARKET SHARE PRICE, KZT* o

2,192,709,556 2,192,709,556

82.66

Market share price as of 1 January 2018, determined and published by KASE (www.kase.kz) on a weekly basis
Shares of the Bank have been listed on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange since 1998 and common shares in
the form of global depositary receipts on the London Stock Exchange since 2006,

Holding Group ALMEX is a holding company that, in addition to its controlling interest
in the Bank, has aninterest in Kazkommertsbank and Insurance Broker AON Kazakhstan.

The Unified Accumulative Pension Fund (UAPF) collects obligatory pension
payments, obligatory professional pension payments and voluntary pension
payments and disburses pension payments. It is one of the leading institutional
investors on the Kazakhstan stock market and the sole administrator and
operatorofallfinancialandinformation flows of the country's pension system.

The sole shareholder of the UAPF is the State Property and Privatisation
Committee of the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan (100%).

The state's stake in the UAPF is held in trust by the National Bank of Kazakhstan, which
manages its assets jointly with Kazakhstan's Presidential Council for Pension Asset
Management. Since 1 January 2016, by decree of the president of Kazakhstan, the functions
for developing proposals to improve pension asset management have been transferred to
the National Fund Management Council, which is headed by the president of Kazakhstan.
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GROSSMASTER

Chess is one of the East's priceless gifts to the world. The
number of chess fans has only grown over the centuries. Both a
beginner and an experienced player dream of the
grandmaster title, which is awarded only to the best of the best.
Back in the past, the title of grandmaster belonged to the
masters of glorious knightly orders and today these are
legendary sportspeople. Similar to medieval knights, each has
aunigue talent and wins stunning victories on the chess board.

BUSINESS MODEL

KABAKETAM XAABIK BAHKI

HALYK
BANK

HAPOGHLIN BAHK KAGAXCTAHA



SOLID FINANCIAL POSITION, CAPABLE OF WITHSTAND-
ING NEGATIVE MACROECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTS

m  Highlevel of capitalisation: common equity tier 1 capital adequacy ratio of 16.9%,
tier 1 capital adequacy ratio of 16.9% and total capital adequacy ratio of 18.9%

m  Sufficient liquidity: liquid assets to total assets ratio of 48.3%

High-quality funding base:loans to deposits ratio of 53.0%

m  Sufficient provisioning: the share of non-performing loans (overdue by 90 days or
more) has beenreduced to 8.9% and the provision coverageratiois 73.7%

m  Highestlong-term credit ratings among second-tier Kazakh banks with no major
overseasshareholders:
= Moody's Investor Services-Bal
= FitchRatings-BB
= Standard &Poor's—BB

SYSTEMICALLY IMPORTANT FINANCIAL GROUP IN
KAZAKHSTAN WITH A STRONG MARKET POSITION

m  Effective risk management ensures high-quality assets, sustainable profitability,
high level of capitalisation

m  Kazakhstan's leading universal financial group, with the largest client base and
branch networkin the country

m  Following the acquisition of Kazkommertsbank, Halyk Bank is the undisputed
leader in Kazakhstan in terms of assets (combined market share of 35.2%), total
equity (35.3%), net income (32.2%), retail term deposits, retail current accounts,
corporate deposits and current accounts, gross loans, number of payment cards,
combined portfolio of letters of credit and guarantees, and payroll programmes

m Halyk Group ranks third in terms of assets and second in terms of net income
among commercial banks in the CIS, and eighth in terms of assets and fifth in
termsof netincomein the CIS, including state-owned banks'

m  Largestpaymentagentfor pensions and social payments (2.7 million customers)
m  Active participantin government business-support programmes

SUBSTANTIAL MARKET SHARES IN KEY BUSINESS
SEGMENTS

m  Largestbranch network, with699 outlets

10

Combined market share of Halyk Bank and Kazkommertsbank among second-
tier banks is 36.9% of retail deposits, 35.7% of retail term deposits and 47.3% of
retail currentaccounts

Share of corporate deposits among second-tier banks is 37.7%
Share of gross loans s 31.3%, share of netloansis 27.2%

Share of the retail lending market is 24.0%

Share of total cardsissued is 61.0%

Share of letters of creditis 52.8%

Share of portfolio of guaranteesis 38%

SOLID AND LOW-COST FUNDING BASE

m 'Safe haven'fordeposits during a crisis
= Oneofthelowestfunding ratesamong second-tier banks
m  Deposits comprise 77.4% of the funding base, of which 21.9% are current
accountsthat pay 0% or low interest (highest share in the market) .
m  Lowdebtburden-debtsecurities comprise just 12.1% of total liabilities
DIVERSIFIED SOURCES OF INCOME AND HIGH COST BUSINESS
EFFICIENCY RATIO MODEL
m  High profitability is supported by diversified commission income inflows, which
generated 12.5% of total revenuesin 2017
m  Strictcontrol of operating expenses: cost to incomeratio of 30.3%in 2017
CONTINUOUS DEVELOPMENT OF REMOTE SERVICE
CHANNELS
m  Wide range of remote channels for retail, corporate and SME customers, remote
channels handle 80% of all payments
m  Total of 4,594 ATMs, 74,602 POS terminals and 1,151 payment terminals (25.2
million transactionsin 2017)
m  Halyk Bank's myHalyk and Kazkommertsbank's Homebankkz are the leading
online banking platforms in Kazakhstan with 3 million customers (18.9 million
transactions in 2017), mobile applications are ranked in the top-5 among free
mobile applicationsin the“Finance’categoriesin Google Playandthe AppStore . ooe ot
m  Advanced online banking platform for corporate customers with 934 thousand users HALYK
: BANK
Sources:HalykBank, Interfax T o e aaacerans
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AVANT-GARDE

The avant-garde (from French, “advance guard” or
“vanguard” in modern military use), is a formation in the
armed forces that is sent ahead of the main ground or naval
force to perform route security and seek the enemy. As the
initiative of vanguard commanders can have a decisive
influence on the course of battle, they should be chosen for
their conviction, prudence and composure.

CHAIRMAN OF THE
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ALEXANDERPAVLOV

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HALYK BANK

Dear shareholders, clientsand partners,

Last year was a turning point for Kazakhstan's economy and the financial system that
underpins it. In 2017, the comprehensive programme of the government and National
Bank of Kazakhstan aimed at overcoming the adverse effects of the global crisis
delivered impressive results, as demonstrated by 4% GDP growth and reduced annual
inflation rates. Compared with the 1% GDP growth seen in 2015-16, this suggests that
Kazakhstan's economy is gradually recovering. Positive drivers included higher global
prices for the country's major exports, stabilised prices forimported non-food products,
arelatively stable tenge exchange rate and the regulator's predictable monetary policy.

The acquisition of Kazkommertsbank and its subsidiaries bolstered significantly
Halyk Group's leading positions in most segments of the financial market. The
planned merger of several banks and insurance companies that previously had
competed with each another for many years will allow the Group to maximise its
overall potential. At the core of the integration lies the principle of maximum
synergy, whichisachieved by combining thetwo banks'strengths.

Halyk Bank's chief competitive advantages include the high reliability and profitability
ofits business, its wide range of financial products, competent risk management, well
developed infrastructure and loyal customer base. Kazkommertsbank brings
innovation, advanced front-office systems and T infrastructure. These are combined
with the experience and expertise of the two banks'key employees.

We view thisasamajor transaction and believe that it offers tremendous potential,
intermsof both scopeand ability toinfluence the economies of Kazakhstanandits
neighbouring countries. In the second half of 2017, Halyk Bankand Holding Group
ALMEX recapitalised Kazkommertsbank with KZT250.2 billion, which ensures that
the newly acquired bank could resume lending and provides the necessary
support to achieve our growth targets. The decision to inject such a massive
amount of capital into Kazkommertsbank confirms our commitment to further
improveits competitiveadvantagesas part of Halyk Group.

Insurance services are an important aspect of Halyk Group's business and our subsidiaries
hold confident positions on Kazakhstan's insurance market. By the end of 2017, our life
insurance subsidiaries, Halyk-Life and Kazkommerts Life, held a combined market share
of 50.3% in terms of gross premiums, while the share of our general insurance
subsidiaries, Kazakhinstrakh and Kazkommerts-Policy, was 21.2% on the same metric.

To achieve maximum synergy, similar to the process of consolidating the two
systemically important banks, Halyk Group has launched a reorganisation of its
subsidiaries that have overlapping business lines and geographical presences.
The merger of Kazakhinstrakh and Kazkommerts-Policy has already begun. This
processisfounded onthe principles of selecting the best practicesin various areas
and optimising costs. We expect the insurance companies' integration to be
completedinthe third quarterof 2018, which should allow Halyk Group to expand
its presence onthe corporateand retailinsurance market.

Special mention is warranted for the successes of Halyk Group's leading investment
and brokerage companies, Halyk Finance and Kazkommerts Securities. As of 1
December 2017, the two subsidiaries had a combined market share of 30% in terms of
assets and 35% in terms of equity. The two companies also receive prestigious awards
each year from authoritative international financial publications: Cbonds recognised
Halyk Finance "Best Investment Bank in Kazakhstan" in 2017; EMEA Finance
recognised Halyk Finance "The Best Investment Bank in Kazakhstan 2016"; World
Finance recognised Kazkommerts Securities "Best Investment Bank in Kazakhstan
2017"; and Cbonds recognised Kazkommerts Securities "Best underwriter in
Kazakhstan"and "Best Financial Markets research in Kazakhstan"in 2017.

CHAIRMAN
OF THE
BOARD'S
STATEMENT
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Halyk Group's own investment activity during the reporting period included active work
toimplement the provisions of the framework agreement signed in June 2017 regarding
the sale of a 60% stake in Altyn Bank to strategic investors from China. They included CITIC
Bank, which is one of China's largest financial institutions, and China Shuangwei
Investment Company, Ltd.To implement the agreements reached in 2017, due diligence
was conducted on Altyn Bank and requests for permits were sent to the regulatory
bodies in China and Kazakhstan. We aim to complete the deal in the first half of 2018.

The transaction will see Halyk Group retain a 40% stake in Altyn Bank and play a key
role in implementing Kazakhstan's Nurly Zhol development programme and
China's Silk Road Economic 'One Belt. One Road' initiative. After changing majority
shareholders, Altyn Bank will continue to work on the local market as a universal
bank that can offer its corporate and retail customers unique new services,
including direct conversions from tenge to yuan, payments in yuan, trade financing,
treasury operations, private banking and lending. We are confident that having such
a strong strategic partner as CITIC Bank will significantly expand Altyn Bank's
possibilities, helping to strengthen its market positions through access to advanced
technology. In 2017, Altyn Bank delivered impressive results: with a market share of
just 1.6%in terms of assets, the bank earned netincome of KZT9.4 billion.

In 2017, as part of Halyk Group's internal integration processes following the
acquisition of Kazkommertsbank, we began to reorganise our subsidiary banks in
Russia. The merger of NBK-Bank and Moskommertsbank will create a universal
financial institution on the Russian market that prioritises the development of
transaction services, cash management and merchant acquiring services. Its main
goal will beto transferits business model from classic banking to digital with a focus
on joint projects between Russia and Kazakhstan. The merged bank will have a
presence in major Russian cities, including cities with million-plus populations
bordering Eurasian Economic Union member countries.

Our other subsidiary banks in Georgia and Kyrgyzstan continue to contribute to
Halyk Group's overall profitability. In 2017, Halyk Bank Georgia generated a profit of
around GEL12 million, which is the equivalent of KZT1.6 billion. The bank also has
introduced a new online banking system for corporate and retail clients.In 2018, we
plan to further expand along all business lines, targeting loan portfolio growth of
25%. Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan delivered a profit of KGS88 million for the reporting
period, which is the equivalent of KZT0.4 billion. Throughout the year, the bank has
made staff changes aimed at improving productivity. In 2018, we plan to increase
profitby 17%and the loan portfolio by 27%.

Throughout Halyk Group's history, charity has been an overriding priority. The Halyk
charity fund was created specifically to initiate and support various educational,
cultural, art and sport projects. The Astana Opera, Kazakhstan's largest opera and
ballet theatre, has been a major recipient of our charitable assistance. With
Kazkommertsbank as part of the Group now, it will be joined by the Abay State
OperaandBalletTheatre and the Kurmangazy National Conservatory.

For the past 11 years, the Halyk League sport project has been contributing to the
development of youth basketball in Kazakhstan, helping to pay for the services of
coaches and purchasing sportequipment for children at sponsored orphanages and
boarding schools nationwide. A major focus has been on social support for orphans
and children with disabilities, as well as survivors and veterans of World War l.In 2017,
tofosteran interest in science among young people, we supported the launch of the
Smart Halyk educational channel on YouTube, which is regularly updated with
informative new popular science videos in the Kazakh and Russian languages.

In 2018, in honour of Halyk Bank's 95th anniversary, we launched the “Festival of Good
Deeds’, a massive series of charity initiatives to complement our traditional social
projects.Each month this year will be devoted to atheme: sportand healthy lifestyles,
national traditions, caring for the young and elderly, culture and art. The festival's first
charitable campaign provided free ice skating sessions for tens of thousands of
people in 20 cities around Kazakhstan to promote sport and healthy lifestyles.

We believe that Halyk Group's successes each year in various business lines is the
natural result of the hard work and dedication of one of the most experienced and
professional teams in the financial market. We achieve this by adhering to a finely
tuned risk management policy that promotes sound and effective business
decisions. We are focused on a long-term market presence and acknowledge that
Halyk Group bears a great social responsibility to the state, business community and
our country.Wealways setlofty goalsand do our best to achieve them.

CHAIRMAN
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RACE LEADER

Incycling, the yellow jersey goes to the rider whois currently
leading in the overall standings of a competition.The yellow
jersey was initially introduced in the Tour de France, but
leader jerseys of various colours are now used in many other
cycling events. The coloured jerseys make it easy to pick out
the current leader in the overall standings from a pack of
riders. Over time, the term "yellow jersey” has become
commonly used to denote a person or phenomenon thatis
farahead of anyone or anything else on some metric.

CHAIRPERSON
OF THE MANAGEMENT
BOARD'S REVIEW
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UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA

CHAIRPERSON OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
HALYK BANK

Dearshareholders, clientsand partners,

In2017,Kazakhstan'sbanking sectorunderwentastress test of sorts. The burden of
accumulated problems, which we believe were mainly a large volume of non-
performing loans and insufficient levels of capitalisation at several commercial
banks, led to a shortage of liquidity, defaults and the revocation of some financial
institutions'licences.

In such challenging macroeconomic conditions, the regulator has done a great
deal of vital workto revitalise and improve the stability of the financial sector, which
had an evident positive effect. Additional funding from the National Bank has
helped several major commercial banks in Kazakhstan to improve their liquidity
and capitalisation, which has mitigated these unfavourable factors somewhat.

The government's unprecedented support to cleanse the banking system's loan
portfolio was a vital precondition for our historic acquisition of a 96.81% stake in
Kazkommertsbank. The bank, which was once a leading and highly successful

systematically important bank in Kazakhstan, experienced major problems with capital
adequacy and liquidity in 2016. Our due diligence on Kazkommertsbank in the first half
of 2017 showed that most of these problems were caused by the BTA Bankloan.

From the very beginning of the discussions about the state selling its stake in BTA
Bank, which had been nationalised in 2013, and selling its assets to a strategic investor,
we as a potential bidder for the financial institution invariably adhered to a pragmatic
position: the entire pool of BTA Bank's distressed assets related to the activities of its
former shareholders needed to be taken off the banking system's balance sheet so
thatloanswith along recovery horizon would not hinder its development.

Time has proven this to be a sound and prudent approach. The acquisition of
Kazkommertsbankcan, without exaggeration, be called the largest deal of such kind in
the CIS.The Problem Loan Fund's purchase of BTA Bank's debt has provided an optimal
solutionto save a systemicallyimportant bank while eliminatinga whole range of risks.

Halyk Bank neither needs nor plans to participate in the government's programme to
revitalise the banking sector. Thanks to the Bank's balanced asset and liability
management policies and prudent risk management, its liquidity in both tenge and
foreign currencies remains at consistently high levels and far exceeds regulatory
requirements, even considering the high cost of recapitalising Kazkommertsbank.

Despite the objective factors that significantly limit the financial market's
development, Halyk Group demonstrates remarkable successin all business lines year
after year. This is evidenced by the Group's continuous growth on key financial
metrics. In 2017, we earned record consolidated net income of KZT173.4 billion. As of
1 January 2018, Halyk Group's assets stood at KZT8,858 billion and its total equity was
KZT934 billion. Alongside the growth in Halyk Bank's loan portfolio, whichin 2017 was
significantly ahead of the market average, its level of non-performing loans fell from
8.6%to 7.9% onan unconsolidated basis, using the National Bank's methodology.

Serving small and medium-sized businesses, or SMEs, plays a special role in Halyk
Bank's operations. We are confident that a mature and prosperous domestic
entrepreneurial class is part of the foundation for diversifying and further expanding
the economy. In 2017, the number of loans issued to Kazakhstan's entrepreneurs
increased by 37% year-on-year. Working actively with businesses also helped us to
expand our SME deposit portfolio by 70% year-on-year.

For many years now, our main partner in supporting SMEs has been the Damu

CHAIRPERSON
OF THE
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Entrepreneurship Development Fund. At the year-end, the share of SME loans that were
approved with our help under the government's“Business Road Map 2020"interest rate
subsidy programme reached 14.3% of the total volume of subsidised SME loans.

In 2017, we strengthened our leading positions in the retail business. In tandem with
Kazkommertsbank, as of 1 January 2018, our combined share of retail deposits
reached around 37% and that of retail loans was about 24%. During the reporting
period, we increased our metrics on retail deposits by 0.2% and on loans by 4.2%. The
overall customer base of the two banks is also the largest in the country, with more
than 9 million customers servedas of 1 January 2018.

The total number of payment cards issued by Halyk Bank and Kazkommertsbank now
exceeds 9 million and the two banks' payroll projects serve around 44,000
organisations. Since July 2017, following the technical integration of Halyk Bank's and
Kazkommertsbank's ATMs, our unified ATM network has become the most accessible
and extensive in the country with around 4,600 devices currently in operation. The
74,602 POS/mPOS terminals operated by Halyk Bank and Kazkommertsbank in retail
and service establishments in 2017 processed more than 53 million transactions. On
this metric, the two banks have a47% combined market share.

In December 2017, the Board of Directors of Halyk Bank approved the legal merger of
Kazkommertsbank with Halyk Bank as the most optimal option for the Group's further
development. We expect the planned integration of the two systemically important
banksin 2018 to create the absolute leader on the country's financial market in terms
of assets, capitalisation and market share, ensuring a high degree of reliability for our
customers' savings. This will make us the largest creditor of the national economy and
the bank of choice for most people in Kazakhstan.

The merged bank will have the widest geographical coverage in Kazakhstan thanks to
its extensive branch network of 699 outlets. The Bank's products and services will be
available through the largest and most advanced merchant acquiring services
infrastructure in the country, as well as our cutting-edge online banking platforms for
retail and corporate customers. Customers of the country's two largest banks are
already benefiting from the integration. Combining the ATM networks of Halyk Bank
and Kazkommertsbank has allowed us to double the number of ATMs available and
cancel additional cash withdrawal and deposit transaction fees for our customers.

In parallel, ourintegration office is working to harmonise the product lines and
align the tariffs of Halyk Bank and Kazkommertsbank. We aim to stimulate our

customers to actively use our remote banking services with reduced fees,
specialservicesandvaluableoffers.

Major positive changes that have already taken place in Halyk Bank's business and that
are planned for the near future aim is to increase the competitiveness of the banking
sector to ensure that it can adequately meet the challenges posed by our country's
accession to the WTO. Kazakhstan's president has set another national priority of
joining the G30. As a major bank of systemic importance, we will make every effort to
assist the government in achieving these ambitious goals and tojustify the large debt
of trust from our fellow citizens. On behalf of the Management Board, | would like to
thank our shareholders, customers and partners for their assistance and support in
addressing these important tasks.
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FIRST PILOT

The first pilot is the person in command of a crew or aircraft.
He or she manages the work of the crew, is responsible for
order and discipline, and ensures the safety of the aircraft
and all people and property on board.
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ALEXANDERPAVLOV (b. 1953)

CHAIRMAN, INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr Pavlov was elected chairman of the Board of Halyk Bank in March 2004 and re-
elected to the same post in April 2017. He has held numerous high-level posts in
Kazakhstan's government over the years, including first deputy prime minister,
deputy prime minister — minister of finance, and head of the Main Tax Inspectorate —
first deputy minister of finance. He has also worked in the management teams of large
Kazakh natural resource and machinery companies and represented Kazakhstan at
numerous international financial organisations. Mr Pavlov is a graduate of the Belarus
State Institute of People's Economy, where he specialised in economics (1970-74),
and of the Academy for Social Sciences of the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of the USSR, where he specialised in political science (1991).

BOARD
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ARMAN DUNAEV (b. 1966)
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr Dunaev was elected to the Board of Halyk Bank in September 2013 and re-elected to
the same post in April 2017. His experience in Kazakhstan's government includes such
posts as first deputy minister of finance, minister of finance, and chairman of the Agency
for Regulation and Supervision of the Financial Market and Financial Organisations. He
has also held management positions in the quasi-government sector. He is currently a
member of the boards of directors of several Halyk Bank subsidiaries. Mr Dunaev is a
graduate of Kazakh State University named after S. Kirov with a degree in political
economy and has a PhD from Moscow State University named after M. Lomonosov.

FRANCISCUS CORNELIS WILHELMUS
(FRANK) KUIJLAARS (b. 1958)

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr Kuijlaars was elected to the Board of Halyk Bank in April 2009 and re-elected to the
same post in April 2017. From 1990 to 2007, he served at ABN AMRO Bank and later at RBS
as head of corporate and investment banking in Belgium, regional manager in Brazil and
country manager in Russia and Argentina. Mr Kuijlaars was a member of the Supervisory
Board in Russia, Kazakhstan and Uzbekistan. After his appointment as corporate executive
vice president in 2001, in addition to supervision of global energy issues, he was a
member of the executive committees of EMEA countries, as well as a member of the
Corporate and Investment Banking Committee. He is an adviser to several international
organisations and for a long time was a member of the Foreign Investor Council of the
President of the Republic of Kazakhstan. Mr Kuijlaars was chairman of the Board of
Directors and independent director of National Company KazMunayGas. He is the owner
and managing director of Eureka (Energy) Ventures B\, as well as an independent non-
executive director and independent member of the Supervisory Board of Amsterdam
Trade Bank N.V. Mr Kuijlaars received a Master's in law from Erasmus University, Rotterdam,
the Netherlands. He studied at the Dutch Institute of Banks and Insurance Companies and
in a number of postgraduate programmes in such international institutions as
Fontainebleau (France), Cambridge (UK) and Harvard Business School (US).
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MAZHITYESSENBAYEV (b. 1949)

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, REPRESENTATIVE OF HOLDING
GROUPALMEX

Mr Yessenbayev was elected to the Board of Halyk Bank in April 2014 and re-elected to
the same postin April 2017. Over the years, he has held numerous important positions
in Kazakhstan's government, including head of the Main Tax Inspectorate — first deputy
minister of finance, chairman of the State Tax Committee, governor of Karaganda
region, minister of finance, minister of industry and trade, governor of Akmola region,
chairman of the Agency for Competition Protection, and chairman of the Customs
Control Committee of the Ministry of Finance. He has also represented Kazakhstan in a
number of international financial organisations. In February 2014, he became chairman
of the Management Board and a member of the Board of Directors of Holding Group
ALMEX. Mr Yessenbayev graduated from the Kazakh Polytechnic Institute named after
V. Lenin with a degree in economics and the mining industry. He also completed
postgraduate studies on the Council for the Study of Productive Forces under the State
Planning Committee of the USSR, has a PhD in economics and is an associate professor.

CHRISTOF RUEHL (b. 1958)

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr Ruehl was appointed to the Board of Halyk Bank in June 2007 and re-elected to
the same post in April 2017. He previously worked at the University of California, Los
Angeles, where he was an assistant professor of economics. He also worked for the
World Bank Group as senior economist in Washington, chief economist in Moscow,
and lead economist and sector leader in Brazil. At British Petroleum, Mr Ruehl held
the positions of deputy chief economist, group chief economist and vice president.
In 2008, he became chairman of the British Institute of Energy Economics, London. In
July 2014, he was appointed first global head of research by Abu Dhabi Investment
Authority. MrRuehl holds an MBA from the University of Bremen, Germany.
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ANVAR SAIDENOQV (b. 1960)

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr Saidenov was appointed to the Board of Halyk Bank in April 2016 and re-elected to
the same post in April 2017. He began his career in education, including teaching
economic theory at Dzhambul Irrigation and Construction Institute. He later worked as
a consultant and associate banker at the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development in London (UK). Over the years, he has held numerous high-level
positions in Kazakhstan's government, including deputy governor and governor of the
National Bank, executive director of the State Investment Committee, chairman of the
National Investment Agency and deputy minister of finance. He also served as
chairman of Halyk Bank and other large second-tier banks, financial organisations and
large commercial organisations. Mr Saidenov graduated from the Economic Faculty of
Moscow State University named after M. Lomonosov with honours in 1982. He received
aPhDin economics from the same university in 1987 and an MSc in financial economics
fromthe School of Oriental and African Studies at the University of London (UK) in 1994.

UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA (b. 1969)

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, CHAIRPERSON OF THE
MANAGEMENT BOARD

Ms Shayakhmetova was appointed chairperson of the Management Board of Halyk
Bank on 22 January 2009. She was elected a member of the Board of Directors in
April 2009 and re-elected to the same post in April 2017. Over the years, she served
as chairperson of the Management Board of ABN AMRO Asset Management and
deputy chairperson of the Management Board of ABN AMRO Bank Kazakhstan. She
became deputy chairperson of Halyk Bank in November 2004. Since May 2011, she
has been president of the Gymnastics Federation of Kazakhstan. In June 2015, she
was elected chairperson of the Regional Council of Business Women at the
Chamber of Entrepreneurs in Almaty. In June 2016, she was appointed chairperson
of the Financial Sector Committee of the Presidium of the Atameken National
Chamber of Entrepreneurs and chairperson of the Regional Council Eastern Europe,
Central Asia, Russia and Caucasus at UnionPay International. Ms Shayakhmetova is
an economics graduate of the People's Friendship University named after P.
Lumumba, Moscow, and holds an MBA from Rutgers University, New Jersey, US.
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LEAD
FROM THE FRONT!

FORWARD

In football, the forward is an offensive player who plays
closetothe opponent's goal. Also called a striker, a forward
has the primary responsibility of scoring goals. For most of
the game, the forward is either in or close to the box,
constantly seeking to create scoring opportunities, which
is why they are often referred to as a “fox in the box”". The
most important thing for a forward is to be in the right
placeatthe righttime andkick the ball skilfully.
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UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA (b. 1969)

CHAIRPERSON OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Please refertothe "Board of Directors" section

MANAGEMENT
BOARD



28

MARAT ALMENOV (b. 1976)
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: RETAIL BANKING, SECURITY AND PROBLEM LOANS

ALIYAKARPYKOVA (b.1970)

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON: FINANCE, ACCOUNTING AND SUBSIDIARIES

Mr Almenov started his career at Halyk Bankin 1997 as a corporate lending banker. He
has also held the positions of loan officer, risk manager, head of the retail unit in the
credit risk department, deputy director responsible for retail banking in the Astana
regional branch of the Bank, deputy director of the retail sales department, director of
the retail sales support department, director of the banking products and agency
services department, and director of the Almaty regional branch of the Bank. Since
June 2010, Mr Almenov has been deputy chairman of the Management Board of
Halyk Bank. In February 2016, he was elected chairman of the Board of Halyk Life. In
April 2016, he was elected chairman of the Board of Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan. Mr
Almenov is an economics graduate of the Kazakh State Academy of Management
with majorin Creditand Finance.

Ms Karpykova has worked in the Kazakh banking system since 1992. From 1992 to
1996, she held various positions at the National Bank of Kazakhstan. From 1996 to
1997, Ms Karpykova worked in Barents Group as an adviser on a project on
accounting reform in the Kazakh banking system. From 1998 to 2001, she was the
director of the financial control and administration department and then a member
of the Management Board - chief accountant of Citibank Kazakhstan. From 2001 to
2004, she was managing director and then first deputy chairman of the Management
Board of Nauryz Bank Kazakhstan. She has worked at Halyk Bank since 2004, including
as managing director responsible for risk management, head of risk management,
and finance director. She has been deputy chairperson of the Management Board of
Halyk Bank since October 2011, Board member of Kazakhinstrakh since 2016 and
Board member of Kazkommertsbank since 2017. Ms Karpykova has a degree in
political economy from Al-Farabi Kazakh National University.
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|
MURAT KOSHENOQV, CFA,FRM (b.1973)

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: CORPORATE BANKING AND INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITIES

|
KUAT KUSSAINBEKOV (b. 1966)

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN:IT

Mr Koshenov has worked in the banking sector since 2000. From 2002 to 2010, he
worked firstas head of broker-dealer operations at ABN AMRO Asset Management, and
then as risk manager, head of the risk management division and deputy chairman of
the Management Board at SB ABN AMRO Bank Kazakhstan (later SB RBS (Kazakhstan)).
He joined Halyk Bank in January 2010 as chief risk officer and then became compliance
controller.He has been deputy chairman of the Management Board of Halyk Bank since
September 2014 and chairman of the Board of NBK-Bank since 2016. Mr Koshenov has
a degree in physics from Al-Farabi Kazakh National University and an MBA from the
Kazakhstan Institute of Economics, Management and Strategic Research.

Mr Kussainbekov joined Halyk Bank in November 1999 and has extensive experience in [T
at the Bank, having been head of banking systems design in the IT department; head of
banking information system design and development - deputy director of the IT
department; deputy director of the IT department; deputy director of the information
systems department; director of the [T department; managing director — director of the
information systems department; director of the information systems department at the
head office; managing director; and chief IT director. He has been deputy chairman of the
Management Board of Halyk Bank since February 2015. Mr Kussainbekov has a degree in
automated control systems from the Kazakh Polytechnic Institute named after V. Lenin.
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|
YERTAISALIMOV (b. 1974)

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: OPERATIONS AND TREASURY

ASLANTALPAKOV (b. 1975)

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: SME BANKING, MARKETING AND PR, AND MAINTENANCE

Mr Salimov joined Halyk Bank in August 1995 and has extensive experience of
operations at the Bank, having worked as deputy head of the non-trading operations
and the precious metals desks in the foreign exchange operations department; a
leading banker on the Precious metals handling and the precious metals desks in the
international operations department; chief banker on the commodity desk in the
trade finance department; chief banker on the commodity desk in the commercial
department; senior dealer in the treasury; head of forex, money market operations
and head of trading operations in the treasury; deputy director and director in the
treasury; head of the chief operations department; and chief operating officer. He has
been deputy chairman of the Management Board of Halyk Bank since February 2015.
Since February 2016, he has also been a member of the Board and independent
director of the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange and chairman of the Board of Halyk
Finance. Mr Salimov has a degree in finance and credit from the Kazakh State
Academy of Management with majorin Creditand Finance.

MrTalpakov began his careerin 1999 as an accountantand then a financial analyst
atthe Allied Supportjointventure. Later,he was a lead specialistin the dealingand
international settlement departmentat Nurbank, and then a specialistin the retail
customer department, an account manager, a settlement unit manager and a
branch director at ABN AMRO Bank Kazakhstan in Atyrau. From 2009 to 2011, he
worked asamanager in the corporate clientdepartmentat SB RBS (Kazakhstan) in
Almaty. Mr Talpakov joined the Bank in July 2011, when he became head of the
corporate client department. He has been deputy chairman of the Management
Board of Halyk Bank since July 2015. He was elected chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Halyk Project in January 2016 and chairman of the Board of Directors of
Halyk Leasing in March 2016. MrTalpakov has a bachelor's degree in international
businessmanagementfromVarna Free University.
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LEAD
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SOLO PLAYER

The soloist is the undisputed leader of any creative team, its
brightest star. It is no coincidence that the termis so common
in art, because it is the soloist who performs key vocal or
dance parties, inspiring, captivating and admiring spectators
with his or her talent.
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JANUARY

m  Halyk Banklaunches a beta version of its new website using advanced T solutions to make
the site more modern, capable and user friendly by introducing numerous new features

FEBRUARY

m  Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan registers its ninth stock issue, placing an additional
131,616 common shares at a price of KGS500 each for atotal of KGS65.8 million

MARCH

m  HalykBanksignsanon-binding memorandum of understanding regarding the
acquisition of a controlling interest in Kazkommertsbank with the government
of Kazakhstan, the National Bank of Kazakhstan, Kazkommertsbank, BTA Bank
andKenges Rakishev,amajor shareholderin Kazkommertsbank

m  HalykFinance wins Cbonds' most prestigious award, “Best Investment Bank in
Kazakhstan2017"

m  Kazkommerts Securities wins Cbonds'“Best Bookrunner Kazakhstan I"award for 2017

APRIL

m Halyk Finance is recognised the “Best Investment Bank in Kazakhstan 2016" by
EMEA Finance, marking the seventh time in a row thatit has won the title

m  Halyk Finance wins EMEA Finance Achievement Awards for a record seventh year
in a row: in "The Best Sub-Sovereign Bond in EMEA" category, EMEA Finance
recognised Kazakhstan Temir Zholy's KZT50 billion, 10-year bond, in which Halyk
Finance acted as the Sole Financial Adviser and Bookrunner

m Due to the expiration of the term of office of Halyk Bank's Board of Directors, the
Annual General Shareholder Meeting decided to elect the following Board
membersforathree-yearterm: Alexander Pavlov, Anvar Saidenov, Arman Dunaev,
Christof Ruehl, Frank Kuijlaars, Mazhit Yessenbayevand Umut Shayakhmetova

m Alkyn Kabulov is appointed chairman of the Management Board of Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan

m  GalymKalmurzayevisappointed CEO of Halyk Project

m  AM.Best confirmsits financial strength rating of 'B+' (Good) and issuer credit
rating of 'bbb' forKazakhinstrakh, the outlook'stable’

MAY

m  Halyk Bank repaid on schedule and in full using the Bank's own funds its

US$638million, 10-year, 7.25% Eurobond

m  TheBoard of Directors resolves to end the membership on the Management Board
of Aivar Bodanov, Deputy Chairman, starting from 20 May at his own initiative

JUNE

m  Halyk Banksigns a framework agreement regarding the acquisition of a controlling
interest in Kazkommertsbank with the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan
(representing the government of Kazakhstan), the National Bank of Kazakhstan,
Sovereign Wealth Fund Samruk-Kazyna, the Problem Loans Fund, BTA Bank,
Kazkommertsbank and Kenges Rakishev, a major shareholder in Kazkommertsbank

m  Halyk Bank signs an agreement with China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
and China Shuangwei Investment Co., Ltd regarding the sale of a 60% stake in
AltynBank,asubsidiary of Halyk Bank

m HalykFinance acts as Joint Lead Manager for Kazakhstan Temir Zholy's RUB 15 billion
(around US$ 264 million) 5-year bond placement with dual listing on the Moscow
Exchange and Kazakhstan Stock Exchange. The transaction marks the first ever
bond issue on the Russian market out of Kazakhstan and the first ever corporate
bond issue by a foreign issuer on the Russian market out of the whole CIS region

m  Halyk Bank signs sales contracts with Kenges Rakishev for the acquisition of
86.09% of the common shares of Kazkommertsbank and, separately, with
Sovereign Wealth Fund Samruk-Kazyna for the acquisition of 10.72% of the
common shares of Kazkommertsbank

m  The Board of Directors resolves to end the membership on the Management Board of
Askar Smagulov, Deputy Chairman, starting from 1 June due to his transfer to the post of
adviser to the staff of the Bank's Board of Directors and Management Board, while he will
remain chairman of the Management Board of Altyn Bank

JULY
m  Halyk Bank completes the acquisition of 96.81% of the common shares of
Kazkommertsbank

m  HalykBankrecapitalises KazkommertsbankforKZT185 billion

HalykBankandKazkommertsbankbeginto merge their ATM networks

m  Following Kazkommertsbank's recapitalisation and consolidation with Halyk Group,
S&P upgrades its long-term issuer credit rating for Kazkommertsbank from 'B-'to
'B+, confirms its short-term issuer credit rating at 'B, and upgrades its national-scale
rating from 'kzB+' to 'kzBBB-, while Moody's upgrades its issuer credit rating for
Kazkommertsbankfrom '‘Caa2'to 'B1'and its deposit rating from 'B3' to 'Ba2'

m  Moody's upgrades its independent issuer credit rating for Altyn Bank from 'Ba3' to 'Ba2,
confirms its long- and short-term deposit ratings for the bank at 'Ba2/Not Prime; and
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changes the outlook on its 'Ba2' long-term deposit ratings from 'negative' to 'stable’

m  AltynBank's Altyn-i brand receives Global Finance's“Digital Banks of Distinction Award”

m  HalykBankisrecognisedthe"BestBankin Kazakhstan'by Euromoney

m  AM. Best confirms its financial strength rating of 'B+' and issuer credit rating of
'bbb-'for Halyk Life, maintaining 'negative' outlook on both ratings

m  HalykBank's subsidiary Kazteleport receives the status of a payment organisation

AUGUST

m  HalykBankand Kazkommertsbank make it possible for their clients' payment cards
tobe topped up in the merged ATM network with no additional commission

m  Kazakhinstrakh begins to sell bundled insurance products to individuals,
including through Halyk Bank's network

m  Halyk Bank and Kazakhstan's postal service, Kazpochta, sign a memorandum of cooperation

m  UmutShayakhmetova and Halyk Bank are recognised among the“Bestin 2016"in
PwC's "Kazakhstan edition of the 20th Annual Global CEO Survey 2017, which
was conducted with editorial support from Forbes Kazakhstan

SEPTEMBER

m  Fitch Ratings confirms its long-term issuer default rating for Halyk Finance at
‘BB in foreign and local currency, the outlook 'stable’; its short-term issuer
defaultratingat'B'inforeignandlocal currency;anditssupportratingat'3'

m  Fitch Ratings upgrades Kazkommertsbank's long-term ratings to BB-, in foreign and
local currency; short-term ratings to ‘B, its strength rating to 'b’; its support rating to '3
and sets the outlook for the long- and short-term ratings at 'stable’

m  PwCKazakhstan confirms that Halyk Bank's internal audit function complies with
the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and
the Code of Ethics

m  HalykBankreopensoneofitsoutletsin Almaty after capital repairs

m  Halyk Bank completes successfully the recertification audit for its information security
management system's compliance with the ISO/IEC 27001:2013 international standard

OCTOBER

m  AltynBankisrecognisedthe”BestSubcustodian BankinKazakhstanfor2017”
by GlobalFinance

m  Kazkommertsbank and Visa launch Homebank Pay, a mobile payment solution

that allows customers to use quick response (QR) codes to pay for purchases and
makes it possible for businesses to accept cashless payments without point-of-

sales terminals, which makes settlement processes simpler and less expensive

Kazkommerts Securities is recognised the “Best Investment Bank in Kazakhstan”

byWorld Finance

NOVEMBER

Holding Group ALMEX acquires 25.05% of the common shares of Kazkommertsbank
Halyk Finance wins EMEA Finance Achievement Awards for a record seventh year
in a row: in the "Best Local Currency Bond in EMEA" category, EMEA Finance
recognised KazAgroFinance's KZT8 billion, five-year bond, in which Halyk
Finance acted as the Sole Financial Adviser and Lead Bookrunner

Kazteleport registers a new brand, SmartCloud, which will offer the following
services for SME customers: Cloud 1C, virtual datacentres (laaS), and virtual
dedicated servers (VDS/VPS)

Halyk Finance successfully acted as a Joint Bookrunner in US$780 million 10-year
Eurobond issuance and placement by National Company Kazakhstan Temir
Zholy.This groundbreaking transaction has become an integral part of the issuer's
complex liability management project to enhance the Company's debt profile

DECEMBER

Fitch Ratings confirms its long-term issuer default rating for Altyn Bank at 'BB; in
foreign and local currency, and leaves the bank's ratings on Rating Watch Positive,
alistof ratings that may be upgraded

Halyk Finance is recognised at Cbonds Awards 2017 in the “Best Foreign Issuer
Deal” category for Kazakhstan Temir Zholy's debut rouble bond placement, a
RUBI1S billion, five-year placement via KTZh Finance in June 2017 in which Halyk
Finance acted as Joint Lead Manager

Halyk Finance has successfully acted as a Joint Bookrunner in the debut Tenge-
denominated KZT 100 bn 3-year Eurobond by Development Bank of Kazakhstan.
This transaction has marked the first-ever public Eurotenge bond offering to a
wide range of international and domestic investors by a Kazakhstaniissuer

Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan and Guarantee Fund sign a cooperation agreement to
support SMEsin Kyrgyzstan

Fitch Ratings confirms its long-term issuer default rating for Halyk Bank Georgia at
‘BB-, inforeign currency, the outlook 'stable’

Halyk Bank's Board of Directors approves the integration via merger of
Kazkommertsbankinto Halyk Bank

In Global Finance's 18th annual awards, Halyk Bank is recognised the “Best
Foreign Exchange Providerin Kazakhstan 2018"
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CHAMPION

Whenitcomes to a sports match, nothing is more important
than victory. Every athlete dreams of winning, because the
image of a champion is the embodiment of all the hopes
and aspirations of anyone who has devoted his life to sport.
However, the championship philosophy is not just limited to
illustrious victories and new records. To be the first, to be a
champion is to serve the great Olympic idea of triumph in
spiritand its great potential.
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HALYKBANK

KAZKOMMERTS SECURITIES

3030 30 30 30

DAMUFUND
Best BankforRegional Business Support

EUROMONEY
BestBankin Kazakhstan

GLOBALFINANCE
Best Foreign Exchange Provider in Kazakhstanin 2018

KASE
Diploma“For Pursuit of Transparency”

Market Leader

HALYKFINANCE

30 303030 3030

CBONDS
The Best Investment Bankin Kazakhstan 2017

Best Foreign Issuer Deal 2017

EMEA FINANCE
The BestInvestment Bankin Kazakhstan 2016

The Best Sub-Sovereign Bond in EMEA
The Best Local Currency Bond in EMEA

KASE
Market Maker of the Year in Corporate Bonds

CBONDS
{:) Best Financial Markets research in Kazakhstan
A

{:} Best Underwriter in Kazakhstan
i
WORLD FINANCE

{:) Best Investment Bankin Kazakhstan
LA

ALTYN BANK

GLOBALFINANCE
Best Subcustodian Bankin Kazakhstan for 2017

ALTYN BANK'S ALTYN-IBRAND

GLOBALFINANCE
Digital Banks of Distinction Award
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FIRST STAR

Sirius, also known as Alpha Canis Majoris, is the brightest star
system that appears as the first star in Earth's night sky. Its
luminosity exceeds that of our Sun by 22 times. While Sirius'
brightness is by no means rare for stars, its record visible
brilliance is duetoits relative proximity to Earth. Sirius can be
seen from any region on Earth, except the northernmost
points. Sirius is 8.67 light years away from our solar system
andis one of the closest stars to us.
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KAZAKHSTAN'SECONOMYIN 2017

In2017,Kazakhstan'seconomy grew 4% after the previous two years of stagnation,
slightly outpacing the average global growth of 3.6%. The result was due to a
combination of several factors, such as the significant increase in raw material
prices, greater production volumes of oil and other natural resources and
continued highinvestmentgrowth,including government spending.

The average annual price of Brent crude during the reporting period rose by US$10
perbarrelto US$54 per barrel and prices for key industrial metals climbed by more
than 20%. Since October 2017, Brenthas hovered above US$60 perbarrel.

The maingrowthdriversweretheindustrial sector (up 7.1%), transport (up 4.8%), to
lesserextent, telecommunications (up 3.3%), trade (up 3.2%), agriculture (up 2.9%)
and construction (up 1.9%).Investment played animportantrole, rising by 5.5%.

OIL PRICES REINVIGORATE ECONOMIC GROWTH
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Halfoftheindustrial sector'sgrowthwasduetotheincreaseinoil productionat
the Kashagan field. Encouraging trends were also seen in metals, oil refining,
pharmaceuticals, textile and otherindustrial sectors. Most of the growth came
from the oil-producing Western Kazakhstan, with more moderate improve-
mentsinAstana, Almatyandotherareas.

AFTER SIX YEARS OF STAGNATION, INDUSTRY GROWS BY 7% IN 2017
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Sources: Kazakhstan's Miistry of National Economy Statstics Committee

In 2017, the government's economic stimulus programme continued.
Consolidated budget expenditures totalled 25% of GDP, compared with 22%in the
previous year. The primary cause for the increase in spending was the injection of
KZT2.1trillioningovernmentfunding to supportthe banking system.

Similar to 2016, the Nurly Zhol government infrastructure programme
continued, with KZT472 billion allocated from the state budgetin 2017. It is due
torunthroughto2019andfocusesoninfrastructure construction.

In 2017, the government launched its new Nurly Zher housing construction
programme, which will run through to 2031. Roughly KZT140 billion in budget funds
have been allocated for the programme, which aims to support a high volume of
housing construction and stimulate the acquisition of housing with mortgage subsidies.

Government debt rose moderately during the reporting period to 26% of GDP.On the
positive side, the cost of borrowing has fallen, as money market rates have stabilised
afterthe base rate has decreased and the national currency has strengthened.

Tax revenues to the National Fund in 2017 almost doubled to KZT2 trillion.
However, transfers from the state budget increased by 50% to KZT4.4 trillion and
investmentincome was some KZT1.6trillion.In 2017, the total in the National Fund
fell by KZT1.3 trillion to KZT23.1 trillion, or 45% of GDP. The reduction in the fund's
assets was affected by the allocation of around KZT1 trillion as part of a support
packagefor problembankstotalling KZT2.1 trillion.

Government agencies worked to improve business conditions for entrepreneurs

through adjustments to the Tax Code and Customs Code. The aim is for the private
sectortodrive economic growth by lowering the barriers to private initiative.

MACRO-
ECONOMIC
AND BANKING
REVIEW




41

GOVERNMENT SPENDING GROWTH IN 2017 DUE TO BANKING SECTOR SUPPORT
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Sources: Kazakhstan' Ministry of Finance and Ministry of National Economy Staisics Committee.

The consolidated international reserves of Kazakhstan's National Bank and National Fund
totalled US$89 billion at the end of 2017. This marks a reduction of US$1.9 billion, as the National
Fund's assets fell by around US$3 billion while the National Bank's reserves rose by US$1 billion.

The National Bank gradually eased its monetary policy in 2017, targeting its
interventions on the foreign exchange market to smooth fluctuations in the
national currency. In the year, the average annual exchange rate of the tenge
strengthened by 5% to KZT326 against the US dollar. While the volume of National
Bankinterventions was low, they had a rather high impact on the foreign exchange
rate. In August and September, the National Bank allowed the national currency to
weaken substantially, though its monetary policy helped the exchange rate to more
adequately reflect the fundamental factors governing the tenge exchangerrate.

Throughout the year, inflation remained within the National Bank's corridor of 6-
8% and ended the reporting period near the middle of the target at 7.1%,
compared with 8.5%in 2016.This helped the base rate to gradually decline by 1.75
percentage pointsto 10.25% by theend of 2017.

The National Bank continued to soak up excess liquidity using treasury notes,
despite the 2.7 percentage point year-on-year reduction in their yield. Short-term
money market rates held steady near the lower boundary of the corridor. This
helped banks to continue accumulating liquidity despite the reduced appeal of
money market instruments. The National Bank used its instruments to sterilise the
funds injected to support the banking sector, which caused the amount of
liquidity taken fromthe markettogrowinmidtolate 2017.

MONEY MARKET TRENDS
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KAZAKHSTAN'S BANKING SECTORIN 2017 ]

In 2017, Kazakhstan's banking sector underwent massive transformation

processes that had a strong impact on its development. The system's hidden

issues, including increased problem loan levels and inadequate capitalisation, MACRO-
continued to exert considerable pressure on banks, leading some to merge, lose  ECONOMIC
their banking licences or exit the market. The lack of trust in the banking system AND BANKING
among the population and businesses caused a serious deposit outflow. As a

result, the banking system's share of the economy shrank in 2017. The share of REVIEW

loansto GDP was 24.6%, compared with 27.1%in 2016',and the share of banking

assetstoGDPtotalled 46.8%,compared with 54.4%ayearearlier.

The most important event of 2017 was the implementation of the programme aimed
at strengthening the banking sector's financial stability. Two parts of the programme
had a vital impact on the sector: measures aimed at improving financial stability of
Kazkommertsbank, a systemically important bank; and separate measures aimed at
improving financial strength of major financial organisations.

Kazkommertsbank's significant and sizable loan portfolio problems grew rapidly
in early 2017, threatening major consequences for the entire banking sector. As
such, the government's assistance in repaying BTA Bank's overdue loan to
Kazkommertsbank, allowing it to retain the funds of depositors and creditors, was
oneofthemostimportantand timely events.

These and all further figures are sourced from the National Bank's Statistical Bulletin
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The state's prompt support with KZT2.4 trillion in funding helped to restore
Kazkommertsbank's financial stability, but it still faced the problems of negative
capitalisation and disruptions in its operations. Halyk Bank's acquisition of
Kazkommertsbank helped to solve these matters. In late 2017, Halyk Bank's Board
of Directorsapprovedtheintegration of the two organisations through the merger
ofKazkommertsbankintoHalykBank.

As part of other measures aimed atimproving the financial stability of major banks,
by the end of the year, the National Bank had allocated KZT500 billion out of a total
of KZT650 billion in financial support approved for 2017. Supportincluded funding
intheform of subordinated debt with 15-year maturity at preferential interest rates.
As part of this programme, the shareholders of participating banks are expected to
recapitalise them to create additional reserves (provisions) on loan losses. Five
banksinKazakhstan received financial supportunder this programme:Tsesnabank,
Bank CenterCredit, ATF Bank, Eurasian Bankand Bank RBK.

In 2017, the banking sector remained awash with liquidity, which banks placed in
National Bank monetary instruments. Overall, the volume of funds sterilised by the
National Bank rose by KZT649 billion to a gross total of KZT3.8 trillion at the end of
2017 (28% of theloan portfolio held by second-tier banks).

The National Bank's base rate dropped by 1.75 percentage points year-on-year to
10.25% +/-1 percentage point. In January 2018, it was unexpectedly reduced by
another 0.5 percentage points to 9.75% +/-1 percentage point, suggesting that
the National Bankis working to stimulate banklending.

Duetotheinsignificantimprovementinthe non-energy sectors of theeconomyin
2017,demandforloansfromlegal entities remained low, despite the National Bank
gradually relaxing its monetary policy. The reduction of the base rate in 2017,
however, lead toarathersignificantincrease onlyinconsumerlending by banks.

In 2017, credit to the economy decreased by 0.02% to KZT12.7 trillion. The reduced loan
portfolio was mostly related to the implementation of the programme to improve the
banking sector's financial stability and the partial elimination of problem loans from the sector.
Corporate loans fell by 5.8% during the reporting period, while consumer loans grew by 124%.

Loan-loss provision levelsamong second-tier banks rose by 5 percentage points
to 15.6% by the year-end. The share of loans overdue by more than 90 days

increased by 2.6 percentage points to 9.3% of the loan portfolio, mostly due to
the additional problem loans discovered at Kazkommertsbank during the
acquisition process.The National Bankand international rating agencies believe
thatthetruelevelof problemloansinthe banking systemissignificantly higher.

The deposit outflow totalled 3% in 2017, compared with an inflow of 13% in
2016.The sharp drop in corporate deposits during the reporting period (down
8.1%)waspartlycompensatedbyanincreaseinconsumerdeposits (up 3.7%).

The free-floating tenge exchange rate and large difference in interest rates on
foreign currency and tenge denominated deposits resulted in significant
decrease of deposit dollarisation levels. The share of deposits denominated in
foreign currencies fell by 6.7 percentage points, from 54.5% in 2016 to 47.8% in
2017. This was largely due to foreign-currency deposits of individuals, which
sharedroppedby 9.9 percentage pointsfrom62%t052.3%.

Compared with 2016, banking margins were negative in 2017 due to the sector's
ongoing transformation processes. The overall banking sector posted a net loss of
KZT62.3 billion for the reporting period (including closing turnover). Based on the
unaudited data, excluding Kazkommertsbank, Bank RBKand Delta Bank, the sector
posted a net profit of KZT479 billion in 2017, up 69.2% year-on-year from KZT283
billionin 2016. Again excluding the same three banks, the sector's ROAE was 17.3%
in 2017, compared with 10.6% in 2016. When the sector's audited results are
released, they could well show an increase in provisioning among participants of
thegovernment's programme toimprove the banking sector's financial stability.

MACRO-
ECONOMIC
AND BANKING
REVIEW
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THE FIRST SATELITE

On 4 October 1957, the USSR launched the world's first
artificial Earth satellite into space. This event made it
possible not only to collect data about atmospheric density
at orbital heights, but also to research the distribution of
radio signals in the ionosphere and to issues regarding
launches into orbit. The event also marked the beginning of
anew era of space exploration by humankind.
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In 2017, the Group's net income increased by 31.9% year-on-year to KZT173.4 billion,
driven byarisein netinterestincome of 23.5%.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Compared with 2016, interest income grew by 52.3%, spurred by an increase in
average balances of interest-earning assets of 51.1%. That itself came mainly from the
consolidation of Kazkommertsbank assets in 3Q 2017, as well as Group purchases of
National Bank notes starting from 2Q 2016.

INTERESTINCOMEBY ASSETS, KZT BILLION
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Interest expense grew by 60.6% year-on-year in 2017.This was mostly due to an increase in
average balances on interest-bearing liabilities of 42.5%, as well as a rise in average interest
rates on amounts to customers (from 3.7% to 4.1% p.a.) and debt securities issued (from
7.7%10 8.5% p.a) following the consolidation of Kazkommertsbank assets in 3Q 2017.

INTEREST EXPENSE BY LIABILITIES, KZT BILLION
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As a result, net interest income before impairment charge increased by 44.5%
year-on-yeartoKZT248.5billionin2017.

In4Q 2017, interestincome grew by 8.4% compared with 3Q2017,duetoanincrease
in average balances of interest-earning assets of 15.7%. Interest expense decreased
by 0.9% quarter-on-quarter, due to a decrease in average interest rates on interest-
bearing liabilities from 5.5% to 4.7% p.a. As a result, compared with 3Q 2017, net
interest income before impairment charge increased by 20.1% to KZT81.7 billion.

The net interest margin decreased to 4.9% p.a. in 2017, compared with 5.5% p.a. in
2016, mainly driven by Kazkommertsbank's lower net interest margin and the
reclassification of Altyn Bank's interest earning-assets into assets held for sale. The net
interest margin remained almost flat at 4.9% p.a. for 4Q 2017, compared with 4.8%
p.a.for3Q2017, while interest rates on the interest-bearing liabilities decreased.

NETINTEREST MARGIN AND NET INTEREST SPREAD

55%

la.9% N Netinterest margin

Netinterest spread

Impairment charge increased by 165.9% year-on-year in 2017, mainly due to the
consolidation of Kazkommertsbank's loan portfolio starting from 3Q 2017.The cost of
risk rose to 2.2% p.a. in 2017, compared with 1.0% p.a. in 2016, and to 4.8% p.a. in 4Q
2017,compared with 1.1% p.a.for4Q 2016.

PROVISIONS ONLOANS TO CUSTOMERS, KZTBILLION

285 280 283 290
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4Q 2017
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Fee and commission income rose by 51.9% year-on-year in 2017, largely as a result of the
Kazkommertsbank consolidation, as well as growing volumes of transactional banking,
mainly in payment card maintenance, cash operations and bank transfers-settlements.

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME IS DERIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING
SOURCES, KZT MILLION

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
AR

Payment cards maintenance 23,332

Bank transfers-settlements 18943 14,438
Cash operations 18,159 10,353
Servicing customers' pension payments 7,776 6,953
Bank transfers (salary projects) 7261 6912
Letters of credit and guarantees issued 5406 3818
Maintenance of customer accounts 3,006 1,884
Other 3,757 2,223

Othernon-interestincomeincreased toKZT106.3 billionin 2017, compared with
KZT43.0 billion in 2016. This rise was largely attributable to the consolidation of
Kazkommertsbank's insurance subsidiaries, as well as growth in the Group's
insurance business.Inaddition, othernon-interestincomeincreasedduetoanet
gainfrom financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, mainly
fromtheKazkommertsbankconsolidation.

Operating expenses (including impairment loss of assets held for sale) climbed
by 63.8% year-on-year in 2017, mainly due to the Kazkommertsbank
consolidation,aswellasanincreaseinthe Group'sexpensesonsalariesand other
employee benefits, professional services and taxes. Salaries and other employee
benefitsincreased,driven by higherbonusreservesaccruedyear-on-yearandan
overall rise in salaries from 1 June 2017; this was partly offset by a reversal in 3Q
2017 of bonus reserves accrued by Kazkommertsbank. The rise in professional
services and taxes was due to external consultancy fees in connection with the
purchase of Kazkommertsbankandsale of 60%in Altyn Bank.

OPERATING EXPENSES, KZT MILLION*
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The Group's cost-to-income ratio increased to 29.5% in 2017, compared with 28.1%in
2016, amid faster growth in operating expenses versus operating income. Operating
income rose by 56.1%, driven by higher interest income, net fees and commissions, a
positive revaluation of derivative instruments in 3Q 2017 and a realised net gain on
trading operationsin 4Q 2017,

COST-TO-INCOME RATIO
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

In 2017, total assets increased by 65.6% year-on-year, mainly due to the Kazkommertsbank
consolidation. Compared with 2016, the Group's assets, excluding those of
Kazkommertsbank, rose by 3.1%, mainly due to loan and securities portfolio growth.

Compared with 2016, loans to customers increased by 37.0% on a gross basis and
40.2% on a net basis, driven by the consolidation of Kazkommertsbank's loan portfolio.
TOTAL GROSS LOANS BY SECTORS, KZT BILLION

2,265 2,481

238% 26.5%
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The aggregate 90-day NPL ratio for Halyk Bank and Kazkommertsbank was 12.1% at the
end of 2017, compared with 13.4% as at 30 September 2017. This decrease was mainly
due to the write-off and repayment of problem loans by Halyk Bank and
Kazkommertsbank.

NPL90DAYS+, KZTBILLION
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Allowances for loan impairment increased by 11.4% year-on-year in 2017, mainly
asaresult of additional provisions created againstimpaired loans in the portfolios
of HalykBankand Kazkommertsbank.

Deposits of legal entities and individuals rose by 43.8% and 81.0%, respectively,
compared with 2016, mainly due to the consolidation of Kazkommertsbank assets
and liabilities. As at 31 December 2017, the share of tenge deposits in total corporate
deposits was 48.3%, compared with 52.19% as at 30 September 2017 and 36.8% at the
end of 2016. Meanwhile, the share of tenge deposits in total retail deposits was
40.7%, compared with 37.7%as at 30 September 2017 and 32.1%at the end of 2016.

DEPOSITS OF LEGALENTITIES BY CURRENCY, KZT BILLION

01.01.2017 01.01.2018
63.2% 51.7%
2,105 3,028
RETAILDEPOSITSBY CURRENCY,KZTBILLION
01.01.2017 01.01.2018
67.9% 59.3%
1,715 3,104
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Amounts due to credit institutions increased by 57.4% year-on-year in 2017, mainly
due to Group REPO transactions with the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange in4Q2017 and
the consolidation of Kazkommertsbankin 3Q 2017. At the end of 2017, 47.5% of the
Group's obligations to financial institutions was represented by loans from the
KazAgro national management holding, DAMU development fund and
Development Bank of Kazakhstan. They were drawn in 2014-17 as part of
government programmes supporting certain sectors ofeconomy.

Compared with 2016, debt securities issued increased by 64.5%, mainly due to the
consolidation of Kazkommertsbank's securities portfolio in 3Q 2017. At the end of
2017,the Group'sdebt securities portfolio was as follows:

Description of security Nominal amount Interest rate Maturity date
outstanding

ISSUED BY HALYK BANK

Eurobond US$500 min 7.25% pa. January 2021
Local bonds placed with the o

Unified Accumulative Pension Fund ~ <Z1100 DI 75%pa. November 2024
Local bonds placed with the

Unified Accumulative Pension Fund e i 7FoRE, eIy A0
ISSUED BY KAZKOMMERTSBANK*

Eurobond US$300 min 8.5% p.a. May 2018
Eurobond US$750 min 5.5%p.a December 2022
Subordinated coupon

a5 US$ 100 min USD Libor + 6.1905%  Perpetual

Local bonds KZT94.2 bin 8.75% pa. January 2022
Local bonds KZT59.9 bin 84% p.a. November 2019
Subordinated coupon bonds KZT101.1 bin 9.5% p.a October 2025
Subordinated coupon bonds KZT3.5 bin i(zﬂ?g?]:v‘;nsdgeox/fg a) April 2019
Subordinated coupon bonds KZT10 bln '@Sﬁ;‘ﬁ@ 8‘8%/5:)93 November 2018

Excluding debt securities of Kazkommertsbank's Russian subsidiary totalling RUB121.2 million

In 2017, total equity increased by 40.4% year-on-year. This was mainly due to the net
profit earned by the Group in the year, as well as the Kazkommertsbank consolidation
in 3Q 2017 and the additional capital injection of KZT65.2 billion into it by the Group's
major shareholder, Holding Group Almex, on 15 November 2017.

Attheend of 2017, the capital adequacy ratios were as follows:

| Joo20s Joaoo Joroza07 foroa207+ foroiz07

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS, UNCONSOLIDATED:

HALYK BANK

K1-1 21.5% 202% 221% 21.3% 19.2%
K1-2 21.5% 20.2% 22.1% 21.3% 19.2%
K2 214% 20.1% 221% 21.3% 19.2%
K1-1 18.0% 13.1%

K1-2 19.9% 15.0%

K2 26.9% 10.3%

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS, CONSOLIDATED:

CET 16.9% 15.4% 21.6% 21.5% 19.4%
Tier 1 capital 16.9% 15.8% 21.6% 21.5% 19.4%
Tier 2 capital 18.9% 17.8% 21.6% 21.5% 19.4%

The regulator increased minimum capital adequacy requirements starting from 1 January 2017: K1 -
9.5%, K1-2 - 10.5% and K2 - 12.0%, including a conservation buffer of 3% and systemic buffer of 1% for
eachofthem
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LOCOMOTIVE

The word“locomotive” combines two Latin words: loco and
motivus, denoting the process of shifting from a place.
Locomotives vary by type of engine, the most common
being the legendary steam trains, electric locomotives and
diesellocomotives. At the head of a train, itis the locomotive
that sets the movement for other wagons. One interesting
note: the power and energy of a locomotive inspired the
Lumiere brothersto create thefirst ever film.
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Halyk Bank's core business focuses on retail, corporate and SME banking. Through subsidiaries,
the Bank also provides insurance, leasing, asset management and brokerage services.

RETAILBANKING

RETAILDEPOSITS

In2017,the deposit portfolioamong second-tierbanksin Kazakhstanincreased by
KZT312billion (around 3.94%) to KZT8.2 trillion, of which Halyk Bank accounted for
KZT1.64 trillion. The Bank retained its leading position with a market share of
19.89%, compared with 20.65%as of 1 January 2017,and ashare of term deposits of
19.14%, compared with 19.88%at the start of the year.

The Bank's retail deposits expanded by KZT2,243 million during the reporting period.

In2017,theBankintroduced anewretail deposit product:

m  HALYK-EXCELLENCE DEPOSIT. This product offers customers the ability to
open a deposit via the online banking system with a minimum initial
deposit/balance of KZT5,000 or US$20.

The deposit is aimed at increasing the number of remote sales channel users and
meets clients' expectations for opening deposits without visiting the Bank's branches.

RETAILLENDING

Halyk Bank's retail loan portfolio grew by 3.7% year-on-year in 2017.The main driver of retail
lending was consumer loans, which accounted for more than 72% of the Bank's overall
loan portfolio. The total amount of retail loans issued during the year was KZT313 billion.

In2017,the Bank's share of the retail lending market was 14.98%.
During the reporting period, the Bank introduced the following new retail lending products:

m  UNSECURED LOANS WITH LIFE INSURANCE. This product aims to provide
retail loans to residents of Kazakhstan who are part of the Bank's payroll
project and would like to obtain life insurance in case of an accident. The
productwasimplementedin partnership with Halyk-Life.

m  HALYK LIGHT DEFERRED PAYMENT CARD. This card has a set renewable limit for the
purchase of goods or services in the Bank's partner network. All purchases are split into
equal payments depending on the chosen term of three, six, nine or 12 months. For
terms of three or six months, purchases are offered without advance payment or interest.
The partner network currently includes more than 350 retail outlets in Aimaty and Astana.

Halyk Bank also updated its loyalty programme to reward customers with cash
back or bonuses. Throughout the year, the Bank has conducted numerous local
and global campaignsfocused onindividual brands, like Costa, Marwin and Actual

Optic,orentire sectors,awarding bonusesfor purchasesinany store belongingtoa
givenretail segment.The largest campaigns were:

m  Bonuses of up to 10% on purchases using Halyk Bank cards in any restaurant or
cafe.This campaign covered 22% of all customers using cards for payment.

m  Bonusesofupto3%on purchasesusing Halyk Bank cards atany fuel station, as
wellasto purchase air or rail tickets to anywhere in the world. A total of 30% of
customersusing cardsfor paymentsreceived rewards.

m Bonuses of 3% for purchases in any store selling children's clothing, shoes, toys
and stationery supplies. The coverage of customers paying with cards was 15%.

m  Cash back of 3% for purchases in any store selling women's, men's and
children’s clothing and shoes, as well as toys and stationery supplies. The
coverage of customers using cards for paymentwas 15%.

m Bonuses of 3% for shopping at major supermarkets in Kazakhstan, including
Magnum, Ramstor, Interfood, Galmart, Lider, Firkan, Korzinka and other major regional
stores. These campaigns covered 50% of customers using cards for purchases and
two-thirds of card turnover for food products among Halyk Bank customers.

PAYMENT CARDS

As of 1 January 2018, the number of active payment cards issued by second-tier banks was

9:881.7 thousand. Halyk Bank remained the market leader with a share of 40% (3945.1 thousand).

In2017,the Bankintroduced the following new paymentcard products:

m  MULTI-CURRENCY CARD. This is a debit card with a package of services
offering access to three (tenge, US dollar and either euro, rouble or yuan) or
five (tenge, USdollar, British pound, euroand eitherrouble oryuan),aswellasa
20-digit card account in tenge and foreign currencies (the tenge account is
required).The mainadvantages of this offeringinclude:
= Fundsare converted within one working day of a paymentor transfer
= Freeconversionamongaccounts
= When using the payment card, the system independently determines

which card account to use depending on the currency of the transaction, eg
transactionsin the US will be made in U.S. dollars, in euros - in Europe, inyuan
-inChinaandsoon.

m  NEWMASTERCARD WORLD BLACKEDITION. This isa debit card aimed at the
premium segment that is issued as part of a VIP package, including the
following main privilegesandservices:

= Preferential accesstoLounge KeyVIPlounges

BUSINESS
REVIEW



52

= Conciergeservice

= UptoEUR750,000ininsurance from Mastercard

= UptoUS$100,000ininsurance from Kazakhinstrakh
= Free SMSnotifications

m  UPOPISSUING PROCESS. This product offers the possibility to pay on retail sites
using the Bank's UnionPay international payment system cards

m  VIPLOUNGES.On 1 August2017,the Banksigned an agreement with the Visa
and Mastercard payment systems and Lounge Key allowing automatic
paymentfor preferentialaccesstoVIP lounges

m 3D SECURE.InApril 2017,the 3D Secure product was introduced to eliminate
theinconvenienceto customers caused by automatic limits setforonline card
transactions.The service works as follows:

= Iftheretailer's site supports the 3D Secure technology, payment will not
be made until the 3D Secure password has been entered and the limit
doesnotneedtoberemoved

= Iftheretailer's site does not support the 3D Secure technology, the limit
needstoberemoved

PAYROLL PROGRAMMES

Payroll programmes are one of the Bank's main strategic services. In 2017, the
volume of payroll transfers climbed by 5% year-on-year, while the number of active
cardsincirculationgrew by 2%.

In2017,atotal of 21,870 businesses used our payroll services.

SOCIALPAYMENTS

As one of the main financial institutions that has been disbursing social payments
in Kazakhstan since 1996, Halyk Bank serves around 2.1 million pensioners and
recipients of benefits.Itaccountsfor62% of social paymentsin Kazakhstan.

PREMIUMZONES

Toimprove the level and quality of service for middle-market customers, the Bank
has opened premium service zones. As of 1 January 2018, a total of 26 premium
zoneswere serving more than 10,000 customers.

REMOTE SALES CHANNELS

As of 1 January 2018, the share of payments made via remote sales channels totalled 77%.
The number of payments via remote sales channels increased by 100,000, or 1% year-on-
year,and the volume of payments climbed by KZT20.5 billion tenge, or 32% year-on-year.

In 2017, the following improvements were made to Halyk Bank's network of payment terminals:
m Cash deposits began to be accepted for credit cards opened by retail customers at Aftyn Bank

m  The ability was added to generate statements for card, current and savings
accountsopened at the Bank

The fee for retail customers making payments to Zhilstroysberbank was cancelled
Pilot operations were launched for an updated interface menu for the payment terminals

The Halyk Electronic Wallet service was expanded to all payment terminals of the Bank

Cash deposits began to be accepted for debit, credit and virtual cards and retail
currentand savings accounts opened at Kazkommertsbank

During the reporting period, more than 500 service providers were added to the system.

In 2017, the total number of transactions conducted via the Bank's payment
terminal networkrose by 19% year-on-year to 11.9 million transactions, compared
with 10 milliontransactionsin 2016.

NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS USING HALYK BANK'S PAYMENT TERMINALS, 2016-17

200000

REMOTE SERVICES FORINDIVIDUALS

In 2017, the design of MyHalyk online banking platform was updated and
optimised. To increase sales of the Bank's products, the ability was added to issue
debit cards, with or without a package, open a currentaccountand the new Halyk-
Excellence deposit. Registration was also simplified without requiring the addition
of a phone number via the Bank's ATMs. New services were also introduced,
including SMS notifications, email statementsand auto-payments.

These updates were made to the myHalyk mobile application at the same time. The
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applicationalsoreceived new functions, including fingerprintauthorisation,exchange
rates, transaction history analytics and other functions. The myHalyk application has
beeninstalled more than 1.1 milliontimesin Google Play and the App Store.

The number of service providers to which customers can submit payments via the
online banking platformhas been expandedtomorethan 1,850.

To encourage customers to use remove sales channels and increase loyalty,
various campaigns have been conducted and fees have been eliminated for
paying utility billsandissuing virtual cardsin theretail online banking system.

In 2017, the number of retail customers using remote services climbed by 31% to 1,204
thousand and online banking customers made more than 7.4 million payments and transfers.

SMEBANKING

As of 1 January 2018, the Bank had 57,872 SME clients, including 5,309 borrowers,
andhadissued 16,241 SMEloans*.
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* Accordingto the Statistic Committee of the Ministry of National Economy's data for 2014, the number
of individual entrepreneurs is based on the data of the State Revenue Committee of the Ministry of
Finance (excluding agriculture). The sharp increase in 2015 was caused by the enactment of
Kazakhstan's “Law on Private Entrepreneurship’, which stated that for statistics purposes, data on
SMEs could be categorised as such based on number of employees only (“On amending certain
legislative acts of the Republic of Kazakhstan to reduce permits and optimise the control and
supervisory functions of state bodies”). The information about SMEs takes these changes into
account.

Ofthe total number of SME clients, there were:
m 13,150 clients using two products, an increase of 0.74% year-on-year from 13,053 in 2016
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The following trends were visible in SME lending:

m  The Bank's SME loan volumes are increasing steadily, up 46% year-on-year from
KZT234.5billionin 2016 toKZT343.3 billionin 2017

m  TheBankisworking toimprove the quality of its SME loan portfolio, which led toa
significant reduction in its problem SME loan portfolio (down 16% year-on-year)
and an increase in the standard (non-problem) SME loan portfolio (up 25% year-
on-year) since the start of the year

m  TheBankis strengthening its position on the documentary market; the annual average
portfolio of uncovered (supported by collateral) bank guarantees issued by the Bank
surged by 83% year-on-year from KZT10.9 billion in 2016 to KZT19.8 billion in 2017

By region, as of 1 January 2018, the largest shares of the SME portfolio were 14.1% for

Almaty region, 7.7% for West Kazakhstan region, 7.1% for Astana region, 6.6% for South

Kazakhstan region and 5.9% for Akmola region.
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Throughout 2017, Halyk Bank played and continues to play an active role in state programmes
together with the Damu Entrepreneurship Development Fund to support business in Kazakhstan.

As of 1 January 2018, it was one of the leading second-tier banks in the “Business Roadmap
- 2020"programme in terms of loan portfolio and number of borrowers that received loan
approvals under the initiative. Halyk Bank's portfolio of loans subsidised under the
programme equals KZT263.8 billion (including the corporate loan portfolio), or 14.3% of
overall loans from second-tier banks subsidised under the programme, placing it second.

Ofthe 10,421 participantsin the programme approved for loan subsidies, the Bank
workswith 18.3%,0r 1,910 projects, placing itfirst.

The Bank also provides loans to private businesses guaranteed by the Damu
Entrepreneurship Development Fund. Since beginning this, the parties have signed
834 deeds of guarantee, or 22.3% of the 3,747 agreements signed with the fund. At
the same time, the amount of guarantees allocated to the Bank by the fund totalled
KZT13.5 billion, or 23.5% of the overall KZT 57.5 billion volume of guarantees
provided by the fund to customers of second-tier banks. For each of these indicators
and overall, the Bankranks firstin the programme among second-tier banks.

InadditiontoBusiness Roadmap —2020", Halyk Bankis involved in numerous other
joint programmes to finance private business with the Damu Entrepreneurship
Development Fund. Since April 2014, the government has allocated KZT32 billion
for its programme to support SMEs in the processing industry. Through the
programme, including funds that have been reused after repayment, the Bank has
funded 310 projectsforatotal of KZT74.6 billion.The Bankisamong the top threein
termsoffundsallocated and disbursed undertheinitiative.

In May 2016, the Bank began to help with implementing a R egional SME Financing
Programme funded by the Damu Entrepreneurship Development Fund and regional
governments. As of 31 December 2017, the programme included 10 of Kazakhstan's
regions (Almaty region, Aktobe region, Atyrau region, Mangistau region, Kyzylorda
region, Western Kazakhstan region, Kostanay region, Northern Kazakhstan region,
Dzhamby! region and Eastern Kazakhstan region) and the city of Almaty. The Bank
has signed 24 agreements with the fund foratotal amount of KZT8.2 billion.

The Bank is currently working actively to make the first loans using the funds allocated
under this programme within the time frame set out in the agreements. As of 1 January
2018, more than 80% of the total funds allocated within the programme had been used.

In August 2017, the Bank began to implement a programme to develop productive
employment and mass entrepreneurship. As of 31 December 2017, the bank had placed KZT36
billion in 10 of Kazakhstan's regions (Almaty region, Eastern Kazakhstan region, Dzhamby! region,
Western Kazakhstan region, Karaganda region, Kyzylorda region, Paviodar region, Southern
Kazakhstan region, Kostanay region and Akmola region) and the cities of Almaty and Astana.

In December 2017, the Bank began to implement the “Nurly Zher" housing

construction programme to stimulate home construction by private builders and

signedthefirstsubsidy contract.

In Astana in June 2014, Halyk Bank and the National Chamber of Entrepreneurs signed a

memorandum of cooperation, which stipulates a number of measures to improve access to

information for SME businesses and to promote state support programmes among the

SMEs, and the Bank has been actively involved since. Specially trained employees are available

atall branches to provide advice on a wide range of services free of charge, including about:

m  Howtostructure financing based on the specifics of a client's business

m Taxissues, taking into consideration the corporate and legal structure of a client's business

m  The conditions for receiving support under state SME programmes involving
second-tierbanks

m  Thefulllistof services provided by the Bankand the best termsto suitaclient's
needsandinterests

Atotal of 18,032 clients have been consulted since the memorandum was signed,

of which 10,759 (60%) sought consultation regarding government programmes

and 7,273 (40%) for other issues. In addition, in 2017, the Bank and the National

Chamber of Entrepreneurs conducted the “Smart Customer” seminar, which was

attended by 516 potential clientsand 216 existing customers.

CORPORATE BANKING

Halyk Bank's Corporate Banking division offers clients traditional financing, trade
finance, cash settlement, payroll, foreign-exchange risk hedging and investment
banking, insurance, cash collection and other services (in conjunction with subsidiaries).

Halyk Bank's corporate clients include large national enterprises, as well as large
and medium-sized companies that hold leading positions in their industries or
specific niches. In terms of its scope, corporate banking remains one of the Bank's
core activities. Halyk Bank supports and develops partnerships with corporate
clientsinvariousindustries,focusing onattracting and servicing first-tier clients.

The Bank continues to focus on establishing, maintaining and developing long-term
relationships with such clients, strengthening partnerships with existing clients and
attracting large new ones. Halyk Bank carefully examines customers' needs, taking into
account their activities, seeking a deep understanding of the specifics of their businesses,
and looking to improve the structure and content of the products and services provided.
The Bank offers its clients a range of solutions that are being improved and cover almost
allfinancial matters faced by large companies of various types. This approach to corporate
clients is based on partnership and was chosen to maintain the Bank's image, as well as to
meet large companies' demands for customised solutions to certain problems.
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As a result of this work, Halyk Bank managed to agree about cooperation not only
with local businesses but also with large, well-known foreign companies
operating in Kazakhstan. The latter is particularly noteworthy, as such companies
previously only used the services of international banks.The Bank's close work with
national companies was not limited to any particular products or services. The
Bank arranged to provide financing for companies in leading state holdings. The
main projects were in the energy, telecommunication and transport sectors, while
theBankalsofunded majorinfrastructureinitiativesin Kazakhstan.

In the corporate cash settlement business, the Bank continues to focus closely on
developing remote service technologies, adding new features to its internet banking
for legal entities. For most corporate clients, the features of the system have been
customised to companies' organisational structures and business profiles. Cash flow
managementand control services are available for groups of companies.

Direct integration of 1C Kazakhstan with the online banking system for corporate
customersallows direct exchange of payments and statements.

Halyk Bank remains actively involved in a state programme to support large
enterprises, which is being implemented through the Development Bank of
Kazakhstan. Overall, the Bank has allocated KZT16 billion, while in 2017, using
resources provided by the National Fund, it financed seven major enterprises in
the pharmaceutical, chemical, textile and food industries, as well as the
productionof construction materialsandlubricants.

Halyk Bank's independent funding gives it a competitive market advantage and
allows it to focus on the most attractive projects, which helped to increase and to
improve loan portfolio quality in 2017. The Bank has the highest level of capitalisation
among banks in Kazakhstan, which allows it to consider major projects.

CHANGEIN HALYKBANK'S CORPORATE PORTFOLIO (KZT BLN)
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The Corporate Banking division delivered solid results overall in 2017. Halyk Bank expanded
its major corporate client base, attracted new borrowers and increased its interest income
by more than 9%. By the year-end, the corporate client base stood at 1,672 corporate
clients, including 279 borrowers, compared with 1621 corporate customers and 230
borrowers in 2016. Amid volatility on the capital markets, the Bank increased its market
share in the corporate business thanks to its high liquidity and strong capitalisation, as well
as its comprehensive service offering and extensive regional network.

In accordance with Halyk Group's corporate banking development strategy for 2016-18,a new
client segmenting system was created using client revenues, as well as their affiliation with
holdings. A new client-product teams sales model was also introduced. A new approach and
principles for working with large corporate clients was developed, and short- and medium-
term goals were outlined to develop and improve customer service and find optimal product
and service offerings. The new sales model will provide new and existing clients with targeted
banking solutions for their business, as well as comprehensive, high-quality banking services to
meet all their needs. In 2017, Halyk Bank counted around 50% of Kazakhstan's major taxpayers
and 62 of the 100 largest companies in the country among its clients.

SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS OF SUBSIDIARIES AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018

Assets, KZT billion Market share by assets, %

Kazkommertsbank 3574 14%
Halyk bank Georgia 55 1%
Halyk Finance 32 19%
Altyn Bank 389 2%
Kazakhinstrakh* 52 8%
Moskommertsbank 134 0.029%
Kazkommerts-Policy* 38 6%
Kazkommerts Securities 18 10%
Halyk-Life** 65 23%
Kazkommerts Life** 62 22%
Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan 26 3%
Halyk Leasing 7 n/a
KUSA KKB-3 25 n/a
Halyk Project 47 n/a
NBK-Bank 34 0.01%
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Assets, KZT billion Market share by assets, %

Kazkommertsbank Tajikistan 28 349%
Halyk Collection 4 n/a
Kazteleport 3 n/a
Qpayments 1 n/a
KUSA KKB-1 5 n/a
KUSA KKB-2 21 n/a

* Market share by assets is based on general insurance companies
** Market share by assetsis based on life insurance companies

BANKING

KAZKOMMERTSBANK

Kazkommertsbankis one of the largest financial institutions in Central Asiaand has an
extensive nationwide branch network. As a universal bank, Kazkommertsbank offers a
wide range of banking services to corporate and retail customers, as well as SMEs.

On 5 July 2017, Halyk Bank acquired 96.81% of Kazkommertsbank's common shares from
Kenges Rakishev (86.09%) and the Samruk-Kazyna Sovereign Wealth Fund (10.72%).

Following Kazkommertsbank's additional open placement of common shares, the
Bank's stake in Kazkommertsbank fell to 74.7% as of 15 November 2017 and
Holding Group ALMEX acquired 25.05% of Kazkommertsbank's common shares to
becomeaprincipal shareholderinthe bank.

On8December2017,HalykBank's Board of Directorsapproved the integration of
Kazkommertsbank via merger into Halyk Bank, which will be completed after all
necessary procedures have been followed, including receiving the relevant
approvalswithregulatory bodies.

ALTYN BANK (SUBSIDIARY OF HALYK BANK)

Altyn Bankis a universal bank that offers awide range of products and services to
bothretail customersand corporateclients.

At the year-end, Altyn Bank had assets of KZT388.6 billion, a gross loan portfolio of KZT118.1
billion and total equity of KZT53.8 billion. In 2017, it generated net income of KZT94 billion.

In June 2017, Halyk Bank signed an agreement with CITIC Bank and China
Shuangwei Investment Company, Ltd regarding the sale of a 60% stake in Altyn
Bank.Thedealisexpectedtobe completedinthefirsthalfof2018.

InJuly 2017, Moody's Investors Service upgraded its standalone credit rating for

Altyn bank from “Ba3”to “Ba2” and confirmed the bank's long- and short-term
deposit ratings at “Ba2/Not Prime”. The outlook on the bank's long-term deposit
rating of"Ba2"waschangedfrom "negative"to"stable".

In July 2017, the Altyn-i brand received Global Finance “Digital Banks of
Distinction Award” and in October 2017 the magazine recognised Altyn Bank
"TheBestSubcustodianBankinKazakhstanfor2017".

OVERSEAS BANKS

The Bank provides banking services in Russia, Kyrgyzstan, Georgia, and Tajikistan
throughits subsidiariesinthose countries.

HALYKBANK GEORGIA

Halyk Bank Georgia is a commercial bank incorporated in Georgia that focuses on
corporate, SME and retail banking. As of 31 December 2017, it had total assets of
GEL427.7 million (KZT54,809 million), a gross loan portfolio of GEL333.2 million
(KZT42,699 million) and total equity of GEL71.3 million (KZT9,134 million).In 2017,
it generated net income of GEL11.86 million (KZT1,552 million). Last year, it
launchedanewremote banking service forretailand corporate customers.

In December 2017, Fitch Ratings confirmed its long-term issuer default rating for
Halyk Bank Georgia of 'BB-,in foreign currency, the outlook'stable’.

The bankalsocompleted the relocation of its branch in Didube.The new locationis
bettersituatedinthecityandshould help attractadditional customers.

HALYKBANKKYRGYZSTAN

Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan is a commercial bank incorporated in Kyrgyzstan that positions
itself as a universal bank. As of 31 December 2017, it had total assets of SOM5,424
million (KZT26,197 million), which was SOM84 million (KZT568 million) higher than a
year earlier, while its total equity was SOM1,527 million (KZT7,377 million). In 2017, it
reported netincome of SOM88 million (KZT411 million).

Today, Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan has four branches in Bishkek and five in major regional centres.

The Bank has worked to expand the range and improve the quality of services
provided. It has received a licence from Visa for Trade Acquiring and Online
Commerce services and joined the Elkart national card partner network, which
allowedittoexpand itsacquiring network by 200 ATMs and 450 payment terminals
throughout the republic and introduced the ability for customers to pay their
mobile phonebillviathe Bank's ATMs. Ithasalsoresumed auto lending.

The Bank has signed an agreement to serve pensioners with Kyrgyzstan's Social

BUSINESS
REVIEW



57

Fund. It has also worked to conclude an agreement with the State Mortgage
Companythatisplannedtobesignedinearly 2018.

NBK-BANK

NBK-Bank is a Russian bank with its head office in Moscow and two lending and
cash settlement offices, one each in Novosibirsk and Chelyabinsk. As of 31
December 2017, it had total assets of RUB5,874 million (KZT33,893 million) and
total equity of RUB164 million (KZT946 million). In 2017, its gross loan portfolio
totalled RUB4,279 million (KZT24,690 million).

MOSKOMMERTSBANK

Moskommertsbank is a 100% subsidiary of Kazkommertsbank. It is a commercial
bank registered in Russia that focuses on SME lending, corporate banking, bank
guarantees,acquiringin retail service outletsand retail banking.

Asof 31 December 2017, based on unaudited financials, it had assets of RUB23,260
million (KZY138,284 million), a gross loan portfolio of RUB10,046 million
(KZT57,965 million) and total equity of RUB2,929 million (KZT20,974 million). In
2017,itreportedanetloss of RUB1,836 million (KZT6,459.5 million).

In 2017, Moskommertsbank was recapitalised with RUB1.1 million, increasing its
capitalisation fromRUB2.9 million to RUB4 million.

KAZKOMMERTSBANKTAJIKISTAN

Kazkommertsbank Tajikistan is a subsidiary of Kazkommertsbank and was the first
subsidiary bank in Tajikistan with 100% foreign capital. As of 31 December 2017, it
had assets of TJS 731.5 million (KZT27,563 million), total equity of TJS 100.7 million
(KZT3,794 million) and agrossloan portfolio of TJS 52.1 million (KZT1,913 million).
In2017,itreported netincome of TJS 23.8 million (KZT897 million).

InDecember 2017, KazkommertsbankTajikistan won the Brand of the Year Golden
Award in the “Financial services” category. In 2017, it also joined the Mastercard
international payment system, began independently issuing banking cards,
expandedits POSterminal networkand launched an online banking platform.

INSURANCE

KAZAKHINSTRAKH

Kazakhinstrakh is a non-life insurance company that provides a comprehensive range of
insurance services to all types of legal entities and individuals in numerous sectors.

As of 31 December 2017, Kazakhinstrakh was one of the largest general insurance
companies in Kazakhstan with net premiums rising by 4% (KZT0.5 billion) to KZT13.1 billion.

Atthe year-end, Kazakhinstrakh had total assets of KZT51.7 billion for a market share of
8%, while its net income for the year was KZT4.5 billion, ranking it third in terms of
assetsamong general insurance companies.

In April 2017, AM. BEST confirmed its financial stability rating for Kazakhinstrakh at
"B++"(Good) and ts issuer credit rating at"bbb’, the outlook”stable’”.

In 2017, Kazakhinstrakh retained its position in the corporate sector while becoming
more active in the retailinsurance market. It strengthenedits positionin auto insurance
(compulsive insurance for vehicle owners and voluntary auto insurance) and began to
promote its retail products via the Bank's and Company's widespread network of
offices. In 2017, to further develop its retail insurance business, the Company
developed basketinsurance products, a unique offering on Kazakhstan's market.

In 2017, Kazakhinstrakh upgraded to a new version of the Siebel CRM insurance
accounting system, which greatly simplified the creation of insurance products,
allowed the underwriting process to become fully automated and made it
possible for system users to generate reporting with in-depth analysis. The new
version of Siebel CRM Insuranceisalsofully integrated with the front office systems
of the company and its partners, which allows sales departments to continue
workingwithafamiliarinterface with noadditional time costs.

KAZKOMMERTS-POLICY

Kazkommerts-Policy is a Kazkommertsbank subsidiary and one of Kazakhstan's
largest general insurers. It is among the top five general insurance companies in
the country in terms of assets, which totalled KZT38.0 billion as of 31 December
2017.1n 2017, the company's net premiums rose by 15%, or KZT1.3 billion, to
KZT9.5billionandits netincome was KZT3.0 billion.

In December 2017, A.M. BEST confirmed its rating of “B+" for the Kazkommerts-
Policy. The company provides Medi-Service medical assistance to more than
72,000 customersandits voluntary medical premiums total KZT3.6 billion.

HALYK-LIFE

Halyk-Life offers various types of personal insurance products, including life,
annuity, accidentand medical insurance products. As of 31 December 2017, it had
total assets of KZT64.7 billion, anincrease of nearly a third, or KZT14.6 billion. Halyk-
Life holds the leading position on the life insurance market and collected gross
premiumstotallingaroundKZT36.7 billioninthereporting period.

In 2017, it generated net income of KZT2 billion and its share of life insurance
premiumswas 36%,according tothe National Bank of Kazakhstan.

In 2017, Halyk-Life launched Halyk-Retail, a joint project with the Bank to insure
borrowers.Italso established a partnership to ensure borrowers with ATF Bank.
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KAZKOMMERTS LIFE

Kazkommerts Life is a subsidiary of Kazkommertsbank that provides life
insurance and was established in 2006. It provides a wide range of life insurance
products, including unique offerings that have their own specialised after-sales
customerserviceteamsand specialised ITprogrammes.

As of 31 December 2017, it had assets of KZT61.8 billion, up by 12% (KZT6.8 billion)
year-on-year. Kazkommerts Life is among the top three life insurance companies in
Kazakhstan in terms of assets. In 2017, its gross premiums totalled KZT12.1 billion. Itis
in fourth place in the national insurance market in terms of gross and net premiums,
according to National Bankdata. In 2017, it reported netincome of KZT3.4 billion.

LEASING

HALYK-LEASING

Halyk-Leasing was one of the first leasing companies in Kazakhstan. Its primary focus is
acquiring and transferring special equipment under financial lease, including heavy,
construction, roadmaking, industrial, oilfield, mining, extracting and agricultural
equipment, as wellas commercial vehicles for cargo and passenger transport, etc.

Asof31December2017,ithad assets of KZT7,063 millionandanetloss of KZT818.6
million, of which KZT690 million was related to the gratuitous transfer of the
Maraldy Sai Training and Recreation Centre to the Almaty Region Finance
Department for charitable needs. The regional administration plans to open a
children'shealth camp atthe complex, which will operate year-round.

Halyk Leasing also has a branchin Chelyabinsk, Russia.

INVESTMENT BANKING

HALYKFINANCE
Halyk Finance is one of Kazakhstan's leading investment houses. It provides a full range of
brokerage services, asset management, investment research, consulting and underwriting.

As of 31 December 2017, Halyk Finance had total assets of KZT31.8 billion. Its net
incomein2017wasKZT3.5billion.

As of 31 December 2017, Halyk Finance's own investment portfolio was KZT29.6 billion.

In 2017, the company was once again recognised with awards from prominent
information agencies and authoritative publications, including Cbonds and EMEA Finance.

In September 2017, Fitch Ratings confirmed its long-term issuer default rating for
Halyk Finance at “BB", in foreign and local currency, the outlook 'stable) and its

short-termissuerdefaultratingat’B’ inforeignand local currency.

KAZKOMMERTS SECURITIES

Kazkommerts Securities is a subsidiary of Kazkommertsbank and a leading
investment bank in Kazakhstan. The company offers a wide range of brokerage,
assetmanagement, investmentresearch, consultingand underwriting services.

As of 31 December 2017, it had assets of KZT17.85 billion. In 2017, it reported net
income of KZT2.85billion.

As of the year-end, Kazkommerts Securities' proprietary investment portfolio
stood atKZT17.2billion.

In 2017, the company was once again recognised with awards from prominent
information agencies and authoritative publications, including Cbonds and World Finance.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

KAZTELEPORT

Kazteleport provides a wide range of telecommunication and IT services, including
for Halyk Bank and its subsidiaries, as well as processing services to route
authorisation requests among banks connected to Kazteleport. It is working to
expand its data processing centre services and launched new cloud offerings in 2017.

In November 2017, Kazteleport registered the new SmartCloud brand, which
provides such services as Cloud 1C, virtual data centre (internet as a service) and
virtual dedicated server (VDS/VPS) for SME customers.

Inlate December 2017, itlaunched a new data processing centre with 20 server stacks
that was designed using state-of-the-art technology in its engineering infrastructure
and meets all requirements for the availability and security data stored on the servers.
The centreisaimed at big data solutions and can store and process petabytes of data.

As of 31 December 2017, Kazteleport had total assets of KZT2,614 million. Its net
incomein 2017 wasKZT404.8 million.

QPAYMENTS

QPayments was previously called Processing Company and is a subsidiary of
Kazkommertsbank that provides technical processing support services for
processing and storing data, namely collection, processing and storage of data
generated by cardholdertransactions.

Asof31 December 2017, QPayments had assets of KZT519.5 million and total equity of
KZT414.9 million.In 2017, itreported netincome of KZT143.7 million.In 2017, it signed
anagreement to provide processing services to Al Hilal Islamic Bank.
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CASH COLLECTION

HALYKCOLLECTION

Halyk Collection is the leader in the market of collection services for banknotes, coins
and valuables. It is positioned in Halyk Group as a subsidiary providing services
independently while also providing cash to the Bank's sales channels.

As of 31 December 2017, Halyk Collection had total assets of KZT4,302 million. Its
netincome for 2017 was KZT2,138 million. As of the year-end, its branch network
included a City Cash Collection division (in Almaty), 18 branches and 37 outlets
that offer collection services in regions, cities, towns and smaller settlements
throughout Kazakhstan. All of its vehicles are fully armoured and their movement
istracked via GPS monitoring system.

In 2017, to optimise collection services within the Group, Halyk Collection began
providing its services to Kazkommertsbank and its customers and
Kazkommertsbank's collection service was closed.

SPECIAL PURPOSE ORGANISATIONS

HALYKPROJECT

In2012, Halyk Bank established its Halyk Project subsidiary to manage distressed
assets as part of the Concept on Improving the Quality of Second-Tier Bank
Assets, approved by a resolution of Kazakhstan's Council for Financial Stability
and Development of the Financial Market. Halyk Bank was the first second-tier
bankinKazakhstantoreceivetheregulator's permission to establish asubsidiary
tomanagedoubtfuland badassets.

Halyk Project's main objective is to cleanse the distressed assets from Halyk Bank's loan
portfolio, managing or recovering them to minimise Halyk Group's loan losses. It does
this by acquiring them from Halyk Bank using borrowed funds and seeking to turn
them around before selling them and repaying its loan to Halyk Bank.

In 2017, Halyk Project received 13 projects totalling KZT8.8 billion and sold eight
projectstotallingKZT1.7 billionand 152 apartments with an overall value of KZT3.8
billion. Atthe year-end, its portfolio of currentassets stood atKZT47 billion.

KUSA KKB-1, KUSA KKB-2 AND KUSA KKB-3
Kazkommertsbank's KUSA subsidiaries were created in 2012-14 as part of the Concept
on Improving the Quality of Second-Tier Bank Assets, approved by a resolution of

Kazakhstan's Council for Financial Stability and Development of the Financial Market.

In2017,Kazkommertsbankreceived three assetsvalued atKZT7.1 billion underthe
programme, of which two accounted for KZT6.9 billion, and sold assets totalling
KZT15.3 billion including 354 apartments with an overall value of KZT13.9 billion.
Attheyear-end, its portfolio of currentassets stood at KZT42.4 billion.

As of 31 December 2017, the overall value of the distressed assets managed by
HalykGroup'sbad asset managementcompanieswasKZT93.4 billion.

WORKWITHMINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

Halyk Bank continuously improves its system for interacting with minority
shareholders, which makes it possible for a shareholder to present questions and
receive consultationsasneeded by written request oremail.

The channelthroughwhich minority shareholdersand Halyk Bank communicate s
reviewed regularly. The Bank informs shareholders of all material news,
information about corporate events and changes in operations affecting the
interests of shareholders, as well as planned events on its corporate website and
the websites of securities exchangesand depositories of financial statements.
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LEAD
FROM THE FRONT!

LEAD CLIMBER

A climbing team is a group of several people who are
connected by one rope to overcome difficult mountainous
terrain. A team usually comprises two or three climbers. The
reason why climbers connect to each other is so that if one
falls, the other members of the climbing team can stop them.
The lead climber usually has the most experience and training,
is familiar with the climb and chooses the team's route.

RISK MANAGEMENT

KABAKETAM XAABIK BAHKI

HALYK
BANK

HAPOGHLIN BAHK KAGAXCTAHA
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Halyk Bank's risk management policy is focused on creating an integrated risk
management system in line with the scope and scale of Halyk Group's activity and
accepted risk profile, as wellas supporting its business development requirements.
The Group seeks to continuously developits riskmanagement systemand improve
thewayinwhichitidentifies,manages,assessesand controls risks.

CREDITRISKMANAGEMENT

To ensure effective credit risk management, the Bank has implemented a risk
management system and business processes that take into account the
segregation of the sales and risk management functions. It has also created an
organisational structure that facilitates credit risk management, including collegiate
bodies and subdivisions that take part in the credit risk assessement and
management process.

The Bank manages credit risk by:

m Adhering to the principle of “three lines of defence’, namely initial analysis of
creditrisk by the initiating subdivision, analysis by the risk management function,
and control by the internal audit function

m  Setting counterparty limits depending on the type of (credit) transactions or products

m  Diversifying the loan portfolio to mitigate a concentration of risk related to any
one borrower, sector or geographical area

m  Monitoring the loan portfolio to identify any deterioration in quality at an early stage
m  Maintaining adequate provisioning to cover potential losses

The Bank's system of making lending decisions is based on the delegation of certain
powers by the Board of Directors to appropriate collegiate bodies and the establishment
of credit limits for each body. For corporate borrowers, loan applications are reviewed by
the Commercial Directorate. Loan applications that exceed the limits set for the
Commercial Directorate, as well as transactions with related parties, require further
approval by the Board of Directors. For SME borrowers, lending powers are delegated to
Credit Committees in the branches and the Credit Committee of the branch network,
while retail banking decisions are delegated to the Centre for Decision-Making and the
Retail Credit Committee (RCC) of the Head Office. Standard loans under unsecured retail
lending programmes are approved automatically after being reviewed by a specialised

software module that includes automated underwriting, internal and external database
checks, scoring estimates of an applicant, etc. Applications for non-standard unsecured
lending are subject to credit approval by the Centre for Decision-Making and/or the RCC.

Credit committees of subsidiary banks are also authorised to make lending decisions within
specific limits. The Bank regularly monitors and, if necessary, revises, independent decision-
making limits and the authority of the credit committees in subsidiary banks.

In accordance with its development strategy and Kazakh legislation, the Bank has reviewed
and updated its key parameters for determining acceptable risk, which the Bank then
monitors. It has approved a method for calculating and monitoring the client lending limits
used at regional branches to determine self-financing limits for businesses in the SME space.

To assess its exposure to adverse changes in foreign and domestic macroeconomic
conditions and determine the effect of stress scenarios (provisioning level, migration
of credit ratings, nonperforming loan ratio), the Bank conducts regular stress tests on
its loan portfolio. A stress test was conducted in 2017 using rather conservative
forecasts for decrease in oil prices and GDP. The stress test results indicated that the
Bank's capitalisation is resilient to asset quality deterioration.

The Risk Analyst rating model that was previously introduced to assess the likelihood of a
default and the associated rating on corporate and SME clients is widely used to make lending
decisions and conduct stress tests. It is also used as one of the criteria for loan impairment.

As part of the Bank's Analytical CRM project, which is aimed at introducing risk analysis tools,
four scoring models have been developed to range risks based on the statistical probability
of loan applicant's default. Five statistically significant stress-testing models have been built to
study the influence of macroeconomic indicators on NPL trends in the Bank's loan portfolio.

Over 2017, work with problem loans continued, securing repayment through the sale of
collateral, claims and lawsuits, transferring assets under the management of Halyk Project
and writing off bad debt. These measures have helped to reduce the share of overdue debt.

As of 31 December 2017, retail loans represented a significant share of the loan
portfolio (27%), with consumer and mortgage loans accounting for 19% and 8%,
respectively. In terms of industry breakdown, the largest segments were services
(15%), wholesale trade (11%), construction (8%), real estate (5%) and retail trade (5%).
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BREAKDOWN OF HALYKGROUP'S LOAN PORTFOLIOBY SECTOR, %
31 DECEMBER 2016 31 DECEMBER 2017
6.0% 5.2%
23.8% 26.5%

- Retail loans

]
B -Other sectors 7.9%
58% M -services
- Wholesale trade 4.9%
20.0% M - Construction 23.6%
: B -Fetail trade

[ -Realestate

- Agriculture

- Financial sector

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

To create an optimal structure of assets that ensures a balanced approach to
managing the risk-return ratio, the Group invests in a spread of domestic and overseas
assets, diversified in terms of banking products, industry, currency and maturity.

The breakdown of the Group's assetsin 2016and 2017 was as follows.
BREAKDOWN OF HALYK GROUP'S ASSETS, %

31 DECEMBER 2016 31 DECEMBER 2017
2.5% 1.9%

33.2%
43.4% 1.4%
36.7%

- Loans to customers.

20.1%

1.3%

- Cash and cash equivalents
~Securities portfolio

- Goodwill, property and equipment
- Other assets.

- Obligatory reserves
- Amounts due from credit institutions

On 5 July 2017, the Group took control of Kazkommertsbank and has been consolidating
its financials since. This event had a significant impact on the size and structure of the
Group's balance sheet, increasing Halyk Group's assets by 65.6% year-on-year in 2017.
This was mainly due to the securities portfolio increasing by KZT1,820.1 billion (up more
than 100% year-on-year due to consolidation of Kazkommertsbank's securities
portfolio), the loan portfolio expanding on a net basis by KZT931.5 billion (up 40.2% year-
on-year),and goodwill, property and equipment rising by KZT628.0 billion (up more than
100% year-on-year). The latter was due to increase in long-term assets held for sale as a
result of the Bank's intended sale of 60% stake in Altyn Bank. The loan portfolio remains
the largest item among Halyk Group's assets: as of 31 December 2017, it accounted for
36.7% of the total. Other key assets are cash and cash equivalents (share of 20.1%) and
investments in securities (trading and investment portfolio; share of 30.2%).

In 2017, the National Bank of Kazakhstan undertook several measures aimed at stabilising
the country's money market. Despite the increased activity in bank lending throughout
the year, the National Bank maintained a significant presence on the domestic money
market, including by continuing to issue short-term sovereign securities, as part of the
regulator's monetary policy. Due to this, the Bank mostly placed its tenge liquidity in short-
term National Bank notes in 2017, which significantly expanded the securities portfolio.

The Group regularly checks its limits for counterparty banks for consistency with its
risk appetite. Whenever the Group identifies any negative factors affecting the
operations of its counterparty banks and/or their countries of operation, it makes
immediate relevantadjustments to reduce the amount and term of such limits.

For liquidity management purposes, the Bank maintains a stable and diversified
structure of liabdilities, which consists of borrowings and deposits with fixed maturities
andliabilities payable on demand.

The breakdown of the Group's liabilities in 2016 and 2017 was as follows.

BREAKDOWN OF THE GROUP'S LIABILITIES, %
31 DECEMBER 2016

31 DECEMBER 2017

12.5%

81.6% M - Amounts due to customers 77.4%
- Amounts due to credit institutions
B - Debt securities issued
- Other liabilities
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In 2017, the main changes in the breakdown of liabilities were to amounts due to
customers. At the year-end, amounts due to customers had increased in absolute
terms by KZT2,311.1 billion (up 60.5%) and remained the largest liability item,
accountingfor77.4% oftotalliabilitiesin 2017, compared with 81.6%in 2016.

The breakdown of the deposit base was influenced primarily by tenge appreciation
and the combined efforts of the government and National Bank of Kazakhstan to
reduce the economy's reliance on foreign currencies and improve the population's
confidence in the national currency. There was a significant change in the ratio of
tenge and foreign-currency deposits, mainly due to the Kazakhstan Deposit
Insurance Fundlowering interest rates on retail foreign-currency deposits.

This caused tenge deposits to surge by KZT1,405.7 billion (up more than 100% year-on-
year), while foreign-currency deposits rose by just KZT905.4 billion (up 36.3% year-on-year).
The share of term deposits versus current accounts in the deposit base was little changed as of
the reporting date, at 71.8% and 28.2%, respectively, compared with 71.7% and 28.3% in 2016.
In 2017, amounts due to retail customers increased by 81.0% year-on-year and
amountsduetolegal entities by 43.8%year-on-year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO THE GROUP'S CUSTOMERS, KZT BILLION

3,028

2105

31 DECEMBER 2015 31 DECEMBER 2016 31 DECemBER 2017

— Legalentities Individuals

The Bank's focus on raising funds in the domestic market helped it to maintain leading
positions in the customer account market. As of 1 January 2018, Halyk Bank and
Kazkommertsbank were market leaders in terms both of retail deposits, with a combined
market share of 36.9% (compared with 38.3% at the end of 2016), and of corporate deposits,
with a combined market share of 37.7% (compared with 35.1% at the end of 2016).

MARKET SHARE BY AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS OF HALYK BANK AND
KAZKOMMERTSBANK, %

ason

5.1%
. - :
26.1%

150%

100%

31 DECEMBER 2015 31 DECEMBER 2016 31 DECEMBER 2017

S Legal entities Individuals

To assess its exposure to liquidity risk, the Bank conducts regular stress tests showing the impact
of the outflow of customers with the highest concentration on the Bank's liquidity position, as
well as annual 'bottom-up' stress tests as required by the National Bank of Kazakhstan.

MARKET RISKMANAGEMENT

In 2017, the Bank adhered to its conservative policy on currency position
management, maintaining neutral positionsinall currencies.

In the year, the breakdown of assets by currency changed amid the National Bank of
Kazakhstan's efforts to reduce the financial system's reliance of foreign currencies. As a
result, the Bank's assets in tenge rose by more than 100% year-on-year and its assets in
foreign currencies grew by 6.0% year-on-year.

The share of the Group's assets in tenge climbed from 46.3% in 2016 to 63.3% in 2017,
while the share of the loan portfolio in tenge grew from 67.8%in 2016 t0 70.2%in 2017.

Amid tenge appreciation and moves to improve the attractiveness of retail tenge
deposits in 2017, the share of the Group's deposits in tenge increased from 34.6%in 2016
1044.5%in 2017, while that in foreign currency decreased 65.4%in 2016 t0 55.5%in 2017.

RISK
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BREAKDOWN OF AMOUNTS DUE TO THE GROUP'S CUSTOMERS BY CURRENCY, %

65.4% 55.5%

I oeon curencies Tenge

To better manage foreign-currency liquidity, on 3 July 2017, Kazkommertsbank and
National Bank of Kazakhstan signed a one-year cross-currency swap agreement for
the nominal amount of KZT1,000 billion.

The Group has identified the following sources of interest rate risk: interest rate risk on
securities portfolios and interest rate risk resulting from the mismatch of maturities (interest
rate repricing) of assets and liabilities sensitive to interest rate changes (risk of interest rate
changes). The Group manages the risks of changes in interest rates and market risk by
adjusting its interest rate position and maintaining a positive interest margin.

Internal limits that restrict the level of market risk (currency, interest rate and price
risks) are established by the authorised bodies within the acceptable exposure
limit and are monitored daily. The limits are regularly reviewed for relevance and
correlation with market conditionsand the Group'sriskappetite.

OPERATIONAL RISKMANAGEMENT

In the normal course of its business, the Bank is exposed to operational risk. This is
defined as the risk of losses resulting from inadequate or insufficient internal
processes or systems, human factors or external events. These include legal risk
(andexclude strategicand reputational risk).

The operational risk management unit within the risk management function of the
Bankhas developed and uses various operational riskmanagement tools, such as:
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The Bank performs operational risk assessments when launching new
products/services, systems and business processes, or implementing major
changes thereto. The Organisation and Reinforcement of Preventive Action
(ORAP) systemiis a fully functional and widely used tool, and it has covered the
most significant areas of the Bank's operations since 2010. In 2017, ORAP
covered such business areas as remote banking for individuals and legal
entities,aswellasnewsaleschannels, servicesand products.

The Bank is implementing projects to identify and minimise transaction risks at
Halyk Project and for the business process governing the organisation, support
and maintenance of the ICM system (cash management) and the processes used
to resolve disputes in the self-service terminal network. This work led to the
development of measures to manage the most significant risks more efficiently.

The Bank regularly collects and analyses information about operational risk events,
which are registered and classified as appropriate in a special database. The
information collected is used to generate management reports on operational
risks to support decisions about corrective actions to minimise overall operating
losses. Information about operational risk events exceeding the regulatory
threshold is sent to the National Bank of Kazakhstan in a quarterly report.

The Bank continues to develop an operational risk management tool, Key Risk
Indicators (KRIs). The Bank currently uses more than 25 KRIsin various business
lines, which make it possible to identify the most significant risks to the Bank's
ITsystemsand critical business processes.

The Bank has conducted scenario analysis projects aimed at preventing
fraudulent transactions. They have highlighted the main process shortfalls
and the departments involved have been provided corresponding
recommendations to develop risk-mitigation measures to eliminate or
minimise the probability of such a scenario occurringatthe Bank.

The Bank has conducted a self-assessment of its control system to create a risk
map and risk matrix.

The operational risk management unit is a permanent member of working
groupsonvarious projectsat the Bank, as well asfocusing onfraud elimination
(the “Minimising the retail risks of internal/external fraud” project),
investigating the causes of damage to the Bank, and creating commissions to
analyse problems and risk areas with a view to minimising them and
developing appropriate mitigation measures.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT

To ensure that it can respond rapidly and effectively to emergency situations, the
Bank maintains systems and resources to manage and support business continuity,
which include legal documents, infrastructure, competent employees and other
items thatallow the Bankto manage the continuity of its overall operations.

The Bank's business continuity management infrastructure consists of a Disaster
Recovery site in Astana and two backup facilities in Almaty, which feature all
necessary equipmentand technologyfordealing withincidents.

In2017,the Bank's business continuity workincluded:

m Performing a business impact analysis and an analysis of risks relating to
unforeseen eventualities

m  Conducting a study (testing) of business continuity and restoration plans,
transfers to IT backup systems and servers, test restores of reserve copies from
critical information systems, and mobilisation of recovery team members to the
Bank's backupfacilitiesto perform operationsunder simulated disaster conditions

m  Transferring a critical business process under simulated disaster conditions
from the main server in Almaty to a backup server at the Disaster Recovery site
in Astana and then back to the main server in Almaty without losing any
transactional datato test the system against unexpected circumstances

m Holding a training session and follow-on test for employees involved in the
Bank's business continuity and restoration process

m  Updating internal documents, including the Bank's policy and rules
governing business continuity and restoration, which outline the working
procedures, approaches and principles for creating an efficient business
continuity management system at the Bank, as well as the business units and
bodiesresponsible forimplementing continuity processes

IT AND INFORMATION SECURITY RISKMANAGEMENT

In 2017, the Bank continued its efforts to manage information technology (‘IT") and
information security ('IS") risks and further developed its [T and IS risk management system
("ITand IS RMS"). The Bank undertook the following measures during the reporting period:

m  UpdatedthelTandISRMSinternal documents
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m  Reviewed and updated the common risk-assessment scale in the Bank's
businessprocessesregardingTand ISrisks

m  Based on the approved internal documents, performed the full IT and IS risk
management cycle (evaluating, processing, monitoring) using the
automated banking information system, compiled an IT and IS risk register
andmapanddevelopedaplantominimise ITand IS risks

m  ReviewedthecurrentITandISriskenvironmentatthe Bank's subsidiaries

m  Trained participants in the IT and IS risk management process to improve their T and IS
RMS knowledge, as well as to promote a risk management culture throughout the Bank

CAPITALMANAGEMENT

In 2017, the Bank continued to manage its capital to ensure the business continuity of all Group
companies and optimise its debt-to-equity ratio. In the reporting period, the Bank ensured
compliance with the capital requirements set by regulatory standards and Basel Accords.

In 2015, the implementation of Basel Il began, envisaging gradual reform of capital items
and capital adequacy requirements by 2020. For example, in 2017, the conservation
buffer in the capital adequacy ratio was increased and a systemic buffer was introduced
for systemically important banks. The Bank believes that the transition to the new
standards has not had a significantimpact on its capital risk management activities.

To assess its exposure to the risk of adverse changes in the macroeconomic
situation, the Bank runs regular stress tests to test the sensitivity of capital
adequacy ratios to changes in various macroeconomic factors, including annual
'bottom-up'stresstestsrequired by the National Bank.

COMPLIANCE RISKMANAGEMENT

Halyk Bank defines compliance risk as the threat of losses arising from non-
compliance by it and its employees with Kazakh legislation, regulatory
requirements, internal documents regulating services provided by the Bank and its
operations on financial markets, and legislation of other countries governing the
Bank's activities. An integral part of the internal risk management system, the Bank's
compliance risk management is based on a four-step approach - detection,
identification, evaluation and measurement —as well as risk monitoring and control.

To ensure an effective system of compliance risk management and internal control, the Bank

has established a cross-functional system based on the“three lines of defence”principle.

m  Thefirstline identifies and monitors risks across all subdivisions and by all employees
with a view to minimising compliance risk and taking corrective measures

m  The second implements compliance risk management policy, while
compliance control is carried out by the Compliance Service, consisting of the
Chief Compliance controller, who reports to and is elected by the Board of
Directors,and the Compliance Division, which the controller oversees

m  Thethirdisresponsible forindependently evaluating the performance of the
complianceriskmanagementsubdivision byinternalaudit

The Bank's primary methods for managing complianceriskare:

m  Continuously monitoring Kazakh legislation and legislation of other countries
governingthe Bank'sactivities

m  Monitoring the compliance of authorised persons and employees of the Bank
with legislation in Kazakhstan and other countries governing the Bank's activities

m  Ensuring that employees and subdivisions correctly understand and follow Kazakh
legislation and the Bank's internal documents, as well as legislation of other
countries governing the activities of the Bank, its structural divisions and employees

m ldentifying, evaluating, monitoring and mitigating compliance risks,
including when developing and structuring new banking products and
services, introducing new business processesand technologies, etc

m  Ensuring that mandatory requirements of the regulator and other official
bodiesare metontimeandtotherequiredstandard

m  Organising compliance monitoring (checks) of subdivisions' activities by
Compliance Division staff

m  Using various tools to identify and evaluate the Bank's compliance risks,
includingappraisaland self-appraisal methods for subdivisions

m Controlling access to insider information, maintaining confidentiality and
preventing potentiallyillegal use of suchinformation by insiders, including by
maintaining an up-to-datelist of people with accessto suchinformation

m  Ensuring thatthe Bank complies with anti-money laundering/combating the
financing of terrorism (AML/CFT) measures
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= Ensuring that employees comply with the requirements of internal documents
governing the prevention of conflicts of interest, etc

When carrying out its duties as the main compliance channel, to minimise and
prevent potential compliancerisks,the Compliance Division:

m  Organises and coordinates assessments/self-assessments by subdivisions of their
compliance with Kazakh legislation and the Bank's internal documents. Self-
assessment compliance risk reports are submitted to the Management Board
monthly and the Board of Directors quarterly for review. Based on the findings, action
plans are prepared to mitigate risks identified during the self-assessment and qualified
as mid or high level and the Compliance Division oversees their implementation.

m |dentifies and evaluates the level of compliance risk faced by the Bank, appraises
the effectiveness of the Bank's control system, and evaluates the residual
compliance risk. The results are sent to the Management Board monthly and the
Board of Directors quarterly. To enhance control and mitigate residual compliance
risks,an action planis prepared and overseen by the Compliance Division.

m  Organises regular compliance training for the Bank's employees, including in
AML/CFT and the Foreign AccountTax Compliance Act (FATCA). New recruits and
existing employees in the subdivisions responsible undergo annual training. In
2017, both face-to-face and e-learning courses were held, in accordance with the
approved training plan. Their aim was to raise awareness among the employees
responsible about compliance, as well as AML/CFT and FATCA procedures.

In addition, one of the Compliance Division's main objectives is to ensure that the
Bank complies with Kazakh legislation on AML/CFT.

The Bank has implemented all necessary systems aimed at preventing money-
laundering and the financing of terrorism, including various know-your-customer
procedures for clients (thier representatives) and beneficiary owners that:

m  Group customers based on risk (risk-based approach), depending on which
simplified, standard or enhanced due diligence (namely collecting and
recording clientdata) will be conducted

m  Check whether potential or existing customers feature on sanctions lists
(international orlocal)

m  Checkwhetherapotential customerisaforeign publicly exposed person

m  Analyseacustomer'sreputation

m Conductotherchecks (transactions, deals, etc)
If such checks cannot be completed satisfactorily, a commercial relationship will not be established.

Inaccordance with Kazakh AML/CFT legislation, the Bankhasaduty toinformthe
relevant official bodies about client transactions that are subject to financial
monitoring (threshold and suspicious). The Bank has implemented all necessary
information systems to recognise transactions that are subject to financial
monitoring, based on various identified types, schemes and scenarios, and to
send the respective data to the authorised body. In addition, according to the
Bank's internal documents, responsible subdivisions also participate in the
process of identifying suspicious non-automated transactions and then
forwardingtheinformationtothe Compliance Division.

The Bank also complies with international economic sanctions when servicing customers
and working with counterparties. For this purpose, it has implemented automatic
transaction screening and manual controls. Throughout its operations, the Bank adheres
to the principles of transparency, fairness and integration with the global community.
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LEAD
FROM THE FRONT!

PRIMA BALLERINA

Being a prima ballerina and performing solo in the world's
best ballet companies is not only about impeccable
technique. One needs one's own signature style, a masterly
performance, a unique interpretation of each party androle,
unconditional artistry and the elusive magic of talent.
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Social responsibility is an integral part of Halyk Bank's business. To ensure that its
social and charity projects are purposeful and maximally effective, in spring 2016,
Halyk Group's shareholders decided to establish the Halyk charity fund to organise
charitableactivity onasystemiclevel.

The main task set for the fund at its establishment was maximising the effectiveness of social
and charitable investments to address important social issues and support such spheres as
culture, sport and education. In 2016-17, Halyk Bank financed the Halyk charity fund.

Thefinancialinstitution hasformanyyears beenimplementingimportant projects
- good deeds aimed at supporting socially vulnerable groups of the population,
traditional Kazakh sports, arts and culture, health care and education in
Kazakhstan. With good deeds, Halyk Bank strives to elevate talent and appreciate
art, improve access to sport, rally people together and support them in difficult
moments,and passonknowledge tofuture generations.

GOOD DEEDS... ELEVATE TALENT AND APPRECIATE ART

Preserving and improving cultural heritage, popularising the arts and developing
modern cultural trends are among the key challenges of the Halyk charity fund and Halyk
Bankin their support of culture and the arts, part of the identity of the Kazakh people.

ASTANA OPERA

Since 2013, Halyk Bank has been an annual general sponsor of the Astana OperaTheatre,
which, since its inception, has served as the country's most important theatrical stage,
drawing the attention and interest of audiences from both Kazakhstan and abroad.

In 2017, the Halyk charity fund was the general sponsor of the fifth theatre season,
held under the auspices of the EXPO 2017 international exposition in Astana. The
theatre's operas and ballets were at the epicentre of the exhibition's cultural
programme. The season was marked by bright premieres, including: the opera Kyz
Zhybek; the grand premiere of the outstanding English choreographer Kenneth
Macmillan's ballet, Manon; Austrian composer Gustav Mahler's Symphony No 8,
which was played in Kazakhstan for the first time with an orchestra of 1,200 musicians.
Italso featured creative experiments: the ballet Don Quixote; Giuseppe Verdi's opera,
Aida, which was performed on an open stage in front of the Palace of Peace and
Reconciliation; and the performance of world-famous artist Placido Domingo in the
operaLaTraviata. A total of KZT140 million was pledged for the theatre's sponsorship.

EXPOYOUNGAMBASSADORS

In June 2017, the Halyk charity fund provided an opportunity for the participants of the
EXPO 2017 Young Ambassadors Summer School to visit the EXPO 2017 Astana
international exhibition. This included 100 highly talented and diligent schoolchildren
who had won various academic competitions, as well as children from socially vulnerable
families and rural schools from all over Kazakhstan. The children visited the capital's sights
and pavilions and attended master classes on pottery, aircraft modelling, artistic design
and drama. A total of about KZT12 million was pledged for the programme's sponsorship.

ALMATY BOTANICAL GARDEN

In May 2017, a summer cinema was opened in the Almaty Botanical Garden. This new
cultural space was created by the Halyk charity fund and the Main Botanical Garden
Development Fund. Each weekend throughout the summer, the Aimaty Botanical Garden
opened its doors to the city's residents and visitors for free screenings of Kazakhstan films.
Atotal of roughly KZT10 million was pledged for the cinema's sponsorship.

OTHERPROJECTS

In April 2017, Halyk Bank acted as the general partner for the online broadcast of the
finals of the”lam a singer 2017"musical contest, which was held in China and at which
Kazakhstan was represented by its citizen Dimash Kudaibergen.

In September 2017, in celebration of Uralsk town festival, the Bank sponsored a
statueintheformofaonetenge cointhatwas placedinthetown.

GOOD DEEDS... ACCESSIBLE SPORT FOREVERYONE

Halyk Bank and the Halyk charity fund believe that creating a robust material base for the
successful development of national sports and promoting healthy lifestyles contribute
to professional and amateur sporting events and encourage young athletes to represent
Kazakhstan ininternational sport. Special attention is paid to athletes with disabilities.
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HALYKLEAGUE

Established in 2005, Halyk League is a social sport project to support an active
basketball movement involving young people from sponsored children’'s homes and
boarding schools throughout Kazakhstan. Basketball is a team sport that fosters
willpower, tenacity and ateam spirit in young people.

The project promotes 18 sponsored children's homes and boarding schools throughout
Kazakhstan, while at least 500 children take part in training annually. The Halyk charity
fund covers the costs of basketball trainers and sports equipment. Over 11 years, around
KZT 300 million has been donated to the Halyk League project.

HOPE CUP CHAMPIONSHIP

In May 2017, the National Basketball Federation of Kazakhstan and the Halyk
charity fund held their annual basketball championship among children's homes
andboarding schools:the 2017 Hope Cup.

The championship took place overaweekat the Academy of Sports and Tourismin
Almaty's sports facilities and this year drew 17 teams. In accordance with tradition,
the judges came from the international category of the National Basketball
Federation of Kazakhstan. A total of KZT27 million was allocated for the
championship,whichincluded 190 childrenfrom 17 regions of Kazakhstan.

SPECIAL OLYMPICS

The Halyk charity fund in 2017 continued its support of athletes with intellectual

disabilities by helping to sponsor the Special Olympics Public Association. Over six
years, a total of KZT8.5million in financial aid has been pledged to the organisation. The
power of sport has helped these children to open new horizons and reach new success.
Representatives of Special Olympics say that they “improve the lives of people around
the world, helping them to experience the joy of sport”.

GYMNASTICS FEDERATION OF KAZAKHSTAN

Halyk Bank continued its cooperation with the Gymnastics Federation of Kazakhstan
in 2017. Halyk Bank Management Board chairperson Umut Shayakhmetova was re-
elected as the president of the federation in January 2016 for a four-year Olympic term.

In June 2017, the ninth Asian Rhythmic Gymnastics Championships among
seniors and the 15th Asian Rhythmic Gymnastics Championships among juniors
took place in Astana. The 150 best gymnasts from 15 countries of the Asian region
took part in the competition, winning 54 sets of medals. Kazakhs Sabina
Ashirbayeva and Alina Adilkhanova took first and third places in the hoop routine,
and Ashirbayeva also won the gold medalin the ball routine. Among the juniorsin
theindividual program, the Kazakh gymnastics proved to be the strongest.

The Gymnastics Federation of Kazakhstan includes 16 accredited regional sports
federations from 13 of Kazakhstan's regions for artistic gymnastics, rhythmic
gymnastics, sports acrobatics, jumps on a tumbling track and a trampoline. The
federation oversees more than 10,000 gymnasts. Halyk Bank has donated KZT 30
milliontosupportthe Gymnastics Federation of Kazakhstan.

SOCIAL
REPORT



73

KAZAKH NATIONAL STUDENT LEAGUE FUTSAL
CHAMPIONSHIPS

Since autumn 2016, in an effort to develop and support futsal — the most popular sport
among students in Kazakhstan — the Halyk charity fund has been the general sponsor of the
National Student League futsal championship (among Kazakhstan's leading universities).

In 2017, the Halyk charity fund continued its sponsorship of the National Student
League, which has grown to 69 teams, including nine female futsal clubs. The regional
round of league play began in spring in 13 cities throughout Kazakhstan. Almaty
alone has 17 teams representing various universities. A total of 70 schools competed
in the regional round. In November, the final round brought together the country's
best 24 teams in Aimaty and Caspian University's team won the gold medal.

InAugust2018, Almaty will hostthe World University Futsal Championship.

HALYKARENA

The 28th World Winter Universiade was held in Almaty in 2017, providing a new
stimulustothe continued developmentof group sportsin Kazakhstan.

Aspartofaprogrammeto create and supportsports facilities builtin the city ahead
of the World Winter Universiade, Halyk Bank signed a sponsorship agreement with
the Almaty municipal administration for the city's 3,000 seat ice skating facility,
which was named Halyk Arena. This was the first time that a sporting facility was
brandedwithasponsor'snameinKazakhstan.

More than 100,000 people visited Halyk Arena during the World Winter Universiade's
ice hockey championship. This helped to cement the arena's reputation in hockey
and it has since become the home base of the AlImaty and Aisulu hockey clubs. As
part of the cooperation of the Halyk charity fund and Halyk Bank with Halyk Arena,
sports programmes including hockey are being developed for the Bank's
employeesand free group skating events are being organised for Aimaty residents.

GOOD DEEDS... TEAM UP AND SUPPORT

In 2017, the Halyk charity fund and Halyk Bank implemented several social projects to
supportorphans, children with disabilities and World War Il survivors and veterans.

Halyk Bank and the Halyk charity fund are always ready to help the people of Kazakhstan who
have been affected by natural disasters, helping to repair homes and providing support. After
all, by coming together in difficult times, we can move forward and build our own future.

Inthe spring of 2017, aflood caused by heavy rainin several regions of Kazakhstan
left tens of thousands of people homeless. Halyk Group employees felt it was their
duty to organise the collection of material aid to the victims. They collected KZT5
million from their own funds and the Halyk charity fund added its own charitable
contribution of KZT50 million.The money was sent to support residents of Aktobe,
Akmola, Karaganda, Kostanay and North Kazakhstan regions.

Throughout the year, Halyk Bank's employees have played active roles in various
charitable campaigns. One was aimed at supporting children from low-income
families. Employees of Halyk Bank's Head Office helped to make New Year wishes
come true for 100 children from the regional boarding school for children with
impaired visionin Issyk as part of the“Tree of Wishes"campaign, in partnership with the
Ayala charity fund. The gifts were mostly toys, as well as clothing and other supplies.
The Bank's employees also supported the Palliative Care Association of Kazakhstan's
"Goodwill Basket” campaign for bedridden patients at the Almaty hospice, collecting
special baskets with books, sweets, clothes, hygiene items and essentials.

NEWYEARMIRACLE

Ahead of the New Year, the Halyk charity fund organised the “New Year Miracle”

campaign for children undergoing long-term treatment at medical centres in 22 cities
throughout Kazakhstan. As part of the campaign, children were visited by Grandfather
Frost and the Snow Maiden, Spider Man, pirates and many other of their favourite
heroes, took part in children's entertainment programmes and received memorable
gifts (toys, sweets and developmental games). All told, the Halyk charity fund helped
New Year miracles come true for more than 2,000 children who celebrated the New
Yearin hospital. The total budget for the campaign was KZT6.6 million.

NAURYZ

Nauryzis one of the world's olderst holidays. It has been celebrated for more than five
thousand years as a symbol of the new year, the renewal of nature, the triumph of love,
fertility and friendship.

Eachyear, Halyk Bank congratulates the people of Kazakhstan on Nauryz, doing its
parttosupportnational culturaland historical traditions.

VICTORY MARATHON

Helping World War Il veterans and home front workers is an important way to give
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thanks to those heroic soldiers and officers who fought for victory on the battlefield.
Victory Marathon is a traditional event organised by Halyk Bank on Victory Day each
year.In 2017, more than 315 World War Il veterans and home front workers who are
Halyk Bank's depositors received more than KZT9.5 million in targeted material aid.

Over the past eight years, Halyk Bank has donated more than KZT96.5 million to
veterans' organisationsand World War Il veterans as part of this programme.

GOOD DEEDS... PASS ON KNOWLEDGE TO FUTURE
GENERATIONS

Humanity is in constant motion, developing, accumulating experience and knowledge
generation after generation and striving to pass all that has been accumulated to those
who follow to help them to not only survive but thrive. New times give birth to new
generations, who view the world in another way and have different goals. Much of our
ancestors' experience becomes unacceptable as time goes on, but a tremendous
amount of their knowledge should act as a foundation for future development.In 2017,
the Halyk charity fund and Halyk Bank implemented several educational projects.

HALYKSMART

The topics of innovation and science became especially popular in Kazakhstan
ahead of the EXPO 2017 international exhibition in Astana. In June 2017, the Halyk
charity fund launched a new project, Halyk Smart, which is an educational channel
onYouTube with Russian-and Kazakh-language translations of popular videos from
various scientific fields. The project aims to foster interest in science among
students,improve theireducational level,and help them choose a future profession
and apply to universities. The project is especially important for helping to develop
the Kazakh language's scientificand technical vocabulary. In just a few months, the
channel had gained 20,000 subscribers and its videos had been viewed more than
1.7 million times.The Halyk charity fund sees a great future for the project.

ORPHANAGES

In the spring of 2017, the Halyk charity fund took patronage over Orphanage No 1in
Almaty. In this case, a programmatic approach was applied: in addition to improving
the orphanage's facilities, the fund committed itself to support a special educational
programme. The main goal of such patronageis to broaden the children's horizons and

help them with vocational guidance and further integration into society. A person's
social developmentis a lifelong process butis especially intense during childhood and
adolescence, when basic concepts, norms and values are established, and social
behaviour motivations are formed. That is why orphaned children's caregivers,
psychologists and teachers play such alarge role during this periodin their lives.

To address this matter, the Halyk charity fund and its partner, the Nursultan Nazarbayev
education fund, developed and organised pedagogical and psychological training
courses for the orphanages' teachers, as well as classes with psychologists for the
children, along with a series of training courses on various subjects, including foreign
languages, photography and woodworking. Halyk Bank's employees volunteer to
hold financial literacy courses for teenage children at the orphanages and help to
introduce them to various everyday situations in which it is important to understand
the value of money and learn how to correctly save and spendit.

Halyk Bank also provides systematic support to orphanages. It provides regular
helptoimprovetheirfacilities, including purchasing furniture, equipment, clothes,
stationery supplies,and conducts holiday, sportand educational events.

ROAD TO SCHOOL

The Road to School charity drive is aimed at providing support to children from
low-incomeandlargefamiliesatthestartof schoolyear-1Septemberandis part
of a nationwide programme that the Ministry of Education and Science of
Kazakhstan hasrunforthepastnineyears.

In 2017, the Halyk charity fund provided 440 children from 22 Kazakh cities with
everything they need to start the school year - including backpacks, notebooks,
paintsandothersupplies—pledging around KZT7 millionoverall.

HALYKSTUDENTS

Since 2007, Halyk Bank has provided monthly financial support to 37 children's
institutions throughout the country as part of the Halyk Students program. The
project has helped 31 students at sponsored orphanages and boarding schools to
receive higher education and nine of the graduates have been employed at Halyk
Bank. Currently, a student at a sponsored orphanage in East Kazakhstan region is
studying at Amanzhalov University under the programme. Halyk Bank pays for the
student'stuitionand providesamonthly stipend.
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THE BANK'S HEADCOUNT TRENDS, 2007-17

- o

Branches 8,253 8,306 7,792 7725 7470 7394 7395 7308 7367 7,074 7,254 (14.3%) (999)
Head Office 1,554 1,602 1,522 1,524 1,491 1,496 1,534 1,638 1,744 1,761 1,835 18.1% 282
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Difference (594) (126) (226) 166

PLANTING TREES

Each year, Halyk Bank participates in socially important campaigns in Almaty, one of
which has created a tradition of planting trees. In May 2017, the Bank supported the”Be
Green"campaign and, together with employees of Halyk Group, helped to improve the
landscapingat Almaty's zoo by planting more than 30 saplings onits territory.

HALYKBANK'S HRSYSTEM

Halyk Bank's HR system is governed by the Kazakh Labour Code, Tax Code, and Law on
Banksand Banking Activities in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The main objectives of the Bank's HR policy are to:

streamline the organisational structure and HR planning
selectand deploy employees

trainand develop employeesand create a talent pool
oversee productivity,employeeincentivisation and salaries

fostera positive corporate culture and provide social support foremployees

The Bank works consistently and systematically to optimise and automate its business
processes, which helps to improve labour productivity. The Bank's organisational
structure and headcount are regularly reviewed to ensure that they correspond with
its structure, type and lines of business.

The migration to a self-service HR system, including employee activity and reporting,
continues.

I

To improve the efficiency of its recruitment process, the Bank has developed a list of online
assessment questions. This method is applied in the telephone interview process and during
face-to-face interviews. It helps to reduce the recruiters' workload, allowing them to evaluate
candidates at a distance, and makes it possible to determine as accurately as possible
whether the candidates possess the required professional skills for the job they are seeking.

To find young, promising local talent for internships and further employment, the
Bank works with leading higher educational institutions in Almaty to hold open
house days for students who are nearing graduation. The open house days include a
guided tour of the Head Office and a visual demonstration of working conditions at
the Bank for the promising young professionals. As part of this initiative, the Bank also
plays an active role in job fairs at leading colleges and universities to strengthen the
loyalty of young professionals and attract students to internships and entry-level
positions at the Bank, demonstrating in practice how it adheres to a policy of
openness and its modern approach and interestin working with young professionals.

STAFF MOTIVATION AND LOYALTY

As part of an initiative to increase staff loyalty and encourage two-way
communication between employeesand the management, the Bankanalyses the
working environmentwithinits units fromsocialand psychological perspectives.

To ensure the Bank's continued competitiveness on the labour market, a
systematicreview of staff salariesbeganon 1June 2017

As part of an effort to increase productivity of employees toward achieving the Bank's
goals, quarterly bonus payments are made depending on net profitand branch rating.

Recommendations have been made to improve the Bank's staff salary system and a standardised
approach to setting salaries when hiring and transfering employees has been determined.

SOCIAL
REPORT




76

To encourage the best employees, the Bank holds a competition to recognise
achievements and give rewards based on the year's results. In 2016, the previous
employee achievement programme underwent significant changes. Beginningin
2017,thenewformatincludesthree awards:

m  Best employee category “Professionalism and Dedication to the Bank's Values”
(first-degree nomination)

m  Best employee category “Diligence and the Pursuit of Success” (second-
degree nomination)

m  "EmployeeoftheYear’(third-degree nomination)

Winners in the first- and second-degree nominations were invited to Almaty for
an award ceremony to receive their letters of appreciation and awards, a
celebratorydinnerwiththe ManagementBoardandatourofthecity.

To motivate and encourage branches and their subdivisions, a contest has been developed
and approved to determine the best division in its field of activity. The contest has two
stages: quarterly and annual branch ratings. The quarterly winners received certificates of
achievement signed by their division heads. The annual winners received a money gift card
and certificates of achievement signed by the chairperson of the Management Board.

Duringtheyear,variousbonuseswere paid:

1. Bonuses for certain categories of staff to recognise annual performance based on reviews
2. Quarterly staff motivation bonuses

3. One-offbonuses forKazakhstan Independence Day

4. Staff bonuses for suggesting initiatives to improve the Bank's processes (initiative portal)
5. Bonusesforretail staff at branches for select projects

Thefollowing benefitsand compensations are also provided:

m  Varioustypesofinsurance,including health and life cover

m  Financial assistance in connection with certain personal events

m  Additional paid leave in connection with certain personal events

m  Senioritybonuses
n

Compensation foremployment/transfer to other regional offices of the Bank and
its subsidiaries

m  Sport and recreational activities for employees, renting sports facilities,
organisation of various sporting events

m  Organisation of intramural sports tournaments for Group employees

m  Supportforunemployed retirees of the Bank

Holiday events, financial aid for holidays and in connection with certain personal events:
Organisation of corporate activities

Initiative development programme

Parking spaces formanagers and employees of the Bank
Benefits for maternity leave

Subsidised mortgages foremployees

Partial payment by the Bank for MBA, master's and professional certification

There are regular induction days, at which new employees receive branded goods and materials.

In 2017, state awards were given to the following persons: Marat Almenov, deputy

chairman of the Management Board, was awarded the Merey Order; Kuat

Kussainbekov and Yertai Salimov, deputy chairmen of the Management Board, were

awarded the Honoured Financier Order; and Kudikova Tasbike, Director of the Almaty

region branch, and Musakhanova Saule, Director of the Semey district branch, were

awarded the Best Financier Medal.

Bank employees have access to information resources: an intranet (Halyk Info), a

corporate newspaper (Halyk Janalyk) and the Bank's radio station.

The Bank holds various contests to foster team spirit and corporate morale among employees:

m  Holiday events for employees of the head office, including: International
Women's Day on 8 March; Nauryz, summer nature trip with families; National
CurrencyTenge Day; New Year

m  Contests foremployees, a total of six different contests with prizes for employees
ofthe Bank were held during the year

m  Tournaments were held among Halyk Group employees: billiards, bowling,
carting, karaoke, chess, mini-football at the Chairman's Cup, and the First Cup of
Banksintellectual challenge

m  The Almaty financial institution employees' Olympics, in which the Bank's team
tookfirst place

m  Atotalof 345 Bankemployees took partin the“Courage toWin"marathon

m On 26 April 2017, a charity drive was held to collect funds for families affected by
floods in Aktobe, Karaganda, Pavlodar, Akmola, Kostanay, North Kazakhstan and
East Kazakhstan regions; many departments of the head office, 22 branches and
subsidiaries took partand collected KZT5.8 million and US$ 1,780

Eachyear the Bankorganises numerous charitable events and initiatives.
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PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT

The Bank's personnel training and development policy in 2017 focused on continuously
improving the level of professional knowledge and refining the practical skills of the
Bank's business and IT employees, as well as key employees in the staff reserve.

Throughout 2017, the Bank's corporate business trainers conducted systematic
worktodevelop personnelinthe following priority areas:

Improving management skills for middle managers

Improving sales skills and effective customer service

Training on the Bank's products (distance learning)

Training onthe Bank'sinternal rules and standards (distance learning)

||
-
L]
n
= Improving personal effectiveness formembers of the staff reserve
L]

Teachingfinancial analysis to subsidiary employees

Each part of corporate training is built on a step-by-step approach, training
materials are structured according to the level of complexity and depth of detail of
theinformation being covered and are adapted tothe needs of each specifictarget
group. This approach ensures that employees continue to improve their
professional knowledge and master the practical skillsthey need onthe job.

The most intensive corporate training was held to improve the knowledge and
skills in various sales techniques for front office employees of the Bank's branch
network. A series of sales training courses was conducted for retail workers,
starting with the basics and continuing into advanced retail sales techniques.
Internal corporate training sessions were also provided for employees in the SME
and operations departments to improve their time management, conflict
resolutionand business presentation for SMEemployees.

In 2017, the HR Department continued to conduct systematic training sessions for
employees and managers in the staff reserve, Department directors, deputy directors
and heads of the units, and directors and deputy directors of branchesincludedin the
staff reserve received systematic training aimed at developing their managerial skills
and improving their personal effectiveness, motivation and strategic vision of the
Bank's processes. An external provider conducted this training for 125 managers of the
Head Office and 22 branch directors, while internal business trainers held courses for
145 employees of the Head Office and 85 managers of regional and district branches.

For the first time, business simulation training sessions were held for the heads of
independent structural subdivisions of the Head Office. This training allowed them

not only to develop their delegation skills, responsibility and decision-making, it also
helped participants to take a“helicopter view"of the Bank's business processes.

In2017,the businesstrainersconductedthefirst post-training webinarsaimed at
reinforcingthe knowledge acquired during the seminarsand receiving feedback
fromtraining participants.

During the reporting period, external providers conducted 24 corporate training
sessions for 611 employees of the Head Office and branches. Atotal of 249 employees
of the Head Office attended individual training, of which 161 were free. Mandatory
training sessions on HSE, industrial and electrical safety, fire safety basics and other
topics were provided for 242 Bank employees. Managers and employees of regional
and district branches attended 22 seminars. Training sessions were conducted at 11
of the advisory seminars, five of which were taught by internal business trainers.

The Bankalso continued its co-financing programme for employees, including:
m  MBA programmes for five Bank managers

m  Professional certificates fortwo employees

m  Internships within the organisation for 18 Bankemployees

In addition to training Bank employees, the branch network trained 1,247
unaffiliated people with the potential to become cashiers and retail specialists for
the mid-class and mass segments and arranged mandatory training on the rules
forconducting exchange operationsinvolving foreign currency in Kazakhstan.

The opportunities presented by the Bank's distance learning system, as well as its
popularity organisation-wide and the interest of business units in such training in
2017, caused the number of employees trained and training programs implemented
to increase. Overall, the Bank's employees took part in distance learning/testing on
different subjects 57,603 times. Therefore, around 6 distance learning events
accounted for each of the Bank'semployees over the year.

In2017, the Bank continued working to expand its distance learning system to include
Halyk Group subsidiaries Halyk Project, Kazkommertsbank and Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan.

Halyk Bank continues to strengthen its staff reserve for management positions and planned
development of staff in the reserve programme. The staff reserve totalled 484 bank employees
in 2017 (including 106 key personnel), who are included in the reserve for 612 positions.

As part of the approved Strategy for 2016-18, which has set ambitious goals of
building an effective, transparent, stable and innovative financial institution that
applies the best corporate governance practices, the Bank plans to continue
developing highly professional staff.
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LEAD
FROM THE FRONT!

CAPTAIN

The outcome of a sports match depends on not only the
personal contribution of each player, but also coordinated
work by the entire team. This responsibility is largely
entrusted to a leader: the captain. Team spirit, mutual
support, self-confidence and the ability to withstand
difficulties and failures depend on the policy of captains,
who must respond promptly and make decisions in difficult
situations, lead, support and inspire team members to
conquer new athletic heights.
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The Bank recognises that high standards of corporate governance are vital for its
success on a free and competitive market. The Bank seeks to maintain a modern and
effective system of corporate governance that increases its capitalisation and
generates returns forinvestors.

Since the initial public offering (IPO) on the London Stock Exchange in 2006, the Bank
has placed particular importance on corporate governance development. The IPO
was more than simply a way of raising finance: it was also an indication of the Bank's
commitment to pursuing the standards expected of a modern financial institution of
international standing.

TheBankdevelops and streamlines its corporate governance system based on:

m  Regular updates to Kazakh legislative requirements relating to the risk
management and corporate governance systems of second-tier banks, as well as
increased regulatory control over banking activities

m  New risks that financial organisations might encounter in the current
environmentand increase competition for clients

m ts ongoing efforts to build an efficient, transparent, stable and innovative
financial institution that adheres to the best practices and standards in corporate
governance observed in OECD and G20 countries

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANK'S CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank's current Code of Corporate Governance, which was approved by the General
Shareholder Meeting in December 2006, defines the main standards and principles
applied in managing the Bank, including relations between the Board of Directors and
Management Board, between shareholders and employees, as well as functioning
mechanisms and decision-making procedures of the Bank's internal bodies.

The Bank's Code of Corporate Governance has been developed in accordance with Kazakh
legislation, recommendations by the regulator, the Model Code, corporate governance
best practice by companies whose shares are listed internationally, ethical standards and
the actual conditions of the Bank's activities at its current stage of development.

To determine key guidelines that the Bank follows when creating, operating and
streamlining its corporate governance system, the Bank's Code of Corporate
Governanceincludes the following principles:

m  Shareholders should be realistically able to exercise their rights to take part in

managing the Bank

m  Shareholders should be realistically able to take part in the distribution of the
Bank's netincome (receive dividends)

m  The Bank should ensure that shareholders are provided with accurate, timely and
complete information regarding its financial position, economic indicators, results and
management structures to ensure balanced decisions by shareholders and investors

m  TheBankshould ensure thatall groups of shareholders are treated equally

m  There should be maximum transparency regarding the actions of the Bank's employees

m  The Board of Directors should conduct the strategic management of the Bank
and oversee the Management Board's activities, while its Directors should report
toshareholders

m  The Management Board should be able to manage the Bank effectively and in
good faith and report to the Board of Directors and shareholders

m  Ethicalstandards should be set for shareholders

m  There should be an effective system of internal control that is evaluated objectively

The Board of Directors and Management Board confirm that the Bank conducts its
activities in accordance with the principles, provisions and procedures set by the
Code of Corporate Governance.

By accepting, streamlining and adhering strictly to the Code of Corporate
Governance, the Charter and other internal documents, the Bank confirms its
intention to encourage the development and improvement of corporate governance
best practice.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

This section has been prepared in accordance with section DT R 7.2. of the UK Financial
Conduct Authority's Disclosure and Transparency Rules (corporate governance
statements).

As a foreign company with global depository receipts admitted to the Official List of
the London Stock Exchange, the Bank is not required to comply with the UK Corporate
Governance Code published by the Financial Reporting Council - the independent
regulator of the United Kingdom. However, in accordance with DT R 7.2, the Bank is
obliged to disclose information about its compliance with both the Kazakh Code of
Corporate Governance and the existing corporate governance principles to which it
adheres above those stipulated in Kazakh legislation.
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The Bank considers the UK Corporate Governance Code a guideline for further
development of corporate governance.

The Bank's existing Corporate Governance Code differs from the UK Corporate
Governance Code, as disclosed below. These differences are partly caused by
requirements of the Kazakh Code of Corporate Governance, legal requirements and
rules of the Kazakh regulator - the National Bank of Kazakhstan — and partly by the
domesticenvironment of the Bank's activities.

THE BANK'S CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The UK Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that the Board of Directors should ensure that an
appropriate succession plan is in place when
appointing members of the Board of Directors and
the senior management, in order to create an
appropriate balance of skills and experience in the
company and in the Board of Directors, and to
continuously refresh the talent pool.

The Bank's Code of Corporate Governance defines
aprocedure for creating the Board of Directors and
requirements for candidates to it, the aim being to
ensure an optimal balance of experience and
knowledge needed for the Board of Directors to
function effectively.

KAZAKH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND

AND THE UKCORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

THE BANK'S CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank's Code of Corporate Governance includes several distinctions from the UK
Corporate Governance Code. Below are the main differences:

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE THE BANK'S CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The UK Corporate Governance Code stipulates a
maximum three-year term for the re-election of
directors

The UK Corporate Governance Code provides for
meetings of non-executive directors at least
annually, in particular, to appraise the chairman's
performance.

The UK Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that at least half of the Board, excluding the
chairman, consists of independent non-executive
directors.

The UK Corporate Governance Code stipulates that
non-executive directors should carefully analyse to
what extent the Management Board's work fulfils
the aims and objectives set, monitor its activities,
and check that financial information published is
complete and that financial controls and the risk
managementsystem are effective and reliable.

The Bank's Code of Corporate Governance does not
require a regular re-election of the Board. Instead,
the scope of the General Shareholder Meeting
covers determining the Board's term of authority.
The General Shareholder Meeting of 21 April 2017
setathree-yearterm for the current Board.

In 2017, non-executive directors held informal
meetings, also attended by the corporate
secretary, to discuss strategic issues, ways to
improve corporate governance processes, the
Board's activities, and to improve the work of the
corporate secretary.

The Bank's Code of Corporate Governance does
not directly require this due to Kazakh legal
requirements, which state that at least one third of
the Board's members must be independent
directors. However, the composition of the Board,
as appointed by the General Shareholder Meeting
on 21 April 2017, includes five independent non-
executive directors out of seven.

Under the Bank's Code of Corporate Governance,
all members of the Board of Directors are
responsible for this.

The Kazakh Code of Corporate Governance means the Code of Corporate Governance
approved by the Issuers Board in February 2005 and by the Council of the Financial
Institutions' Association of Kazakhstan in March 2005 (amended in July 2007). When
developing the Kazakh Code of Corporate Governance, extensive international and
Kazakh experience was considered. This Code is typical for Kazakh companies.

The Bank's Code of Corporate Governance was developed taking into consideration the
Kazakh Code of Corporate Governance, legal requirements, recommendations of the
Kazakh regulator, ethical norms and other factors. Therefore, the Bank's Code of Corporate
Governance includes more extended provisions compared with the Kazakh Code of
Corporate Governance, which promotes improvement of corporate governance practice.
In addition, the Bank implements similar corporate governance practices in other
companies of Halyk Group, and believes that this also helps to improve and foster a
common understanding of corporate governance principles throughout the Group.

The major differences between the Bank's Code of Corporate Governance and the

Kazakh Code of Corporate Governance are:

m  The Bank added restrictive criteria for candidates for the Board of Directors and
Management Board in accordance with recommendations of the Kazakh regulator
intended to raise the quality of the Bank's bodies and prevent conflicts of interest

m  TheBankadded principles of responsibility for directors and the Management Board

m Description of how the activities of the Board of Directors and Management
Board are organised with a clear segregation of duties

m  The Bank expanded the principles for consideration in determining the
remuneration of the directorsand members of the Management Board

The Bank's Code of Corporate Governance can be found on the corporate website:
https://halykbank.kz/korporativnoe_upravlenie.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCEEVENTSIN 2017

There were changes in the composition of the Management Board

At the General Shareholder Meeting on 21 April 2017, the new composition of the
Board of Directors was approved with seven members who will serve three-year terms

= Tomaintain a high level of competence and awareness among members of the
Board of Directors, the Board Book was developed as an introductory course for
new Board members, containing information on the Bank's key historical
milestones, Halyk Group's development strategy, the Bank's organisational
structure, the Bank's key executives and the procedures governing the work of
the Board of Directors and Management Board

m  Changes were made to the Bank's Charter, Code of Corporate Governance and
Regulations for the Board of Directors to bring them into line with the
requirements of Kazakh legislation

m  Regulations were developed and approved governing the work of the corporate
secretary, including defining new qualification requirements, expanding its
functions, and establishing new standards and requirements

m 7o increase the Bank's transparency and to inform shareholders and investors about
corporate events, a new corporate governance section was created on the Bank's website

m  Training activities were conducted with the corporate secretaries of Halyk Group
and a self-assessment was performed to determine the level of corporate
governance at Halyk Group companies based on the evaluation cards and
methodology developed by the International Finance Corporation in
conjunction with the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange

m  Theresults were reviewed of the Bank's stress-testing that was conducted based
onageneral economic scenario for 2017 (using scenario analysis)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors has the following consultancy and advisory bodies: Strategic
Planning Committee, Audit Committee, Nominations and Remunerations
Committee, Social Responsibilities Committee. For more details on their work, please
seethe respective subsection below.

The Management Board has created a number of working bodies: directorates,

committees and working groups. This allows it to consider major issues in detail in
separate segments. Where necessary and if required by law, decisions made by such

working bodies are brought to the Management Board or Board of Directors for approval.
To ensure best practice in corporate governance, the Board of Directors is assisted by
internal and external auditors, compliance controller, chief risk officer, chief legal
adviser, a corporate secretary,and others.

TheBankhasinternal audit, risk management and compliance control services, as well
asacorporate secretary responsible for corporate governanceissues.

The Bank engages 'Big Four' professional services firms to audit the financial
statements of Halyk Group. In 2017, this was carried out by Deloitte.

The diagram below shows the structure of accountability in the corporate
governance system.
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Functions between the Board of Directors and the Management Board are allocated
inaccordance with Kazakh law.

Forinstance, the Board of Directors is responsible for the following important issues:

m  Defining the priority areas of the Bank's activity; approving the Bank's development
strategy; approving a development plan in situations stipulated in Kazakh legislation
and as part of approving the development strategy; setting and approving
acceptable levels of risk; overseeing the implementation of the development
strategy and evaluating its conformity with current market and economic
conditions, the Bank's risk profile and financial potential, and Kazakh legislation;
reviewing appraisals of acceptable risk levels and comparing them with existing risks

m  Ensuring that the Bank's Charter complies with Kazakh legislation and keeping it
uptodate

m  Preliminarily approving annual financial reports
m  Monitoring, controlling and evaluating the activities of the Management Board

m  Approving the Bank's organisational structure and ensuring that it corresponds
tothesize, structure, character and complexity of the Bank's activities

m  Approving the Bank's budget for the corresponding year and overseeing its execution

m  Establishing a transparent and efficient system of criteria and procedures for
nominating Management Board members and employees reporting to the
Board of Directors,and determining their remuneration

m  Ensuring effective risk management and internal control systems, including by:
approving the corresponding internal documents set by Kazakh legislation;
reviewing information and reports on monitoring and control of risk
management issues; auditing; ensuring compliance with Kazakh legislation and
internal documents in cases stipulated by regulations on creating a system of risk
managementand internal control,and complying therewith

m  Creatingasystemtoidentify and resolve conflicts of interest

m  Analysing and evaluating applications for loans exceeding 5% of the Bank's total
equity and making decisions onissuing such loans

m  Approving large transactions, transactions where the Bank has an interest and
related-party transactions

m  Approvingacquisitions of 10% or larger stakes in other legal entities

m  Maintainingan ongoing dialogue with the Bank's shareholders

m  Creating authorised collegiate bodies, in accordance with the law, to oversee the
creation of a system of risk management and internal control; and approving

The
oper.
n

internal documents governing their activities
Ensuring that regulatory reports are submitted in full, accurately and on time

Management Board is responsible for managing the Bank's day-to-day
ations, including:

Drafting and ensuring implementation of the Bank's development strategy

Approving internal documents regulating the Bank's activities, except for
documents that fall under the competencies of other functions

Determining duties, areas of authority and responsibilities of members of the
ManagementBoard

Developing the Bank's budget and monitoring its execution

Presenting financial reports to the Board of Directors and General Shareholder
Meeting in accordance with Kazakh law and the Charter

Making decisions regarding acquisitions and disposals of property

Determining the sizes of and limits for loans, guarantees and commitments
made by the Bank to third parties in accordance with its internal documents,
except for situations that fall within the exclusive competencies of other
functions of the Bank

Appointing (electing) directors of branches and heads of representative officesin
accordance with Kazakh law

Approving the Bank's personnel, internal labour regulations, and internal rules governing
the imposition of penalties and the provision of incentives within its competence
Developing the Bank's organisational structure

Reviewing and making decisions regarding collective agreements in accordance
with Kazakh law

Performing other functions that do not contradict Kazakh law and the Charter,
and that do not fall under the competencies of other functions
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS STRUCTURE

BOARD COMPOSITION

At the Annual General Shareholder Meeting on 21 April 2017, the following dedisions were made:
m  Todetermine the composition of Halyk Bank's Board of Directors as seven members

m  Todetermine the term of office for members of Halyk Bank's Board of Directors as
three years, to expire at the time of Annual General Shareholder Meeting at which
the election of the new Board of Directors takes place

m To elect the following people as members of the Bank's Board of Directors:
Alexander Pavlov, Anvar Saidenov, Arman Dunaev, Christof Ruehl and Frank
Kuijlaars as independent non-executive directors; Mazhit Yessenbayev as a
representative of Holding Group ALMEX; and Umut Shayakhmetova

Asat 31 December 2017, the composition of the Board of Directors was as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPOSITION
NAME POSITION

ALEXANDER PAVLOV Chairman, independent non-executive director

ARMAN DUNAEV Strategic Planning Committee chairman, member of Board of

Directors - independent non-executive director

FRANK KUIJLAARS Nomination and Remuneration Committee chairman, member of
Board of Directors - independent non-executive director

MAZHIT YESSENBAYEV Member of Board of Directors, representative of Holding Group ALMEX
Audit Committee chairman, member of Board of Directors -

CHRISTOF RUEHL Independent non-executive director

ANVAR SAIDENOV Social Responsibilities Committee chairman, member of Board of
Directors -independent non-executive director

UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA Member of Board of Directors, Chairperson of the Management Board

TOTAL 7 DIRECTORS

When determining the independence of the directors, the Board of Directors uses the
criteria stipulated by Kazakh law.

directors

5 independent non-executive directors

DIRECTORS' SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

Halyk Bank seeks the best balance of experience, skills and vision in its directors. The
presence of a variety of views when discussing issues allows the Board of Directors to
exerciseits duties and represent the interests of shareholders most effectively.

Independent directors contribute international experience, strategic vision, insight into
the largest industries where the Bank operates, corporate governance and risk
management. At the same time, all directors possess knowledge of banking activities,
finance in general and human resources management, including issues of remunerations.

Information on the skillsand experience of the Board of Directors is summarised below:

DIRECTORS' SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

Banking

Oil and gas and mining

Other industries in the real economy
Finance

Leadership

Risk management

International experience

Strategic vision

Corporate governance

NN N U A NN U AN

Human resource management

o~

~
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MANAGEMENT BOARD STRUCTURE

In 2017, there were several changes in the Management Board. Aivar Bodanov,
deputy chairman of the Management Board, decided to step down from 20 May
2017 and continue his career in a different industry. Askar Smagulov stepped down
as deputy chairman from 1 June 2017 at his own initiative. The current composition
ofthe Management Board is as follows:

MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPOSITION
NAME POSITION

UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA Chairperson of the Management Board
MARAT ALMENOV Deputy chairman

Retail Banking and Security and Problem Loans
ALIYA KARPYKOVA Deputy chairman

Finance, Accounting and Subsidiaries
MURAT KOSHENOV Deputy chairman

Corporate Banking and International Activities
KUAT KUSSAINBEKOV

Deputy chairman
IT

YERTAI SALIMOV Deputy chairman

Operations and Treasury

ASLAN TALPAKOV Deputy chairman

SME Banking, Marketing and PR, and Maintenance

TOTAL 7 MEMBERS

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In general, the Board of Directors and its committees work in accordance with the
plansforrespective periods.

In 2017, the Board of Directors held 86 meetings, including 11 in person and 75 in
absentia. At the meetings in person, the Board of Directors discussed the most
importantstrategicissues,suchas:

m  Theapproval of changestothe Group's development strategy for 2016-18

m  Theresultsfor2016 ofimplementing the Group's strategy for 2016-18

m  TheresultsforH12017 ofimplementing the Group's strategy for 2016-18

m  The results of the operations and budget execution of the Bank and Halyk
Groupfor2016andH12017

m  Theapproval of the consolidated budget of Halyk Group (IFRS) and Halyk Bank for 2018

m  Status reports regarding the Bank's transformation programme and IT
transformation programme through 2020

m Internal audit matters, including the results of the outside assessment by
PricewaterhouseCoopers that the internal audit department's activities are in full
compliance with international best practices in internal audit, as defined by the
Institute of Internal Auditors, as well as the code of ethics for internal auditors

m  Approval of majorlending transactions

m  Preliminary approval of the Bank's 2016 financial statements and quarterly
performance reports of the Management Board

m  Stress-testing the Bank's loan portfolio

m  Analysisofthe Bank'sloan portfolio quality

m  Analysisof the Bank's related-party and other transactions

Absentee voting was conducted for routine issues that are included in the Board of

Directors duties by law or by the Bank's internal documents, and most urgent issues
that could not wait until the next ordinary meeting in person.

DETAILED COMMITTEE REPORTS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

The Board committees are consulting and advisory bodies to the Board of
Directors. All their suggestions are recommendations that are made for the Board
of Directors' consideration.

Under Kazakh law, committee members are Board of Directors' members and
experts. More detailed information on the composition of the committees is
provided below in the subsections on the activities of the respective committees.

Allcommitteesactinaccordance with their statutes.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in July 2005.

It consists of three directors who are elected by a majority of Board of Directors'
votes. At least two of them should be independent non-executive directors. The
membersofthe committeeare:

NAME POSITION

CHRISTOF RUEHL

Chairman, independent non-executive director

ALEXANDER PAVLOV Member,independent non-executive director

ANVAR SAIDENOV Member, independent non-executive director

All committee members are independent non-executive directors who are
knowledgeable and experienced in accounting and tax accounting, internal and
external auditing, and risk management.

COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS

The committee assists the Board of Directors on issues of the completeness and
authenticity of financial reports, compliance of the Bank and its subsidiaries with
legal requirements and internal documents (compliance control), selection and
independence of the external auditor, adequacy and efficiency of internal control
and risk management systems, and coordination of internal audit activities.

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

aboutimplementing the quality assurance and improvement programme

m  Thereportonthe self-assessment of the internal audit department's compliance
with international best practices in internal audit, as defined by the Institute of
Internal Auditors, as well as the code of ethics for internal auditors

m  Thereport on the internal audit department survey that was conducted among
the members of the Board of Directors, the Bank's management and entities that
were subject toauditin the reporting year

m  Summary reports about significant findings, risks and related recommendations by the
internal audit department, as well as decisions made by the Bank's authorised bodies
as a result of the internal audit department's tasks containing assessments of internal
audits on the risk management, internal control and corporate governance systems

m  The report on implementing internal audit recommendations by the
Management Board of the Bankand subsidiaries

In 2017, the committee worked closely with the internal audit department on matters
related to its activities: reviewing the budget and internal audit working plan; discussing
personnel matters (new hires, departures and transfers); confirming the independence
of the internal audit function; and reviewing the results of PricewaterhouseCoopers'
outside assessment of the compliance of the internal audit department's activities with
international best practices and the code of ethics for internal auditors.

The committee reviewed a report from the compliance controller on the
effectiveness of the compliance risk management system overthe first half of 2017.

In 2017, the committee reviewed quarterly research reports on the quality of the loan
portfolio from the risk management team.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In 2017, the committee held three meetingsin personand41 in absentia.

To ensure the completeness and reliability of financial statements, the committee
considered interim (quarterly) reports of the external auditor and letters to the
Bank's management and subsidiaries in this respect, and approved and submitted
the 2016 annualfinancial statements for consideration by the Board of Directors.

As part of this work, among other things, the committee discussed principles of
importantaccountingjudgments, policies and procedures with the external auditor
andtheBank'sfinancial division.

In2017,the committee reviewed management reports on internal audit issues, including:
= Theannual report onthe internal audit department's activities, including information

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was established in September 2007. It consists
of three directors who are elected by a majority of the Board of Directors' votes. At least two of
them should be independent non-executive directors. The members of the committee are:

NAME POSITION

FRANK KUIJLAARS Chairman, independent non-executive director
ALEXANDER PAVLOV Member, independent non-executive director
UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA Member, chairperson of the management board

The majority of the committee is independent non-executive directors, and all
committee members have extensive experience in human resources management,
includingissues of remunerations.
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COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS

The committee makes recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding
candidates for the Board of Directors, the Management Board and the boards of
directors of the Bank's subsidiaries, on the remunerations system for members of
the Board of Directors and Management Board, and on the salaries of the boards of
directorsand executive bodies of subsidiaries.

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

In2017,the committee held eight meetingsinabsentiaand nonein person.

Recommendations were made to the Board of Directors on the election of the following
people to the Board of Directors: Alexander Pavlov, Anvar Saidenov, Arman Dunaev,
Christof Ruehl and Frank Kuijlaars as independent non-executive directors; Mazhit
Yessenbayev as a representative of Holding Group ALMEX; and Umut Shayakhmetova.
Recommendations were also made on: determining the directors' terms of office; the
remuneration of independent directors of some subsidiaries; changes to the system of
compensation for the internal audit department and corporate secretary; and on the rank
of management positions and some categories of employees at the Bank's subsidiaries.

The ManagementBoard'sremunerationfor2017wasKZT1,484 million (including

annual bonuses). The Management Board remuneration is based on the

followingthreekey criteria:

m  Theestimate ofajob position, itsimportance for the Group, and the contribution
tothe Bank's operating results by members of the Management Board

m  Remuneration of similar positions on the job market region-wide

m  Anevaluation of the working results of the members of the Management Board,
according towhich annual bonuses are paid

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Strategic Planning Committee was established in April 2012. It consists of four
directors who are elected by a majority of the Board of Directors' votes and four
experts, who are members of the Management Board and oversee matters regarding

corporate business, international activities, SMEs, retail business, IT and PR. The
members of the committee are:

NAME POSITION

ARMAN DUNAEV Chairman, independent non-executive director

ALEXANDER PAVLOV Member, independent non-executive director

MAZHIT YESSENBAYEV Member, director

UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA Member, chairperson of the management board

MARAT ALMENOV Member,expert (silent member)

MURAT KOSHENOV Member, expert (silent member)

KUAT KUSSAINBEKOV Member, expert (silent member)

ASLAN TALPAKOV Member, expert (silent member)
COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS

The committee assists the Board of Directors in matters regarding Halyk Group's
strategy, analyses reports on strategy implementation, and monitors the external
environment and itsimpacton the Group's strategic plans.

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

In 2017, the committee held four meetingsin person.

The committee reviewed the results of implementing Halyk Group's strategy for 2016-
18in 2016, as well as the results of implementing Halyk Group's strategy for 2016-181in
H12017.The analysis showed satisfactory achievement of the goals set.

In addition, the committee considered reports on the implementation of Bank's
transformation programme and IT transformation programme through 2020 (with a
frequency not less than once every 6 months).

The committee analyses changes in the external environment (regulatory, economic,
financial, etc) and assesses theirimpact on Halyk Group's strategy for 2016-18.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

RELATIONS WITH MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

The Social Responsibility Committee was established in April 2012.

The committee consists of three directors, who are elected by a majority of the Board of
Directors' votes, and two experts: a Management Board member who oversees issues of
sponsorship and charity; and the head of Marketing and PR. All members, apart from the
experts, are independent non-executive directors. The members of the committee are:

NAME POSITION

ANVAR SAIDENOV Chairman, independent non-executive director
FRANK KUIJLAARS Member, independent non-executive director
CHRISTOF RUEHL Member, independent non-executive director
ASLAN TALPAKOV Member, expert (silent member)

SAGINBEK SHUNKEYEV Member, expert (silent member)

COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS

The committee assists the Board of Directors in issues regarding the Bank's policy on
corporate social responsibility and sustainable development; the Bank's compliance with
legislative requirements regarding corporate social responsibility; potential risks in
corporate social responsibility and the minimisation thereof; the preparation and
publication of the report on corporate social responsibility; and preliminary consideration
of the expenses budget related to social corporate responsibility for the respective period.

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

In 2017, the committee held one meeting in person.

The committee reviewed and considered the following matters:

m  The sponsorship and charity report for Halyk Bank and the Halyk charity fund
regarding the planned activities and budget for 2017

m  The planned sponsorship and charity activities of Halyk Bank and the Halyk
charity fund for 2018

The Bank strives to continuously improve its system for working with minority
shareholders, which allows them to ask questions and receive the necessary
information conveniently (in writing and/or by email).

Communications from minority shareholders and their wishes are regularly analysed.
The Bank informs shareholders of all substantial news, corporate events, changes to its
activities that relate to holders of its shares and bonds, and planned events via its
website, the websites of stock exchanges and financial reporting depositary websites.

KEY CORPORATEEVENTS OF 2017

m  On 21 April 2017, the Bank organised and held the Annual General
Shareholder Meeting, at which 12 resolutions were passed on issues under
consideration, including information about shareholder inquiries regarding
actions of the Bank and its officials. The Bank held the Annual General
Shareholder Meeting without complaintsfromshareholders ortheregulator.

m Where necessary, employees of the Head Office provide consultations to
employees of branches on shareholder relations and to Bank shareholders on
queries about accrued dividends, changes in banking details, conveyance of
heritagerightsand othermatters.

m  Inaccordance with the resolution of the Annual General Shareholder Meeting
on 21 April 2017, the Bank is not accruing or paying dividends on common
shares for 2016. Despite the difficult economic situation in the country, as well
as the decision not to pay dividends on common shares, the Management
Board decided to pay materialaid tothe Bank'sindividual shareholdersin 2017.

m  The Bank continued its common share buy-back in 2017, acquiring 71,408
common shares from 18 individual shareholders for a total of KZT3.1 million in
the reporting period.

m  The Bank considered five official inquiries from shareholders regarding dividend
payments, the share buy-back procedure, ownership rights to the Bank's shares,
otherissues regarding the Bank's activities,and Kazakh securities market legislation.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Shareholders' rights to dividends and the procedure for the payment thereof are
stipulated by the Bank's Charterand the Code of Corporate Governance approved
by General Shareholder Meetings.

In September 2012, the Board of Directors approved the Dividend Policy of Halyk Bank.

The resolution was intended to establish a clear and transparent mechanism for dividend

payment, and because of the need for a separate, flexible internal regulatory document.

The main purpose of the Bank's Dividend Policy is to establish a clear and

transparent decision-making mechanism regarding dividend payments, their size,

the procedure andtimelines of payment considering the following limitations:

m  Ensuringthatthe Bank hasanadequate distribution of net profits

m  Ensuring that there are no restrictions on the payment of dividends provided
for by Kazakhstan's legislation or contained in contracts the Bank has entered
with third parties, particularly with foreign financial organisations (covenants)

m  Complying with requirements to maintain the Bank's capital adequacy when
paying dividends at a level not lower than the actual sector average for
second-tier banksin Kazakhstan

m  Maintaining (retaining) the Bank'sinternational creditratings

m  Conductinganaudit of the Bank's financial statements for the reporting period

m  Complying with decisions of the General Shareholder Meeting

Existing limitations on payments of dividends on common shares (covenants) are as follows:

m Not less than 15% and not more than 50% of net profits (as determined by
audited IFRS statements) for the period for which the paymentis made

m In accordance with the Bank's strategic goals, the Board of Directors may
propose to the General Shareholder Meeting not to allocate part of the net
income for the reporting year, as determined by the Bank's audited
consolidated financial statements, to dividend payments on common shares

m  Notmorefrequently than once per calendar year

m  Payment of dividends is restricted if the Bank is in default, or if such payment
may lead to adefaulton the Bank'sliabilities

Payment of dividends on common shares is subject to the correct shareholder

information being in the Bank's shareholder registry system no later than ninety

daysafterthe decisionto paydividends hasbeen made.

In accordance with the Bank's Charter, dividends on common shares may be paid to

shareholders annually from net profits only after the financial statements for the relevant
reporting period have been audited. Decisions on dividend payments and their size are
made by the General Shareholder Meeting at the suggestion of the Board of Directors.

Dividends paid for previous financial years are as follows:

2017 Q2016 Q2015 Q2014 [f2013 2012 2011
rearBiue {for 2016) (for 2015)}| (for 2014) (f0r2m3) {for 2012 (for 2011)f (for 2010)

Per preferred share  -** 0338 261 224 524 549
Per common share - - 3426 1855 1222
TOTAL = 0338 36.87 2035 1446 524 549

**the Bank had no preferred sharesin circulation during the reporting period

DIRECTOR AWARENESS AND TRAINING

New members of the Board of Directors are provided with an introductory package
with basic information about the history and current positions of the Bank and Halyk
Group, an organisational chart of the Bank, a director's responsibilities, and the main
reports from the consolidated financial statements as of the most recent reporting date.

Members of the Board of Directors are also given information about the main changes
inbanking law.

The Bank intends to further develop and improve the knowledge and
qualifications of members of the Board of Directors.

RISKMANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Risk management and internal control functions within the Bank are distributed as follows:

m The Board of Directors carries out strategic governance on internal control and risk
management, and approves and periodically revises policies. The working body of the
Board of Directors for risk management and internal controls is the Audit Committee.

m  The Board of Directors also considers large transactions of the Bank,
transactions where the Bank has an interest, and related-party transactions,
including with respect to an absence of preferential conditions.

m  The Management Board is responsible for the implementation of risk
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management policies. The Bank has the following key committees that carry out
various risk management and control functions: credit committees (Commercial
Directorate (Credit Committee of the Head Office)), Credit Committee of the
Branch Network, Retail Credit Committee, Bad Loans Committee, Committee for
Managing Assets and Liabilities (ALCO), and Risk Committee.

= Structural divisions of the Bank are directly responsible for identifying and assessing
inherent risks, the adequacy of controls and business continuity.

Independent risk management and compliance services are responsible for
organising the risk management system, which ensures identification,
assessment, control and monitoring of credit, operational, market, compliance
and liquidity risks. The risk management and compliance functions are headed
by the chiefrisk officer and the chief compliance controller.

The internal audit service performs independent and objective evaluations of the
efficiency of risk management, internal control and corporate governance systems.

The diagram below shows the most active bodies, committees and functions of the Bank that participate in the risk management and internal control processes.

Board of Directors

- Approves policies

« Sets tone “from top to bottom”
- Large transactions

« Related-party transactions

Audit Committee

« Working body of the Board

« Review of external and internal audit matters

- General coordination of risk management process

Commercial Directorate

Credit Committee of Branches and of the
Branch Network

Retail credit committees

Management Board
- Implements policies

- Develops control mechanisms
- Bad Loans Committee

Comnmittee for Managing Assets and Liabilities

> Risk Committee

- Structural divisions

Credit risk 1

Credit risk (financial institutions,

countries)

Market risk 4
Liquidity risk

Operational risk
Compliance risk
Internal Control
IT and information security risks

Operational risk
Compliance risk
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‘THREE LINES OF DEFENCE' RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Riskmanagementin the Bankis based onthe 'threelines of defence' system.The first
line of defence includes the top management and structural divisions, the second
line of defence encompasses the risk management committees/risk management
functionand compliance,and the third line of defenceisinternal audit.

m  Thefirstline of defence is the controls developed to ensure correct day-to-day
operations by various business divisions of the Bank.The controls are developed
by the business divisions and are an integral part of business processes. Clearly
delineated controls help to ensure an adequate level of risk minimisation and
compliance with internal regulations, as well as compliance with external
regulatory requirements. The divisions themselves manage and monitor the
controls, enabling them to detect risks, weaknesses of business processes and
possible unforeseen events,andtoreactto theminatimely manner.

m  The second line of defence is the risk management committees, the risk
management functionand compliance.The committeesand riskmanagement
function are responsible for managing risks within the set risk appetite. The
main chain loop of the second line of defence is the risk management function.
To ensure an adequate level of control, the risk management function
determines procedures forassessing risks (credit, financial and operational) and
monitoring risks. The risk management team carries out regular independent
risk monitoring, develops control methods for efficient risk management on
thefirstline of defence and, along with the compliance division, assists business
divisions with regulatory requirements compliance in theirrespective areas.

m  Thethirdlineofdefenceistheinternalauditfunction (see”Internal Audit”).

The Bank acknowledges that it is impossible to totally exclude risks inherent to
banking operations. However, the Bank is confident that its risk management
systemenablesthemtobe minimised significantly.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Bankbuilds relations with employees and clients according to the principles
oflaw, mutualrespectandtrust.

In 2013, the Bankapproved the Rules of Corporate Ethics, which aim to:
m  Secure the mission, values, principles and standards of business ethics and behaviour

m  Developauniform corporate culture based on highethical standards, support
anatmosphere oftrust, mutual respectand decency

m Increase and maintain trust in the Bank from shareholders, clients, business

partners, public authorities, the public and other interested parties, and
strengthenits reputationasan openand honest player on the financial market
m  Assistininteractingeffectively with stakeholders
m  Preventviolationsofthe currentlaws of Kazakhstan by the Bank'semployees
Theserules coverthe professional behaviour of officials and employees of the Bank
in discharging their duties, and in relationships with each other and shareholders,
clients, business partners, public authorities, the public and other interested
partiesenteringintorelationswith the Bank.
Bank executives seek to set a personal example of commitment to the Bank. They
allocate time to create a talent pool for the Bank, consult and coach, and gather
employeesintoateam united byacommonmission, valuesand principles.
Every employee is obliged to maintain the image and business reputation of the
Bankatahighlevel.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Inaccordance with international standards, the internal audit function's mission is
tomaintainandincrease the value of Halyk Group through objective internal audits
and consultations usingarisk-based approach and providing recommendations.

To ensure the independence and objectivity of the internal audit, the internal audit
department functionally reports to the Board of Directors. Working interaction with
members of the Board of Directorsis carried out via the Audit Committee and directly.

The department has 48 employees. Internal auditors strive to continuously
developtheir professional knowledge and skills.

The annual work plan of the internal audit department is considered by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. Where necessary, unscheduled
audits may be undertaken at the request of the chairmen of the Bank's Board of
Directors, Audit Committee chairman and Management Board chairperson.

For each audit task, the department makes recommendations on eliminating issues,
which the Bank considers when undertaking appropriate measures to improve the
efficiency of theinternal control, risk managementand corporate governance systems.
The internal audit department periodically reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors about the implementationof action plansto eliminate issues.

The internal audit department is also responsible for improving the structure and
methodology of internal audits, including to reflect changes in legislation, international
standards and global best practice. The department conducts an annual self-appraisal in
accordance with the International Internal Audit Standards and performs other
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requirements of the Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.

As per the of its external audit in September 2017, PriceWaterhouseCoopers
confirmed full compliance of the Bank's internal audit department with
International Standards and Audit Ethics Code.

The department cascades the internal audit procedures and procedures down to the
internal audit departments of Halyk Group's subsidiaries.

NOMINATION AND CONTRACTING OF DIRECTORS
(generalinformation on procedures)

When nominated, directors are subject to approval by the Kazakh regulator in
accordance with the Rules for Granting Assent to the Appointment (Election) of
Managing Persons of Financial Institutions and Bank and Insurance Holdings, JSC
Depositinsurance Fundand set of documents necessary forapproval.

Contracts are concluded with directors in accordance with the Bank's Policy on
Management Personnel Remunerations and Reimbursements and Creating an
Annual Performance Results Bonus Awards Reserve.

Decisions on payments and individualamounts of directors' remunerations (apart
from the chairman of the Board of Directors and the chairperson of the
Management Board) are made by the chairman of the Board of Directors based on
recommendationsofthe Nominationand Remuneration Committee.

Contracts with directors, setting individualamounts, the frequency and the conditions
for payment of remunerations and withholding of respective taxes in accordance with
Kazakh law, (apart from that of the chairperson of the Management Board) are
concluded by the chairperson of the Management Board on behalf of the Bank.

INSURANCE OF FIDUCIARY LIABILITY

The Board of Directors and Management Board understand the risks arising from
incorrect or mistaken management decisions or actions.

To safeguard shareholders from potential damage from such events, the Bank
insures the liability of its directors and officials.

CORPORATE SECRETARY

Within the Bank's organisational structure and corporate governance system, the
corporate secretary reportsdirectly to the Board of Directors.

Inaccordance withits status, the corporate secretaryis responsible for:

m  Implementing corporate governance procedures established by Kazakh law, as well as
for following the best practices in corporate governance accepted by the Bank and set
forth in the internal documents approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders

m  Ensuring thatregularcommunicationis maintained between the Bankandits
shareholders, between the shareholders and the Board of Directors, internal
audit department, Management Board and other functions of the Bank, and
betweentheBankandits stakeholders

m  Systematically monitoring Kazakh law on corporate governance (corporate
legislation)andtrendsin corporate governance best practices

KEY AREAS FOR IMPROVING CORPORATE GOVER-
NANCE AT THE BANK

Acknowledging the need to further develop and streamline corporate
governance, the Group hasidentified key areas forimprovementover 2018-20:

1. Expand the rights and responsibilities of the corporate secretary

m  Developtheinstitution of corporate secretaries within Halyk Group in a high-
quality way by reviewing their roles in the organisation and encouraging
themto seekadditional qualifications

m  Create anintegrated corporate secretary function for all companies within Halyk Group

m  Arrange and conduct training sessions for corporate secretaries of the Bank's
subsidiaries (seminars/round tables/meetings)toimprove corporate governance

m  Maintainregisters of corporate secretaries and of candidates forindependent
non-executivedirectorship atall companiesin Halyk Group

2. Introduce international best practices in corporate governance to ensure the

effective functioning of the Board of Directors

m  Update the BanKs internal regulatory documents (Charter, Code of Corporate Governance,
and the policies govermning the Board of Directors and the corporate secretary, etc) to ensure
compliance with Kazakh law and intemational best practices in corporate governance

m Collect information about candidates for the Board of Directors, analyse the information
about each candidate for independent non-executive director, and periodically update the
candidate pool for independent non-executive directors of the Bank and its subsidiaries

3.Additional actions to develop corporate governance at the Bank

m  Developtheinstitution of corporate social responsibility in the Group

m  Conduct periodic appraisals of the effectiveness of the Bank's dividend policy

m  Developthe practice ofinsuring directors against fiduciary liability
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FIRST VIOLIN

Thefirstviolinis the lead musician in an orchestra who often
plays the main part and the solos during the melody. The
rest of the orchestra follows the first violin's lead. Often, at a
concert, the conductor will come on stage and bow to the
audience, then shake the hand of the first violin.
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UMUT SHAYAKHMETOVA RESPONSIBILITY

CHAIRPERSON OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD STATEMENT

We herewith confirmthat, to the best of ourknowledge:

m the consolidated financial statements in this annual report are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and give a true
and fair view of the financial position, results, cash flow and changes in equity
ofHalykBankanditssubsidiaries;and

LEAD m theannualreportincludesafairreview of the developmentand performance,
of the financial position of Halyk Bank and its subsidiaries included in the

F RO M TH E F RO NTI consolidated financial statements and taken as a whole and the principal risks

and uncertainties that Halyk Bankfaces.
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PIONEER

The word “pioneer” is of French origin and describes
someone blazing new trails in science and art. Pioneers
have the task of exploring the unknown, taking risks, setting
an example, and inspiring and leading others. In the past,
pioneers were those who discovered new lands and
opened the way to the Americas.
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Halyk Groupisakey playerinallfinancial market segmentsandarapidly expanding
universalfinancial services group with sufficient financial strength, a solid financial,
resourceand T base, qualified personneland a proven managementteam.

To continue developing and strengthening the Group's positions, it will need to streamline the
existing business model! further, eliminate any key gaps in business lines, and define concrete
approaches and the order for implementing measures. Potential risks and opportunities
informed the development strategy for 2016-18, which is a road map for transforming the
Group qualitatively, from passive expectations to a pro-active client approach.

The Group's new vision is reflected in the following slogans:
= “HALYK BANK IS THE NUMBER ONE CHOICE FOR CUSTOMERS IN
KAZAKHSTAN’, WHICH INCORPORATES FOUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:

CUSTOMER CONVENIENCE

m  Convenientcustomer-oriented solutions and services
m  Promptandattentiveservice

m  Fairandtransparent prices

m  Convenientcommunication channels with the Bank

STRONGTEAMSPIRIT

m  Attentive, engaged and qualified employees

m  Entrepreneurial spirit

m "Convenience, responsivenessand efficiency”as a part of the corporate DNA
m  Employerof choiceamong banks

OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY
m  Efficientandtransparent processes and high-quality solutions
m  Economicefficiency

SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY

m  Reliable: the number one choice among banking customers in Kazakhstan and a
strong partnerabroad

Activerolein society

“SUBSIDIARIES - LEADING PLAYERS IN THEIR MARKETS’, MEANING:
Maintaining leading positionsinall the Group's segments

Maximising profits

Expanding the Group's geographic coverage

Offering more productsin Kazakhstan

Devising ways of unifying the Group's sales network

Monitoring investmentreturns and minimising losses

Making cross-selling more effective within the Group

Maximising synergies

The Bank remains the driver of the Group's business. Itis the leader in the sectorin
terms of net income, total equity, deposit base, number of payment cards,
portfolioof guaranteesand payroll programmes.

INTRODUCTION OF NEW SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES

Implementing the new strategy will requireachangein corporate cultureand new

systemsand processes:

= THE BANK KNOWS ITS CLIENTS. New systems allow client information to be
analysed, segmented and targeted in the right way

m  THEBANKIS DEVELOPING ITS OWN IT SYSTEMS FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF
CUSTOMERS AND EMPLOYEES. Advanced IT systems allow external and internal
processes to be optimised and enhance work quality for customers and employees

m  THEBANKIS A UNITED TEAM. Customer satisfaction is paramount: all functions
are united by the goal of serving clients as promptly and effectively as possible

m  EMPLOYEES AT ALL LEVELS ARE DRIVEN BY THE DESIRE TO SUCCEED.
The Bank's incentive system aims to achieve the maximum results, decentralise
decision making and increase individual responsibility

Throughthis strategy, the Bank expects to:

m  Be the leader in terms of convenience and responsiveness for customers by
having the best network, remote channels and streamlined processes

m  Understandthe needs of different customers and offer targeted solutions
m  Bethenumberone bankof choice in Kazakhstan

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

Business objectives for 2017-18 are divided into the following groups:

m  PROACTIVE SALES. Boost sales of products and services to individual clients
by increasing the number of products and services offered to each client,
making existing sales channels more effective andlaunching new ones.

= IMPROVED PRICING. Conduct a comprehensive review and update pricing methods.

m  PRODUCTS. New products will be introduced for retail clients, while new digital solutions
will be devised for corporate clients and SMEs. The emphasis will be on promoting key
strategic products, taking part in government and social programmes, developing multi-
channel service and migrating most transactions to remote service channels.

m  PROCESSES. The main aim will be to automate and improve the system for collecting,
storing and processing client information and streamlining the lending process.

OUTLOOK
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m  PERSONNEL:
= Introduce a new incentive system that takes into account the contribution
of eachemployee to achieving the overall objectives
= Trainemployees
= Deviseasystemfor career progression

The Group has completed successfully several projects planned for 2017 in the
current 2016-18 strategic cycle, which in turn has allowed it to strengthen its
financial position considerably, generate record profits and become more [T- and
customer-oriented, creating the foundationsfor stable long-term growth.

Twoimportanteventsin 2017 had significantimpacts on the Group's composition
andoperations:

m  TheBanksigned an agreement with Chinese investors CITIC Bank and China Shuangwei
Investment Company, Ltd regarding the sale of a 60% stake in its subsidiary, Altyn Bank.

m  TheBankfinalised the deal to acquire 96.81% of Kazkommertsbank's common
sharesandrecapitalised the bankwith KZT185 billion.

On 7 June 2017, the Bank signed an agreement with CITIC Bank and China
Shuangwei Investment Company, Ltd regarding the sale of a 60% stake in Altyn
Bank.To implement the agreement, the parties will have to obtain approvals from
the competent authorities in Kazakhstan, among other things, and fulfil the other
usual conditionsforsuchtransactions.The dealis slated to be closedinH12018.

On 5 July 2017, the Bank purchased 96.81% of Kazkommertsbank's common shares. At
the time of acquisition, Kazkommertsbank Group's assets amounted to KZT3,340 billion.

On 12 July 2017, the Bank exercised its pre-emptive right and purchased KZT185 billion
in common shares to increase its stake in Kazkommertsbank to 98.79%. On 15
November 2017, Kazkommertsbank conducted a KZT65 billion recapitalisation with the
participation of Holding Group ALMEX. The additional financial injections significantly
increased Kazkommertsbank's capitalisation, ensured that it remains in compliance with
regulatory standards and provided the support needed to achieve the bank's targets.

These events fundamentally changed Halyk Group's positioning on the financial market
and key development priorities, requiring adjustments to the current strategy to account
forintegrating the two banks via the merger of Kazkommertsbankinto Halyk Bank.

Toimplement an event of such magnitude as integrating the country's two largest financial
institutions, which requires substantial involvement of internal and external resources, a
detailed integration programme for Halyk Bank and Kazkommertsbank has been
developed that takes into account key interdependencies, potential risks and financial
effects. Implementing the integration programme will be Halyk Group's priority in 2018.

As part of the programme, all managerial processes and systems of the two banks

will be fully integrated, including planning, business processes, project
management, motivation systemsand personnel performance management.

Theintegration programme solves the following problems:

m  Creating, on the Group's basis, a leading platform at the core of the banking
sectorto support the development of Kazakhstan's economy

m  Integrating IT systems and forming a single information space for the Group to
ensure the reliable, stable and uninterrupted operations of all systems and
applications, considering the current customer base and its expected growth

m  Selecting the optimal business processes among those in use at Halyk Bank and
Kazkommertsbank and developing new business processes to achieve
maximum synergy

m  Creating a unified operating model based on aligned, centralised business
processes and focused on ensuring business continuity and reducing
transaction costs

m  Transitioning Kazkommertsbank to Halyk Group's corporate governance
standards to build an effective, transparent, stable and innovative banking
conglomerate that follows global best practices and corporate governance
standards

m  Improving the risk management system, considering the Group's expanded
business range and geographical presence and focusing on developing an
integrated active risk management system that adequately and promptly
responds to changes in the external environment

m  Maximising the synergies from the integration of Halyk Bank and Kazkommertsbank
toincrease shareholder value by improving profitability

Implementing the programme will help to improve the Group's key performance
indicators, significantly grow the market share of its key products, increase profitability
and maintain stable financial ratios, even in a scenario of deteriorating market
conditions. This will be achieved through a more focused and effective sales process
and by introducing more complex products that surpass the offerings of competitors.

Integrating Kazkommertsbank and its subsidiaries into Halyk Group will launch the Group's
transition into a new stage of development as a key player on Kazakhstan's financial market.

At the same time, the Group will continue the path set out in the 2016-18 strategic cycle,
striving to achieve the primary key success targets for each business line. The Group has met
the challenges it faced in 2017 and continues to work on its planned strategic initiatives.

By pursuing these objectives and with the support of customers, partners and
shareholders, the Group is confident that it can fulfil the goals set, demonstrate its abilities
and re-confirm its reputation as the leader in Kazakhstan's financial sector.

OUTLOOK
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ICEBREAKER

Icebreakers are powerful, uniquely designed ships capable
of clearing a path for other ships through ice. The sharp
angle of their bow allows them to break the ice cover of
frozen rivers, lakes, seas and oceans. The largest icebreakers
have nuclear-powered propulsion systems. Icebreakers
have powerful reinforced hulls and are equipped with
several propellers. In many respects, humankind's ability to
explore the Arcticis thanks to these floating giants.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016 AND 2015:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF PROFIT OR LOSS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
INCOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

OF CASH FLOWS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Managementis responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial ~ Managementisalso responsible for:

statements that present fairly the financial position of JSC Halyk Bank ("the Bank") and o . o .

its subsidiaries (collectively - "the Group") as at 31 December 2017,2016and 2015, ™ designing,implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of
and the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the years then internal controls, throughoutthe Group;

ended, in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS"). ®  maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain

the Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time the
consolidated financial position of the Group, and which enable them to ensure
m  properlyselectingandapplyingaccounting policies; thatthe consolidated financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS;

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management s responsible for:

m  presenting information, including accounting policies,inamanner that provides ™ ‘ma!n‘ta\.mn.g accounting records in compliance with the Republic of Kazakhstan
relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information; egislation; .

m  taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of

m  providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific the Group;and

requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of
CONSOLIDATED

particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's consolidated  w  preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
financial position and financial performance; and AND INDEPENDENT
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31 December ~ AUDITORS' REPORT
= makinganassessmentofthe Group'sability to continueasagoing concern. 2017,2016and 2015 were approved by the Management Board on 7 March 2018. FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
AND 2015

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD:

UMUT B. SHAYAKHMETOVA PAVEL A. CHEUSSOV
Chairperson of the Board Chief Accountant

7 March 2018 7 March 2018

Almaty, Kazakhstan Almaty, Kazakhstan

HALYK
103 The notes on pages 115 to 185 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. BANK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Tothe Shareholders of JSSCHalyk Bank

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSSC Halyk Bank and its
subsidiaries ("the Group"), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
positionasat 31 December2017,2016and 2015,and the consolidated statements
of profitor loss, consolidated statements of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changesin equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
includingasummary of significant accounting policies.

Inour opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December2017,2016and 2015 and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted ourauditinaccordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements thatare
relevantto our audit of the consolidated financial statementsin the Republic of
Kazakhstan,and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirementsand the [ESBA Code. We believe that the auditevidence we
have obtained s sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which
describes the planned merger of JSC Kazkommertsbank and JSC Halyk Bank. Our
opinionis not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

WHY THE MATTER WAS DETERMINED TO BE HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED
A KEY AUDIT MATTER IN THE AUDIT

Revenue recognition and calculation of the
effective interest rate on individually assessed
impaired loans

Asdisclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, interest income on individually
assessed impaired loans for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to KZT 50,442 million.

The recognition of interestincome using the
effective interest rate method on individually
assessed impaired loans is complex and reliant on
the quality of underlying source data, which is
subject to significant judgements, such as the
timing and amount of expected cash flows.

Due to the complexity involved, we have identified
the risk of accuracy and completeness of the source
data used in the calculation of interest income on
individually assessed impaired loans using the
effective interest rate method as a key audit matter.

Impairmentofloansto customersassessed on
acollectivebasis

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group reported total
gross loans of KZT 3,568,263 million, of which KZT
1,190,802 million was subject to collectively assessed
impairment, which accounts for 33% of total gross
loans. As at 31 December 2017, the amount of
allowance forimpairment losses resulting from this
assessment comprised KZT 107,611 million.

Management is required to exercise significant
judgement in determining as the amount and
timing of recognition of loan impairment provisions.
Because of the significance of this judgement and
the volume of loans assessed on a collective basis,
we identified the loan impairment provisions,
assessed on a collective basis, as a key audit matter.

For loans assessed on a collective basis, there is a risk
of errors in the calculation of provision rates due to
the judgemental nature of source data used in the

We tested automated controls over the calculation
of the effective interest rate in the banking system
with the involvementof IT specialists.

We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the interest
income accrual and its compliance with the
requirements of IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement ("IAS 39") by re-
performing a sample of calculations and
comparing the results to accounting records.

On asample basis, we tested the completeness.
and accuracy of the underlying source data, used
asinputs into the interestincome calculation,
including, the timing and amount of expected
cash flows, effective interest rates used and the
carrying value of the impaired loan.

We found no material exceptions in these tests.

We obtained an understanding of the
management’s process of impairment assessment
onloans to customers assessed on a collective basis.

We critically assessed the appropriateness of the
collective provisioning methodology in accordance
with IAS 39 requirements as well as the key
assumptionsand data inputs, including probability
of default and loss given default rates, used in the
model, with reference to our understanding of the
business, and accounting standard requirements.

We tested the accuracy and completeness of
sourcedataincluded within the models, such as
collateral values, statistics for recoveries of loans
andallocation of loans by days in arrears, along
with allocation of loans to portfolio of loans with
similarrisk characteristics.

We have recalculated the collective loan loss
provision models on a sample basis
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models, such as collateral values and statistics for
recoveries of loans in loss given defaults estimates
and inaccurate allocation of loans by days in
arrears for probability of default calculations.

Refer to Notes 3 and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements for the description of the Group's policy
on the calculation of allowance for impairment on a
collective basis and disclosure of gross carrying
amounts and related allowance balances, respectively.

Classification and impairment of loans to
customersassessed onanindividual basis

The amount of allowance on individually
significantloansisdependenton the accuracy
ofthe classification of theseloans as "impaired"
or"unimpaired" in the provisioning system of
the Group, which is subject to significant
judgementand manualadjustment.

Moreover, the allowance for loan losses on loans to
customers assessed on an individual basis is calculated
using a discounted cash flow analysis and involves a
high level of subjectivity and reliance on assumptions
used in relation to cash flows from a borrower's
business activity and sale of pledged collateral.

Due to the significance of the allowance for loans,
assessed on an individual basis and the degree of
subjectivity involved in estimating expected cash
flows, we identified as a key audit matter the risk
thatimpaired loans may be incorrectly classified as
unimpaired and thusimpact the provisioning level.

Refer to Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements for the description of impairment
indicators on individually significant loans and
disclosure of gross carrying amounts and related
allowances for such loans.

Businesscombination

InJuly 2017, the Group acquired the controlling
interestin JSC Kazkommertsbank, which was
considered asignificantacquisition for the Group.

We identified this acquisition as a key audit
matterastheaccounting for the transaction was
complexandrequiredsignificant estimatesin
regards of determining thefairvalue ofacquired
assetsand liabilities.

Referto Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosure of the business
combination.

We evaluated the adequacy and completeness of
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements relating to the loans to customers in
accordance with IFRS requirements.

Wefound no material exceptionsin these tests.

We obtained an understanding and evaluated
the loan loss provisioning process, particularly.
over the capture, monitoring and reporting of
loans to customers, including classification, along
withany manualinputs as part of the process.

For a sample of loans classified as "unimpaired" we
examined the existence of various impairment
indicators required by IAS 39, such as delinquency of
interest or principal, restructuring events and certain
financial performance indicators, in order to evaluate
whether the loans have been appropriately classified.

Forthe specificloanloss provision,onasample
basis we tested the appropriateness of the
amount of provision recognised as at the
reporting date in accordance with the
requirementsof IAS 39, including reviewing the
Group'sdocumented creditassessmentofthe
borrowers, challenging assumptions around
future cash flow projectionsand the valuation
of collateral held, agreeing key assumptions to
supportingdocumentsand re-performing the
calculationsofimpairmentlosses.

We found nomaterial exceptionsinthese tests.

We obtained an understanding of the
management's processes related toacquisitions
of businesses, purchase price allocation and
accounting for business combinations.

We evaluated the Group's accounting policy
overthe business combination againstIFRS 3
Business Combinations ("IFRS 3") requirements.

With the assistance of our valuation specialists,
we assessed the key assumptions used by
management, such as evaluating the cash flow
forecasts used in the measurement of loans to
customers, interest rates charged on amounts
due to customers and valuation methods used
fordebtsecurities issued. We tested the
identification of assets and liabilities acquired

andtheirvaluationagainstavailable market data.

We found that management's assumptions
usedin determining the fairvalue ofacquired
assetsand liabilities are within areasonable
range of ourexpectations,

We evaluated the adequacy and completeness
of disclosuresin the consolidated financial
statementsrelating to the business combination
inaccordance with IFRS 3 requirements.

Wefound no material exceptionsin these tests,

OTHER INFORMATION - ANNUAL REPORT

Managementisresponsible forthe otherinformation.The otherinformation
comprisestheinformationincludedinthe Annualreport, butdoesnotincludethe
consolidatedfinancial statementsand ourauditors' report thereon.The Annual
reportisexpectedtobe madeavailable to usafterthe date of thisauditors'report.

Ouropiniononthe consolidatedfinancial statementsdoesnotcoverthe other
informationand we will notexpressanyformofanassurance conclusion thereon.

Inconnectionwith ourauditof the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibilityistoread the otherinformationidentified above whenitbecomes
availableand,indoingso,considerwhetherthe otherinformationis materially
inconsistentwiththe consolidated financial statements orourknowledge
obtainedintheaudit,orotherwiseappearstobe materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
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mattersrelated togoing concernand using the going concern basis of accounting
unlessmanagementeitherintendsto liquidate the Group orto cease operations,
orhasnorealisticalternative buttodoso.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financialreporting process.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

m Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whetherduetofraud orerror,designand perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatementresulting fromfraudis higherthanforone
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations,orthe override ofinternal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

m  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
ofaccountingestimates and related disclosures made by management.

m  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
onthe Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

m  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements,including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
mannerthatachievesfair presentation.

m  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solelyresponsible forourauditopinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with themall relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thoughttobearonourindependence,and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

ZHANGIR ZHILYSBAYEV
Quialified auditor

MARK SMITH
Engagement partner

NURLAN BEKENOV
General Director

of the Republic of Kazakhstan Chartered Accountant Deloitte, LLP
Qualification certificate Institute of Chartered
No.MF-0000116 Accountants of Scotland
dated 22 November 2012 License Ne M21857
Glasgow, Scotland
Deloitte, LLP
State license on auditing in the Republic of Kazakhstan
N2 0000015, type MFU-2, issued by
the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan 7 March 2018

dated 13 September 2006 Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016 AND 2015
(Millions of Kazakhstani Tenge)

ASSETS NOTES 31 December 31 December 31 December

Cash and cash equivalents 1 780 548 1 774519 1 404 680

Obligatory reserves 7 111,039 76,12 68,389
flg':g[]gﬁ':rsosﬁt‘sof‘lggis' e 8 144976 328737 177,070
Amounts due from credit institutions 9 87,736 35,542 44,993
Available-for-sale investment securities 10 2,565,425 599,624 378,520
Precious metals 5111 1,684 2436
Loans to customers 11,38 3,251,102 2,319,583 2,176,069
Investment property 12 37517 30,146 24,658
Commercial property 13 48,774 10,202 9,632
Current income tax assets 23 15,320 3,222 16,469
Deferred income tax assets 23 517 831 1919
Property and equipment 14 137,684 94,897 82,462
Intangible assets 15 8,251 9,179 8,659
Goodwill 3,085 4,954 4,954
Insurance assets 17 40,162 28,354 23,857
Other assets 18 68,129 20,590 18,766
_ sawIss 4w
Assets held for sale 552,405 10,297 11,405

TOTAL ASSETS - 8,857,781 4,454,938

31 December [ 31 December § 31 December
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY NOTES 2017 2016 2015

Amounts due to customers 19,38 6,131,750 3,820,662 3,043,731
Amounts due to credit institutions 20 255,151 162,134 168,258
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss 8 831 2841 2593

Debt securities issued 21 962,39 584933 597,525

Current income tax liability 23 2,720 3311 379

Deferred tax liability 23 8,789 23,181 37362

Provisions 22 16,098 987 982

Insurance liabilities 17 139,543 64,374 50983

Other liabilities 24 66,419 20467 20,197
L (lseeerr [ [aseaen | [sems0n0 |

Liabilities directly associated with 16 334,627 -

assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL LIABILITIES - 7,923,324 4,682,890 m

EQUITY

Share capital 25 143,695 143,695 143,695

Share premium reserve 1,839 1911 2,039

Treasury shares (104,234) (103,121) (103,175)

Retained earnings and other reserves 820,716 623,108 487,369
[ [leeoe [lesss | [smem |

Non-controlling interest 72441

TOTAL EQUITY 934,457 665,593 529,928
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 8,857,781 ,348,483 38

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD:

UMUT B. SHAYAKHMETOVA
Chairperson of the Board

PAVEL A. CHEUSSOV
Chief Accountant

7 March 2018
Almaty, Kazakhstan

7 March 2018
Almaty, Kazakhstan

The notes on pages 115 to 185 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT ORLOSS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016 AND 2015

(Millions of Kazakhstani Tenge, Except for Earnings per Share which is in Tenge)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
CONTINUING OPERATIONS NOTES 31 Decem 31 December § 31 December
2016* 2015*

Interest income 27,38 506 328 332,563 244,040

Interest expense 2738 (257,805) (160,549) (100,678)

Impairment charge (67,302) (25,308) (11,280)
NETINTERESTINCOME _ aeanverosmo

Fee and commission income 87,640 57,697 51,918

Fee and commission expense 28 (26,732) (11,295 (10,150

Fees and commissions, net 60,908 46,402 41,768

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets

and liabilities at fair value through 29 31423 (12,710) 197,930

profit or loss

Net realised gain/(loss) from available- 1064 2623 (246)

for-sale investment securities

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain 30 (4,949) 18,506 (173,259)

Insurance underwriting income 31 55,108 28,071 25,574

Otherincome 23618 6,486 8,700
OTHER NON-INTERESTINCOME _ [rosz0a | [a276 | [saeo0 |

Operating expenses (107,352) (66,995) (65,395)

Impairment loss of assets held for sale 16 (4978) (1,564) -

Recoveries of provisions/(provisions) 22 1,737 (44) (368)

Insurance claims incurred, net of 17,31 (48,615) (24,799) (22,793)

reinsurance

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 189,185 142,682 143,993
Income tax expense (25,598) (22,183) (30411)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Year ended Year ended Year ended
NOTI 31 December [ 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016* 2015*
Profit for the year from discontinued

operations 16 9,876 10913 6,730

rerrmom ] = i Jsrne s |

Attributable to:

Non-controlling interest 101 = -
Common shareholders 173,362 131,412 118913
Preferred shareholders - - 1,399

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(in Kazakhstani Tenge)

Basic earnings per share 15.77 11.96 1067
Diluted earnings per share 15.77 11.95 10.16
Basic earnings per share from 1488 1099 1041

continuing operations

Diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations 14.88 1099 10.36

*Recalculated due to pre

ion of JSC Altyn Bank as discontinued operations. For further reference, please see note 16.

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD:

UMUT B. SHAYAKHMETOVA
Chairperson of the Board

PAVEL A. CHEUSSOV
Chief Accountant

7 March 2018
Almaty, Kazakhstan

7 March 2018
Almaty, Kazakhstan

The notes on pages 115 to 185 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVEINCOME

FORTHEYEARSENDED 31 DECEMBER2017,2016 AND 2015
(Millions of KazakhstaniTenge)

Net profit 173463
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS), NET OF TAX:
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: 113)

(Loss)/gain resulting on revaluation of property and equipment (2017, 2016, 2015 - net of tax —
KZT 222 million, KZT 192 million, KZT nil)

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: 33733
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities (2017, 2016, 2015 - net of tax -KZT nil)
Reclassification adjustment relating to available-for-sale investment securities disposed of in the (1,064)
year (2017, 2016, 2015 - net of tax - KZT nil) !
Reclassification adjustment relating to available-for-sale investment securities impaired during the (1,141)
year (2017,2016, 2015 - net of tax — KZT nil)

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations (2017, 2016, 2015 - net of tax — KZT nil) 1473

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2017 Ell December 2016 31 December 2015

314 120312
539 56
7,131 (14,529)
(2623) 246
(783) 4171
402 5,540

4,666 (4,516)

32,888 y y
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (206351 [i3e0m

Attributable to:

Non-controlling interest 2,942
Common shareholders 203,409
Preferred shareholders

136,078 114,449
1347

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD:

UMUT B. SHAYAKHMETOVA
Chairperson of the Board

7 March 2018
Almaty, Kazakhstan

The notes on pages 115 to 185 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

PAVEL A. CHEUSSOV
Chief Accountant

7 March 2018
Almaty, Kazakhstan
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGESINEQUITY
FORTHEYEARSENDED 31 DECEMBER2017,2016 AND 2015
(Millions of KazakhstaniTenge)

Share capital f§ Share Treasury Cumulative Revaluation Property Retained Total equity Non-
Common premium shares translation reserve of revaluation earnings* controlling
shares reserve reserve® available-for- reserve* [IEEN
sale investment|
securities®
31 December 2016 143,695 21) 5,097 (15,679) 16,609 617,081 665,593 - 665,593
Net income = = = - - = 173,362 173,362 101 173,463
Other comprehensive income - - - 1473 28,687 (113) 30,047 2,841 32,888
Treasury shares purchased - (72) (1,675) - (1, 747) (1,747)
Treasury shares sold = = 562 - - = = 562 = 562
Insurance bonuses to the insured - - - - - - a71) a71) - a71)
Purchase of additional share
capital of JSC Kazkommertsbank - - - - - B (0135 (057) 7 (1150)
Sale of shares in JSC Kazkommertsbank to
JSCHG ALMEX (See note 2) - - - - (4,243) (4,243) 69,492 65,249
Release of property and equipment
revaluation reserve on depreciation and - - - - - (1,026) 1,026 = = =

disposal of previously revalued assets

Total equity

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
AND 2015




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

FORTHE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017,2016 AND 2015
(Millions of Kazakhstani Tenge)

[ |sharecarma TREASURY SHARES

Common Non- Convertible Share Common Preferred Cumulative Revaluation Property Retained Total equity
Shares convertible preferred premium shares shares translation reserve of revaluation earnings*
preferred shares reserve reserve* available-for- reserve®
shares sale investment|
securities®
31 December 2015 83,571 46,891 13,233 2,039 (39,974) (63,201) 4,695 (19,404) 16416 485,662 529,928
Netincome o o o = - - - o o 131,412 131,412
Other comprehensive income - 402 3,725 4,666
S A NN S N O CNN 730 N ECO P X

Treasury shares purchased - (427) - - (459)
Treasury shares sold = = - B 481 - _ = = - 481 .
Dividends - preferred shares - - - - - - - - - (333) (333)
Exchange of preferred

60,124 (46,891) (13,233) (96) (63,201) (63,201) - - - - (96) CONSOLIDATED
shares to common shares

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
125;1':?::‘1?:2“535 - - - - - - - - - (6) (6) AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT

Release of property and FOR THE YEARS ENDED
equipment revaluation 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
reserve on depreciation = = = = = = = = (346) 346 = AND 2015

and disposal of previously
revalued assets

m



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

FORTHE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017,2016 AND 2015
(Millions of Kazakhstani Tenge)

[ |sharecarma TREASURY SHARES

Common Non- Convertible Share Common Preferred Cumulative Revaluation Property Retained Total equity
Shares convertible preferred premium shares shares translation reserve of revaluation earnings*
preferred shares reserve reserve* available-for- reserve®
shares sale investment|
securities®
31 December 2014 83,571 46,891 13,233 1439 (39,973) (39,021) (845) (9292 17341 401,877 475,221
Netincome o o o = - - - o o 120,312 120,312

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

5540 (10,112, (4,516)
796

- - - - - - ) 46 10
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 1
INCOME / (LOSS)
- - (319) 9) - -

Treasury shares purchased - (24,180) - - (24,508) .

Treasury shares sold - - - 919 8 - - o o (708) 219

Dividends - preferred shares - - - - - - - - - (2,543) (2,543)

Dividends - common shares - = = = = = = = = (34,257) (34,257) CONSOLIDATED

Release of property and illl\]l é T‘,f |:I)AEI|_; EL%TEEM_ENTS
equipment revaluation AUDITORS' REPORT
reserve on depreciation - - - - - - - - (971) 971 - FOR THE YEARS ENDED
and disposal of previously 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
revalued assets AND 2015 !
ioccomsnaos_[woon  Jaosr Jas Jaos  Joson Jwsaon Jaess  Jusson Jrems  Juesess Jsuom

*These amounts are included within Retained earnings and other reserves in the consolidated ment of financial position.

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD:

UMUT B. SHAYAKHMETOVA PAVEL A. CHEUSSOV
Chairperson of the Board Chief Accountant

7 March 2018 7 March 2018

Almaty, Kazakhstan Almaty, Kazakhstan

12 The notes on pages 115 to 185 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016 AND 2015

(Millions of KazakhstaniTenge)

_ NOTES
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIE

Interest received from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Interest received from cash equivalents
and amounts due from credit institutions

Interest received on available-for-sale
investment securities

Interest received on investments
held to maturity

Interest received from loans
to customers

Interest paid on amounts due
to customers

Interest paid on amounts due
to credit institutions

Interest paid on debt securities issued
Fee and commission received

Fee and commission paid

Insurance underwriting income received
Ceded reinsurance share paid

Receipts/(payments for)
from financial derivatives

Other income received
Operating expenses paid

Insurance claims paid

Cash flows from operating activities
before changes in net operating assets

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Obligatory reserves

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Year ended

31 Decemb:
20

Year ended

31 December
6

Year ended

31 December
015

2,348 124 109
23,610 13,732 5972
23,730 17,684 23,378
= 1,201 =
315392 255,539 199,298
(201,006) (116,406) 63,712)
(4,213) (7,596) (5,081)
(63,365) (47,828) (26,113)
86,662 58498 53,280
(26,214) (12,009) (10,837)
49,056 23,994 21,636
(2374) (2,660) (2439)
11,955 (10,592) 39,122
23618 6,384 8595
(87,001) (67,580) (62,789)
(34,553) (16,602) (8,834)
117,645 95,883 171,585
(31,604) (7,733) (20,164)
408,395 (127,891) (7,589)

Amounts due from credit institutions
Precious metals

Loans to customers

Assets held for sale

Insurance assets

Other assets

(Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:

Amounts due to customers
Amounts due to credit institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Insurance liabilities
Other liabilities

(7481)
(483)
(216,366)
(2,607)
(245)
7,401

287,505
50,928

10923

1,832
4,307

Cash inflow from operating activities
before income tax

Income tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

(26757) 9,082
(168) 997
(311,999) (126,924)
(2219) -

12493 (1,100)
(3472) (6.269)
48,893 750365
37972 (9,224)
(187) 2.755)
(6:454) 7,944
(67,957) (133)
174,581 582,42
(52,365) (20331)
122216 561,911

279,546
(25.222)

254,324

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:

Net cash inflow on acquisition 5
of a subsidiary

Purchase and prepayments for
property and equipment and
intangible assets

Proceeds on sale of property and
equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds on sale of investment property
Capital expenditures on commercial
property

Proceeds on sale of commercial property

Proceeds on sale of available-for-sale
investment securities

Purchase of available-for-sale
investment securities

Purchase of investments held to maturity

678,622

(13,862)

1,403

(830)
3918
1,244,554

(1,753,899)

(15,386)

2,859
1,695
(2:817)
2,247
34,196
(186,905)
(43,601)

901

(17,131)

4,438

175,365

(76,157)

CONSOLIDATED
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AND 2015




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016 AND 2015
(Millions of KazakhstaniTenge)

NOTES Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of shares in JSC Kazkommertsbank to JSC HG ALMEX 2 65,249 = o

Purchase of additional share capital of JSC Kazkommertsbank 2 (4,940) - -

Payment of compensation for exchange of preferred shares to common shares = (96) =

Proceeds on sale of treasury shares 562 481 927

Purchase of treasury shares (1,747) (459) (24,508)

Dividends paid - preferred shares - (333) (2,543)

Dividends paid - common shares = = (34,257)

Buy-back of JSC Accumulated Pension Fund of Halyk Bank shares - - (708) .

Proceeds on debt securities issued o 25,888 115,852

Redemption and repayment of debt securities issued (197,892) (43,561) (7,627) CONSOLIDATED
AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 148,765 369,839 864,143 FOR THE YEARS ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the year 1,774,519 1,404,680 540,537 AND 2015
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the year* 1,923,284 1,774,519 1,404,680

* As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents includes cash and cash equivalents of asset held for sale of KZT 142,736 million (Note 16).

During the years ended 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015 there were non-cash transfers, which were excluded from the consolidated statements of cash flows and disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 16 and 25.

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD:

UMUT B. SHAYAKHMETOVA PAVEL A. CHEUSSOV
Chairperson of the Board Chief Accountant

7 March 2018 7 March 2018

Almaty, Kazakhstan Almaty, Kazakhstan

114 The notes on pages 115 to 185 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017,2016 AND 2015

(Millions of KazakhstaniTenge)

1.PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

JSC Halyk Bank ("the Bank") and its subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group") provide corporate
and retail banking services principally in Kazakhstan, Russia, Kyrgyzstan, Tajikistan and
Georgia, leasing services in Kazakhstan and Russia, as well as asset management,
insurance and brokerage services in Kazakhstan. The primary state registration of the Bank
with the authorities of justice of Kazakhstan was made on 20 January 1994. The Bank
operates under license No. 1.2.47/230/38/1 for carrying out banking and other operations
and activities on the securities market, renewed by the National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan ("NBRK") on 8 November 2016.The Bankis a member of the obligatory deposit
insurance system provided by the JSC Kazakhstan Deposit Insurance Fund.

The Bank's primary business includes originating loans and guarantees, collecting deposits,
trading in securities and foreign currencies, executing transfers, cash and payment card
operations, as well as rendering other banking services to its customers. In addition, the Bank
acts as a non-exclusive agent of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan in channeling
various budgetary payments and pensions through its nationwide branch network.

The Bank has a primary listing with the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange ("KASE"). In
addition, the Bank's Global Depository Receipts ("GDRs") and Eurobonds are
primarylisted onthe London Stock Exchange.

The Group s ultimately controlled by Timur Kulibayev and his wife Dinara Kulibayeva.

Asat 31 December2017,the Bank operated throughits head office in Almaty and its 45
regional branches (including 23 regional branches of JSC Kazkommertsbank ("KKB")),
122 sub-regional offices sand 532 cash settlementunits (including 187 cash settlement
units of KKB) (31 December 2016 - 22, 122, 365, respectively, 31 December 2015 - 22,
122, 377, respectively) located throughout Kazakhstan. The address of the Bank's
registered officeis:40 Al-Farabi Avenue, Almaty, A26M3K5, Republic of Kazakhstan.

As at 31 December 2017, the number of the Group's full-time equivalent
employeeswas 18,410(31 December2016-11,402,31 December2015-11,827).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017,
2016,and 2015 were authorised for issue by the Management Board on 7 March 2018.

LEGALPROCEEDINGS

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are
received from customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no
material unaccrued losses will be incurred and accordingly, no provision has been
madein these consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Emerging markets such as Kazakhstan are subject to different risks than more developed
markets, including economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and
regulations affecting businesses in Kazakhstan continue to change rapidly and tax and
regulatory frameworks are subject to varying interpretations. The future economic direction
of Kazakhstan is heavily influenced by the fiscal and monetary policies adopted by the
government, together with developments in the legal, regulatory, and political environment.

Because Kazakhstan produces and exports large volumes of oil and gas, its economy is
particularly sensitive to the price of oiland gas on the world market. During 2014-2016,
the oil price decreased significantly, which led to a significant decrease in the national
export revenue. On 20 August 2015, the Government and the NBRK announced a
transitionto a new monetary policy based on a free floating tenge exchange rate, and
cancelled the currency corridor. As a result, the tenge depreciated significantly against
major foreign currencies. During September-December 2015 and January-February
2016, the dollarization level in the Kazakh economy kept growing, which resulted in
significant shortage of tenge liquidity in the banking system, record levels of interest
rates on the money market and suspension in lending activity. In February 2016, the
NBRKintroduced the base rate of 17%+ 2% and adopted an inflation targeting policy.

These measures by the NBRK reduced both the tenge shortage in the system and
averageinflationlevels.

As at 31 December 2017, the base rate set by the NBRK was 1025% + 1% (12% + 1% as at 31
December 2016). During the year ended 2017, the decrease of the base rate decelerated. Due to
relatively high cost of funding during 2017, the demand for new loans continued to be relatively
low, while KZT liquidity in the banking system demonstrated excess levels, including on the back
of dedollarisation of the client deposit base. Shortterm notes of the NBRK remain the key
instrument to withdraw excess tenge liquidity from the system. Compared to the end of 2016,
the operating environment for the year ended 31 December 2017, has not changed significantly.

Management of the Group is monitoring developments in the current environment
and taking measures it considers necessary in order to support the sustainability and
development of the Group's business in the foreseeable future. However, the impact
of further economic developments on the future operations and financial position of
the Groupisat this stage difficult to determine.
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OWNERSHIP
Asat 31 December2017,2016 and 2015, the Group was owned by the following shareholders, which own individually more than 5% of the issued shares of the Group:

31 DECEMBER 2017

Total shares Stake in total shares | Common shares Stake in common
in circulation shares in circulation

JSCHG Almex 8,086,451,772 73.6% 8,086,451,772 73.6%
Unified Accumulative Pension Fund Joint Stock Company 716,281,746 6.5% 716,281,746 6.5%
GDR holders 1,852,878,720 16.8% 1,852,878,720 16.8%
Other 338,204,581 3.1% 338,204,581 3.1%

TOTAL SHARES IN CIRCULATION (ON CONSOLIDATED BASIS) 10,993,816,819 10,993,816,819

31 DECEMBER 2016

Total shares Stake in total shares | Common shares Stake in common
in circulation shares in circulation

JSCHG Almex 8,086,451,772 73.6% 8,086,451,772 73.6%
Unified Accumulative Pension Fund Joint Stock Company 716,281,746 6.5% 716,281,746 6.5%
GDR holders 1,853,975,480 16.8% 1,853,975,480 16.8%
Other 336,910,333 3.1% 336,910,333 3.1%

TOTAL SHARES IN CIRCULATION (ON CONSOLIDATED BASIS) 10,993,619,331 10,993,619,331

31 DECEMBER 2015

Total shares Stake in total shares | Common shares Stake in common Convertible and Stake in convertible
in circulation shares in circulation | non-convertible and non-convertible
preferred shares preferred shares
in circulation

JSCHG Almex 8,024,149,068 73.4% 8,003,381,500 73.4% 20,767,568 99.8%
Unified Accumulative Pension Fund Joint Stock Company 716,281,746 6.6% 716,281,746 6.5% - -
GDR holders 1,840,058,240 16.8% 1,840,058,240 16.9% - -
Other 349,774,984 32% 349,729,065 32% 45919 0.2%

TOTAL SHARES IN CIRCULATION (ON CONSOLIDATED BASIS) 10,930,264,038 100% 10,909,45 100% 20,813,487 100%
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the
Groupisagoing concern,asthe Group have the resourcesto continue in operation
forthe foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the managementhave
consideredawide range ofinformationinrelation to presentand future economic
conditions, including projections of cash flows, profitand capital resources.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Kazakhstani Tenge
("KZT" or "Tenge"), except for earnings per share amounts and unless otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, exceptforcertain financialinstruments thatare accounted for at fairvalue
andinsurance liabilities which are accounted for based on actuarial calculations
and certain property and equipment which are carried at revalued cost less
depreciationandimpairmentasexplainedin the accounting policies below.

Historical costis generally based on the fairvalue of the consideration givenin
exchangeforgoodsandservices.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
tofair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorisedintoLevel 1,2 or3based onthedegree towhichtheinputstothefair
value measurementsare observable and the significance of theinputs to the fair
value measurementinitsentirety, which are described as follows:

m  Level Tinputsare quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

m  Level2inputsareinputs,other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly orindirectly;and

m  Level3inputsare unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of
liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position (current) and more than 12 months after the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position (non-current) is presented in Note 34.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

Itemsincludedinthe financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environmentin which the
entity operates ("thefunctional currency"). The functional currency of the Bankis
KZT.The presentation currency of the consolidated financial statementsis KZT.

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

These consolidated financial statementsinclude the following subsidiaries:

HOLDING % COUNTRY INDUSTRY
31 December f§ 31 December il 31 December
2017 2016 2015

JSC Kazkommertsbank* 74.72 Kazakhstan  Banking

SUBSIDIARIES

JSC Halyk-Leasing 100 100 100 Kazakhstan  Leasing
Telecom-
JSC Kazteleport 100 100 100 Kazakhstan munications
0JSC Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan 100 100 100 Kyrgyzstan  Banking
? Broker and
JSC Halyk Finance 100 100 100 Kazakhstan dealer activities
i Cash collecti-
LLC Halyk Collection 100 100 100 Kazakhstan G CERIaES
JSC Halyk-Life 100 100 100 Kazakhstan  Life insurance
JSC Kazakhinstrakh 100 100 100 Kazakhstan Insurance
JSC NBK-Bank 100 100 100 Russia Banking
JSC Halyk Bank Georgia 100 100 100 Georgia Banking
. Management
LLC Halyk Project 100 100 100 Kazakhstan  of doubtful
and loss assets
JSC Altyn Bank .
(SB of JSC Halyk Bankj* 100 100 100 Kazakhstan ~ Banking
*See Note 5
**See Note 16.
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On 5 July 2017, the Bank completed acquisition of 96.81% of ordinary shares in KKB,
including 86.09% from MrK Rakishev and 10.72% from JSC "Sovereign Wealth Fund "Samruk-
Kazyna" ("Samruk-Kazyna"). The Bank acquired these 96.81% ordinary shares in KKB for KZT 2.

On10July 2017, to comply with the legislative requirements of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, the Bank made a tender offer to the shareholders of KKB for the purchase
of outstanding common shares (including global depositary receipts ("GDR"), the
underlying assets of which are common shares of KKB) and preference shares
(including GDRs, the underlying assets of which are preference shares of KKB).

On12July2017,the Bankrealised its pre-emptive rightand purchased
1,296,698,676 ordinary shares of KKB fora total of KZT 185 billion, increasing its
stakeintheissued capital of KKBt0 98.79%.

As at 29 August 2017, the Bank completed its transactions for the purchase of KKB's
13,687,609 ordinary shares at KZT 142.67 per share, 31,311 preference shares at KZT 71.55
per share, 3,081,552 GDRrepresenting such KKB's issued ordinary shares at USD 0.86 per
GDRand 14,655,549 GDR representing such KKB'sissued preference shares at USD 0.43
per GDR. Total consideration paid for KKB shares amounted to KZT 4,940 million.

On November 15,2017, KKB placed 700,171,633 ordinary shares for a total of KZT 65.2
billion, which were acquired by JSC HG ALMEX, after agreement with the NBRK.
Following the results of the transaction on purchase and sale of ordinary shares, the
share of JSCHG ALMEX in KKB is equal to 25.05%.

On 8 December2017,the Board of Directors of the Bankapproved integration
scenario of the Bankand KKB, which suggests voluntary reorganisation of the Bank
and KKB by merging KKBinto the Bank.The integration is expected to be completed
inthe secondhalfof 2018, after performingall the necessary procedures, including
thereceiptoftherequired approvals fromregulatory authorities.

Asat31 December2017,the Bankheld 74.72% of KKB's outstanding ordinary
sharesand 23.55% of KKB's outstanding preference shares.

Forfurtherinformationaboutthe purchase of KKB, please seeNote5.

Asat 31 December 2017, the portion of non-controlling interest in KKB was 25.28%,
which is considered as a significant non-controlling interest for the Group.

Asat 31 December 2017, there were no dividends declared by this subsidiary.

The summarised financial information of KKB below represents the amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

31 DECEMBER 2017

Total assets 3,574,378
Total liabilities 3,306,238
Total equity 268,140
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,793,933
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,379,162)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (1,823)

On7June2017,the Banksigned an agreement with China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited and China Shuangweilnvestment Co., Ltd. on the sale of 60%in share capital
of JSCAltyn Bank.Toimplement the agreements reached, the parties,among other
things, will have to obtain necessary approvals from the competent authorities of the
Republic of Kazakhstan and meet other conditions customary for such transactions.

Additionalapprovals from People's Republic of Chinaregulatory authorities were
obtainedandthe Managementexpects thatall outstanding regulatory approvals
willbe providedinQ22018.

According to the decision of the Group's management, investments in JSC Altyn Bank have
been reclassified into an asset held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 as at 31 December 2017.

Forfurtherinformation, please seeNote 16.

3.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statementsincorporate the financial statements of
theBankandentities (including structured entities) controlled by the Bankand its
subsidiaries. Controlisachieved when the Bank:

m  haspowerovertheinvestee;

m  isexposed,or hasrights, tovariable returns from its involvement with the
investee;and

m hastheability touseits powerto affectits returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
Whenthe Bankhaslessthanamajority of the votingrightsofaninvestee, it has
powerovertheinvestee whenthevoting rightsare sufficientto giveit the practical
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ability todirect the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Bank considers all
relevant facts and circumstancesin assessing whether or not the Bank's voting rights
inaninvestee are sufficientto give it power, including:

m thesizeoftheBank'sholding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion
ofholdingsofthe othervote holders;

potential voting rights held by the Bank, othervote holders orother parties;
rightsarising fromothercontractualarrangements;and

any additionalfacts and circumstances that indicate that the Bank has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidationof a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date
the Bank gains control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profitor loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the

owners of the Bank and to any non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiariesis attributed to the owners of the Bankand to any non-controlling interests

Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Group. Transactions with non-controlling shareholders
are presented as financing activitiesin the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Whenthe Group loses control of asubsidiary,againorlossis recognisedin profitor
lossandis calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the considerationreceived and the fair value of any retained interestand (ii) the
previous carryingamountof the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Allamounts previously recognisedin
othercomprehensiveincomeinrelationto thatsubsidiary areaccountedforasif
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e.reclassified to profitor loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fairvalue of any investmentretained
intheformersubsidiary atthe date when controlislostis regarded as the fair value
oninitial recognitionforsubsequentaccountingunderlAS 39, whenapplicable,
the costoninitial recognition of aninvestmentinanassociate orajointventure.
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even if this results in any non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.The

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries
to bring theiraccounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.
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Allintragroup assets and liabilities, equity,income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactionsbetween members of the Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation.

NON-CONTROLLINGINTERESTS

Non-controlling interests represent the equity inasubsidiary notattributable,
directlyorindirectly,toa parent.

Non-controlling interestsare presented separately in the consolidated statement
of profitorloss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from parentshareholders'equity.

CHANGES INTHE GROUP'S OWNERSHIPINTERESTSIN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changesin the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not resultin the

considerationtransferredin a business combinationis measured atfair value, which
iscalculated asthe sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
andtheequityinterestsissued by the Groupin exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognisedin profitor lossasincurred.

Atthe acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are

recognised at theirfairvalue, except that:

m  Deferredtaxassets or liabilities are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS12"IncomeTaxes" ("IAS 12");

m Liabilitiesorequity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 "Share-based Payment" ("IFRS 2") at the acquisition date;and

m  Assets (ordisposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” ("IFRS 5")
are measured in accordance with that standard.
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Goodwillis measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fairvalue of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date
of acquisition of the business (see above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

using the KZT/USD exchange rate effective at the date. Changesin the bid prices
arerecordedin netforeign exchange gain/(loss).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Inthe normal course of business, the Group maintains current accounts or deposits
forvarious periods of time with other banks. Amounts due from credit institutions
with a fixed maturity term are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Those that do not have fixed maturities are carried at cost.
Amounts due from creditinstitutions are carried net of any allowance forimpairment.

RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Grouprecognisesfinancial assetsand liabilities onits consolidated statement
offinancial position whenitbecomesaparty to the contractual obligations of the
instrument.Regularway purchasesand sales of financial assetsand liabilities are
recognised using settlementdate accounting. Whereregular way purchases of
financialinstruments will be subsequently measured at fairvalue, the Group
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accountsforany changeinthefairvalue of the asset between trade date and
settlementdateinthe samewayitaccountsforacquiredinstruments.

CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
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Cashand cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, unrestricted balances on
correspondentaccountsandamountsdue from creditinstitutionsand reverse
repoagreements with original maturities within three months.

OBLIGATORY RESERVES

Obligatory reserves represent funds in correspondent accounts with the National
Banks of Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Georgia, Tajikistan and the Central Bank of the
Russian Federation and cash which are not available to finance the Group's day to day
operations and, hence, are not considered as part of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

PRECIOUS METALS

Assetsandliabilitiesdenominated in precious metalsare translated at the current
rate computed based on the second fixing of the London Metal Exchange rates,

that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The accounting policies for subsequent re-measurement of
these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies set out below.

FINANCIALASSETS

Financial assetsinthe scope of IAS39 "Financial Instruments: Recognitionand
Measurement" ("lAS39") areclassified aseitherfinancial assets atfairvalue through
profitorloss,loansandreceivables,investments held to maturity oravailable-for-
salefinancialassets,asappropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assetsdependingonthe natureand purpose of the financial assets, which
isdeterminedatthetime ofinitial recognition.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS OR FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT ORLOSS

Financialassetsorfinancial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profitor
losswhere the financial asset or financial liability is either held for trading oritis
designatedasatfairvaluethrough profitorloss.

Afinancialassetorfinancialliability is classified as held for trading if:
m ithasbeenacquired principallyforthe purposeofsellinginthenearterm;or

m itisapartofanidentified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages togetherand hasarecentactual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

m itisaderivativethatis not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Afinancial asset or financial liability other than a financial asset or financial liability held for
trading, may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

m  suchdesignationeliminatesorsignificantly reducesa measurementor
recognitioninconsistency thatwould otherwise arise; or

m  thefinandial asset or financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

m itformspartofacontractcontainingoneormoreembedded derivatives,and
IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designatedasatfairvalue through profitorloss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recorded in net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Interest earned or incurred is accrued in interest income or expense,
respectively, according to the terms of the contract, while dividendincomeis recorded
in"Otherincome"when the right to receive the payment has been established.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loansandreceivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable paymentsthatare not quoted in an active market. Loans to
customers granted by the Group areinitially recognised atfairvalue plus related
transaction costs that directly relate to acquisition or creation of such financial
assets.Subsequently, loansare carried atamortised cost using the effective interest

method. Loansto customersare carried net of any allowance forimpairmentlosses.

Loans and receivables are included within amounts due to customers, amounts due from
creditinstitutions and other assets in the consolidated statement of financial position.

COLLATERAL

The Group obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered
appropriate. The collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer's assets and
gives the Group a claim on these assets for both existing and future customer liabilities.

INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY

Investments held to maturity are debt securities with determinable or fixed
payments.The Group has the positive intentand ability to hold them to maturity.
Such securitiesare carried atamortised cost using the effective interest method,
lessany allowance forimpairment. Amortised discounts and premiums are
recognised ininterestincome over the period to maturity using the effective
interest method. Due to the reclassification of investments held to maturity in 2016,
asdisclosedin Note 10, the Group willnot be able to classify any financial assets as
investments held to maturity for two financial years following the 2016 year.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Available-for-sale investment securities are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans and receivables or
investments held to maturity, or are not held for trading and are not designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. Available-for-sale investment securities
are initially recorded at fair value. After initial recognition, available-for sale investment
securities are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity isincluded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. However, interest
calculated using the effective interest method and foreign exchange movements for
debt securities are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends
declared are included in other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Thefairvalue ofinvestmentsthatareactively tradedin organisedfinancial
marketsisdetermined by reference to quoted market prices atthe close of
businessonthereportingdate.
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RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-derivative financial assets (otherthan those designated at fair value through
profitorlossuponinitial recognition) may be classified out of the fairvalue through
profitorloss categoryinthefollowing circumstances:

m  Financialassetsthat would have met the definition of loansand receivables at
initial recognition (if the financial asset had notbeen required to be classified
as held fortrading) may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or
loss categoryifthereistheintentionand ability to hold the financial asset for
theforeseeable future oruntilmaturity;and

m  Financial assets (except financial assets that would have met the definition of
loansandreceivablesatinitial recognition) may be reclassified out of the fair value
through profitor loss category and into another category in rare circumstances.

When the financial asset is reclassified as described in the above circumstances, the financial
asset is reclassified at its fair value on the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already
recognised in the statement of profit or loss is not reversed. The fair value of the financial
asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or amortised cost, as applicable.

REPURCHASE AND REVERSE REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS AND SECURITIES LENDING

The Groupentersintofinancial assets saleand purchase backagreements ("repos"”)
andfinancial assets purchase and sale backagreements ("reverserepos") in the
normal course of its business. Repos and reverse repos are utilised by the Group as
anelementofitstreasury management.

Reposaretreatedassecuredfinancingtransactions.Securitiessoldunderrepos
areretainedintheconsolidated statementoffinancial positionand,incasethe
transferee hastheright, by contractorcustom,tosellorrepledge them,
reclassifiedassecuritiespledgedundersaleandrepurchaseagreements.The
correspondingliabilityis presented withinamountsduetocreditinstitutions.

Securities purchased underreverse reposarerecorded asamounts due from credit
institutions,amounts due customers or cashand cash equivalentsasappropriate.
Thedifference between the sale and repurchase pricesis treated asinterestand
accrued overthelife of therepoagreements using the effective interest method.

Securities lent to counterparties are retained in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Securities borrowed are not recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the

purchase and sale are recorded within net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
atfairvalue through profitorloss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
obligation toreturn securities borrowed s recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

The Group entersintosecurities repurchase agreements and securities lending
transactionsunderwhichitreceivesortransfers collateralinaccordance with
normal market practice. Under standard terms for repurchase transactionsin
Kazakhstanand other Commonwealth of Independent States ("CIS"), the recipient
of collateral has therighttosell orrepledge the collateral, subject toreturning
equivalentsecuritieson settlementof the transaction.

OFFSETTING

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the netamount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that
does not qualify for derecognition, the Group does not offset the transferred asset and the
associated liability. Income and expense is not offset in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation,
and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Group.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various derivative financial
instruments including futures, forwards, swaps and options. Derivatives are initially
recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each reporting date. The fair values are
estimated based on quoted market prices or pricing models that take into account the
current market and contractual prices of the underlying instrumentsand other factors.
Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when itis
negative. Derivatives are included in financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position. Gains and losses
resulting from these instruments are included in net gain/(loss) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derivative instruments embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate
derivatives if their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value with unrealised gains and
losses reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An embedded derivative is
a component of a hybrid (combined) financial instrument that includes both the
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derivative and a host contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a similar way to a stand-alone derivative. Over-the-counter
derivatives may expose the Group to the risks associated with the absence of an exchange
market on which to close out an open position. Additionally, derivative instruments
expose the Group to counterparty non-performance risk. Certain instruments also pose
liquidity risk due to the absence of net-settlement provisions between counterparties.

FORWARDS

Forward and futures contracts are contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial
instrument at a specific price and date in the future. Forwards are customised contracts
transacted in the over-the-counter market. Futures contracts are transacted in standardised
amounts on regulated exchanges and are subject to daily cash margin requirements The
Group has credit exposure to the counterparties of forward contracts. Forward contracts are
settled gross and are, therefore, considered to bear a higher liquidity risk.

SWAPS

Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange streams of
payments over time based on specified notional amounts, in relation to movementsin a
specified underlying index such as an interest rate, foreign currency rate or equity index.

Interest rate swaps relate to contracts taken out by the Group with other financial
institutions in which the Group either receives or pays a floating interest rate in return for
paying or receiving, respectively, a fixed interest rate. The payment flows are usually netted
against each other, with the difference being paid by one party to the other.In a currency
swap, the Group pays a specified amount in one currency and receives a specified
amount in another currency. The Group's currency swaps are mostly gross-settled.

OPTIONS

Optionsare contractualagreementsthat convey theright, but not the obligation,
forthe purchasereithertobuy orsellaspecificamountofafinancial instrumentat
afixed price, eitheratafixedfuture date oratanytimewithinaspecified period.The
Group purchasesand sells options throughregulated exchangesandin the over-
the-countermarkets.Options purchased by the Group provide the Group with the
opportunity to purchase (call options) orsell (put options) the underlying asset at
anagreed-uponvalueeitheron or before the expiration of the option. The Groupis
exposedto creditriskon purchased options only to the extent of their carrying
amount, whichis their fair value. Options written by the Group provide the
purchaserthe opportunity to purchase fromor sell to the Group the underlying
assetatanagreed-uponvalue eitheron or before the expiration of the option.

The Group's exposure under derivative contracts is closely monitored as part of the
overallmanagementofthe Group's market, credit,and liquidity risks (see also Note 34).

AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS AND CREDIT
INSTITUTIONS

Amounts due to customers and credit institutions are initially recognised at the fair
value of the consideration received, less directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequently, amounts due are stated at amortised cost and any difference between
net proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profitorloss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Ifthe Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position and the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and
the consideration paid is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Debtsecuritiesissued represent bondsissued by the Group, which are accounted
foraccordingtothe same principles used foramountsdue to customersand credit
institutions. Any difference between proceeds received, net of debtissuance
costs,and theredemptionvalueisrecognisedin the consolidated statement of
profitorlossoverthe period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Ateachreporting date, the Group assesses whetherafinancial assetoragroup of
financialassetsisimpaired.

ASSETS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST

Ifthereisobjective evidencethatanimpairmentlossonfinancial assetscarried at
amortised costhas beenincurred, theamountofthelossismeasuredasthe
difference between theasset's carryingamountandthe presentvalue of the
estimated future cash flows (excluding future creditlosses thathave not been
incurred), discountedatthefinancialasset's original effective interestrate (i.e.the
effectiveinterestrate computedatinitial recognition). The carryingamountofthe
assetshall bereducedthroughthe use ofanallowanceaccount.Theamount of
theimpairmentlossisrecognisedinthe consolidated statementof profitorloss.

Thefactors the Group evaluates in determining the presence of objective evidence of
anoccurrence of animpairment loss include information on liquidity of the debtor or
issuer, their solvency, business risks and financial risks, levels and tendencies of default
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on obligations on similar financial assets, national and local economic tendencies and
conditions, and fair value of the security and guarantees. These and other factors
individually orin the aggregate represent, to a great extent, an objective evidence of
recognition ofanimpairment loss on the financial asset or group of financial assets.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may resultfrom foreclosure, less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not the foreclosure is probable.

The allowances are based on the Group's own loss experience and management's
judgment as to the level of losses that will likely be recognised from assets in each credit risk
category by reference to the debt service capability and repayment history of the borrower.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, to the extent
that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets are written off against the allowance forimpairment losses, where
such items are determined to be uncollectible, including through repossession of
collateral. The Group requires collateral to support credit-related financial instruments
when deemed necessary. Collateral held may include deposits held with banks,
government securities and other assets. When the borrowers do not repay as
scheduled, the Group can take possession of the collateral pledged. Financial assets
are written off after management has exercised all possibilities available to collect
amounts due to the Group, and after the Group has sold all available collateral. The
decision to write off bad debt against the allowance forimpairmentlosses for all major,
preferential, unsecured and insider assets are confirmed with a procedural document
from judicial or notary bodies. This document certifies that at the time of the decision
to write off the bad debt, the amount could not be repaid (or partially repaid) with the
debtor's funds. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
charge forimpairmentoffinancial assetsin the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Loans and receivablesare assessed individually for impairment, except for insignificant
loans and receivables that have been assessed collectively. Loans and receivables that
have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually
insignificant loans and receivables are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with
similar risk characteristics, to determine whether impairment should be recognised due
toincurred loss events for which there is objective evidence but whose effects are not yet
evident.The collective assessment takes into account data from the loan portfolio (such
as levels of arrears, loan utilisation, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments to the

effect of concentrations of risks and economic data (including levels of unemployment,
real estate prices indices, country risk and the performance of different individual groups).

The impairment loss on loans and receivables is disclosed in more detail in Notes 11,22 and 34.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALEINVESTMENT SECURITIES

For listed and unlisted equity investments classified as available-for-sale ("AFS"), a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. If an AFS investment security is
impaired, a consolidated amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal paymentand amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit orloss, is transferred from
equity to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In respect to AFS equity securities,
impairmentlosses previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
are not reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequentto animpairmentloss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and is accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve of AFS investment
securities. In respect of AFS debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

RENEGOTIATED LOANS

Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession
of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the
agreementof new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, the
loanisnolongerconsidered past due. Management continuously monitors
renegotiated loans to ensure that they are performing and that future payments are
likely to occur.The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective
impairmentassessment, calculated using theloan's original effective interest rate.
Renegotiated termsare evidence of impairment for loans assessed forimpairment
onanindividual basis, forwhich deterioration of the financial positionis observed.

WRITE OFF OF LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loansand advances are written off against the allowance forimpairment losses
whendeemed uncollectible. Loansand advances are written off after management
has exercised all possibilities available to collectamounts due to the Group and after
the Group has sold all available collateral. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are reflected as an offset to the charge forimpairment of
financial assetsin the consolidated statementof profitor loss in the year of recovery.
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DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Afinancialasset (or,whereapplicablea partofafinancialassetorapart ofagroup
of similarfinancial assets) is derecognised where:

m therightstoreceive cashflowsfromtheassethave expired;

m  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or retained the
right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and

m theGroupeither(a) hastransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
theasset,or (b) has neithertransferred nor retained substantially all the risks
andrewards of the asset, buthas transferred control of the asset.

Afinancial assetis derecognised when it has been transferred and the transfer qualifies
for derecognition. A transfer requires that the Group either: (a) transfers the contractual
rights to receive the asset's cash flows; or (b) retains the right to the asset's cash flows but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to a third party. After a transfer,
the Group reassesses the extent to which it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset. If substantially all the risks and rewards have been
retained, the asset remains on the consolidated statement of financial position. If
substantially all of the risks and rewards have been transferred, the asset is derecognised.
If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred, the
Group assesses whether or not it has retained control of the asset. If it has not retained
control, the asset is derecognised. Where the Group has retained control of the asset, it
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled, or expires.

On the redemption or settlement of debt securities (including subordinated liabilities)
issued by the Group, the Group derecognises the debt instrument and records a gain or
loss being the difference between the debt's carrying amount and the cost of
redemption or settlement. The same treatment applies where the debt is exchanged for
anew debtissue that has terms substantially different from those of the existing debt.
The assessment of whether the terms of the new debt instrument are substantially
different takes into account qualitative and quantitative characteristics, including a
comparison of the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
with the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original debt issue.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, suchan exchange or modification s treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carryingamounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

TAXATION

Thecurrentincometaxexpenseiscalculatedinaccordance withtheregulations
ofKazakhstanandothercountrieswherethe Group operates.

Deferredtaxassetsand liabilitiesare calculatedinrespectof temporary
differencesusing the balance sheetliability method. Deferredincome taxesare
providedforalltemporary differencesarising between the taxbasesofassetsand
liabilitiesandtheircarrying valuesforfinancialreporting purposes, except where
the deferredincometaxarisesfromtheinitial recognition of goodwill orofan
assetorliabilityinatransactionthatisnotabusinesscombinationand,atthetime
ofthetransaction,affects neithertheaccounting profitnortaxable profitorloss.

A deferred tax asset is recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity.

Deferredincome taxis provided ontemporary differencesarising oninvestments
in subsidiaries, associatesandjointventures, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and itis probable that the
temporary difference will notreverseintheforeseeable future.
Deferredtaxassetsand deferred taxliabilities are offsetand reported netin the
consolidated statement of financial positionif:
m  TheGrouphasalegally enforceablerighttooffset currentincome taxassets
againstcurrentincometaxliabilities;and
m  Deferredincometaxassetsand deferred income tax liabilities relate to
incometaxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.
Kazakhstanand other countries where the Group operates also have various
operating taxes thatare assessed onthe Group's activities. These taxes are
recordedastaxesotherthanincome tax.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment, except for any buildings and construction which are carried at
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of the revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of anasset beginswhenitisavailable for use. Depreciation is
calculated onastraight-line basis overthe following estimated useful lives:

YEARS

Buildings and construction 20-100
Vehicles 57
Computers and banking equipment 5-10
Other 7-10

Leaseholdimprovementsare amortised over the life of the related leased asset.
Expensesrelatedtorepairsandrenewalsare charged whenincurredand included
inoperating expenses, unless they qualify for capitalisation.

The carryingamounts of property and equipmentare reviewed at each reporting
datetoassesswhethertheyarerecordedin excess of theirrecoverableamounts,
andwhere carrying values exceed thisestimated recoverable amount, assets are
written down totheirrecoverableamount. Animpairmentlossisrecognisedinthe
respectiveyearandisincludedinoperatingexpenses.

Buildingsandconstructionheldforuseinsupply of services,orforadministrative
purposes,are stated inthe consolidated statement of financial position at their
revaluedamounts, beingthefairvalueatthe date of revaluation,determined
from market-based evidence by appraisal undertaken by professional
independentappraisers,lessany subsequentaccumulated depreciationand
subsequentaccumulatedimpairmentlosses. Revaluationsare performed with
sufficientregularity such thatthe carryingamountdoes notdiffermaterially from
thatwhichwould be determined usingfairvaluesatthereporting date.

Anyrevaluationincrease arising on therevaluation of such buildingsand
constructioniscreditedtothe propertyrevaluationreserve, excepttotheextent
thatitreversesarevaluationdecreaseforthe sameasset previously recognisedas
anexpense,inwhichcasetheincreaseiscreditedtothe consolidated statement
of profitorlosstotheextentofthedecrease previously charged.Adecreaseinthe
carryingamountarisingontherevaluation of such buildingsand constructionis
chargedasanexpensetotheextentthatitexceedsthebalance,ifany, heldinthe
propertyrevaluationreserverelatingtoapreviousrevaluation of thatasset.

Depreciation on revalued buildings and construction is charged to the
consolidated statementof profitorloss. On the subsequentsale orretirementofa
revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the property
revaluationreserveistransferred directly toretained earnings.

Constructionin progressis carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property and equipment when completed
and ready forintended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Anitem of property and equipmentis derecognised upon disposal orwhen no
futureeconomic benefitsare expectedtoarise from the continued use of the asset.
Anygainorlossarisingon thedisposal orretirement of anitem of property and
equipmentisdetermined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carryingamountoftheassetandisrecognisedin profitorloss.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ACQUIRED SEPARATELY.

Intangibleassetswith finite useful livesthatareacquired separatelyarecarried at
costlessaccumulated amortisationand accumulatedimpairmentlosses.The
estimated useful lifeandamortisation methodare reviewed attheend ofeach
reportingyear, withthe effectofany changesin estimate beingaccountedforon
aprospective basis. Anintangibleassetisderecognised ondisposal,orwhenno
future economic benefitsare expected from use ordisposal. Gains orlosses
arisingfromderecognition ofanintangible asset, measured asthe difference
betweenthenetdisposal proceedsandthe carryingamountofthe asset,are
recognisedinprofitorlosswhentheassetisderecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives thatare acquired separately are
carried atcostlessaccumulated impairmentlosses. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful livesare notsubjecttoamortisation.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ACQUIRED IN A BUSINESS COMBINATION
Intangibleassetsacquiredinabusiness combinationandrecognised separately
from goodwill areinitially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(whichisregardedastheircost). Subsequenttoinitial recognition,intangible
assetsacquiredinabusinesscombination are reportedatcostlessaccumulated
amortisationandaccumulatedimpairmentlosses,onthe same basisasintangible
assetsthatareacquired separately.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:
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YEARS

Customer deposit intangibles 5
Software 10
Licensing agreements for the right to use the software 10
Other 10
ASSETSHELD FORSALE

Non-currentassetsandthe liabilities directly associated with non-currentassets
areclassified as held forsale ("disposal group")ifitis highly probable that the net
asset'scarryingamountwill be recovered through asale transaction ratherthan
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate saleinits present condition.Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify forrecognitionasacompletedsale
withinoneyearfromthe date of classification of an assetas held forsale.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. I the fair value less costs to sell of an asset held for sale is lower than its carrying
amount, animpairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in an
asset's fair value less costs to sell is recognised to the extent of the cumulative impairment

settlement of loan agreements with customers. The Group intends to sell these
properties in the normal course of business and therefore these are initially measured at
fair value including transaction costs and subsequently measured at the lower of cost
or net realisable value. Estimates of net realisable value are based on the most reliable
evidence available at the time the estimates are made, of the amount the commercial
property is expected to be realised for. These estimates take into consideration
fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the year
tothe extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the year.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligationasaresultof pastevents,anditis probable thatan outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made. Recorded amounts as at the consolidated
statement of financial position date represent the Group's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the liability. The expense relating to any provision is
presented inthe consolidated statement of profit orloss net of any recoveries.

RETIREMENT AND OTHER BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
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loss that was previously recognised in profit or loss in relation to that specific asset.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group does not have any pension arrangements separate from the state pension
system of Kazakhstan and other countries where the Group operates, which requires
current withholdings by the employer calculated as a percentage from current gross

127

Investment properties are properties heldtoearnrentalsand/or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequenttoinitial recognition, investment propertiesare
measured atfairvalue.Gainsand lossesarising from changesin the fair value of
investmentpropertiesareincludedin profitorlossintheyearinwhichtheyarise.

Aninvestment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) isincluded in profit or loss in the year in which the property is
derecognised.

COMMERCIALPROPERTY

In certain circumstances, the Group may foreclose commercial properties as part of the

salary payments; such expense is charged in the year the related salaries are earned and
included in operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
Group contributes social tax to the budget of Kazakhstan and other countries where the
Group operates for its employees. In addition, the Group has no post-retirement benefits.

EQUITY

The Group classifies a financial instrument that it issues as a financial asset, financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement. An instrument is classified as a liability if it is a contractual obligation to
deliver cash or another financial asset, or to exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities on potentially unfavourable terms. An instrument is classified as equity if it
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group, after the deduction of liabilities.

The componentsofacompound financialinstrumentissued by the Group are
classified and accounted for separately as financial assets, financial liabilities or
equity instrumentsasappropriate.
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SHARE CAPITAL

External costsdirectly attributable totheissue of new shares, otherthanina
business combination,are shownasadeduction fromthe proceedsin equity. Prior
to 13 May 2003, any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the
nominal value of sharesissued was recognised as share premium reserve. Effective
13 May 2003, uponachangeinthelaw concerning "Joint Stock Companies', the
nominalamountconceptwasrestricted to placement of sharesonly between the
foundersofanentity. Forall otherinvestors, share capital isrecorded at placement
value beingthe considerationreceived by anentityforitsshares.

TREASURY SHARES

When the Group acquires its own share capital, the amount of the consideration
paid,including directly attributable costs, net of any related tax benefit, is recognised
asachangeinequity. Sharesrepurchased by the Group are cancelled. Repurchased
sharesare classified as treasury shares and are held at cost. These shares are treated as
adeductionfromtheissued and weighted average number of shares, and the cost
price of the shares s presented as a deduction from total equity. The par value of the
sharesis presented as a deduction from ordinary share capital and the remainder of
the costis presented as a deduction from ordinary share premium. Dividends on
shares purchased by the Group's subsidiaries are eliminated upon consolidation.

DIVIDENDS

Dividendsarerecognisedasaliabilityand deducted from equity on the date they

are declared. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the

reporting date or proposed or declared after the reporting date but before the

consolidated financial statementsare authorised forissue.

EQUITY RESERVES

Thereservesrecordedinequity (othercomprehensiveincome) onthe Group's

consolidated statement of financial positioninclude:

m  Revaluation reserve of available-for-sale investment securities which comprises
changesinfairvalue of available-for-sale investment securities;

m  Cumulative translation reserve which is used to record foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations;

m  Property revaluation reserve which comprises revaluation reserve of land and buildings.

CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position but are disclosed unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement s remote.
A contingent assetis not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position butdisclosed when aninflow of economic benefitsis probable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ACQUIRED IN A BUSINESS
COMBINATION

Contingent liabilitiesacquiredinabusiness combination areinitially measured at
fairvalueattheacquisition date. Atthe end of subsequentreporting years, such
contingentliabilitiesare measured at the higher of theamountthat would be
recognisedinaccordance with IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets"and the amountinitially recognised less cumulative
amortisationrecognisedinaccordance withIAS 18 "Revenue".

RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interestincome and expense arerecognised onanaccrual basis calculated using
the effective interest method. The effective interest method isa method of
calculating theamortised cost of afinancial asset orafinancial liability (oragroup
offinancialassets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interestincome or
interestexpense overthe relevant period. The effective interestrateis therate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments orreceipts through the
expected life of the financialinstrument or,when appropriate, a shorter period, to
thenetcarryingamountofthefinancialassetorfinancialliability.

Onceafinancialassetoragroup of similarfinancial assets has been written down
(partly writtendown) asaresultofanimpairmentloss, interestincomeis thereafter
recognised using therate of interest used to discount the future cash flows forthe
purpose of measuringtheimpairmentloss.

Loan origination fees forloansissued to customers are (together with related direct
costs) recognised as an adjustment to the effective yield of the loans. Where it is
probable thataloan commitment will lead to a specific lending arrangement, the
loan commitment fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and
recognised asan adjustmentto the effective interest rate of the resulting loan.Where
itisunlikely thataloan commitmentwilllead to a specificlending arrangement, the
loan commitment fees are recognised in profit or loss over the remaining period of
theloan commitment.Where aloan commitment expires without resultinginaloan,
the loan commitmentfeeisrecognisedin profitor loss on expiry.

Fees, commissions, including pension asset management fees, and other income and
expense items are generally recorded on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are recorded based on

the applicable service contracts. Custody services thatare continuously provided
overan extended period of time are recorded over the period the service is provided.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The consolidated financial statements are presented in KZT, which is the functional
currency of the Bank and each of its subsidiaries, except for foreign subsidiaries.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency,
converted at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assetsand liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
currency rate of exchange as quoted by KASE as at the reporting date. Gains and losses
resulting from the translation of foreign currency transactions into functional currency
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as net foreign exchange
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costina
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

As atthe reporting date, the assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into the Group's presentation currency at the exchange rates as at the consolidated
statement of financial position date, and their statements of profit or loss are translated
atthe average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising on translation
are taken directly to a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign subsidiary,

UNDERWRITING INCOME
Underwriting income includes net written insurance premiums and commissions earned
on ceded reinsurance, reduced by the net change in the unearned premium reserve.

Uponinceptionofacontract, premiumsarerecorded aswrittenandareearned on
aproratabasisoverthe termof the related policy coverage.The unearned
insurance premium reserve represents the portion of the premiums written
relating to the unexpired terms of coverage andisincluded within insurance
liabilitiesin the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lossesandlossadjustmentsare chargedtothestatementofprofitorlossas
incurredthroughthereassessmentofthereserveforclaimsandlossadjustment
expenses,andincluded withininsurance claimsincurred, netofreinsurancein
the consolidated statementof profitorloss.

Commissions earned on ceded reinsurance contractsare recorded asincome at
thedatethereinsurance contractiswrittenand deemedenforceable.

Policy acquisition costs, comprising commissions paid to insurance agents and
brokers, which vary with and are directly related to the production of new business, are
capitalised and recorded in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial
position within insurance assets. The asset related to deferred acquisition costs is
subsequently amortised over the period in which the related written premiums are
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earned and is reviewed for impairment in circumstances where its carrying amount
may not be recoverable. If the asset is greater than the recoverable amount, it is written

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a transactionin aforeign currency  4yun immediately. All other costs are recognised as expenseswhen incurred

and the market exchange rate on the date of the transaction are included in net foreign
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exchange gain or loss. The market exchange rate at 31 December 2017 was - KZT 332.33
toUSD 1 (at 31 December 2016 — KZT 333.29; at 31 December 2015 —KZT 340.01).

INSURANCE

Insurance contracts are those contracts which transfersignificantinsurance risk
from another party by agreeing to compensate the policyholderifaspecified
uncertain future eventadversely affects the policyholder. The Group utilises
accounting policiesdetermined by NBRK forinsurance companies of Kazakhstan.

In accordance with the Kazakhstan regulations, when insurance contracts contain a
discretionary participation feature with no guaranteed element, such additional payments to
the insured are contingent on a decision reached at the annual general shareholders' meeting
and should be presented as an allocation of retained earnings and not as an expense.

The Group offers variousinsurance productsin property and casualty, liability,
personal,and lifeinsurance.

RESERVE FORINSURANCELOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

The reserve for insurance losses and loss adjustmentexpensesis includedin insurance
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position and is based on the estimated
amount payable on claims reported prior to the reporting date, which have not yet been
settled, and an estimate of incurred but not reported claims relating to the reporting year.
The incurred but not reported reserve ("IBNR") for motor, hull and liability insurance is
actuarially determined and is based upon statistical claim data for the year typical for loss
development of the classes and sub-classes of business and the Group's previous experience.
Duetothelackof historicalthe Group specificdataand comparableindustry data
forotherlinesof business, the reserve for IBNR claimsis determined by applying
currentgovernmentguidanceas provided by NBRK. Underthis guidance, the IBNR
reserveiscalculatedinanamountof 5% of theinsurance premiums written during
thelasttwelve months preceding the settlementdatein thisclass ofinsurance.

The methods for determining such estimates and establishing the resulting reserves
are continuously reviewed and updated. Resulting adjustments are reflected in the
consolidated statementof profitorlossin the year in which they are determined.
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REINSURANCE

Intheordinary course ofbusiness, the Group cedesreinsurancerisktoreinsurers.
Suchreinsurancearrangements provideforgreaterdiversification of risks, allow
managementto control exposureto potential lossesarising frominsured risks
andprovideadditional capacity forgrowth.

Reinsuranceassetsincludebalancesduefromreinsurance companiesforpaid
andunpaidlossesandlossadjustmentexpenses,and ceded unearned
premiums.Amountsreceivablefromre-insurersareestimatedinamanner
consistentwiththeclaimliabilityassociated withthereinsured policy.

Payablestoreinsurers for ceded premium are recorded gross when due, unless a
right of offset exists against commission receivable from thereinsurerand are
includedin the consolidated statement of financial position withininsurance assets.

Reinsurance contracts are assessed to ensure that underwriting risk, defined as the reasonable
possibility of significant loss, and timing risk, defined as the reasonable possibility of a significant
variation in the timing of cash flows, are both transferred by the Group to the re-insurer.

The Group regularly assesses its reinsurance assets forimpairment. A reinsurance
assetisimpaired if there is objective evidence that the Group may not receive all
amounts due to it under the terms of the contract and that event has a reliably
measurableimpact onthe amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Asegmentisadistinguishable componentof the Group thatisengaged eitherin
providing products or services (business segment), orin providing products or
services withina particulareconomic environment (geographical segment), which
issubjecttorisksand rewards that are differentfrom those of other segments.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF CREDITISSUED

Financial guarantee contracts and letters of credit issued by the Group are credit
insurance that provides for specified payments to be made to reimburse the holder for
alossitincurs because a specified debtor fails to make a payment when due under the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantee contracts and
letters of creditissued are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, they are
measured at the higherof (a) the amount recognised as a provisionand (b) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation of initial premium
revenue received over the financial guarantee contracts or letters of creditissued.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRSS AFFECTING AMOUNTS
REPORTED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been
adopted and have affected the amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements:

m  AmendmentstolAS7 Disclosurenitiative;
m  AmendmentstolAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses;
m  AnnuallmprovementstolFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle—amendmentstoIFRS 12.

AMENDMENTS TOIAS 7 DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE

The Group hasappliedtheseamendmentsforthefirsttimeinthecurrentyear.
Theamendmentsrequireanentity to providedisclosuresthatenable users of
financial statementstoevaluate changesin liabilitiesarising fromfinancing
activities,includingboth cashandnon-cash changes.

The Group's liabilities arising from financing activities consist of debt securities
issuedandareconciliationbetweenthe openingand closing balancesis provided
inNote 21. Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments, the
Group hasnotdisclosed comparative information for the prior period. Apartfrom
theadditional disclosurein Note 21, the application of these amendments has
hadnoimpactonthe Group's consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 12 RECOGNITION OF
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS FOR UNREALISED LOSSES
The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The

amendments clarify how an entity should evaluate whether there will be sufficient
future taxable profitsagainst which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference.

The application of these amendments has had noimpactonthe Group's
consolidated financial statementsas the Group already assesses the sufficiency of
futuretaxable profitsinaway thatis consistent with theseamendments.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO IFRSS -
2014-2016 CYCLE

The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 12 included in the Annual Improvements to

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
AND 2015



IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle for the first time in the current year. The other amendments included
in this package are not yet mandatorily effective and they have not been early adopted by
the Group (see the list of new and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective below).

IFRS 12 states thatan entity need not provide summarised financial information for
interestsin subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are classified (or included in
adisposal group thatis classified) as held for sale. The amendments clarify that this is
the only concession from the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for such interests.

The application of these amendments has had no effect on the Group's
consolidatedfinancial statements.

NEW AND REVISED IFRSS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The Group hasnotapplied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been
issued butare notyeteffective:

m  IFRS9Financial Instruments1;
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (and the related Clarifications)1;
IFRS 16 Leases2;

IFRS 9 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

IFRS 9issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification
and measurementof financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amendedin October
2010toincluderequirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013 toinclude the new
requirements forgeneralhedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was
issuedinJuly 2014 mainly toinclude a)impairmentrequirements forfinancial assets
and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements
by introducing a 'fair value through other comprehensive income' (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debtinstruments.

The key requirements of IFRS 9 are:

m Classification and measurement of financial assets. All recognised financial
assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
atamortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held withina
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequentaccounting periods. Debt instrumentsthatare held withina business
modelwhose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
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selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration1;
IFRIC23 Uncertainty OverIncome Tax Treatments2;
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m  |FRS17Insurance Contracts3;
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Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based
PaymentTransactions1;

m  Amendmentsto IFRS 10and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investorand its Associate or JointVenture4;

m  AmendmentstolAS40-Transfers of Investment Property1;

investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
anacquirerin a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

m  Amendmentsto IFRS 4 - Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts1; m  Classification and measurement of financial liabilities. With regard to the
m  AmendmentstolFRS 9~ Prepayment Features With Negative Compensation2; measurememof_ﬁnanaalIlabl\mes designated as_atfalrvz_aluethrough proﬁt_or
’ ) ) loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a financial
= AmendmentstolAS 28—Long-Term Interestsin Associates and Joint Ventures2; liability that s attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
= AnnuallmprovementstoIFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle; in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
m  AnnualImprovements tolFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle2. comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in

' Effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted
* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted.
* Effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted.
“Effective forannual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. Farlier application is permitted.

profitorloss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profitorlossis presented in profit or loss.
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= Impairment. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected creditloss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS
39.The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
creditlossesand changesin those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changesin credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

From 1 January 2018, the Group started applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. This
standard suggests changes in classification principles of financial instruments and
replacement of "incurred losses" model applied by IAS 39 with "expected losses" model.

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT

ForfinancialassetsaccountingIFRS 9 providesfor 3 classification categories:

m instrumentsestimatedatamortisedvalue;

m  instrumentsestimatedatfairvalue, which changesarereflectedinother
comprehensiveincome;

m  Instrumentsestimatedatfairvalue, whichchangesarereflectedin profitor
lossstatementforthereporting period.

Inaccordance with IFRS9recommendationsthe Group uses the following
financialassetsmanagementbusiness models:

m Retentionofanassettoobtainthecashflowsstipulatedbythe
contract.Thisbusinessmodel suggestsfinancialassetmanagementaims
torealize cashflowsbyreceiving principalandinterest paymentsoverthe
lifeofthe financialinstrument.Within the framework of thisbusiness model,
holdingafinancialassettomaturityisapriority, butearly disposalisnot
prohibited.

m  Retention of an asset with a view for obtaining contractual cash flows and
sale of financial assets. This business model assumes that the management of
financial assets is aimed at both obtaining contractual cash flows and sale of financial
assets. Within the framework of this business model, the receipt of cash from the sale
of a financial asset is a priority, which is characterized by a greater frequency and
volume of sales compared to "holding an asset to receive contractual cash flows"
business model.

= Retentionofanassetforotherpurposes.Within the framework of this
business model, financial assets can be managed with the following purposes:

= management with a view to selling cash flows through the sale of financial assets;

= liquiditymanagementtomeetdaily fundingneeds;

= aportfolio, which management and performance is measured on a fair value basis;

= aportfolio, which matches the definition of held for trading. Financial assets are
deemed to be held for trading if they were acquired mainly with a view to
subsequent disposal in the near future (up to 180 days), gaining short-term profit,
or representderivative financialinstruments (except for a financial guarantee or
derivative financial instrument that was designated as a hedging instrument).

Inaccordance with IFRS 9, financial assets are classified as follows:

m  bankloansand contingent liabilities classified as assets at amortised cost are contained
within the framework of a business model which aims to receive cash flows exclusively
for repayment of unpaid interest and principal stipulated by loan agreement;

m  balancesoncorrespondentaccounts,interbankloans/deposits, repo
transactionsare classified,asarule, asassets, estimated atamortised cost,
since they are managed within the framework of a business model, which
aimstoreceive cashflowsstipulated by the contract;

m  debtsecurities may be classified into any of the three classification categories, taking
into account the selected business model and compliance with the SPPI criterion;

m  equity securities are generally classified as instruments at fair value through profit or loss;

m tradingsecuritiesandderivativesare classified asfinancial assets at fairvalue
through profitorloss.

Financial assets are segmented by stages in accordance with the following approach:

m  Stage 1:Thereisnosignificantincreasein creditrisksince recognitionofan
asset, impairmentisrecognisedasexpectedlossesoverthe next 12 months;

m  Stage2:Significantincreasein creditrisksince recognition ofan asset,
impairmentisrecognised asexpected losses overthe life of afinancial asset;

m  Stage3:Financialassetisindefaultorhassignsofimpairment.

IMPAIRMENT

Calculationoffinancialassetsimpairment was made takingintoaccountthe
followingfactors:

m Inordertocalculatethe expectedcreditlosses, the Bank performsloan
assessmentonanindividual basisand onagroup basisdependingon
generalcreditriskfeatures.

m  Expected credit losses represent estimates of expected credit losses weighted at
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probability of a default and calculated as present value of all expected losses in
amounts due. Calculations are based on justified and verified information, which may
be received without any significant costs or efforts. Calculation of the present value of
the expected future cash flows of the secured financial asset reflects the cash flow
that may result from foreclosure, less the cost of obtaining and selling collateral,
regardless of whether the recovery is probable or not. The allowance is based on the
Group's own experience in assessing losses and management assumptions about
the level of losses likely to be recognised on assets in each category of a credit risk,
based on debit servicing capabilities and borrower's credit track record.

m Impairmentfortreasury operations (investmentsin debtsecurities, reverse
repurchase transactions, interbankloans and deposits, correspondent
accounttransactions,accountsreceivable under treasury transactions)is
calculated taking into account the counterparty's rating, probability of
default,duration ofatransactionandthe extentoflossin case of adefault.

m  Assetsclassifiedatfairvalue through profitorlossarenotsubjectto
impairmentunderIFRS9.

m  Theestimated creditlossesfortreasury operationsare estimated onan
individual basis (exceptforindividual claimsinthe form of receivables).

The most significantimpact on the Group's consolidated financial statements on
implementation of IFRS 9 is expected to result from the new impairment
requirements. Impairment losses will increase and become more volatile for financial
instrumentsin the scope of the IFRS 9impairment model. The transitional impact of
IFRS 9 will be recognised in the opening equity asat 1 January 2018. Management
has estimated that on adoption of IFRS 9, the Group will continue to exceed the
minimum capital requirement ratios as prescribed the National Bank of Kazakhstan.

TheactualimpactofadoptingIFRS9asat 1 January2018hasnotbeenfinalisedas
the newaccounting policies, assumptions, judgements and estimation
techniquesemployed are subject to change until the Group receives formal
approval from the banking regulatorin Kazakhstan and finalises its first
consolidatedfinancial statementsthatinclude the date of initial application.

IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

IFRS 15 establishesasingle comprehensive model forentitiesto useinaccounting
forrevenuearising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
currentrevenue recognition guidanceincluding IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contractsandtherelated Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Identify the contract with the customer;
Identify the performance obligationsin the contract;
Determinethetransaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts;
m  Recogniserevenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

UnderlFRS15,anentityrecognisesrevenue whenorasaperformance
obligationissatisfied,i.e.when'control'ofthegoodsorservicesunderlyingthe
particularperformanceobligationistransferredtothe customer.Farmore
prescriptiveguidancehasbeenaddedin|FRS 15todealwithspecificscenarios.
Furthermore,extensivedisclosuresarerequiredbyIFRS15.

In April 2016, the IASBissued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versusagent considerations,
aswellaslicensingapplicationguidance.

The managementintends to use the full prospectively method of transition to IFRS 15.
Apart from providing more extensive disclosures on the Group's revenue transactions,

the management does not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have a
significantimpact on the financial position and/or financial performance of the Group.

IFRS 16 LEASES

IFRS16introducesacomprehensive modelfortheidentification of lease
arrangementsandaccountingtreatmentsforbothlessorsandlessees.IFRS16
will supersedethecurrentleaseguidanceincludinglAS 17 Leasesandthe
relatedinterpretationswhenitbecomeseffective.

IFRS 16 distinguishesleasesand service contracts on the basis of whetheran
identified assetis controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases (off
balance sheet) and finance leases (on balance sheet) are removed for lessee
accounting, andisreplaced by a model where aright-of-use assetand a
corresponding liability have to be recognisedforall leases by lessees (i.e.allon
balance sheet) exceptforshort-termleasesand leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and, adjusted for any
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remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will also be affected as
operating lease payments under IAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows; whereas
under the IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be splitinto a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively.

Incontrasttolesseeaccounting,IFRS 16 substantially carriesforwardthe lessor
accountingrequirementsinlAS17,andcontinuestorequirealessortoclassifya
leaseeitherasanoperatingleaseorafinancelease.

Furthermore, extensivedisclosuresarerequiredbyFRS 16.
Themanagementofthe Groupiscurrentlyassessingits potentialimpact.|tis
notpracticabletoprovideareasonableestimate ofthefinancial effect until
managementcompletestheirreview.

IFRS 17 INSURANCE CONTRACTS

The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts:

m  |FRS17outlinesaGeneralModel, whichis modifiedforinsurance contracts
withdirect participationfeatures,describedastheVariable Fee Approach.
The General Modelissimplifiedif certain criteriaare metby measuringthe
liability forremaining coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

m  TheGeneralModelwilluse currentassumptionstoestimate theamount,
timingand uncertainty of future cash flowsanditwillexplicitly measure the
costofthatuncertainty;ittakesintoaccountmarketinterestratesandthe
impactofpolicyholders'optionsand guarantees.

m  Profitfrom selling insurance policies is deferred in a separate liability component on day
1 and aggregated in groups of insurance contracts; it is then reported systematically
through profit or loss over the period during which insurers provide cover after making
adjustments from changes in assumptions relating to future coverage.

m  Consideringscope, some fixed fee service contracts meeting specified
criteriawill be abletobeaccounted underIFRS 15 Revenuefrom Contracts
with Customersinstead ofapplyingtherequirementsinIFRS 17.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 with

earlier application permitted for entities that apply IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 at or before the date of
initial application of IFRS 17. Entities should apply IFRS 17 retrospectively, unless impracticable,

in which case the modified retrospective approach of the fair value approach is applied.

The management of the Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 17 in the
future may have a significantimpact on the amounts recognised in the Group's
consolidatedfinancial statementsandthe managementiscurrentlyassessingits
potential impact. It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financialeffectuntilmanagementcompletestheirreview.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 2 CLASSIFICATION AND
MEASUREMENT OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The amendments clarify the following:

1. In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-based payment, the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow
the same approach as for equity-settled share-based payments.

2. Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to withhold a specified number of
equity instruments equal to the monetary value of the employee's tax obligation
to meet the employee's tax liability which is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e.
the share-based payment arrangement has a 'net settlement feature’, such an
arrangement should be classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that
the share-based payment would have been classified as equity-settled had it not
included the net settlement feature.

3. A modification of a share-based payment that changes the transaction from
cash-settled to equity-settled should be accounted for as follows:

theoriginalliabilityisderecognised;

theequity-settled share-based paymentisrecognised at the modification

datefairvalue of the equity instrument granted to the extent that services

havebeenrendereduptothemodificationdate;and

any difference between the carrying amount of the liability at the
modification date and the amount recognised in equity should be
recognisedinprofitorlossimmediately.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 with earlier application permitted. Specific transition provisions apply.
The management of the Group does not anticipate that the application of the

amendments in the future will have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have any cash-settled
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share-based paymentarrangements or any withholding tax arrangements with
taxauthoritiesinrelationtoshare-based payments.

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 40 TRANSFERS OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

amendments may have animpact on the Group's consolidated financial
statementsinfuture periods should suchtransactionsarise.

IFRIC 22 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND
ADVANCE CONSIDERATION

The amendmentsclarify thata transfer to, or from, investment property necessitates an
assessment of whether a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property, supported by observable evidence that a change in use has
occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations other than the ones listed in
IAS40 may evidencea change in use, and thata changein useis possible for properties
under construction (i.e.a change in useis not limited to completed properties).

Theamendments are effective forannual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 with earlier application permitted. Entities can apply the amendments
either retrospectively (if this is possible without the use of hindsight) or
prospectively.Specifictransition provisionsapply.

The management of the Group anticipates that the application of these
amendments may have animpact on the Group's consolidated financial statements
infuture periods should there be a change in use of any of its properties.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 10 AND IAS 28 SALE OR
CONTRIBUTION OF ASSETS BETWEEN AN INVESTOR
AND ITS ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically,
the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognised in the parent's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the new associate or joint venture.

Theeffective date of theamendments hasyetto be set by the IASB; however, earlier
application oftheamendmentsis permitted.

The management of the Group anticipates thatthe application of these

IFRIC 22 addresses how to determine the 'date of transaction'for the purpose of
determining the exchangerate to use oninitial recognition ofanasset, expense or
income, when consideration forthatitem has been paid orreceivedinadvanceina
foreign currency which resultedin the recognition ofanon-monetary assetor
non-monetary liability (e.g.anon-refundable deposit or deferred revenue).
TheInterpretation specifies that the date of transactionis the date on which the
entityinitially recognises the non-monetary asset ornon-monetary liability arising
from the paymentor receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple
paymentsorreceiptsinadvance, the Interpretation requires an entity todetermine
thedate of transaction foreach paymentorreceipt ofadvance consideration.

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
earlier application permitted. Entities can apply the Interpretation either retrospectively or
prospectively. Specific transition provisions apply to prospective application.

The managementofthe Group does not anticipate that the application of this IFRIC
willhave amaterialimpact onthe Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23 UNCERTAINTY OVER INCOME TAX
TREATMENTS

IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is
uncertainty overincome tax treatments. The Interpretation requires an entity to:

m  determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as a group; and

m  assesswhetheritis probable thatataxauthority willacceptan uncertain tax
treatmentused, or proposedto be used, by anentityinitsincometaxfilings:
m  Ifyes,theentity should determineits accounting tax position consistently with

thetaxtreatmentused or planned to be usedinitsincome taxfilings.
m Ifno,theentityshouldreflecttheeffectofuncertaintyindeterminingits
accountingtaxposition.

TheInterpretation is effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January
2019 with earlierapplication permitted. Entities can apply the Interpretation
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eitherfully retrospectively (ifitis possible without the use of hindsight) orto apply
modified retrospective approach without restatement of comparatives.

The managementofthe Group does notanticipate thatthe application of this
IFRICwill have amaterialimpactonthe Group's consolidated financial statements
asthe Group currently usesthe approach to recognition of uncertain tax position,
whichisconsistentwith IFRIC23.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 4 APPLYING IFRS 9 FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH IFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACTS

The amendments provide entities meeting a criterion for engaging in predominantly
insurance activities with the option to continue current IFRS accounting and to defer
the application of IFRS 9 until the earlier of the application of the new insurance
Standard or periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (the "sunset clause"). The
assessment of predominance has to be made at the reporting entity level and at the
annual reporting date immediately preceding 1 April 2016.Thereafter it should not
be reassessed, unlessthereis asignificant change in the entity's activities that would
triggeramandatory reassessment. An entity shall apply those amendments, which
permitinsurers that meet specified criteria to apply a temporary exemption from [FRS
9,forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2018.

Separately, theamendments provide all entities with contracts within the scope of
IFRS4 withan option toapply IFRS 9in full but to make adjustments to profit or loss
toremove theimpact of IFRS 9, compared with IAS 39, for designated qualifying
financial assets. Thisisreferred to as the 'overlay approach'andis available onan
asset-by asset basis with specific requirements around designations and de-
designations. An entity shall apply those amendments, which permitinsurers to
apply the overlay approachto designated financial assets, whenitfirstapplies IFRS 9.

Themanagementdoesnotanticipate thattheapplication of theseamendments
willhaveamaterialimpactonthe Group's consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 9 PREPAYMENT FEATURES
WITH NEGATIVE COMPENSATION

The narrow-scope amendments remedy an unintended consequence to the notion
of 'reasonable additional compensation'. The amendments allow financial assets with
aprepayment option that could result in the option's holder receiving compensation
for early termination to meet the SPPI condition if specified criteria are met.

In addition to that, the IASB considered the accounting for financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged that do not lead to derecognition and as a result included in the
Basis for Conclusion two paragraphs on that matter. In those paragraphs the Board observes
that the accounting in such cases is the same as it is for modifying a financial asset. If the
gross carrying amount is changed it will lead to an immediate gain or loss in profit or loss.

Theamendmentsapply retrospectively toannual reporting periods beginning
onorafter1January2019.Earlierapplicationis permitted.There are specific
transition provisionsdependingonwhentheamendmentsare firstapplied,
relativetotheinitialapplication of IFRS9.

The management does not anticipate that the application of these amendments
will have a materialimpact onthe Group's consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTSTO IAS 28 LONG-TERM INTERESTS IN
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTVENTURES

The amendments clarify that IFRS 9, including its impairment requirements, applies to
long-term interests in associates and joint ventures that form part of an entity's net
investmentin these investees. Furthermore, in applying IFRS 9 to long-term interests, an
entity does not take into account adjustments to their carrying amount required by IAS 28
(i.e, adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term interests arising from the allocation
of losses of the investee or assessment of impairment in accordance with IAS 28).

Theamendmentsare effective forannual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
with earlier application permitted. Specific transition provisions apply depending on
whetherthe first-time application of the amendments coincides with that of IFRS 9.

The managementdoes notanticipate thatthe application of these amendments
willhave a materialimpactonthe Group's consolidated financial statements, as the
Group does nothaveany otherlong-terminterestsinassociatesand jointventures,
exceptforthe equity investments accounted for using the equity method.

ANNUALIMPROVEMENTS TOIFRSS 2014-2016 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements include amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 which are not yet
mandatorily effective for the Group. The package also includes amendments to IFRS 12
which is mandatorily effective for the Group in the current year — see the details of application
in section Amendments to IFRSs affecting amounts reported in the financial statements.

Theamendmentsto IAS 28 clarify that the option foraventure capital
organisationandothersimilarentities to measureinvestmentsinassociatesand
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jointventuresatFVTPLisavailableseparatelyforeachassociateorjointventure,
andthatelectionshould be madeatinitial recognition of theassociate orjoint
venture.Inrespectoftheoptionforanentity thatisnotaninvestmententity (IE)
toretainthefairvalue measurementapplied byitsassociatesandjointventures
thatarelEswhenapplying the equity method, theamendments make a similar
clarificationthatthischoiceisavailable foreach|IEassociate orIEjointventure.
Theamendmentsapply retrospectively withearlierapplication permitted.

Both theamendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are effective forannual periods
beginningonorafter1January 2018.

Themanagementofthe Group does notanticipate thattheapplication ofthe
amendmentsinthe future willhaveanyimpactonthe Group's consolidated
financial statementsasthe Groupisneitherafirst-time adopterof IFRSnora
venture capital organisation. Furthermore, the Group does not have any
associateorjointventurethatisaninvestmententity.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTSTOIFRSS 2015-2017 CYCLE

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle makes amendments to several standards.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a
joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to
IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation,
the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business.

The amendments to IAS 12 clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (i.e.
distribution of profits) should be recognised in profit or loss, regardless of how the tax arises.
Theamendments to IAS 23 clarify thatif any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related assetis ready foritsintended use or sale, that
borrowing becomes partofthe funds thatan entity borrows generally when
calculatingthe capitalisationrate on general borrowings.

Allamendments are effective for annual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2019.

Themanagementdoesnotanticipate thattheapplication of theseamendments
willhave amaterialimpactonthe Group's consolidated financial statements.

4.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amount of
assetsand liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount

of income and expenses during the reporting year. Management evaluates its
estimates and judgements on an ongoing basis. Management bases its estimates and
judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable underthe circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under differentassumptions or conditions. The following estimates and judgments
are considered important to the portrayal of the Group's financial condition.

ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS AND
RECEIVABLES

The Group regularly reviews its loans and receivables to assess forimpairment. The
Group'sloan impairment provisions are established to recognise incurred
impairment losses in its portfolio of loans and receivables. The Group considers
accounting estimates related to the allowance for the impairment of loans and
receivables as a key source of estimation uncertainty because (i) they are highly
susceptible to change fromyearto year as the assumptions about future default rates
and valuation of potential losses relating to impaired loans and receivables are based
onrecent performance experience, and (ii) any significant difference between the
Group's estimated losses and actual losses will require the Group to make provisions
which, if significantly different, could have a material impact on its future consolidated
statement of profitor loss and its consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group uses management's judgement to estimate the amount of any
impairmentlossin cases where a borrower has financial difficulties and there are
few available sources of historical datarelating to similar borrowers. Similarly, the
Group estimates changes in future cash flows based on past performance, past
customer behaviour,observable dataindicating an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowersinagroup,and national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaultson assetsin the group. Managementuses estimates based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence ofimpairmentsimilartothoseinthe group ofloansand receivables.

Historical loss experience s adjusted, on the basis of observable data, to reflect current
conditions not affecting the period of historical experience. In determining the
impairment allowance for loans and receivables, management makes the following
assumptions: migration rates for collectively assessed loans are estimated based on a
constantrate of historic loss migration for the past 12 months; the projected cash flows
for repayment from the sale of pledged property take into account the possible
expensesand periodto sell, which are based on collateral realization statistics.

The allowances for impairment of financial assets in the consolidated financial statements
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have been determined on the basis of existing economic and political conditions. The
Group is not in a position to predict what changes in conditions will take place in
Kazakhstan and in other countries it operates in and what effect such changes might
have on the adequacy of the allowances forimpairment of financial assets in future years.

Thecarryingamountoftheallowance forimpairmentlosses of loans to
customersasat31December2017isKZT317,161 million (31 December2016is
KZT 284,752 million,31 December2015:KZT305,114 million).

VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As described in Note 37, the Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Note 37 provides detailed information about the key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of the Group's financial instruments. The
Group management believes that the chosen valuation technigues and assumptions
used are appropriate in determining the fair value of the Group's financial instruments.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT CARRIED AT REVALUED
AMOUNTS

Buildings and construction are measured at revalued amounts. The latest appraisal
was in November 2016. Details of the valuation techniques used are set out in Note 14.

TAXATION

Kazakhstan tax, currency and customs legislations are subjectto varying
interpretationsand changes, which can occurfrequently. Management's
interpretationof such legislation asapplied to the transactionsandactivity of the
Group may be challenged by therelevantregional and state authorities. Fiscal
periodsremain opentoreview by the authoritiesin respect of taxes for five
calendaryears preceding theyearof review.

Asat31December2017, management believes thatitsinterpretation of the
relevantlegislationisappropriate and thatthe Group's tax, currency and customs
positions will be sustained. Significant additional actual taxes, penalties and
interest may be assessed following any challenges by the relevantauthorities,
which could have a materialimpactonthe Group'sreported netincome.

CLAIMS LIABILITY AND RESERVES ARISING FROM
INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Forinsurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate
costof claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of
IBNR claims at the reporting date. For certain lines of business, IBNR claims form the
majority of insurance liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. It
can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be
established with certainty. For hull, property, accidentand liability insurance, the
Group actuarially determines the liability using past claims settlement trends to
predict future claims settlementamounts. In estimating the cost of reported and
IBNR claims for certain other lines of business, management applies current
government guidance, as provided by NBRK, due to the absence of sufficient
historical data. Under this guidance, the IBNR reserve is calculated using the expected
loss ratio for each line of business, less the cumulative losses actually reported.
Generalinsurance claims provisions are not discounted for the time value of money.

Thegrossreservesforclaimsandtherelated receivablesforreinsurance recoveries
are based oninformationavailabletomanagementandthe ultimate amounts may
vary asaresult of subsequentinformationand eventsand may resultin
adjustmentstothe amountsrecovered.Actual claimsexperience may differ from
the historical patternon which the estimate is based and the cost of settling
individual claims may differ from costs previously estimated. Any adjustments to
theamountofreserveswillbereflectedin the consolidated financial statementsin
theyearinwhichthe necessaryadjustmentsbecomeknownandestimable.

5.ACQUISITION

The Group acquired the following subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activity j§ Date of Proportion of Consideration
acquisition shares acquired (%) transferred in KZT
JSC Kazkommertsbank BRI Sy 207 el

KKBis consolidated from 5 July 2017, on which date the control was transferred to the
Group. The assets and liabilities of KKB were recognized at fair value. The income
statement of KKB up to acquisition was not recognized.
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ASSETS FAIR VALUE AT ACQUISITION

Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserves

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Amounts due from credit institutions

Available-for-sale investment securities

Precious metals

Loans to customers

Assets held-for-sale
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets
Insurance assets

Other assets

678,622
3313
197,071
24,675
1,434,422
3,065
780,866
138,568
49,009
3,199
1,779
15211
99,811

LIABILITIES

Amounts due to customers 2,584,187
Amounts due to credit institutions 70,650
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3,132
Debt securities issued 579,662
Provisions 17,362
Deferred tax liability 200
Insurance liability 66,931
Other liabilities 107,487

Total identifiable net assets at fair value -

Non-controlling interest measured at fair value 7

Fairvalue of cashand cashequivalentsreceivedatacquisitionamounted toKZT
678,622 millionasdisclosedinthetableabove.

Theassetsacquiredand liabilitiesassumed are assessed at fairvalue asatthe
acquisitiondateinaccordance withIFRS 3requirements.

Management considered thatthe carryingamounts of cash and cash

equivalentsandobligatoryreservesapproximate theirfairvaluesatacquisition
dateduetoitsshort-termmaturity.

Property and assets held forsale were assessed using market comparable
approachthatreflectstransaction pricesfor similar propertiesatacquisition date.

Forloanstocustomers,the estimate was made by discounting the scheduled
future cashflowsoftheindividualloansthrough the estimated maturity using
prevailingmarketratesasofdate ofacquisition.Forloanswhere such estimation
wasnotapplicable, the estimate was made based onthediscounting of future
cashflowsfromrealization of collateral.

Foramounts due from credit institutions and amounts due to credit institutions
maturing within one month, the carrying amount approximates fair value due to the
relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments. For the assets and
liabilities maturingin over one month, the fair value was estimated as the presentvalue
of estimated future cash flows discounted as of date of acquisition using market rates.

Interest rates charged to customers closely approximate market interest rates and,
accordingly, the carrying amount of customers' accounts approximate its fair value.

Todeterminethefairvalue of the bondsissued by KKB, the Group used the
relevantKASE quotes.Wherethe Group believes that KASE quotesdonotreflect
actual price of the securities (in case of low volume speculative transactions at
non-marketprice)itusesdifferentvaluation methods.Forexample, todetermine
thefairvalue of somesecuritiesissued by KKB the Group basedits valuationon
the currentyieldtomaturity (using base rateand creditspread). Other similar
valuationmethodswouldinclude suchcriteriaas maturity, cash flowstructure,
currencyandcreditrisk.

Onacquisitiondate, netdeferred taxassets of KKBincluded deductible temporary
difference amounted to KZT 44,013 million of recognized tax losses carried
forward and taxable temporary difference of KZT 44,013 million related to the fair
valueadjustmenton customeraccounts.

IMPACT OF ACQUISITIONS ON THE RESULTS OF THE
GROUP

Given the system limitations in allocating the significantimpairment losses on
financial assets between accounting periods, recorded by KKB during the year ended
31 December 2017, itisimpracticable to determine the proformaimpacttothe 2017
revenues and netincome if the acquisition had occurred on 1January 2017.
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6.CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS

Cashand cash equivalents comprise:
31 December @ 31 December @ 31 December
2017 2016 2015
Cash on hand 190,396 149,124 118891

RECORDED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH IAS 39:
Correspondent accounts with Organization for

Economic Co-operation and Development countries 214,596 181,144 116,478
(the "OECD") based banks

Short-term deposits with OECD based banks 150,656 428,526 125,808
Overnight deposits with OECD based banks 36,584 79,992 -
Correspondent accounts with NBRK 699,256 915,675 1,019,059
Short-term deposits with NBRK 61,378 4,002 310

Short-term deposits with Kazakhstan banks

(incl. loans under reverse repurchase agreements) 373956 2592 1518
Correspondent accounts with non-OECD based banks 20,439 11,459 12,206
Short-term deposits with non-OECD based banks 33233 2,005 410

Overnight deposits with NON-OECD based banks 54

1,780,548 1,774,519 1,404,680

Cash and cash equivalents of JSC Altyn Bank 142,736
TOTAL PER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS 1,923,284 1,774,5 1,404,680

Interest rates and currencies in which interest earning cash and cash equivalents are
denominated are as follows:

KZT 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015
Foreign Foreign Foreign
currencies currencies currencies

Short-term deposits

with OECD based - 0.8%-1.8% - 0.7%-1.5% - 0.3%-0.9%
an|

Overnight deposits

with OECD based - 1.4%-1.5% -

banks

Short-term deposits
With NBRK 9.3% - 11.0% - - 40%

0.5%-0.7% = =

Short-term deposits

with Kazakhstan 90%-123% - 125% - 10%-150% 0.3%-2.5%
banks

Short-term deposits

with non-OECD - 1.7% - 6.6%-7.0% - 3.0%
based banks

Overnight deposits
with NON-OECD -
based banks

1.7%-1.8% = = = =

Fair value of assets pledged and carrying amounts of loans under reverse
repurchaseagreementsasat31December2017,2016and 2015,areasfollows:

Carrying 31 December J Carrying 31 December J Carrying 31 December

amount 2017 amount 2016 amount 2015

of loans Fair value of loans Fair value of loans Fair value

of collateral of collateral of collateral

Treasury bills of
the Ministry of
Finance of 228642 228,516 1,591 1,591 8,320 10,012
Kazakhstan
Notes of NBRK 132,879 132,791 - - = _
Equity securities 11,122 11,080 -

22N EZECN KECNN ECHN CECN TR

As at 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, maturities of loans under reverse
repurchaseagreementsare lessthanone month.

7.0BLIGATORY RESERVES

Obligatory reserves comprise:

31 December @ 31 December @ 31 December
2017 2016 2015
RECORDED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH IAS 39:
Cash and due from banks allocated to obligatory reserves 111,039 76,122 68,389

OBLIGATORY RESERVES [ 111,00 [ 76122 68,389

The obligatory reserves represent the minimum reserve deposits and cash on hand
balances required by the National Banks of the Republic of Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan,
Georgia, Tajikistan and the Central Bank of Russian Federation. As at 31 December 2017,
obligatory reserves of the Bank's subsidiaries — JSC Kazkommertsbank, OJSC Halyk Bank
Kyrgyzstan, JSC NBK-Bank and JSC Halyk Bank Georgia, JSC Commercial Bank
Moskommertsbank and CJSC Kazkommertsbank Tajikistan comprised KZT 48,196
million (31 December 2016 —KZT 12,767 million, 31 December 2015 — KZT 9,340 million).
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUETHROUGHPROFITORLOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

31 December [ 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING:

Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan 44,171

Derivative financial instruments 39,723 77,776 175313
Corporate bonds 21,212 743 909
Equity securities of Kazakhstan corporations 14,478 88 106
Notes of NBRK 8310 249,574 -
Bonds of Kazakhstan banks 5,547 137 293
Bonds of JSC Development Bank of Kazakhstan 5252 215 199
Bonds of foreign organizations 5126 102 124
Equity securities of foreign organizations 675 102 78

Equity securities of Kazakhstan banks

482 - 48
o Jauny

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
31 December [ 31 December | 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Derivative financial instruments 5831 2841 5593

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING:

Interest rates on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the
table below. Interest rates in the table below are calculated as weighted average of the
effectiveinterestrates for the respective financial assets:
31 December @ 31 December @ 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan ~ 5.6% - -

Corporate bonds 8.6% 6.6% 6.6%
Notes of NBRK 10.3% 13.2% -
Bonds of Kazakhstan banks 11.1% 9.7% 10.5%
Bonds of JSC Development Bank of Kazakhstan 7.1% 5.9% 5.3%
Bonds of foreign organizations 7.0% 6.9% 6.3%

Derivative financial instruments comprise:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
currency i Notional l§ Asset ir valuell Notional l§ Asset Fair valuel§ Notional l§ Asset Fair value]
contractsf§ amount ity [ amount ity | amount Liability

Swaps  1,172217 39,671 5828 228905 77655 2833 454,075 175308 1,043

Spots 10309 23 3 3,583 14 8 28627 5 265
Forwards 4,085 29 - 4,644 14546 - 4,285

107 -
I I 27 T I 2 XTI I (T O

As at 31 December 2017, swaps contracts included a one-year cross-currency swap deal
concluded between KKB and NBRK on 3 July 2017 for the notional amount of KZT 1,000,000
million.The purpose of the deal is the placement of excess foreign currency liquidity.

As at 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group used quoted market prices
from independent information sources for all of its financial assets at fair value
through profitorloss, except for derivative financial instruments, which are valued
using valuation models based onobservable and unobservable market data.

Foreign

During 2015, in order to increase tenge liquidity, the Group concluded swaps and
non-deliverable forwards with the NBRK.

9.AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDITINSTITUTIONS

Amounts due from creditinstitutions comprise:

31 December [ 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

RECORDED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH IAS 39:

Term deposits 59,711 11,256 25,584

Loans to credit institutions 18,719 18,678 14,307

Deposit pledged as collateral for derivative financial

instruments 9306 5,608 5,109
87,736 45,000
87,736 44,993
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Interest rates and maturities of amounts due from credit institutions are as follows:
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Interest Ma Interest Matt Interest Matu
rate, % yeal rate, yeal rate, % year

Term deposits 04-150 2018 05-18.0 2017-2018 1.0-27.0 2016-2017
Loans to credit institutions  8.5-16.0 2018 82-103 2017 82 2017
Deposit pledged as

collateral for derivative ~ 1.1-1.8 2046 02-18 2018 02-18 2016

financial instruments

10. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Available-for-sale investment securities comprise:

31 December [ 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan* 1,366,494 138,018 165,040
Notes of NBRK 459,895 199,390 -
Corporate bonds 280,106 103,464 141,428
Treasury bills of the USA 264,821 91,534 -
Bonds of foreign organizations 82,935 3,138 9336
Bonds of JSC Development Bank of Kazakhstan 66,792 37,640 35976
Bonds of Kazakhstan banks 25017 10,223 17,606
Treasury bills of Hungary 7,987 7,762 -
Equity securities of Kazakhstan corporations 3,407 4,719 3,024
Treasury bills of Georgia 2,156 2116 2,755
Equity securities of foreign corporations 1,756 95 2,140
Treasury bills of the Kyrgyz Republic 1,710 705 208
Notes of National Bank of Kyrgyz Republic 1,400 = 354
Treasury bills of the Russian Federation 909 820 653

Equity securities of Kazakhstan banks

*Including Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan for KZT 1,061,654 million as at 31
December 2017 acquired by KKB on special terms on 3 July 2017 with the maturity 2022-2027 for total
cash consideration of KZT 1,000,000 million. Special terms include the following: securities are
restricted in use and the subsidiary does not have the right to sell the securities within two years
without the consent of NBRK, the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan and Parent company. However,
these securities canbe usedin repotransactions forliquidity management purposes.

As at 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, available-for-sale investment securities
included treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan at fair value of KZT
92,719 million, KZT 15,201 million, and KZT 51,763 million, respectively, pledged
under repurchase agreements with the other banks (see Note 20). All repurchase
agreementsasat31December2017,2016and 2015 mature before 3 January 2018,
4January2017,and 5 January 2016, respectively.

Interest rates and maturities of available-for-sale investment securities are
presented in the table below. Interest rates in the table below are calculated as
weighted average of the effective interest rates for the respective securities.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Interest Maturi Interest Matu Interest Matu
rate, year te, % year rate, % year

Treasury bills of the Ministry 7.0 2018-2045 2017-2031 2016-2045
of Finance of Kazakhstan
Notes of NBRK 100 2018 134 2017 = =
Corporate bonds 70 2018-2047 58 2017-2031 69 2016-2029
Treasuty bills of the USA 1.0 2018 04 2017
Bonds of foreign
organisations 80 2018-2046 6.3 2017-2024 50 2016-2022
gr’]‘ff)?fkfzgkchme“e,:°pme"t 57 20202032 45 20222026 45 20222026
Bonds of Kazakhstan banks 11.3 2018-2024 112 2017-2049 121 2016-2049
Treasury bills of Hungary 3.2 2023 32 2023
Treasury bills of Georgia 108 2019-2025 104 2017-2024 10.1 2016-2024
Treasury bills of the Kyrgyz

Republic 6.1 2018-2021 102 2017 124 2016
Notes of National Bank of
Kyrayz Republic 2018 - - 105 2016
Treasury bills of the
Russian Federation 8.1 2021 8.1 2021 9.8 2021

RECLASSIFICATIONS TOINVESTMENTS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

During 2016, after the completion of the two-year moratorium, the Group acquired
investments held to maturity, however,on 21 July 2016, the management of the
Group decided to reclassify Eurobonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Kazakhstan for a total amount of KZT 4,963 million (USD 14.6 million) maturing in
2045 from held to maturity investment portfolio to the available-for-sale investment
portfolio. As a result, the Group may not classify any financial assets as held to
maturity investments within next two financial periods after the reclassification date.
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1 1 . LOAN S To CUSTOM E RS Loans collateralised by pledge of vehicles 29,956 42,997 70,227

. Loans collateralised by pledge of agricultural products 7,413 6,311 5742
Loansto customers comprise:
Unsecured loans 413,078 152,255 135877
31 December § 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015
RECORDED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH IAS 39:
Originated loans to customers 3,547,621 2,602,381 2477685 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS 2,176,069

Overdrafts *Theseloansare collateralised by cash to be received inthe future from the employees of companies

withinthe frameworkof salary projects.

_ Loansaregranted tothefollowing sectors:
EOANSITO.CUSTOMERS) 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Asat 31 December 2017, loans to customers before allowance forimpairmentlosses petail loans:
- consumer loans 679,674 19% 433,291 17% 407,905 16%

include loans of face value of KZT 1,640,206 million acquired from KKB. These loans are
presented in the table above at their unamortized fair value of KZT 804,022 million.

Weighted average interestrate on loans to customersis calculated as interest -mortgage loans 265454 % 187772 719716 e
income onloansto customersdivided by monthly average balances of loans to _ _ - _ - _ - .
customers.Asat31 December2017,averageinterestrate onloanswas 13.0% (for Services 527,618 15% 413,150 16% 394,027 16%
theyearended 31 December2016-13.0%,31 December2015-12.5%).

Wholesale trade 376,064 1% 383,261 15% 442,797 18%
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's loan concentration to the ten largest borrowers was KZT  ¢onstruction CONSOLIDATED
. 282,412 8% 191,171 7% 168393 7%
617,144 million, which comprised 17% of the Group’s total gross loan portfolio (as at 31 December = 195733 o 17146 o 150353 o FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2016~ KZT 494953 million, 199%; as at 31 December 2015~ KZT 512128 millon, 21%) and 66% of ~ Retil trade b /° : /° ; /° A D INDEPENDENT
the Group's total equity (as at 31 December 2016 — 74%; as at 31 December 2016 - 97%). Real estate 174,221 5% 150,662 6% 157,413 6% FOR THE YEARS ENDED
Asat31December2017,theallowanceforloanimpairmentlosses createdagainst ~ Metallurgy 153,761 4% 23290 1% 25610 1% 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
theseloanswasKZT 55,654 million (asat 31 December2016-KZT49,762million,as  Agriculture 150,186 4% 121,368 5% 118948 5% AND 2015
at31December2015-KZT60,965 million). Transportation 131,843 4% 101,965 4% 59415 2%
Thetable below summarizesthe amountofloans secured by type of collateral,  gpergy 095838 % 69,690 3% 28628 1%
ratherthanthefairvalue ofthe collateralitself: — -
Financial services 83,193 2% 44,645 2% 39,394 2%
31 December J§ 31 December § 31 December Food industry 78417 2% 34,797 1% 31,897 1%
2017 2016 2015 : ’ ' ’
Loans collateralised by guarantees 1,246,368 646,702 511,561 Oiland gas 73620 2% 33815 1% 36,777 2%
' Mini 0 0 0
t??irlslqigltlﬁéergﬁed by pledge of real estate p—— p— p— ining 63,555 2% 78528 3% 54,936 2%
ps 9 o tssued within the f . Hotel industry 63,241 2% 34,706 1% 32,581 1%
onsumer loans issued within the frameworl
of payroll projects* 446,823 405,196 373211 Communication 49,731 1% 61461 2% 60483 2%
Loans collateralised by cash 302,871 223,675 192,185 Chemical industry 38,036 1% 28,051 1% 14,678 1%
Loans collateralised by pledge of corporate shares 108,995 133,988 144,541 Machinery 33377 1% 22,559 1% 15499 1%
Loans collateralised by pledge of inventories 92,997 48,790 48313 Light industry 17,255 0% 8911 0% 7,004 0%
Loans collateralised by pledge of equipment 36,643 8,849 10,865 Other 45,034 1% 24,096 1% 37,280 2%

143 Loans collateralised by mixed types of collateral 63,607 39617 48,490 _ ,568,263 m 100% m 100%
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Asat31December2017,accruedinterestonloans comprised KZT 145,535 million
(31 December2016-KZT 142,046 million, 31 December 2015 —-KZT 138,495 million).

During the years ended 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group received financial and
non-financial assets by taking possession of collateral it held as security. As at 31 December
2017,2016 and 2015, such assets of KZT 142,833 million (including KKB for KZT 132,985 miillion),
KZT 2,726 million, and KZT 7401 million, respectively, are included in assets held for sale.

Asat31December2017,2016and 2015, loansto customersincludedloansof KZT
340,445 million,KZT 149,024 million,and KZT 188,582 million, respectively, which
termswererenegotiated. Otherwise, theseloanswould be pastdue orimpaired.

12.INVESTMENT PROPERTY
I T ETI ET
30,14

Asat 1 January 24,658 5,684
Additions 6,543 5924 18,861
Acquisitions through business combination 2,044

Disposals (2411) (1,499) @
Transferred from non-current assets held for sale 475

Transferred from property and equipment 564 976 58
Gain on revaluation of investment property 70 56 57
Capitalised expenses 43 22

Translation differences

During the years ended 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group foreclosed collateral
it held as a security for loans to customers. As a result, the Group received investment
property of KZT 6,543 million, KZT 5,924 million, and KZT 18,861 million, respectively.

Asat31December2017,2016and 2015, there wasnoinvestment property that
was pledged as collateral for liabilities.

Investment property rental income is included in other income in the statement of profit or
loss. For the years ended 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, investment property rental
income earned was KZT 1,760 million, KZT 1,571 million, and KZT 1,120 million, respectively.

Operatingexpensesarisingfromtheinvestment property thatgeneratedrental
incomeduringtheyearsended 31 December2017,2016and 2015 wereKZT671

million,KZT861 million,and KZT497 million, respectively.

Investment property owned by the Group was revalued by independent appraisers
asat31December2017,2016and 2015.The fair value of the investment property
was estimated based on the income approach and the comparative approach. When
estimating thefairvalue of the properties, their current use is considered the best use
and the most effective. There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year.This revaluation resulted in recognition of a revaluation gain in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2017,
2016and 2015 of KZT 35 million, KZT 56 million, and KZT 57 million, respectively.

Asat31December2017,2016and 2015, the fairvalue measurementsofthe
Group'sinvestment property of KZT37,517 million,KZT 30,146 million,and KZT
24,658 million, respectively, are categorisedinto Level 3 (description of
measurementhierarchyisdisclosedin Note 37).

13.COMMERCIALPROPERTY

During the yearended 31 December 2015, the Group took possession of collateral it
held as a security for aloan and received land and construction in progress for KZT 1,241
millionand KZT 6,245 million, respectively. The Group continued the construction and
in2017,2016and 2015, it recognised capitalisedexpenses of KZT 830 million,KZT 2,818
million and KZT 2,146 million, respectively. During 2017, the Group transferred
completed property to original investors for KZT 1,989 million and sold property for KZT
2,232 million.As at 31 December 2017, the carryingamount of constructionin progress
and finished construction was KZT 3,039 million and KZT 3,772 million, respectively.
During 2017, the Group also incorporated commercial property for KZT 41,963 million
asaresult of the acquisition of subsidiary JSC Kazkommertsbank.
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14.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The movementsin property and equipment are as follows:

REVALUED/INITIAL COST:

31 December 2016

Additions

Disposals

Write-off at revaluation

Transferred to investment property
Reclassified as held for sale

Acquisition through business combination
Impairment

Transfers*

Translation differences

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:
31 December 2016

Charge

Disposals

Write-off at revaluation
Reclassified as held for sale
Transfers*

Translation differences

NET BOOK VALUE:

77,854

777
(550)

(564)

(3.239)
38,052

(88)

151 5 33 - 64 253

484
1304
@)

35)

20 4 30 - 47
31 DECEMBER 2017 110,627 (1400 [1a600 (118 [ 10890 137,684

2,754
483
619)

(102)
441

32

1,645
359
(432)
1)
29

24773
1,607
(8,032)
©)
(609)
8489
6]
493

17,041
2,987
(7.958)
©)
(389)
431

394
(277)

16,694
2454
(2,282)
U]
(960)
2027
(70)
(807)

8009
1,488
(2137)
U]
(500)
677)

Buildings and Vehicles Computers and Construction Other Total
construction banking equipment [ in progress

122,076
5715
(11,760)
©6)
(564)
4910)
49,009
(161)
(282)

27,179
6,138
(10,534)
©6)
(975)
(217)
101
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Buildings and Vehicles
construction

REVALUED/INITIAL COST:
31 December 2015
Additions

Disposals

Write-off at revaluation
Revaluation

Transfers**

Impairment

Translation differences

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:
31 December 2015

Charge

Disposals

Write-off at revaluation

Translation differences

NET BOOK VALUE:

Computers and Construction
banking equipment in progress

56,423
3844
(1,241)
(1,761)
1,272
19,610
(464)
171

1,098
1,009
@7)
(1,761)
165

2,587
320
(155)

[€))

5

1,530
268
(155)

2

22,400 14,066
4334 6,114
(2,045) (70)

@ -

54 (20,109)

32 - (34)

17,100
1,710
(1,763)
@

) -

15,356 110832
3677 18,289
(2,746) (6,257)
) (1,767)
- 1,272
448 -
) (467)
174
e
8,642 28370
1212 4,199
(1,718) (3663)
@ (1,767)

123

(123) 40

31 DECEMBER 2016 77,370 B 2 [+ Jsess 94,897
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Buildings and Vehicles Computers and Construction Other Total
construction banking equipment in progress

REVALUED/INITIAL COST:

31 December 2014 54,374 2,557 22,648 12,596 13,990 106,165
Additions 240 267 2,583 3471 2425 8,986
Disposals (1,710) (285) (3,027) (142) (1,307) (6471)
Transfers 1717 - - (1,860) 143 -
Translation differences 1,802 48 105 2,152

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:

196 1

31 December 2014 382 1419 16434 = 8,366 26,601
Charge 858 300 1,734 - 1,443 4,335
Disposals (219) (222) (1,195) = (1,214) (2,850)

127

Translation differences

77 33 47 284
NET BOOK VALUE:

*Transfers to/from Otherassets.
**During 2016, the Bank finished the construction of its property and moved its Head Office to 40 Al-Farabi Avenue, Aimaty.

The Group'srevaluation policy requires the entire asset class of buildings and construction to be revalued every three years. In the event of significant changesin specific
marketor property indicators, the Group may opt to performrevaluations moreregularly.

The Group hadits buildingsand properties revalued during 2016 by independentappraisers. Theindependentappraisers used three approaches toidentify the fairvalue
of the property and equipment-theincome approach with the income capitalisation method, the comparative approach, using marketinformation toidentify the fair
value of buildings and structures underactive market conditions,and the costapproach when no active market existed foritems subject torevaluation.
Asat31December2017,the fairvalue measurements of the Group's buildings and construction, are categorisedinto Level 2and Level 3,inthe amount of KZT 75,562
millionand KZT 35,065 million, respectively (31 December2016:KZT 77,256 millionand KZT 114 million, respectively; 31 December2015:KZT 55,249 millionand KZT 76
million, respectively). Adescription of the measurement hierarchyis disclosedin Note 37.

Asat31December2017,the total fairvalue of buildings and construction was KZT 110,627 million. Asat 31 December 2017, the carryingamount of property and
equipmentthatwouldhave beenrecognised hadtheassets been carried underthe cost modelis KZT 95,855 million.
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15.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movementsinintangible assets are as follows:

Software Licensing Customer Other Total
agreements for | deposit i i
the right to use § intangibles
the software

COST:
Additions 1,779 2,226
Disposals (338) ) - (273) 618)

Translation differences 187
Additions 1,879 1221 3434
Disposals 92) (13) = (243) (348)

Translation differences  (16)

Additions 1,191 1,054 2479
Disposals (26) (159) - (58) (243)
Transfers 815 (19) - (796) -
;{Oercslzf;iﬁed as held (2,530) = (2.226) = (4,756)
Acquisition through ) 1,033 - 764 3,199
business combination ! ’
Translation differences 28 4 = 2 34

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION:

1,988

Charge 1,523

Disposals (254) - - - (254)
Translation differences 163 23 - - 186
(31December20ts 692 171646 0 lems
Charge 1,675 540 445 = 2,660
Disposals (84) - - - (84)
Translation differences 4 5 = = 9

Charge 3,554
Disposals (25) (41) - - (66)
Reclassified as held ~ ~

for sale (933) (931) (1,864)

Translation differences 18

B T R [ R
NET BOOK VALUE:

1,740

1,295
16.ASSETSHELD FORSALE

31 DECEMBER 2015
31 DECEMBER 2016
After the default of some counterparties on loans to customers, the Group recognised the
property pledged as collateral for those loans as assets held for sale at fair value. The assets
have been subsequently measured at the lower of fair value less disposal costs or the carrying
value, as the Group's management of the appropriate level committed to a plan to sell the
assets and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan was initiated.

31 DECEMBER 2017

Assetsheldforsale comprisedthefollowing:

31 December 31 December 31 December

Assets classified as held for sale related to JSC Altyn Bank 391 445

Land plots 114,267 8,962 10432
Real estate 43,290 1335 973
Movable property 3,403

TOTAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

552,405
334,627

InOctober 2017, the Group performed anindependent valuation of its assets held
forsaleandbased on the results recognised animpairmentloss of KZT 4,978 million.

InNovember 2016, the Group performed anindependentvaluation of its assets held
forsaleand based ontheresults recognised animpairmentloss of KZT 1,564 million.

Despite the Group actively marketing these assets for sale, the majority have not been sold
within a short timeframe. However, the management remains committed to the sale of
these assets. As the assets are carried at a price not exceeding the current fair value less costs
to sell, they continued to be classified as held for sale at the end 0f 2017, 2016 and 2015.
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The fairvalue of the Group's non-current assets held for sale was determined by
independent appraisers.Income approach, comparative approach and cost based
approach were used to estimate the fair value of those non-current assets. To estimate
the fairvalue of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

Details of the Group'sassets held for sale and information about the fair value
hierarchyasat31December2017,2016and 2015 are as follows:

I [T T
31 DECEMBER 2015

Land plots - 10432
Real estate 968 5

Land plots - 8,962
Real estate 507 828
Land plots - 114,267
Real estate 23,657 19,633
Movable property - 3,403

The major classes of assets and liabilities of JSC Altyn Bank as at 31 December 2017
were as follows:

31 December
2017

Cash and cash equivalents 149,170
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7
Available-for-sale investment securities 115,715
Loans to customers 115,955
Property, equipment and intangible assets 5252
Goodwill 1,869
Other assets 3477
e EEETE
Amounts due to customers 318,900
Amounts due to credit institutions 12,624
Other liabilities 3,103

NET ASSETS OF JSC ALTYN BANK CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

The combined results of the discontinued operations of JSSC Altyn Bankincluded in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss are set out below:

Year ended
31 December
2015

Year ended Year ended

31 December § 31 December
2017 2016

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE IMPAIRMENT CHARGE 12616 11,942 6,942
Recovery of provisions/(impairment charge) 361 (372) (837)
Fee and commission income 1,743 1,648 1,390
Fee and commission expense (988) (796) (687)

Net gain/(loss) from financial assets and liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss 1474 952) (5,600
Net realized gain/(loss) from available-for-sale

investment securities 2 ©

Net foreign exchange gain 1,056 4,117 12,237
Other income 42 5 337
Operating expenses (6,286) (6,400) (5410)
(Other provisions)/recovery of other provisions (34 22 9
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9,984 11,697 8,369
Income tax expense (108) (784) (1,639)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS
Year ended Year ended Year ended
CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS: 31 December § 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Net cash inflow from operating activities 17,805 14,322 149,746

Net cash outflow from investing activities (68,973) (26,375) (18,842)

Net cash flow from financing activities

NET CASH OUTFLOW m (9,539) _
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17.INSURANCE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Insurance assets comprised the following:

7 5

Unearned reinsurance premium 17,893 15,519 12,859

Reinsurance amounts 8,987 2,294 1,557
I [1ome |

Premiums receivable 13,282 10,541 9,441

Insurance liabilities comprised the following:

31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Reserves for insurance claims 99,597 33731 24,797

Gross unearned insurance premium reserve 29172 23,120 19,043
T [so0s1 |

Payables to reinsurers and agents 10,774 7523 7,143

INSURANCE LIABI ES* m 50,983

*Including acquisition of insurance liabilities through business combination forKZT 67,767 million as at 31
December2017.

INSURANCERISK

The Group establishes underwriting guidelines and limits, which stipulate the
approval process forrisks and their limits. These limits are being continuously
monitored. The Group'sdirectinsurance businessis spread throughout the
Republic ofKazakhstan.The Group's reinsurance portfoliois diversified in terms of
geographical spreadandinterms of lines of business.

CLAIMS MANAGEMENT RISK

Theriskthatclaimsare handled or paidinappropriatelyismanaged usingarange
of ITsystem controlsand manual processes conducted by experienced staff. These,
togetherwitharange of detailed policiesand procedures, ensure thatall claimsare
handledinatimely,appropriateandaccurate manner.

REINSURANCERISK

Reinsuranceis usedto protectagainstthe impact of major catastrophic eventsor

unforeseenvolumes of, oradversetrendsin, large individual claimsand to transfer
riskthatisoutside the Group's currentriskappetite.

Reinsurance of riskabove the Group's appetite is only effective ifthe reinsurance
premiumiseconomicand the counterpartyisfinancially secure.

The Group evaluates the financial strengths of its reinsurers and monitors the
concentration of credit risks arising from similar geographic regions, activities, or
economic characteristics of the reinsurers to minimise its exposure to significant
lossesfromreinsurerinsolvencies.

RESERVINGRISK

Thereisariskthatreservesareassessedincorrectlyandthereare notenoughfunds
to payorhandleclaimsastheyfall due.Toestimateinsurance and reinsurance
liabilities, the Group usesactuarial methodsandassumptions set by NBRK.

CREDITRISKIN RESPECT TO INSURANCE

The Groupis exposed to creditrisk, which isthe risk that one party toafinancial
instrumentwill fail todischarge an obligation and cause the other party toincura
financialloss.The Group structures the level of creditriskitundertakes by placing
limitsontheamountofriskacceptedinrelationtoone debtor, orgroups of debtors
and geographical segments. Limits on the level of credit risk by adebtorand
reinsurerare approved by the NBRKon aregular basis. Such risks are monitored
continuouslyandare subjecttoanannual ormore frequentreassessment.

The movementson claimsreservesfortheyearsended 31 December2017,2016
and 2015, wereasfollows:

2017 2016 2015
Net reserves for claims, beginning of the year 31437 23,240 16,139
Plus claims incurred 48615 24,799 22,793
Less claims paid (27,282) (16,602) (15,692)

Plus acquisition of reserves through business combination 37,840 = =

RESERVES FOR CLAIMS, END OF THE YEAR 99,597 33,731 24,797
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The movements on unearned insurance premium reserve for the years ended
31 December2017,2016and 2015, were as follows:

Gross unearned insurance premium reserve,

beginning of the year 23,120 19,043 15,105
Unearned insurance premium reserve, reinsurance

share, beginning of the year (15519) (12,859) (10:420)

Change in unearned insurance premium reserve 6,052 4,077 3,938
Change in unearned insurance premium reserve,

reinsurance share (2374) (2,660 (2439)
Net uneamed insurance premium reserve, end of the year 11,279 7,601 6,184
Unearned insurance premium reserve, reinsurance 17.893 15519 12.859

share, end of the year
GROSS UNEARNED INSURANCE PREMIUM 29,172
RESERVE, END OF THE YEAR ’

18.0THERASSETS

Otherassets comprise:

31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS RECORDED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH IAS 39:

Debtors on banking activities* 33,084 8,397 8,171

Debtors on non-banking activities 13,037 1,212 1,802

Accrued commission income 4,895 1,652 806

Other 363 12 15
I

Less - Allowance for impairment (Note 22) (5,921) (4,516) (4,568)

I T

OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Prepayments for investment property** 11816 7,559 -
Advances for taxes other than income tax 3,767 1,077 753
Prepayments for property and equipment 1,679 1,263 7,601
Inventory 1,335 1323 1,039
Other investments 1335 168 65
Other 3,621 2443 3,082

22,671 13,833 12,540
68,129 20,590 18,766

* Debtors on banking activities represent debtors on sale of assets in installments recorded on the books
ofthe Group as a result of KKB acquisition.

** Asat31 December 2017 and 2016, the Bank made prepayments for investment property, which
subsequently will be transferred to the subsidiary.

19. AMOUNTS DUETO CUSTOMERS

Amounts due to customersinclude the following:

31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

RECORDED AT AMORTISED COST:

TERM DEPOSITS:

Individuals 2,691,886 1,470,536 1,276,609

Legal entities 1,705,971 1,267,589 868,833
] (2165002

TERM DEPOSITS:

Individuals 1,321,530 837,625 701,468

Legal entities 412,363 244912 196,821

1,733,893 1,082,537 898,289

6,131,750 3,820,662 043,731
Asat31December2017,the Group'stenlargest groups of related customers
accounted forapproximately 32% of the total amounts due to customers (31
December2016-32%;31 December2015-28%), where each group of related
customersrepresentscustomersrelated to each otherwithin thatgroup.

As at 31 December 2017, amounts due to customers included amounts held as collateral of KZT
83,501 million (31 December 2016 — KZT 19648 miillion, 31 December 2015 — KZT 25,105 million).

Managementbelievesthatinthe eventof withdrawal of funds, the Group would
begivensufficientnoticesoastorealiseitsliquidassetstoenable repayment.
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An analysis of customer accounts by sector is as follows:

31 December § % 31 December § % 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Individuals and entrepreneurs 3,104,249 51% 1,715448 45% 1473430 48%
Oil and gas 712,840 12% 743,744 19% 604,738 20%
Government 489,422 8% 86,162 2% 20,309 1%
Metallurgy 358,939 6% 77,103 2% 48,406 1%
Other consumer services 208,610 4% 171,245 5% 142,768 5%
Wholesale trade 199,766 3% 166,918 4% 151,395 5%
Construction 138,326 2% 81,13 2% 82,841 3%
Healthcare and social services 129,962 2% 61,184 2% 65434 2%
Transportation 125,828 2% 185,039 5% 131,926 4%
Financial sector 90,204 2% 215,936 6% 112,462 4%
Education 86,508 1% 35723 1% 23,547 1%
Communication 81,260 1% 52,550 1% 15,714 1%
Energy 44,568 1% 33,729 1% 45,280 1%
'fnsn‘gsaggg‘z';f Reteion 17,779 0% 13281 0% 8368 0%

Other 343,489 6% 5% 17,113 4%

181,487
20.AMOUNTSDUETO CREDITINSTITUTIONS

Amounts due to credit institutions comprise:

31 December § 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

RECORDED AT AMORTISED COST:

foarsanddeppic fombazsnionks  qosies  om s
lEolz'a]nsgrcbm JSC Entrepreneurship Development 79,971 36,552 32,882
ul

Loans from JSC Development Bank of Kazakhstan 37434 21,372 19,365
Correspondent accounts 23953 27,882 8420
Loans from JSC National Managing Holding KazAgro 3,869 38,534 41,866
Loans and deposits from non-OECD based banks 2,227 7,109 8
Loans from other financial institutions 2,148 2,903 1,791
Loans and deposits from OECD based banks 383 5,858 6,976
Overnight deposits 3,005

As at 31 December 2017, loans from JSC Entrepreneurship Development Fund DAMU
("DAMU") included long-term loans of KZT 79,566 million at a 1.0%-4.5% interest rate
maturing in 2018-2035 with an early recall option (31 December 2016 — KZT 36,367
million, 31 December 2015 — KZT 32,721 million). These loans were received in
accordance with the Government program ("the Program"”) to finance small and medium
enterprises ("SME") operating in certain industries. According to the loan agreements
between DAMU and the Group, the Group is responsible to extend loans to SME
borrowers, eligible to participate in the Program, up to 10 years ata 6.0% interest rate.

Asat31December2017,loans from JSC Development Bank of Kazakhstan ("DBK")
included long-term loans of KZT 32,012 million (31 December 2016 - KZT 16,000
million, 31 December 2015 - KZT 16,000 million) ata 2.0%-7.9% interest rate
maturingin 2019-2035, to finance corporate enterprises operating in manufacturing
industries, as wellasalong-termloan of KZT 5,300 million (31 December 2016 - KZT
5,300 million, 31 December 2015 —-KZT 3,300 million) ata 1.0% interest rate maturing
in 2035, to finance the purchase of cars by the Group's retail customers. According to
theloan agreement between DBKand the Group, the Group s responsible to extend
loansto corporate borrowers, eligible to participate in the Program, up to 10 years at
a6.0% interest rate, and to retail borrowers — up to 5 years at a4.0% interest rate.

Asat 31 December 2017, loans from JSC National Managing Holding KazAgro ("KazAgro")
included a long-term loan of KZT 3,865 million at a 3.0% interest rate maturing in 2022 (31
December 2016 - KZT 38,483 million, 31 December 2015 —KZT 41,810 million). The loan
was received for restructuring/refinancing of loan/leasing debts of the Bank's borrowers
operating in the agricultural sector, originating before 1 January 2014 in connection with
working capital loans, loans for the purchase of fixed assets, loans for construction-and-
assembling works and loans for leasing of agriculture and technology equipment.
Restructuring/refinancing of loan/leasing obligations is provided at an interest rate of
6.0%- 7.0% for the period not later than 31 December 2022.

On 3 July 2017, the Group made an early repayment of its indebtedness to KazAgro for
KZT 31,873 million due to exclusion of several loans from KazAgro financing programme.

The managementofthe Group believes that there are no other similarfinancial
instrumentsand dueto theirspecific nature, the loans from DAMU, KazAgroand
DBKrepresentseparate segmentsin corporate, SME and retaillending. Asaresult,
theloansfrom DAMU, KazAgro and DBK were receivedinan orderly transaction
andassuchhave beenrecorded atfairvalue atthe recognition date, which was
determinedtobethe cash consideration transferred tothe customers.
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Interest rates and maturities of amounts due to credit institutions are as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Interest Maturity, [ Interest Maturity, Interest i
rate, % year rate, % year rate, %

1.0%-9.5% 2018 8.8%-11.1% 2017 32%-11.4% 2016

Loans and deposits from
Kazakhstan banks (incl.
loans under repurchase
agreements)

Loans from JSC
Entrepreneurship
Development Fund DAMU
Loans from JSC
Development Bank 1.0%-79% 2019-2035 1.0%-2.0% 2034-2035 1.0%-2.0% 2016-2035
of Kazakhstan

Loans from JSC National
Managing Holding KazAgro 3.0% 2022 3.0% 2019-2022 3.0% 2019-2022

Loans and deposits from . ~ ~
Nnon-OECD based banks 1.0%-95% 2018-2022 1.0%-10.0% 2017-2021 0.7%-7.0% 2016-2017

10%-4.5% 2018-2035 2.0% 2017-2035 2.0% 2016-2035

Loans from other 9610 (10 . 0_¢ 90
financialinstitutions 10.0% 2023 5.0%-10.0% 2017-2023 4.8%-62% 2016
Loans and deposits from § §

OECD based banks 3.1% 2018 26%-6.5% 2017-2023 1.1%-6.5% 2016-2023
Overnight deposits = = = = 60.0% 2016

Thefairvalue ofassets pledged (Note 10) and the carrying value of loansincluded
inloansand deposits from Kazakhstan banks underrepurchase agreementsasat
31 December2017,2016and 2015, areas follows:

- 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Fair value [ Carrying Fair value [ Carrying Fair value [ Carrying
of collateral§ amount of collateral§ amount of collateral§ amount
of loans of loans of loans

Treasury bills of the
92,719 90,046 15,201 15,009 51,763 45,242

Ministry of Finance of
Kazakhstan

I CITN T (I T R

Details of transferred financial assets thatare notderecognisedin theirentirety as
at31December2017,2016and 2015 aredisclosed below.

Loansunderrepurchase agreementsare used by the Group to provide current
cashflowsin KZT withinthe Group's operating activities. The Group regularly uses
thistype ofinstrumenttoattract short-termliquidity and plans to continue raising
fundsthroughloansunderrepurchaseagreementswhennecessary.

The Group has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these
securities, which include credit risk and market risk, and therefore it has not derecognised
them.Inaddition, it recognises a financial liability for cash received as collateral.

Investments
?’\\igltlglgiloe)-for-sale

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017:

Carrying amount of transferred assets 92,719

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 90,046

Carrying amount of transferred assets 15,201

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 15,009

Carrying amount of transferred assets 51,763

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 45,242

In accordance with the contractual terms of the loans from certain OECD based banks,
the Group is required to maintain certain financial ratios, particularly with regard to
capital adequacy. Certain of the Group's outstanding financing agreements include
covenants restricting the Group's ability to create security interests over its assets.
Should the Group default under these covenants, this could result in cross-accelerations
and cross-defaults under the terms of the Group's other financing arrangements.

The Group'smanagement believesthatasat31December2017,2016and 2015,
the Group wasin compliance with the covenants of the agreements the Group has
withthetrusteesand holdersofthe notes.

21.DEBT SECURITIESISSUED

Debt securities issued comprise:

31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

RECORDED AT AMORTISED COST:

SUBORDINATED DEBT SECURITIES ISSUEI

KZT denominated bonds, fixed rate 77,330 - 4,989
USD denominated bonds, floating rate 18,776 - -
KZT denominated bonds, indexed to inflation 12,976 - -
KZT denominated bonds, indexed to reverse inflation - 4,051

UNSUBORDINATED DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED:

USD denominated bonds 464,435 359,355 363,829
KZT denominated bonds 388526 225578 224,656
RUB denominated bonds

TOTAL DEBT SECURITIES OUTSTANDING 962,396 584,933 597,525
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On3May2017,the Group repaidin full at maturityits 10-year 7.25% coupon rate
USD 638,029,000 Eurobondissue.

On 9 November2016,the Group made avoluntary prepayment of KZT 5,000
million subordinated bondsissuedinaccordance with the legislation of the
Republicof Kazakhstan withinitial maturityin 2018, bearing a coupon of 13%.

On 25 April 2016, the Group made a repayment of KZT 4,000 million 10-year
subordinated reverse inflation indexed local bond issued in accordance with the
legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, bearing a coupon of 15% minusinflation rate.

In2015andin 2014, the Bank placed unsubordinated bonds forKZT 131,652 million
andKZT 100,000.Both bonds areissued as per Kazakhstan legislation, beara coupon
of 7.5% and maturein February 2025 and November 2024, respectively. The Group
plansto utilise the raised funds to diversifyits liabilities and for customer lending.

The couponratesand maturities of these debt securitiesissued are as follows:
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Coupon Maturity, [ Coupon i Coupon Maturi
rate, % year rate, % rate, % year
SUBORDINATED DEBT
SECURITIES ISSUED:

KZT denominated bonds,
fixed rate 9.5% 2025 - - 13% 2018

USD denominated bonds,
floating rate

KZT denominated bonds, 1%-+Inflation
indexed to inflation rate 20201

KZT denominated bonds, R B R 15% less 2016
indexed to reverse inflation inflation rate

SECURITIES ISSUED:

USD denominated bonds  5.5%-85% 2018-2022 7.3% 2017-2021  7.3% 2017-2021
KZT denominated bonds ~ 7.5%-88%  2019-2025 7.5% 2024-2025 7.5% 2024-2025
RUB denominated bonds  5.5%-12.0% 2019 = = - -

Libor+6.2% perpetual

As at 31 December 2017, accrued interest on debt securities issued was KZT 10,754 million
(asat 31 December 2016 - KZT 11,894 million, as at 31 December 2015 - KZT 11,990 million).

Subordinated securities are unsecured obligations of the Group and are
subordinatedin rightof paymentstoall presentand future seniorindebtedness
and certain otherobligations of the Group. Coupon payments on debtsecurities
issued are payable onasemi-annualandanannual basis.

Inaccordance with the terms of the USD denominated bonds, the Group is required to
maintain certain financial covenants, particularly with regard to its capital adequacy,
limitations on transactions at less than fair market value and payment of dividends.
Furthermore, the terms of the USD denominated bonds include covenants restricting
the Group's ability to create security interests over its assets. Should the Group default
under these covenants, this could result in cross-accelerations and cross-defaults under
the terms of the Group's other financing arrangements. The Group's management
believes thatasat 31 December 2017,2016 and 2015, the Group was in compliance with
the covenants of the agreements the Group has with trustees and holders of the notes.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes

Acqu
ry| excha nge momsed Decem ber
Note 5) movement l cost 017

Debt securities issued 584,933 (197,892) 579,662 (2671) (1,636) 962,396

1 January Financing
017 cash flows
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22, ALLOWANCES FORIMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND
PROVISIONS

The movements in accumulated impairment of available-for-sale investment securities,
the allowances forimpairment of interest earned and other assets were as follows:

Other Total
assets
(Note 18)

Loans
to customers

(Note 11)

Amounts due il Available-for-
from credit sale investment]
institutions securities
(Note 9) (Note 10)

Additional provisions

recognised (155,285) @ (4311) - (159,603)
Recoveries of provisions 147,346 - 140 - 147,486
Write-offs 46,584 - 594 133 47,311
Foreign exchange

differences (57,741) (72) (404) (58,217)
Additional provisions

recognised (156489) 18) (740) (6,248) (163,495)
Recoveries of provisions 130,616 25 1,523 5,651 137,815
Write-offs 44,793 - 866 351 46,010
Foreign exchange _

e 1,442 a7) 298 1,723
Additional provisions

recognised (334/456) (200) (495) (14,250) (349,401)
Recoveries of provisions 269,246 9 1,636 11,118 282,099
Write-offs 37215 101 388 2,064 39,768
Disposal of a subsidiary 2,603 - = 7 2,610
Foreign exchange

differences (7,017) (98) (344) (7,459)

During the years ended 31 December 2017,2016 and 2015, the Group has written-off
loans of KZT 37,215 million, KZT 44,793 million, and KZT 46,584 million, respectively,
without this being considered as forgiveness of the loan, therefore, for tax purposes,
such write-offs are not subject to corporate income tax.

Provision represents provisions against letters of credit and guarantees issued.The
movementsin provisions were as follows:

I
At the beginning of the year (987) (982) (407)
Provisions (2,810) (878) (999)
Recoveries of provisions 4,547 856 640
Acquisition of a subsidiary* (17,336) o o
Disposal of a subsidiary 501 - -

Write-offs 50 o -
Foreign exchange differences (216)

AT THE END OF THE YEAR (16,098) (987) _

* Provision created by KKB against guarantees prior to the acquisition date, 5 July 2017.

23.TAXATION

TheBankandits subsidiaries, otherthan JSCNBK-Bank, OJSC Halyk Bank Kyrgyzstan,
JSCHalyk Bank Georgia, CJSC KazkommertsbankTajikistan and JSC Commercial
Bank Moskommertsbank, are subject to taxation in Kazakhstan.JSC NBK-Bankand
JSCCommercial Bank Moskommertsbankare subject toincome taxin the Russian
Federation. OJSCHalyk BankKyrgyzstanis subject toincome taxin the Republic of
Kyrgyzstan.JSC Halyk Bank Georgia is subject toincome tax in Georgia. CJSC
KazkommertsbankTajikistan is subjecttoincome taxin the Republic of Tajikistan.

Theincometaxexpense comprises:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December § 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Current tax charge 38817 36,205 4,695

Deferred income tax (benefit)/expense relating to
origination and reversal of temporary differences* (1221 22 27

* Recalculated due to presentation of JSC Altyn Bank as discontinued operations. For further reference,
please seenote 16.
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Deferred income tax (benefit)/expense relating to temporary differences is as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Unused tax losses of the prior year recognised in ~ 3,531
the current year -

Property and equipment, accrued depreciation 1,676 3,007 (715)
f:irs\élaelue of derivatives and investments available (14608) (18,546) 156
Loans to customers, allowance for impairment losses  (258) (1,975) 519
Tax loss carry forward - - (3531
Deferred tax related to acquisition through business 1638 _ _
combination ’

Other (1,667) (39) (713)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (BENEFIT)/EXPENSE (13,219) (14,022) m

Thetax rate for Kazakhstan companies was 20% during the years ended 31 December
2017,2016and 2015.Income on state and other qualifying securities is tax exempt.

Thetaxratesinthe Russian Federation, the Republic of Kyrgyzstan, Georgiaand the
Republic of Tajikistan are 20%, 10%, 15% and 23%, respectively.

The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory income tax rates. A
reconciliation oftheincome tax expense based on the Kazakhstan statutory rate of
20% with thereported income tax expense s as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December il 31 December f 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Income before income tax expense 189,185 142,682 143,993
Sawoytmcste w0k %

Income tax expense at the statutory rate 37,837 28,536 28,799

Toeome ok Stoe and Ger qumilying secures (14233 (0109 819

Income of subsidiaries taxed at different rates (299) (93) (30)

Income on dividends taxed at emitter (66) (56) 72)

Tax-exempt interest income on financial lease 3) @) (35)

NON-DEDUCTIBLE EXPENDITURES:

- other provisions 609 118 2,570

- charity 328 127 100

- general and administrative expenses 202 127 197

Other 1,223 2,540 1,697

Deferred tax assets and liabilities comprise:

31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

TAX EFFECT OF DEDUCTIBLE TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES:

Tax loss carry forward* 45491 408 3,531
Bonuses accrued 3,246 1,821 1,936
Fair value of derivatives 1334 1,737 1,305
Vacation pay accrual 474 361 349
Other 2439 19 113
s ams B4
TAX EFFECT OF TAXABLE TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES:
Fair value adjustment on customer accounts* (43,633) =
Property and equipment, accrued depreciation (12,740) (8,400) (5,054)
Allowance for loans to customers (3,920) (3,895) (3,966)
Fair value of derivatives and investments available-for-sale  (744) (13,929) (31,260)
Core deposit intangible (258) (348)
Other (214) (2,049)

219)
NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (8,272) m m

* Amounts recorded on the books of the Group as a result of KKB acquisition

Currentincome tax assets and liabilities comprise:
31 December § 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015
Current income tax refund receivable 15,320 3222 16,469
Current income tax payable (2,720) (3311) (379)

CURRENT INCOME TAX ASSET/(LIABILITY) (12600 [ 9 16,090

The Group has offset deferred tax assets and liabilities on the consolidated statement of
financial position where a right of offset existed. The amounts presented after offset comprise:

I i i F

Deferred tax asset 517 831
Deferred tax liability (8,789) (23,181) (37,362)

NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (8,272) EE B
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Kazakhstan and other countries where the Group operates currently have anumber of
laws related to various taxes imposed by both state and regional government
authorities. Applicable taxes include value added tax, income tax, social taxes, and others.
Implemented regulations are often unclear or nonexistent and few precedents have
been established. Often, differing opinions regarding legal interpretation exist both
among and within government ministries and organisations; thus creating uncertainties
and areas of conflict. Tax declarations, together with other legal compliance areas (for
example, customs and currency control matters) are subject to review and investigation
by a number of authorities, which are enabled by law to impose severe fines, penalties
and interest charges. These facts create substantially more significant tax risks in
Kazakhstan than typically found in countries with more developed tax systems.

Commercial legislation of the countries where the Group operates, including tax legislation,
may allow more than one interpretation. In addition, there is a risk of tax authorities making
arbitrary judgments of business activities. If a particular treatment, based on management's
judgment of the Group's business activities, was to be challenged by the tax authorities, the
Group may be assessed additional taxes, penalties and interest.

Such uncertainty may relate to the valuation of financial instruments and the market
pricing of deals. Additionally, such uncertainty may relate to the valuation of temporary
differences on the provision and recovery of the provision forimpairment losses on
loansto customersand receivables, as an underestimation of the taxable profit.

In Kazakhstan, tax years remain open for review by the tax authorities for five years.
However, tax authorities may perform additional reviews, if considered necessary. In
accordance with judicial rulings, the period of review can be altered, if the court
acknowledges the fact of interdiction to conducting the tax review by the tax authorities.
Managementbelieves thatthe Groupisin compliance with the tax laws affecting
its operations; however, the riskthat relevant authorities could take differing
positionswithregard tointerpretive issuesremains.

Movementsin net deferred tax liability:

2017 2016 2015

Net deferred tax liability at the beginning of the year 22,350 35443 10,226
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense (13,219) (13,543) 24,869
Deferred tax related to acquisition through (1,638) ~ ~
business combination

Deferred tax related to disposal of a subsidiary 557 = s

Credited to other comprehensive income at the
date of property and equipment revaluation

Deferred tax on core deposit intangible

NET DEFERRED BILITY AT THE END OF THE YEAR f§ 8,272 m m

222 192 -

24, OTHERLIABILITIES

Other liabilities comprise:

31 December ff 31 December f§ 31 ember
2017 2016 2015

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

Salary payable 18,240 11,205 10,790
Liabilities on preferred shares* 12,149 - -
Creditors on bank activities 7,539 800 488
Creditors on non-banking activities 5250 782 299
Settlements on card transactions 4318 = =
Payable for general and administrative expenses 1,994 612 779
Others 883 583 375

OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

Amounts due to original investors on commerdial property 9,589 2,271 4,050
Taxes payable other than income tax 4,088 2,832 2,183
Other prepayments received 2,369 1,382 1,233

16,046 6,485 7,466
TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 66,419 20,467 20,197

* Preferred shares containing a liability componentand assuming obligatory dividend payment of a
predetermined guaranteed size.

25.EQUITY

The numberof sharesauthorised,issued and fully paid asat 31 December2017,2016
and 2015, were asfollows:
Share capital

31 December [ Share capital
2017 authorised i
and not

Fully paid and [ Share capital Outstan

authonsed issued share repurchased shares
capital
Common 25,000,000,000 (12311 142941) 12,688,857,059 (1,695,040,240) 10,993,816.819
31 De(ember Share capital Share capital Fully paid and [ Share capital Outstanding
authorised aut horised issued share repurchased shares
and not issued |} capital
Common 25,000,000,000 (12311,142941) 12,688857,059 (1,695,237,728) 10,993,619,331
31 December [ Share capital Share capital Fully paid and [ Share capital Ou(s(andlng
2015 authorised authorised issued share repurchased
and not issued j} capital
Common 24,000,000,000 (12,871481,549) 11,128518451 (219,067,900)  10,909,450,551
Non-convertible
preferred 600,000,000 (290,140,570) 309,859,430 (289,415,498) 20,443,932
Convertible
preferred 80,225,222 = 80,225,222 (79,855,667) 369,555

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
AND 2015




158

All shares are KZT denominated. Movements of shares outstanding are as follows:

IMBER OF SHARES NOMINAL (PLACEMENT)

Convertibleff Common § Non-
i convertible preferred
preferred preferred

-

Purchase of treasury shares  (8,746,220) (93050844)  (79,740576) (9) (13,024) (11,156)
Sale of treasury shares 8,298,058 4193831 248,731 8

Purchase of treasury shares  (10,713,210) -

Sale of treasury shares 10,328,198 - - 481 - -
Exchange of preferred

shares fo common shares 84,553,792 (20443932) (369,555)  (3,077) 5154 (2,077)
Purchase of treasury shares (4,925,498) - (1,675) -

Sale of treasury shares 5,122,986 -

On 22 April 2016, at the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting, the Bank's
shareholdersdecided toexchange the non-convertible preferred sharesand the
convertible preferred shares forcommon shares of the Group.The exchange was
performedinaccordance withthetermsand conditionsapproved by the General
Shareholderson 22 April 2016, as wellas,inaccordance with the Bank's Charter
andchangestotheBank'sCommon Sharelssuance Prospectusregistered by the
NBRKon 16 May 2016.The exchange aimed to optimise the Group's capital
structure withinthe frameworkofthe currentKazakhstan legislation.

COMMON SHARES

Asat 31 December2017,2016 and 2015, share capital comprised KZT 143,695 million.
Asat31December 2017, the Group held 1,695,040,240 shares of the Group's common
shares astreasury shares for KZT 104,234 million (31 December 2016 - 1,695,237,728
forKZT 103,121 million, 31 December 2015 -219,067,900 for KZT 103,175 million).

Eachcommonshare outstandingis entitled toone vote and dividends. Treasury
sharesarenotentitledtoanyvote ordividends.

Dividends paidforthe previousfinancial years were as follows:

Paidin 2017 J Paidin 2016
for the year for the year
ended

Paid in 2015
for the year

ended
31 December
2014

31 December
2015

Dividend paid per one preferred share, (convertible
and non-convertible), tenge

Dividend paid per one common share n/a n/a 314

1344

SHARE PREMIUM RESERVE
Share premium reserve represents an excess of contributions received over the
nominalvalue of sharesissued.

26. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Group'sfinancial commitmentsand contingencies comprise the following:

31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Guarantees issued 300,565 173,226 186,306
Commercial letters of credit 70,454 27,026 17,064
Commitments to extend credit 59,056 15,445 35,178

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, NET g 204,676 218,891

Guaranteesissued represent bank guaranteesissued by the Group by order of its
clients,and which arein effect as at the reporting date. As at 31 December 2017,
uncovered guarantees issued for the ten largest groups of customers/groups of
customers accounted for 46% of the Group's total financial guarantees (31
December 2016 —-70%; 31 December 2015 - 74%) and represented 15% of the
Group'stotal equity (31 December 2016 -18%;31 December 2015 -26%).

Commercial letters of credit represent letters of credit issued by the Group by order of its clients,
and under which, as at the reporting date, the payment has not yet been made. As at 31
December 2017, the ten largest unsecured letters of credit accounted for 44% of the Group's
total commercial letters of credit (31 December 2016 - 61%; 31 December 2015 — 93%) and
represented 3% of the Group's total equity (31 December 2016 — 2%; 31 December 2015 — 3%).
The Group requires collateral to support credit-related financial instruments, when it
is deemed necessary. The Group typically requires collateral support unlessitis
determined to be not necessary through a review of the credit risk of the borrower or
an analysis of other deposit accounts held by the Group. Collateral held varies, but
may include deposits held with banks, government securities and other assets.

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
AND 2015




159

CAPITALCOMMITMENTS

Asat31December2017,the Group had capital expenditures commitmentsin
respectofconstructionin progressforKZT 2,480 million (31 December 2016 -KZT
157 million; 31 December2015-KZT7,861 million).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

There were no material operating lease commitments underirrevocable
operatingleasesoutstandingasat31December2017,2016and 2015.

27.NETINTERESTINCOME
_ S S S
31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015
INTEREST INCOME COMPRISES:

f\ijr\ntien:;satiirre\(cjoan;seettzsr\ individually assessed 166,058 142,556 101,951
- interest income on collectively assessed assets 151,460 109,418 94,556
- interest income on individually assessed impaired assets 50,442 31,587 26,883

Interest income on available-for-sale investment securities 129,637 22,996 20,581

Interest income on financial assets at fair value 8731 26,006 69

through profit or loss

INTEREST INCOME ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
RECORDED AT AMORTISED COST:

Interest income on loans to customers 343,79 268,989 219,584
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents and 24164 12170 3806

amounts due from credit institutions
1,201

Interest income on held to maturity investments. -

TOTAL INTEREST INCOME ON FINANCIAL ASSETS 367,960
RECORDED AT AMORTISED COST "
INTEREST INCOME ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS:

Interest income on financial assets held for trading 8,731 26,006
Interest income on available-for-sale investment securities 129,637 20,581

TOTAL INTEREST INCOME oszs Joszses |

INTEREST EXPENSE COMPRISE:

Interest expense on financial liabilities recorded (257,805) (160,549) (100678)
at amortised cost ' g !

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE (257,805) (160,549) (100,678)

INTEREST EXPENSE ON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
RECORDED AT AMORTISED COST COMPRISE:

Interest expense on amounts due to customers (191,715) (108,838) (61,308)
Interest expense on debt securities issued 61,729 (45,822) (34,256)
Interest expense on amounts due to credit institutions  (4,361) (5,889) (5114)

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE IMPAIRMENT CHARGE m m

28.FEES AND COMMISSIONS

Feeand commissionincomeisderived from the following sources:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December § 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Payment cards maintenance 23332 11,116 9,430

Bank transfers - settlements 18,943 14,438 13,421 CONSOLIDATED

Cash operations 18,150 10353 9210 B IR STATEMENTS
Servicing customers' pension payments 7,776 6,953 5,867 AUDITORS' REPORT

Bank transfers - salary projects 7,261 6912 6,862 glogETC'_Ii:EAYB%ARRZSOIiy EZ’E?G
Letters of credit and guarantees issued 5,406 3818 3,124 AND 2015

Maintenance of customer accounts 3,006 1,884 1,496

Other 3,757 2,223 2,508

Fe e and commission expense is derived from the following sources:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December

2015
Payment cards (12,024) (2 001) (1,432
Deposit insurance (5,327) (4,697)
Bank transfers (593) (430
Foreign currency operations (557) 919)
Commission paid to collectors (427) (437)
Other (2,390) (2,235) HALYK
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29.NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprises:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December il 31 December § 31 December
016 15

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON OPERATIONS WITH

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED
AS HELD FOR TRADING:

Unrealised net gain/(loss) on derivative and

trading operations 19,468 (7,339) 157,326
Realised net gain on trading operations 11,162 112 33
Realised net gain/(loss) on derivative operations 793 (5,483) 40,571

TOTAL NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON OPERATIONS WITH
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SSIFIED
AS HELD FOR TRADING

187558

The unrealised gain on derivative and trading operationsin 2015 refers mainly to swap
agreements with NBRK for which the fair value increased significantly due to the
depreciation of the USDto KZT exchange rate.

30.NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSS)/GAIN

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain comprises:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December § 31 December I 31 December
017 2016 2015
Dealing, net 26,055 13935 1,864
Translation differences, net (31,004) 4,571 (175,123)

TOTAL NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSS)/GAIN (4,949) 18,506 7 9)

The net foreign exchange lossin 2015 is associated with the announcement by the
Kazakhstan Governmentand the NBRK on a transition to a new monetary policy
based on afree-floating KZT exchange rate, and cancellation of the currency corridor.

31.INSURANCE UNDERWRITING INCOME AND
EXPENSES

Insurance underwriting income and expenses comprises:

Year ended Year ended
31 December § 31 December
2016 2015

Year ended
31 December
2017

Total insurance underwriting income 55,108 28,071 25,574
Insurance payments (16,746) (9,907) (10,081)
Commissions to agents 17.713) (7,319) (5,855)
Insurance reserves (14,156) (7,573) 6,857)
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32.0OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses comprises:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

Salaries and other employee benefits 51,124 38,551 37,958
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9,692 6,169 5,663
Taxes other than income tax 7,038 3456 3,405
Professional services 4,895 564 651
Security 3,662 1,963 1,885
Rent 3512 1,734 1,570
Repair and maintenance 3,451 2,006 1,848
Information services 3314 2,219 1,380
Utilities 2,876 1,630 1457
Communication 2,829 1577 1,527
Insurance agents fees 1,888 489 569
Charity 1,643 639 509

Write-off and impairment of property and equipment,

intangible assets and investment property 1,555 654 271
Advertisement 1,481 759 1,201
Stationery and office supplies 1,249 892 691
Business trip expenses 958 590 696
Transportation 696 502 465
Social events 142 77 84
Hospitality expenses 81 77 110
Other 5,266 2,447 3455

33.EARNINGS PERSHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the netincome for the
year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
participating shares outstanding during the year.

According to Kazakhstan legislation on Joint Stock Companies, dividend
paymentsoncommon shares may not exceed dividend payments on preferred

shares forthe sameyear. Therefore, net profit forthe yearis allocated to the
ordinary sharesand the preferred sharesinaccordance with theirlegaland
contractual dividendrightsto participatein undistributed earnings.
Thefollowingtable presents basicand diluted earnings per share:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 20

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net income for the year attributable to equity

holders of the parent 173,362 131412 118913
Less: Dividends paid on preferred shares (333) (2,543)
Earnings for the year from continuing operations 163,587 120,499 113,582

Weighted average number of common shares for 10994491507 10960026244 10910049314

the purposes of basic earnings per share
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (IN TENGE)

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (IN TENGE)

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (IN TENGE)

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

11.96 10.67

10.99 10.41

1.00 0.62 CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND INDEPENDENT

Eamings used in the calculation of basic eamings per share 173,362 131,079 116,370 AUDITORS' REPORT
L . " FOR THE YEARS ENDED
Add: Dividends paid on convertible preferred shares - 9 1,078 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016

Less: Amounts payable to convertible preferred AND 2015

shareholders upon conversion (%) (6,091)

Earnings for the period from continuing operations 163,587 120,499 113,582

10994491507 10960026244 10910049314

Weighted average number of common shares for the
purposes of basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of common shares that

would be issued for the convertible preferred shares  ~ e Sl e

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (IN TENGE)

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (IN TENGE)

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (IN TENGE)
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Asrequired by KASE rules for listed companies, the book value of one share per
eachclassofsharesasat31December2017,2016and 2015, isdisclosed asfollows:

31 DECEMBER 2017

Class of shares Outstan Ec‘ as Book value
shares (] ed per | of one share,
KASE rules) in KZT
Common 10993816819 926,206 84.25

31 DECEMBER 2016

Class of shares Outstandi E Book value
shares cal

of one share,
in KZT
Common 10993619331 656,414 59.71

- 1 —
31 DECEMBER 2015

Class of shares Outstandi Ec‘ as Book value
shares cal ed per § of one share,
KASE rules) in KZT

Common 10909450551 523,109 4795
Non-convertible preferred 20443932 (3,975) (194.43)
Convertible preferred 369,555 2,135 5777.22

Equity attributable to non-convertible preferred shares is calculated as the sum of the
non-convertible shares carrying amount and the share premium reserve attributable
to the non-convertible preferred shares. Equity attributable to convertible preferred
sharesis calculated as the carrying amount of the convertible preferred shares. Equity
attributable to common shares is calculated as the difference between total equity,
total netbookvalue of intangible assets, and amounts attributable to preferred shares.
Themanagementofthe Group believesthatit fully complies with the requirement
of KASEasatthereporting dates.

34.FINANCIALRISKMANAGEMENT

Risk management is fundamental to the Group's banking business and is an essential element
of the Group's operations. The main risks inherent to the Group's operations are those related to:
m Creditrisk;

m  Liquidityrisk;and

m  Marketrisk.

The Group recognisesthatitis essential to have efficientand effective risk
management processesinplace.Toenablethis, the Grouphasestablishedarisk
managementframework,whose main purposeisto protectthe Group fromrisk
andallowittoachieveits performance objectives.Throughtheriskmanagement
framework, the Group managesthefollowing risks:

CREDITRISK

Creditriskistheriskoflossarising for the Group when a counterparty isunable to
meetitscontractual obligationsontime orinfull.

Therisk managementdivision playsanimportantrolein managingand
controlling the creditrisk. This divisionis responsible for credit riskidentification
andevaluationandimplementation of controland monitoring measures.The risk
managementdivision directly participatesin creditdecision making processes
andthe consideration of internal rules, regulationsandloan programs.In addition,
thedivision providesindependentrecommendations concerning creditexposure
minimisation measures, controlslimitsand monitors creditrisks, provides relevant
reporting to managementand ensures compliance of the credit process with
externallaws/regulationsaswellasinternal requirementsand procedures.

The Group structures the level of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the
amountof riskacceptedin relation to one borrower/counterparty, or groups of
borrowers,and toindustry (and geographical) segments. Limits on the level of credit
riskconcentration by industry sector are approved and controlled by the Assets and
Liabilities Management Committee ("ALMC"). Limits on credit risk exposure with
respect to credit programmes (SME and retail) are approved by the Management
Board.The exposure to any one borrower, including banks and brokers, covers on
and off-balance sheet exposures, which are reviewed by the Credit Committeesand
the ALMC. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Theriskthatthe counterparty willnot meetits obligationsisrestricted by the limits
coveringonandoff-balance sheetexposure.

Commitmentsto extend creditrepresent unused portions of creditin the form of
loans, guarantees or letters of credit. The credit risk for off-balance sheet financial
instrumentsis defined asa probability of losses due to the inability of a counterparty
tocomply with the contractual termsand conditions. With respect to credit riskon
commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposedtoalossinan
amountequalto the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of the
lossislessthan the total unused commitments since most commitments to extend
creditare contingent upon counterparties maintaining specific credit standards.
The Group applies the same credit policy to the contingent liabilities asitdoes to the
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financialinstruments recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
(i.e.the policy based on the procedures forapproving the grant of loans, using limits
tomitigate the risk, and current monitoring). The Group monitors the term to
maturity of off-balance sheet contingencies, as longer term commitments
generally have agreaterdegree of credit risk than shorter term commitments.

STRUCTURE AND AUTHORITIES OF CREDIT COMMITTEES

Creditcommittees, the ALMC, the Management Board and the Board of Directors
are creditauthorities responsible for the implementation of the Bank's Credit
Policyand creditdecision making process.

HEAD OFFICE CREDIT COMMITTEE ("CC")

The primary goal of the CCistheimplementation of the Bank's Credit Policy in
termsof creditoperationsand creditapplications from corporate customers.

BRANCH CREDIT COMMITTEE AND BRANCH
NETWORK CREDIT COMMITTEE ("BCC","BNCC")

The primary goal of the BCCand the BNCCis theimplementation of the Bank's Credit
Policyinterms of granting financial instruments via branches to SME customers.

Delegated credit authority limits for the BCCand the BNCC are established by the
Management Board. The BCC makes credit decisions within its limits. If the loan
application exceeds the relevant credit limit or the authorities of the BCC, the final
decision hasto be taken by the BNCC.The procedure of the decision making by the
BNCCinvolves consideration of a package of documents, including complex analysis
and assessments of the potential borrowers conducted by the Bank's experts.

RETAIL BRANCH CREDIT COMMITTEE OF THE HEAD OFFICE
("RCCHO") AND DECISION MAKING CENTER ("DMC")

The primary goal of the RCCHO and the DMC, which are credit authorities, is the implementation
of the Bank's Credit Policy in terms of granting retail financial instruments via branches.

The DMCis comprised of credit underwriters with delegated credit authorities based on
afour eyes principle. The DMC makes credit decisions within their authorities and limits
established by the Management Board and the RCCHO. The RCCHO is authorised to

considerloan applications that exceed relevant credit limits or the authorities of the DMC,
as well as other matters within the authorities established by the Management Board.

Along with the process of decision making via the credit decision authorities mentioned
above, there is an automated approach of decision making process for potential
borrowers whose income can be confirmed by the Independent Government body.
This approach takes into account the risk profile of the potential borrower and allows
minimising the credit risk exposure in the decision making process.

PROBLEM LOANS COMMITTEE OF THE HEAD OFFICE,
BRANCHES

The primary goal of the problem loans committee of the Head Office, branches is
the implementation of the Bank's Credit Policy in terms of management, servicing
and maintaining the repayment of the problem loans.

AUTHORISED CREDIT AUTHORITIES OF THE BANK'S
SUBSIDIARIES

Consideration and approval of the loan applications in the subsidiaries are performed by
the authorised credit authorities in accordance with the internal rules and regulations of the
subsidiary. Loan applications exceeding the established limits and authorities have to be
approved by the Board of Directors of the subsidiaries with the preliminary consideration
by the relevant credit committee, according to the Bank's internal rules and regulations.

ALMC

The primary goal of the ALMC is profit maximisation and to limit the risks of banking
activities related to raising and allocating funds. The main tasks of the ALMC are: liquidity
management, interest rate risk management, price risk and other banking risk management.

The ALMC is also responsible for establishing country and counterparty-bank
limits. The ALMC reports to the Board of Directors.

THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

For loan applications exceeding the authorities of the Head Office Credit
Committee, the BNCCand the RCCHO, or exceeding the relevant limits of the BNCC
andtheRCCHO, haveto be considered by the ManagementBoard.
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THEBOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ifthe loan applicationsexceed 5% of the Bank's equity capital or the potential borrower
isarelated party, suchapplicationshave to be considered by the Board of Directors.

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE

The Group's maximum exposure to creditrisk varies significantly and is dependent
onbothindividualrisksand general market risks.

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets and
contingent liabilities. For financial assets, the maximum exposure equals the carrying
value of those assets prior to any offset or collateral. For financial guarantees and other
contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount the
Group would have to pay if the guarantee was called on, or in the case of commitments, if
the loan amount was called on (Note 26). The collateral pledged is represented by the
carrying amount of a financial instrument for which the collateral was received as security.

31 DECEMBER 2017
Maximum Net exposure [l Collateral
exposure after offset pledged

Cash equivalents* 1,590,152 1,590,152 372,643
Obligatory reserves 111,039 111,039 -
Egsasrgcc;zli?;sseetcsuanggzlsgvalue through profit or loss 129341 129341 ~
Amounts due from credit institutions 87,736 87,736 -
Available-for-sale investment securities (less equity securities) 2,560,222 2,560,222 =
Loans to customers 3,251,102 3,251,102 2,838,024
Other financial assets 45458 45458 =
7,775,050 7,775,050 3,210,667
Commitments and contingencies 413,977 413,977 50,144

31 DECEMBER 2016
Maximum Net expost Collateral
exposure after offset pledged

Cash equivalents* 1,625,395 1,625,395 1,591
Obligatory reserves 76,122 76,122 -
ngasr;c&ilna;sseetcsuangézlsr)value through profit or loss 328,547 328,547 _
Amounts due from credit institutions 35,542 35,542 -
Available-for-sale investment securities (less equity securities) 594,810 594,810 -
Loans to customers 2,319,583 2,319,583 2,167,328
Other financial assets 6,757 6,757 o
4,986,756 4,986,756 2,168,919
Commitments and contingencies 214,710 214,710 10,034

31 DECEMBER 2015
Maximum Net exposure Collateral
exposure after offset pledged
Cash equivalents* 1,285,789 1,285,789 8320

Obligatory reserves 68,389 68,389 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(less equity securities) 7R IASIzER -

Amounts due from credit institutions 44,993 44,993 -

Available-for-sale investment securities (less equity securities) 373,356 373,356 -

Loans to customers 2,176,069 2,176,069 2,040,192

Other financial assets 6,226 6,226 o
4,131,660 4,131,660 2,048,512

Commitments and contingencies 237,566 237,566 18,675

* Amount represents the short-term loans and deposits with original maturities of not more than 90 days,
which areincluded within cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Financial assets are graded according to the current credit rating they have been issued by

aninternational rating agency or in accordance with the Group's internal rating system.The

highest possible rating is AAA. Investment grade financial assets have ratings from AAA to

BBB. Financial assets which have ratings lower than BBB are classified as speculative grade.
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The following table details the credit ratings of financial assets held by the Group,
before anyimpairment losses:

AA AA- A BBB <BBB Not
Rated

Cash equivalents* 110970 76,897 162142 1110837 87,307 41999 1,590,152
Obligatory reserves - - - 101,881 9,158 - 111,039
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 1 - 113 95570 46,797 2495 144976
Amounts due from credit

institutions 440 21 14616 12029 57,379 3,061 87,736
Rl 324,164 - - 2035381 187,232 21,101 2,567,878

investment securities
Other financial assets - - - - - 51379 51379

Commitments and

contingencies - - - - - 430075 430,075

AA AA- A BBB <BBB Not
Rated

Cash equivalents* 259,232 275101 14,740 1018410 5239 5516 1,625,395
Obligatory reserves - - - 69,888 6,234 - 76,122
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 149 39 886 326339 1,154 170 328,737
Amounts due from credit
institutions. - 5154 285 1,370 28684 49 35,542
Rl 91534 - - 354784 145456 11,734 603508

investment securities
Other financial assets - - - - - 1,273 11,273

Commitments and

contingencies - - - - - 215697 215,697

AA AA- A BBB <BBB Not
Rated

Cash equivalents* 74268 85108 41422 1033095 46447 5449 1,285,789
Obligatory reserves - - - 66,023 2,366 - 68,389
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 21 = 1,026 174815 970 238 177,070
Amounts due from credit
institutions - - 11,524 27463 6013 - 45,000
Available-for-sale
investment securities 5839 = = 265583 101,614 11,000 384,036
Other financial assets - - - - - 10,794 10,794

Commitments and

contingencies - - - - - 238548 238548

* Amount represents the short-term loans and deposits with original maturities of not more than 90 days,
which areincluded within cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its financial
assets and contingent liabilities. Credit risk exposure of the Group is concen-
trated within the Republic of Kazakhstan.The exposure is monitored on aregular
basistoensurethatthe creditlimitsand creditworthiness guidelinesestablished
bytheGroup'sriskmanagementpolicyarenotbreached.

Loans to customers are classified based on internal assessments and other
analytical procedures. The respective business units classify loans according to
their risk and the exposure that they potentially present to the Group, and this
classificationisverified by theriskmanagementfunction.

The Groupis considering the followingimpairmentindicators:

m  Overdueformorethan90days;

m  Defaultrating calculated based onrating model described below;

m  Restructuring because of deterioration of the financial position of the borrower.
The Bankand its subsidiaries, except for KKB is using an internal rating model to classify
loansin differentrisk categories. The rating model of KKB is described in details below.
After the occurrence of an impairment event, the model assists in estimating the
allowance for loan loss based on a borrowers' financial performance, credit history, quality
of accounts receivable, liquidity of the borrower, market risks relating to the borrower,
industry of the borrower and other factors. Periodically, the required information is
inputted into the model by credit analysts. Information input into the system and the
estimate of the allowance for loan loss is verified by the risk management department.
The following classifications are used by the rating model:

Rating score 1-superior loan rating, minimal credit risk;

Rating score 2 - very high quality of loan, very low credit risk;

Rating score 3-high quality of loan, low credit risk;

Rating score 4-satisfactory quality of loan, insignificant risk;

Rating score 5 - credit risk can increase at economic variation;

Rating score 6 - high risk at economic variation;

Rating score 7 - high risk of default, paying capacity of the borrower depends on
favourable economic circumstances;

m  Ratingscore8-10-very highrisk of default/default.

Pools of homogeneous loans — loans to customers are included in groups of loans with
similar credit risk characteristics (i.e. the characteristics include sector of the economy,
borrower activities, type of loan program, level of defaults, internal ratings and other
factors). Pools of homogeneous loans include assets that have been assessed collectively.
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Rating score 31 December [ 31 December ff 31 December
2017 2016 2015
13 = = =

4 118,566 118,300 158,907
5 538,343 461,059 270,049
6 533,758 421,288 500,177
7 412,326 425337 412,839
810 172,698 148,467 162,838

Less — Allowance for loan impairment (Note 22) (277,491) (284,752) (305,114)

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS [ 2319583 | 2,176,069

INTERNAL RATING MODEL OF KKB

Since not all counterparties of KKB have credit ratings from international rating
agencies, KKB has developed its own methodologies allowing it to assign internal
credit ratings. Such methodologies include a rating model for large corporate
borrowers and scoring models for retail banking clients and small and medium
enterprises. The scoring methodologies are tailor-made for specific products and
areappliedatvarious stages over thelife of the loan.

Loans to customers are classified by the responsible departments on the basis of
internal assessment and other analytical procedures. Taking into account past
experience, in December 2010 there was an improvement of the assessment
methodology of probability of default of the loans based on a deeperanalysis of the
financial position of the borrower and future cash flows. As a result of this
improvement, added to this analysis were qualitative and quantitative factors of the
borrowers, such as operational efficiency, liquidity, capital adequacy ratios, cash
flows and debt servicing ratios, quality of the management, risk of the industry,
presence of facts of misapplication of fundsand the customers' credit history.

KKB uses the rating model for the classification of unimpaired loans to corporate borrowers.

The collectively assessed loan portfolio includes both partly retail portfolio and
partly SME portfolio. Collectively assessed loans: loans to customers with similar
credit risk characteristics (i.e. the characteristics include sector of the economy,
borrower activities, type of loan program, level of defaults and other factors).
Collective assessment is performed on loans that were determined not to be

individually significant and on individually significant loans that did not exhibit
creditlossesbasedontheindividualassessment.

KKB usesthe classification of unimpaired loans to customers as follows:

Internal ratings BBB and BBB-: acceptable or relatively acceptable quality of loan.
The borrower has adequate resources to discharge its financial liabilities, relatively
stablefinancial position, however, potential weaknesses are possible.

Internal ratings BB+, BB and BB-: quality of loan ranges from "sufficient" to "relatively sufficient”.
Unfavourable economic conditions or worsening business conditions may have an effect on
the ability of the borrower to discharge its financial liabilities in the medium term.

Internal ratings B+, Band B: quality of loan ranges from "relatively weak" to "very
weak". The ability of the borrower to discharge its financial liabilities ranges from
"will probably worsen in case of unfavorable conditions" to "financial indicators
and structural deficiencies worsened to such a low level that they signify that
restructuring of businessand/orfinance may be needed".

Internal rating C: substandard quality of loan and evident susceptibility to default.
Financial indicators and structural deficiencies worsened to such a low level that
they signify thatrestructuring of business and/or finance may be needed.

31 December
20

Collectively assessed unimpaired loans 421,045
BBB-, BBB 36,746
BB+, BB, BB- 21,649
B+ B, B- 7,908

C 1,204

TOTAL LOANS TO CUSTOMERS OF KKB (LESS ALLOWANCES) 764,352

As at 31 December 2017, allowances for impairment losses on KKB loans comprised
KZT 39,670 million, including KZT 23,095 million related to collectively assessed loans.
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Thefollowing table details the carrying value of assets that are impaired and for those that are past due but notimpaired:

t have been individually assessed for impairmel

Financial assets that have been
collectively assessed for impairment

Fi ial assets
Unimpaired financial assets Impaired financial assets

Gross carrying Amount of allowance [§ Gross carrying Amount of allowance [§ Gross carrying Amount of allowance f§ 31 December 2017
amount of assets for impairment losses | amount of assets for impairment losses i amount of assets for impairment losses [§ Total

Amounts due from credit institutions 87,736 - - - 87,736
Available-for-sale investment securities 2,565,425 o 2453 (2:453) = = 2,565,425
Loans to customers 1,731,919 (16,444) 645,542 (193,106) 1,190,802 (107.611) 3,251,102
Other financial assets 45458 o 5921 (5921) = = 45,458

Financial assets that have been individually assessed for impairment Financial assets that have been
collectively assessed for impairment
Unimpaired financial assets Impaired financial assets

Gross carrying Amount of allowance [§ Gross carrying Amount of allowance [§ Gross carrying Amount of allowance f§ 31 December 2016
amount of assets for impairment losses | amount of assets for impairment losses i amount of assets for impairment losses [§ Total .

Amounts due from credit institutions 35,542 - - - 35,542
Available-for-sale investment securities 601,431 (1,807) 2,077 (2,077) = = 599,624
Loans to customers 1,286,972 (14,836) 425,587 (172,748) 891,776 (97,168) 2,319,583 CONSOLIDATED
" _ _ _ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Other financial assets 3537 7,736 (4.516) 6,757 AND INDEPENDENT

AUDITORS' REPORT
Financial assets that have been individually assessed for impairment Financial assets that have been FOR THE YEARS ENDED
collectively assessed for impairment 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016

AND 2015

Unimpaired financial assets Impaired financial assets
Gross carrying Amount of allowance [§ Gross carrying Amount of allowance [§ Gross carrying Amount of allowance f§ 31 December 2015
amount of assets for impairment losses | amount of assets for impairment losses | amount of assets for impairment losses [§ Total

7

Amounts due from credit institutions 44,993 - 7) - - 44,993
Available-for-sale investment securities 378,520 o 5516 (5516) = = 378,520
Loans to customers 1,161,326 (14,269) 470,987 (193,849) 848,870 (96,996) 2,176,069
Other financial assets 3,602 = 7191 (4,567) = = 6,226

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of unimpaired overdue loans was KZT 6,165 million (31 December 2016 — KZT 769 million; 31 December 2015 — KZT 11,119
million). Maturities of these overdue loans are not greater than 90 days.
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity riskis the risk resulting from the inability of the Group to provide funds for
repayment of its obligations in due time. The Group's liquidity risk arises when terms
ofassets on active operations and maturity dates of obligations do not match.
Short-term liquidity needs are managed by the Group's treasury function
collecting daily cashinflow/outflow forecasts. Long-term liquidity managementis
performed by the ALMC by analysing longer term liquidity positions and making
decisionson managingsignificantgaps through various available means.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group analyses the financial assets and liabilities,
and obligatory reserves taking into account payment schedules for loans issued to
customers. The following tables provide an analysis of financial assets and liabilities
grouped on the basis of the remaining period from the reporting date to the earliest of
the contractual maturity date or available maturity date, except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in the form of securities which are included in the column
"Lessthan 1 month"as they are available to meet the Group's short-term liquidity needs.

31 DECEMBER 2017
Less th: 1to3 nths § 1to5 Over Total
1 mon months to 1year J years 5years

31 DECEMBER 2016

Less th 1to3 3months f§ 1to5 Over Total
1 mo nths to 1year J years 5 years

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,774,519 - = = = 1,774,519
Obligatory reserves 49,593 3,972 18,368 3,650 539 76,122
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 251,544 = 77,193 = = 328,737
Amounts due from credit

institutions 9,685 11,281 10,930 2,183 1,463 35,542
Available-for-sale

ihvestment securities 13,290 79,328 269,298 78463 159,245 599,624
Loans to customers* 146,771 236,233 1,526,644 286,133 123,802 2,319,583
Other financial assets 3,782 2,554 364 6,757

IS P FTETY KETE ETETN ETN BT

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Amounts due to customers 2,046,317 226,071 784,955 694,228 69,091 3,820,662

Amounts dueto credit 55 g9 1,532 7,028 30333 70,280 162,134
FINANCIAL ASSETS: IFniri:r::i‘allolinasbiIities at fair
Cashand cash equivalents 1746100 34448 - - - 1780548 value through profit or loss /3 * i 0 ’ 28 Eﬁ'}i%ﬁlgfﬂw ENTS
Obligatory reserves 67,863 7,264 25913 4372 5,627 111,039 Debt securities issued 4915 3812 197,516 157,792 220,898 584,933 AND INDEPENDENT
ffilnrgzgﬁlsfégt‘so?tlgisr value 88026 165 37695 9,040 10,050 144976 Other financial liabilities 11,527 354 1,887 189 25 13,982 égEIISERiE'ﬂER"DSOSJDED
Amounts due from credit 11000 s6a17 Jagas S0 533 57736 2,115,793 231,868 360,294 J 4,584,552 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016

AND 2015

institutions

168

Available-for-sale
investment securities

Loans to customers* 297,204 276,167 1911,598 598,089 168,044 3,251,102
Other financial assets 22,224 1,245 3,868 18,121 - 45,458

I ETTT RN R KRR KEE BT

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

370,578 166,677 347,918 639,530 1,040,722 2565425

Amounts due to customers 2,856,379 415,118 1449676 1,065364 345213 6,131,750

Amountsduetocredit 155075 189 2340 8,723 81827 255151
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued 13,030 4,046

244 = 492 5,095 = 5831

578,030 253,266 962,396
12,180 50,373
422,387 692,486 [ 7,405,501
89,996 534,292

Other financial liabilities 31,529 3,034

NET POSITION

ACCUMULATED GAP (430,169) (340,173) 580,783

NET POSITION

133,391

101,500

(75,193)

ACCUMULATED GAP

133,391 J§ 234,891 556,332
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31 DECEMI

201

essthan ff 1t03 3months § 1to5 Over Total
1month f months to 1year J years 5 years

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,404,000 680 = = = 1,404,680
Obligatory reserves 36,373 2,864 20677 4,522 3,953 68,389
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 8271 8,058 86,331 74410 = 177,070
Amounts due from credit

institutions 6,735 49 21413 8,364 8432 44,993
Available-for-sale

ihvestment securities 1,786 3,197 42,015 156,592 174,930 378,520
Loans to customers* 145,257 217,322 1443491 258,976 111,023 2,176,069
Other financial assets 3,666 1,375 1,159 3 23 6,226

L Tovsoso]mases Jrorsuso] suaser asnast Jazssas

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Amounts due to customers 1,512,389 157,208 1,251,201 38,008 84,925 3,043,731

Amounts dueto credit g5 353 140 1,142 8879 92,744 168,258
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss 5593 - - - - 2,593
Debt securities issued 4973 3,802 7,366 202,178 379,206 597,525
Other financial liabilities 10,671 315 1,551 183 11 12,731

161,465 f 1,261,260 3,827,838

NET POSITION 72,080 353,826
ACCUMULATED GAP 79,189 433,015

(258,525)
428,109

*Loans to customers in the column "3 months to 1 year" include loans with non-standard repayment schedule

Assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis of their contractual maturity and payment
schedules. The Group possesses a right to unilaterally call back part of long-term loans provided
to customers for a ten month period after proper notification would be issued by the Group.

A significant portion of the Group's liabilities are represented by customer term
deposits, currentaccounts of corporate and retail customers,and bonds.

Management believes that although a substantial portion of current accounts and
customer deposits are on demand and mature in less than one month, diversification
of these deposits by number and type of depositors, and the past experience of the
Group, indicate that these deposits provide a long-term and stable source of funding
forthe Group. Therefore, an essential part of the Group's current accountsis considered
to be stableresources for the purposes of liquidity analysisand management.

Afurther analysis of the liquidity riskis presented in the following tables in accordance
with IFRS 7.The amounts disclosed in these tables do not correspond to the amounts
recorded on the consolidated statement of financial position, as the presentation
below includes a maturity analysis for financial liabilities and contingent liabilities
based on the remaining contractual payments (including interest payments).

FINANCIAI Up to 1 month tof§ 3 months

IAL AND p 1year Over
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 1 month 3months [ to 1year

to 5 years |§ 5 years

Amounts due to customers 2,856,545 423,508 1495277 1,169,878 453,040 6,398,248

Amountsduetocredit 153457 5130 4222 13277 114284 300380
institutions
Debt securities issued 21,823 15,357 162,061 783,357 322,025 1,304,623
Other financial liabilities 31,529 3,034 3,370 260 12,180 50,373
Guarantees issued 300,565 - - - - 300,565
Commercial letters of credit 70,454 - - - - 70,454
Ert;mimitments to extend 59,056 ~ _ _ _ 59,056
Lo 20
Derivative financial assets 1,147,769 - - 38,877 - 1,186,646
Derivative financial liabilities 1,110,842 - - 41912 - 1,152,754

FINANCIAL AND Up to 1 month tofl 3 months §f 1year Over
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 1 month 3 months to 1year J to5years I 5years

Amounts due to customers 2,047,509 228,164 810,823 741,741 110,798 3,939,035

Amountsduetocredit 53557 544 7,169 31,140 99992 193,126
institutions

Debt securities issued 10,697 8,749 222,782 267,758 277,951 787,937
Other financial liabilities 11,527 354 1,887 189 25 13,982
Guarantees issued 173,226 - - - - 173,226
Commercial letters of credit 27,026 - - - - 27,026
E’c;miTitments to extend 15,445 ~ ~ ~ ~ 15,445
Derivative financial assets 17,595 27,091 166,645 25,823 - 237,154
Derivative financial liabilities 17,475 26,312 89,962 28,470 = 162,219
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FINANCIAL AND Upto
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

1 month toff 3 months [ 1yea Over

r
1month J 3months [ to1year [§ to5years j§ 5years

Amounts due to customers 1,513,423 157,975 1,289,364 40,141 131,846 3,132,749
Amounts dueto credit 45 gog 158 1213 9815 121931 199025
institutions

Debt securities issued 11,135 8739 42,555 353,676 436,265 852,370
Other financial liabilities 10,674 315 1,551 183 8 12,731
Guarantees issued 186,306 = = = = 186,306
Commercial letters of credit 17,064 - - - - 17,064
Commitments to extend 35,178 _ 35,178

credit ) ) )
1,839,688 167,187 1,334,683 690,050 m
Derivative financial assets 99,199 38,492 376,966 - - 514,657

Derivative financial liabilities 97,336 33218 113,943 100,439 = 344,936

MARKET RISK

The Group determines two types of interest rate risk:

m  Interestraterisk related to changes in fair values of securities portfolios, which are
reflected through equity;

m  Interest rate risk resulting from assets and liabilities maturity dates (dates of
interest rate repricing) mismatch that are sensitive to interest rate changes (risk of
interest rate changes).

The ALMC managesinterestrate risksand market risks through the management
ofthe Group's positiononinterestratestoreach positive interest margins.

The Group manages interest rates by determining the Group's exposure to the
interest rate risk using the approach described by the Basel Committee on the
principles for the management and supervision of interest rate risk. This
approach identifies the Group's exposure to interest rate risk by testing the
impactofaparallelmovementininterestratesonassetsand liabilities.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS OF INTEREST RATE RISK

Market risk is the risk that the Group's earnings or equity or its ability to meet
business objectives will be adversely affected by changes in market variables, such

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, which has been
determined based on "reasonably possible changes in the risk variable”. The Group
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asinterestrates, foreignexchangerates, securities pricesand otherbasic variables. 3 ) ” : =St rat '
currencies separately, in which financial assets and liabilities are denominated due
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The Groupisexposed to marketrisks, whichinclude the following components:
m  Riskofchangesininterestrates(interestraterisk);

m  Riskofchangesinforeignexchangerates (currencyrisk);

m  Riskofchangesinsecurities prices (pricerisk).

The objective of market risk management is to optimise risk/return, minimise losses in case of
adverse events and decrease deviation of factual finandial results from expected financial results.

Market risk management includes security portfolio management and control of open
positions on currencies, interest rates and derivatives. For these purposes, the ALMC fixes
limits on security portfolios, open positions, stop-loss limits and other limitations. Market risk
limits are subject to review on at least an annual basis and should be monitored continuously.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is defined as the risk of
interest income decreases, interest expense increases or a negative impact on
equity resulting from adverse changesin marketinterestrates.

to the different volatility of interest rates. Particularly, a scenario of interest rate
changes in tenge takes into account the dynamics of the NBRK base rate, as an
instrument of monetary policy introduced at theend of 2015.1n 2016, the Group has
changed its approach of presenting the sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, by
separately allocating the effect of financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies. In 2017, the Group reassessed possible changes in interest rates
intengetakingintoaccountthe dynamics of the NBRKbase rate during 2017 year.

The impact on profit before tax is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the
net interest income for one year, based on the floating rate financial assets and liabilities
held as at 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, and the effect of revaluing instruments with
fixed rates accounted for at fair value. The management of the Group believes income tax
not to have a substantial effect for the purpose of interest rate risk management.

31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
AND 20

15
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The impact on income before tax based on asset and liability values as at
31 December2017,2016and 2015 isas follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest

rate rate rate

KZT +2% -2% KZT +4%
CCY +2% %o CCY +2%
FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Loans to customers 2,196 (2,196) 2,043 (2,043) 1,682 (1,682)
KZT - - 485 (485) n/a n/a
ccy 2,196 (2,196) 1,558 (1,558) n/a n/a
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

I[:]r;\tni)tlartlitgndsue to credit 8 ® 10 (10) ~ ~

KzZT - - - - n/a n/a

ccy 8 8 10 (10) n/a n/a
NET IMPACT ON INCOME|

n/a-notavailable

Theimpactonequityisthe effect oftheassumed changesininterestrates dueto
changes in retained earnings and the effect of revaluation of available-for-sale
investmentsecuritieswithfixedrates.

Theimpactonequity based onassetand liability valuesas at 31 December 2017,
2016and 2015isasfollows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest
rate rate rate rate rate rate

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Loans to customers 2,196 (2,196) 2,043 (2,043) 1,682 (1,682)
KzZT - - 485 (485) n/a n/a
ccy 219 @19%) 1558 (1558  n/a n/a
Avallableforsale (1sses2) 1sses2  (G010S) 30105 (30024) 30024
KzT (127858) 127858  (14173) 14173 - 5

cey (30824) 30824 (15932 15932

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

Amounts due to credit
institutions 8 @ 10 (10)

KzT o o o = n/a n/a

ccy 8 [t3)) 10 (10) n/a n/a
(as0s2 Jrowsz Javasa Jaoosa |

n/a-notavailable

CURRENCYRISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk. Currency risk arises from open positions in
foreign currencies and adverse movements of market exchange rates that may
haveanegativeimpactonthefinancial performance of the Group.

The ALMC controls currency risk by management of the open currency position
based on the estimations of KZT devaluation and other macroeconomic
indicators, which gives the Group an opportunity to minimise losses from
significantcurrencyrate fluctuations of national and foreign currencies.

The treasury department performs daily monitoring of the Group's open currency
positions, with the aim to comply with the requirements of the regulatory authority.

The Groupisexposedto the effects of fluctuationinthe prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates (primarily USD) on its financial positions, results of operations and
cashflows, whichare monitored daily. The ALMC sets limits on the level of exposure
by currencies within the authority approved by the Board of Directors. These limits
alsocomply with the minimum requirements of the regulatorauthority.

The Group's principal cash flows are generated in KZT and USD. As aresult, potential
movements in the exchange rate between KZT and USD will affect the carrying
value of the Group's USD denominated monetary assets and liabilities. Currency
risk is assessed in relation to the consolidated statement of financial position and
off-balance sheet positions. Currently, the Group's sensitivity to fluctuations in
exchange rates is acceptable, due to the fact that the off- balance sheet items
significantly neutralise the consolidated statement of financial position.
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The Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate riskiis as follows:
31 DECEMBER 2017

usb EURO RUR Other Total foreign KzT Total
currencies

FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,109,425 46,437 45,162 61,609 1,262,633 517915 1,780,548

Obligatory reserves 39,987 648 1,081 1,945 43,661 67,378 111,039
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 10,674 = 2,628 283 13,585 131,391 144,976

Amounts due from credit institutions 20,107 1,002 17,897 - 39,006 48,730 87,736

Available-for-sale investment securities 571,589 7818 6,151 11,890 597,448 1,967,977 2,565,425

Loans to customers 888,479 40,131 22,775 14,149 965,534 2,285,568 3,251,102

Other financial assets 1,785 2,466 2,220 114 6,585 38873 45,458

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: .

Amounts due to customers 3,192,513 118,900 56,485 34,852 3,402,750 2,729,000 6,131,750

Amounts due to credit institutions 25,698 690 281 943 27612 227,539 255,151

Financial liabilities at fair value through CONSOLIDATED
= - 213 = 213 5618 5831

profit or loss FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Debt securities issued 483213 - 353 - 483,566 478,830 962,396 AND INDEPENDENT

o AUDITORS' REPORT

Other financial liabilities 14,369 684 15,960 34413 50373 FOR THE YEARS ENDED

3,715,793 119,869 58,016 36,423 3,930,101 3,475,400 7,405,501 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
AND 2015

NET POSITION - ON-BALANCE (1,073,747) (21,367) 39,898 53,567

(1,001,649) 1,582,432 580,783
NET POSITION - OFF-BALANCE 1,103,118
NET POSITION 29,371

21,258
(109)

(37,399)
2,499

(47,001)
6,566

1,039,976 (995,954)
38,327 586,478
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31 DECEMBER 2016

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,628,322 30,673 16915 14,921 1,690,831 83,688 1,774,519

Obligatory reserves 47,789 1,055 364 1,359 50,567 25,555 76,122

Eirr‘;aﬁr;cgillgzzets at fair value through 764 ~ _ 150 914 327823 328737

Amounts due from credit institutions 6,907 - 4,103 - 11,010 24,532 35,542

Available-for-sale investment securities 252,328 3,591 1939 2916 260,774 338,850 599,624

Loans to customers 710,067 8,793 14,921 13,261 747,042 1,572,541 2,319,583

Other financial assets 628 88 17 85 747,042 5839 6,757
EX T

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

Amounts due to customers 2,431,736 45,087 5879 14,664 2,497,366 1,323,296 3,820,662

Amounts due to credit institutions 35,749 519 146 855 37,269 124,865 162,134 .

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss - 199 - 199 2,642 2,841

Debt securities issued 359,521 - - - 359,521 225412 584,933 CONSOLIDATED

Other financial liabilities 852 437 1,715 12,267 13,982 E,\’]lé'l\‘,fg)AElﬁELgEEm.ENTS
2,827,858 6,661 15,837 2,896,070 1,688,482 AUDITORS' REPORT

NET POSITION - ON-BALANCE (181,053) 31,698 16,855 (134,014) 690,346 5105521%%?250? Ez)g?s

NET POSITION - OFF-BALANCE 189,207 (27,150) (9,442) 154,785 (78,808) AND 2015

NET POSITION 8,154 4,548 7,413 20,771 611,538
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31 DECEMBER 2015

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,246,957 46,458 17,737 25328 1,336,480 68,200 1,404,680
Obligatory reserves 52,945 1,149 233 970 55,297 13,092 68,389
Eirr‘;aﬁr;cgillgzzets at fair value through 1,000 _ _ _ 1,000 176,070 177,070
Amounts due from credit institutions 14,829 - - - 14,829 30,164 44,993
Available-for-sale investment securities 211,261 1,784 904 654 214,603 163917 378,520
Loans to customers 671,755 5,986 15,653 12430 705,824 1,470,245 2,176,069
Other financial assets 44 48 56 195 343 5883 6,226
D B
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Amounts due to customers 2,247,718 54,362 6,085 12511 2,320,676 723,055 3,043,731
Amounts due to credit institutions 22,732 545 1952 1332 26,561 141,697 168,258 .
;lrl:)aﬁr;c‘;?lkl)l??llltles atfairvalue through 5 _ _ 5 5,591 5,503
Debt securities issued 364,241 - - - 364,241 233,284 597,525 CONSOLIDATED
Other financial liabilities 853 1,391 11,340 12,731 E,\’]lé'l\‘ﬁg)AEl};ELgEEM—ENTS
2,635,544 8,188 14,158 2,712,871 1,114,967 AUDITORS' REPORT
NET POSITION - ON-BALANCE (436,753) 26,395 25,419 (384,495) 812,604 glogE-lg_éEMYBEEARRZSOE;" EZ)(E?G
NET POSITION - OFF-BALANCE 462,886 (14,441) (21,338) 427,144 (252,186) AND 2015

NET POSITION 26,133 11,954 4,081 42,649 560,418
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS OF CURRENCY RISK

The table below indicates the currencies in which the Group had significant
exposure at 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, and its forecasted cash flows. The
analysis calculates the effect of a reasonable possible movement of the currency rate,
with all other variables held constant on the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Anegative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.
Sensitivity of currency risk is assessed based on balance sheet and off-balance sheet
open currency positions. The management of the Group believes income tax not to
have a substantial effect for the purpose of currency risk management.

The impact on income before tax and equity, based on asset values as at 31
December 2015 was calculated using the currency rate fluctuation analysis.
Changes of the possible movement of the currency rate from 25% to 30% in 2016
were associated with the transition to the flexible exchange rate policy announced
by the NBRK. Changes of the possible movement of the currency rate from 30% to
15%in 2017 were associated with the decrease in the volatility of the exchange rate.

The impact on income before tax and equity, based on asset values as at 31 December 2017,
was calculated using the annual analysis of the exchange rate volatility based on historical data
of the exchange rate dynamics over the last two years; see the details in the following table:

31 December 2017
+15% 5% +30% [ +25% 5%
KZT/USD QI KZT/USD QI KZT/USD Q§ KZT/USD Q KZT/USD Q KZT/USD
4,406 (4,400) 2,446 (2,446) 6,533 (6,533)

+15% % +30% 0% +25% 5%
KZT/EURO J§ KZT/EURO j§ KZT/EURO |§ KZT/EURO j§ KZT/EURO J§ KZT/EURO
0

Impact on income
before tax (1e) 16 197 (197) 121 (120)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
+15% %) +30% 0% +25% o
KZT/RUR QI KZT/RUR QI KZT/RUR Q| KZT/RUR W KZT/RUR [ KZT/RUR

Impact on income
Befararae 375 (375) 1,364 (1,364) 2,989 (2,989)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Impact on income
before tax

31 December 2017

Theimpactonequity is as follows:

+15% 5% +30% 0% +25% 5%
KZT/USD QI KZT/USD QI KZT/USD Qj KZT/USD J KZT/USD Q KZT/USD

Impact on equity 4,406 (4,406) 2446 (2,446) 6,533 (6,533)

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
+15% 5% +30% 30% +25% 25%
KZT/EURO T/EURO | KZT/EURO J§ KZT/EURO J§ KZT/EURO j§ KZT/EURO
(16) 16 197 (197) 120 (120)

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

+15% 5% +30% 0% +25%
KZT/RUR QI KZT/RUR Q| KZT/RUI KZT/RUR J KZT/RUI KZT/RUR

Impact on equity 375 (375) 1,364 (1,364) 2,989 (2,989)

31 December 2015

Impact on equity

LIMITATIONS OF SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption, while other
assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions
and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger
or smallerimpacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group's assets and
liabilities are actively managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Group may vary
at the time that any actual market movement occurs. For example, the Group's financial
risk management strategy aims to manage the exposure to market fluctuations. As
investment markets move past various trigger levels, management actions could
include selling investments, changing investment portfolio allocations and taking other
protective actions. Consequently, the actual impact of a change in the assumptions may
not have any impact on the liabilities, whereas assets are held at market value on the
consolidated statement of financial position. In these circumstances, the different
measurement bases for liabilities and assets may lead to volatility in equity.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical
market movements to demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Group's view
of possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty.
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PRICERISK

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, where those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
security, its issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Group is exposed
to price risks of its products which are subject to general and specific market fluctuations.

To limit price risk, the Group determines limits for maximum losses (stop-loss) on
securiesfromthetrade portfolioto minimise potential losses of the trade portfolio.

Price risk assessment is also performed on the basis of the Value At Risk ("VaR")
method, through the establishment of Expected Shortfall ("ES") limits on the level
of expected losses, which the Bank is able to undertake within one day in a
situation whenfactuallosses may exceed the level of VaR.

CalculationofVaRis based onthe following parameters:
m  Reporting period-252working days;

m  Confidenceinterval -95%;

m  Themethodof measurement-historical simulation.

The Group estimates the price risk at 31 December 2017,2016 and 2015, to be not
material and therefore quantitative informationisnotdisclosed.

35.CAPITALRISKMANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives, which are a broader concept than the
"equity" on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position, are as follows:

m Tocomplywiththe capital requirements set by the NBRK;

m  To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

m  Tomaintainastrong capital base to support the development of its business.

The required level of capital is determined during the annual budgeting process, taking into
account the above objectives, and is approved by the Management Board and the Board of
Directors. As of the current date the capital adequacy of the Group is calculated according

to prudential norms set for banks by the Kazakhstan regulatory authority, applying Basel
Committee principles and methods. Starting from 1 January 2016, prudential norms
regulating the capital calculation applied certain principles and methods prescribed by the
Basel Il Committee. Prior to 1 January 2016, prudential norms regulating the capital
calculation applied principles and methods prescribed by the Basel I Committee. Risk-
weighted assets are calculated according to Kazakhstan regulatory standards.

Currently, regulatorycapitalisrepresentedby:

m  Tier 1 capital, which is required to maintain the normal operating activity of the
Group and absorb losses as they arise. It consists of Common Equity Tier 1 capital
("CET 1 capital") and Additional Tier 1 capital, which includes common shares issued
by the Group, share premium, retained earnings, other accrued comprehensive
income and disclosed reserves and regulatory adjustments (deductions);

m  Tier 2 capital, which is required to absorb losses in case of the Group's liquidation.
This part of capital consists of instruments issued by the Group and deductions.

Risk-weighted assets are split into five different groups, based on the risk level of
theinvestmentand its possibleimpairment,and weighted accordingtothe nature
of andreflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with each
assetand counterparty, taking into accountany eligible collateral or guarantees. A
similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some
adjustments madetoreflectthe more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The below table summarises the regulatory capital composition and capital
adequacy ratios of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2016, and 2015.
During these three years, individual entities within the Group and the Group complied
with all of the externally imposed capital requirements to which they are subject.
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31 December il 31 December § 31 December
2017 2016 2015

COMPOSITION OF REGULATORY CAPITAL

CET 1 (2016 AND 2015: TIER 1) 39,461 40,574 40,520
Common shares, net of treasury shares

Share premium 1,839 191 2,039
Retained earnings of prior years 538944 412,310 291,998
Net income for the current year 173,362 131,412 120312
Accumulated disclosed reserves* 73,362 73,359 73,353
Non-controlling interest 72441 - -
Property and available-for-sale investment securities g 47g 930 1.707
revaluation reserves .

Less: goodwill and intangible assets (2015: goodwill) (11,336) (14133) (4,954)
Less: cumulative translation reserve 6,570) (5,097)

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 (CET 1) CAPIT) - - -

ADDITIONALTIER 1

TIER 2 _

Subordinated debt s R
TOTAL REGULATORY CAPITAL 1,019,063 641,266 530,418
Risk weighted assets 5395725 3,303,428 2,922,029

CET 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO
TIER 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

16.9%

16.9%

TOTAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 18.9%

* As at 31 December 2017, accumulated disclosed reserves comprised of KZT 19,568 million dynamic reserve and
KZT 53,794 million capital reserve (31 December 2016:KZT 19,568 million dynamic reserve and KZT 53,791 million
capital reserve; 31 December 2015: KZT 19,568 million dynamic reserve and KZT 53,785 million capital reserve)

Starting from 1 January 2016, prudential norms of the NBRK, which apply certain
principles and methods prescribed by Basel Il committee, set minimum CET 1 capital,
Additional Tier 1 capital and total capital adequacy ratios at 7.5%, 8.5% and 10.0%,
respectively, including buffers, which since 1 January 2017 have been raised to the level
of 9.5%, 10.5% and 12.0%, respectively. Prior to 1 January 2016, Basel Il standards set the
minimum capital adequacy and the Tier 1 capital ratios at 8% and 4%, respectively.

36.SEGMENT ANALYSIS

The Group is managed and reported on the basis of three main operating segments —
corporate banking, SME banking and retail banking. These segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and services and are managed separately.

Retail banking represents private banking services to individuals, including private customer
current accounts, deposits, investment savings products, custody, credit and debit cards,
consumer loans and mortgages, cash and foreign currency related services to individuals.

Corporate banking represents banking services to corporate clients and financial
organisations including currentaccounts and correspondent accounts, deposits,
custody, overdrafts, loans and other credit facilities, documentary operations,
including guarantees and letters of credit, trade finance products, interbank
operations,aswellascash servicesandforeign exchange transactions.

SME banking represents banking services to SME clients and individual entrepreneurs,
including current accounts, deposits, overdrafts, loans and other credit facilities, documentary
operations and guarantees, foreign exchange transactions and trade finance products.

Investment banking represents services on sale and purchase of securities on the market.

Unallocated amounts are account balances and classes of transactions which are not
allocated to a particular segment, not initiated by any business function and relate to
the current activity of the Group. Unallocated assets include fixed assets, intangible
assets, non-current assets held for sale, cash on hand and other unallocated assets.
Unallocated liabilities include deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.
Unallocated income includes other income from main and nonoperating activities
and insurance income. Unallocated expenses include the provision on accounts
receivable, operating overhead expenses, insurance expenses and income tax.

The segment information below is based on financial information used for
performance evaluation by the Bank's Chairperson of the Management Board, the
Group's chief operating decision maker, in accordance with IFRS 8. The Group's
management reviews discrete financial information for each segment, including
theevaluation of operating results,assetsand liabilities.

There were no transactions between business segments during the years ended
31December2017,2016and 2015.
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Segmentinformation for the main reportable business segments of the Group as at 31 December 2017,2016 and 2015 and for the years then ended, is set out below:

_ Retail banking Corporate banking SME banking Investment banking* [l Unallocated

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND FOR THE YEAR THEN ENDED
External revenues 202,012 208,150 61,304 151,708 83,744 706918

TOTAL REVENUES COMPRISE:

- Interest income 129,814 191,646 46,501 138,367 = 506,328
- Fee and commission income 62,404 9,140 13,533 - 2,563 87,640
- Net realised gain from available-for-sale investment securities - - - = 1,064
- l:‘herto%agiﬂ gforg‘ﬁ;alzgisal assets and liabilities at fair value 0,794 5,995 1243 12267 2124 31423
- Recovery of provisions - 1,369 27 10 331 1,737
- Insurance underwriting income and other income - - - - 78,726 78,726
T ECER EEECH CEZEN ECET
- Interest expense (116,689) (71,830 (7,558) 61,728) - (257,805) .
- (Impairment charge)/recovery of provisions (5672) (33,675 (30,615) 10 2,650 (67,302)
- Fee and commission expense (24,101) (1,258) (347) (34) (992) (26,732)
- Operating expenses (58423) (6,242) (17,478) (5,659) (19,550) ( ERI’X?\I%II_»IA?_ASTIFAI?TEM ENTS
- Impairment loss of assets held for sale - - (4978) AND |NDE|?ENDENT
- Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 7,975 (9,633) 9,937 (11,047) (2.181) ﬁgEI‘ISERiE’?A%DS();JDED
- Insurance claims incurred, net of reinsurance (48615) 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016
TOTAL EXPENSES (196,910) (122,638) (46,061) (78,458) (73,666) AND 2015
S
Income before income tax expense 189,185
Income tax expense (25,598) (25,598)
I R R R R—
Total segment assets 860,802 4,023,358 528,025 2,786,877 658,719 8,857,781
Total segment liabilities 3,170,388 2,863,345 659,120 1,000,269 230,202 7923324
OTHER SEGMENT ITEMS:
Capital expenditures (13,862) (13,862)
Depreciation and amortisation (9,692) (9,692)
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_ Retail banking Corporate banking SME banking Investment banking* [l Unallocated

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND FOR THE YEAR THEN ENDED
External revenues 172,209 144,785 46,648 48,678 33,626 445,946

TOTAL REVENUES COMPRISE:

- Interest income 102,124 148,012 32,222 50,205 = 332,563

- Fee and commission income 42,725 5474 8,645 4 612 57,697

- Net realised gain from available-for-sale investment securities - S S 2,623 S 2,623

- Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 27,360 (8,701) 5781 (4,391) (1,543) 18,506

- Insurance underwriting income and other income 34,557 34,557

- Interest expense (65, 525) (44, 636) (4, 566) (45,822) (160,549)

- (Impairment charge)/recovery of provisions (6,229) (12:434) (6,661) 697 (681) (25,308)

- Fee and commission expense (10,307) (247) (201) (181) (359) (11,295)

- Operating expenses (35993) (3,754) (11,200) (1,791) (14,257) (66,995) .
- Impairment loss of assets held for sale - - - - (1,564) (1,564)

- Tﬁrto(lljzsﬁ){)?gg; erlr‘r)\sf;lnanclal assets and liabilities at fair value (52,581) 29273 (5246) 12077 3,767 (12,710) CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- (Provisions)/recoveries of provisions - (56) 18 - 6) (44) AND INDEPENDENT
- Insurance claims incurred, net of reinsurance (24,799) (24,799) AUDITORS' REPORT
S . et
SEGMENT RESULT 112,931 18,792 13,65 (4, 142,682 AND 2015
Income before income tax expense 142,682
Income tax expense (22,183) (22,183)
I R R R — T
Total segment assets 555,923 3,291,010 289,169 850,585 361,796 5348483
Total segment liabilities 1,708,200 1,982,006 289,008 584,932 118,744 4,682,890
OTHER SEGMENT ITEMS:
Capital expenditures (15,386) (15,386)
Depreciation and amortisation (6,161) (6,161)
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_ Retail banking Corporate banking SME banking Investment banking* [l Unallocated

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND FOR THE YEAR THEN ENDED
External revenues 623,116 (137,645) 94,996 (55,837) 3532 528,162
(e | N EXCE
TOTAL REVENUES COMPRISE:
- Interest income 89,507 106,830 27,054 20,649 = 244,040

- Fee and commission income 38,550 4,578 7874 779 137 51918
- Net gain/(loss)from financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss 495,059 (249,053) 60,068 (77,265) (30,879) 197,930
- Insurance underwriting income and other income - - - 34,274 34,274
- Interest expense (40,210 (22,974 (3,238) (34,256) (100,678)
- (Impairment charge)/recovery of provisions (10,841) 12,585 (11,230) (1,310) (484) (11,280)
- Fee and commission expense (9,044) (244) (183) 21 (658) (10,150)
- Operating expenses (36,325) (4,403) (7,108) (4,031) (13,528) (65,395)
- Net realised loss from available-for-sale investment securities - - (246) (246)
- Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (485,238) 261,721 (56,820) 76,518 30,560 (173,259)
- Provisions - (319 N - ®) (368)
- Insurance claims incurred, net of reinsurance S (22,793) (22,793)
TOTAL EXPENSES (581,658) 246,366 (78,620) 36,654 (6,911) (384,169)
Income before income tax expense 143,993
Income tax expense (30411) (30411)
Total segment assets 540,639 2,952,768 256,885 382,973 321,673 4,454,938
Total segment liabilities 1,468,313 1,484,783 259,757 597,755 114,402 3,925,010
OTHER SEGMENT ITEMS:
Capital expenditures (17,131) (17,131)
Depreciation and amortisation (5,663) (5,663)

* Due to material changes in investment banking item for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group showed it as a separate segment and recalculated segment results for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the

lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements.
Management's assessment of the significance of a particularinput to the fair value

Information for the main geographical areas of the Group is set out below as at 31

December2017,2016and 2015,and forthe years then ended. measurement requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of the assets and
liabilities being measured and their placementwithin thefairvalue hierarchy.

_ The Group considers that the accounting estimate related to the valuation of financial

2017 instruments where quoted markets prices are not available is a key source of estimation

Total assets 7,833,566 768,199 256016 8857781 uncertainty because: () it is highly susceptible to changes from year to year, as it requires

External revenues 666,849 20,206 19,863 706918 management to make assumptions about interest rates, volatility, exchange rates, the

Capital expenditure (13,862) R R (13,862) credit rating of the counterparty, valuation adjustments and specific features of transactions

2016 and (ii) the impact that recognising a change in the valuations would have on the assets

Total assets Py P 102337 5348483 reported on the consolldatgd statement of financial position, as well as, the Te\ated profitor

loss reported on the consolidated statement of profit or loss, could be material.

External revenues 421326 12352 12,268 445946

Capital expenditure (15,386) - - (15,386)

2015 .

Total assets 4,101,191 262,578 91,169 4,454,938

External revenues 520,867 609 6,686 528,162

Capital expenditure (17,131) - - (17,131) CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT

External revenues, assets and credit related commitments have generally been allocated based AUDITORS' REPORT

on the domicile of the counterparty. Cash on hand, property and equipment and capital FOR THE YEARS ENDED

R . X . 31 DECEMBER 2017, 2016

expenditure have been allocated based on the country in which they are physically held. AND 2015

37.FAIRVALUES OF FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants ata measurement date.

Thefairvaluesofthe Group'sfinancial assetsandfinancialliabilities are measured
atfairvalueonarecurringbasis.

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting year. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, thevaluationtechnique(s)andinputsused).

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured e
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the ?}}HALYK
BAN

degree towhich thefairvalueis observable.
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The table below summarises the Group's financial assets and liabilities held at fair value by valuation methodology at 31 December 2017, 2016 and 2015, before any allowances
forimpairment losses:

nancial Assets/Li es 31 December 31 December 31 December Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant Relationship of
2017 2016 2015 hierarchy unobservable unobservable
input(s) puts to fair value

105,253 250961 1757 Level 1 T 2t Not applicable  Not applicable
Future cash flows are estimated based on forward
exchange rates (from observable forward exchange

147 1,093 1,509 Level 2 rates at the end of the reporting year). Not applicable  Not applicable
Future cash flows in USD discounted using the LIBOR
rate obtained from available sources. Future cash flows

Non-derivative financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 8)

Derivative financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 8)

Derivative financial assets at fair value in KZT discounted using the internal rate of return, KZT implied The greater
through profit or loss (Note 8) 39576 76683 173804 Level3 which was calculated based on LIBOR and foreign rate the KZT implied
exchange rates obtained from available sources. The ;i;ea\lielrhtie o
difference between net present values of these !
;g;%b’gu%’;ga# A(\)SRSLEgg;\T FAIRVALUE R 144,976 328,737 177,070 discounted cash flows should be equal to nil at initial value
recognition.
P o1 Faro RS q Discounted cash flows. i
Derivative financial liabilities at fair value . . Not applicable
5339 2,841 5593 Level 2 Future cash flows are estimated based on forward Not applicable
through profit or loss(Note 8) exchange rates (from observable forward exchange e The internal rate
rates at thf7 %nd of the repé)mmg y:?jr) e g;f Crgltcur‘r;tgg };tZT
R ol N Future cash flows in USD discounted using LIBOR rate KZT implie s calcul
&ergnatr:verggigcrlﬁ:lshsa(tr’\;gttleess)at fairvalue 40 - - Level 3 obtained from available sources. Future cash flows in rate the initial
9h P! KZT discounted using internal rate of return, which was recognition of
c%\cu\aégdfbased o‘n LIBOR and fc]z;sigg ;xchange rates lhed WSUthmem
obtained from available sources. The difference between and is no
mlﬁ'é ;w;gSéAHL#{(\)?lli‘lglElng;gAm net present values of these discounted cash flows should subsequently
be equal to zero at initial recognition. recalculated
-derivati i —for- Not applicable
i"'l_ll\llzs?;rel\:]att;\éiL?x?igz;l?’l\leoftzrlsoa)le 1,501,882 597,682 378174 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market. Not applicable ol
Non-derivative available-for-sale investment Quoted bid prices in a market that is not active.
securities included in bonds of foreign 1,061,654 - - Level 2 Not applicable  Not applicable
organisations (Note 10) Discounted cash flows. Future cash flows discounted
using LIBOR, adjusted for the credit risk of the issuer
G eivziive ol il obtained from available sources. i i
investment securities (Note 10) L5 1860 248 Level 2 Not applicable  Not applicable

Valuation model based on internal rating model.

Non-derivative available-for-sale Percentage The greater the

investment securities — unquoted equity 18 82 98 Level 3 discount discount - the

securities (Note 10) smaller the fair
value

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

SECURITIES 599,624 378,520
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There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended
31 December2017,2016and 2015

Financial assets at J§ Available-for-sale
fair value through [ investment securities
equll?l securities

Derivative financial
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss|

profit or loss
(Level 3)

7,776 1,924

(Level3)

31 DECEMBER 2014

Total gains or losses:

- in other comprehensive income - 27) -
-Settlements* 15,506 (531) -
Gain/(loss) to profit or loss 150,522 (1,268)
I E—
Loss to profit or loss 231 3)
Settlements* (94,808)
I
Additions on acquisition of a subsidiary 39,576 4,385
Gain/(loss) to profit or loss 3,651 (3) 1,529
Settlements* (80,334) (5422)

* Asat31December2017,2016and 2015, the settlements include interest and repayment of NBRK swaps.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES THAT ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
ON A RECURRING BASIS (BUT FAIR VALUE DISCLO-
SURES ARE REQUIRED)

The following methods and assumptions are used by the Group to estimate the
fairvalue offinancialinstrumentsnotcarried atfairvalue.

AMOUNTS DUETO AND FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

For assets and liabilities maturing within one month, the carrying amount approximates fair
value due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments. For the assets
and liabilities maturing in over one month, the fair value was estimated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the appropriate year-end market rates.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
The estimate was made by discounting the scheduled future cash flows of the individual loans
through the estimated maturity using prevailing market rates as at the respective year-end.

AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS
Interest rates charged to customers closely approximate market interest rates
andaccordingly,thecarryingamountsapproximatefairvalues.

DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Market values have been used to determine the fair value of debt securities traded on
an active market. For other debt securities, the fair value was estimated as the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the year-end market rates.

The following table sets out the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets
andliabilities not carried attheirfairvalues:

31 December 2017 1 December 2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrylng Fair
amount value amount value amount value

Amountsduefromcredit 7736  g5199 35542 35430 44993 45058
institutions

Loans to customers 3251,102 3396385 2319583 2178539 2,176,069 2,106,902

frvancinasses  § | | | | | |

Amountsduefromcredit 6131750 6176030 3820662 3972622 3043731 3197750
institutions

Amounts due from credit 5 155 231,465 162,134 190971 168258 193,863
institutions

Loans to customers 962,396 1,034,387 584,933 586,378 597,525 611,607

31 December 2015

FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 DECEMBER 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota\ fair
value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
85,19

Amounts due from credit institutions -

Loans to customers 3,396,385 3,396,385
I I

Amounts due to customers 6,176,030 - 6,176,030

Amounts due to credit institutions - 231,465 - 231,465

Debt securities issued 1,034,387 - - 1,034,387
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31 DECEMBER 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair
value
Amounts due from credit institutions - 35430 35430
Loans to customers 2,178,539 2,178,539

Amounts due to customers 3,972,622 s 3972622
Amounts due to credit institutions - 190,971 - 190,971
Debt securities issued 586,378 - - 586,378
31 DECEMBER 2015

value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amounts due from credit institutions - 45,058 45,058
Loans to customers 2,106,902 2,106,902

Amounts due to customers 3,197,750 = 3,197,750
Amounts due to credit institutions - 193,863 - 193,863
Debt securities issued 611,607 - - 611,607

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, obligatory reserves, other
financial assets and other financial liabilities approximates fair value due to the short-
term nature of such financial instruments.

38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties or transactions with related parties are assessed in accordance with
IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures". Related parties may enter into transactions which
unrelated parties might not. Terms, conditions and amounts of related party
transactions are usually same as those between unrelated parties.

Considering each possible related party not only their legal status is taken into
account butalso the substance of the relationship between these parties.

Asat31December2017,2016and 2015, the Group had the following transactions
outstanding withrelated parties:

Loans to customers before
allowance for impairment
losses

- the parent

- entities with joint control
or significant influence
over the entity

- key management
personnel of the entity
or its parent

- other related parties

Allowance for impairment
losses

- the parent
- entities with joint control

or significant influence
over the entity

Amounts due to customers
- the parent

- entities with joint control
or significant influence
over the entity

- key management
personnel of the entity
or its parent

- the parent

Related
garty

alances

2,350

2,193

115

42

(10)

(10)

156,137
29,773

3,175

9,003

114,186

3,568,263

(317,161)

6,131,750

2,148

2,024

94

30

@n

@n

197,569
99,641

4,086

9,538

84,304

2,604,335

(284,752)

3,820,662

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Related

Earty
alances

Related

Earty
alances

3,537 2/481,183

3426

90

13

(47) (305,114)
m

(46)

181,164
116,204

3,043,731

12,525

9,818

42,617
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Included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the years ended 31
December 2017, 2016 and 2015, are the following amounts which arose due to

Year ended
31 December 2016

Year ended
31 December 2015

Year ended
31 December 2017

Total
category as

Total Related
category as il party
per financiallf transac-
statements Qi tions
caption

Related Total Related
category as
per financiall

per financiall
statements
caption

statements
caption

Interest income 506,328 332,563 444 244,040
- entities with joint control
or significant influence 141 295 431
over the entity
- key management
personnel of the entity 10 10 1
or its parent
- other related parties 5 4 2
Interest expense (3,518) (257,805)  (8,525) (160,549)  (3,196) (100,678)
- the parent (2,535) (6,848) (2,499)
- entities with joint control
or significant influence (3 (14) 6)
over the entity
- key management
personnel of the entity (198) (404) (265)
or its parent
- other related parties (782) (1,259) (426)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Total
category as
per financial

category as
per financiallf transac-
statements | ti

category as
per financiallf transac-
statements [ ti

statements

caption caption

51,124 1,800 38,551 1433 37,958

caption

Key management

personnel compensation:

- Salaries and other
employee benefits

39.SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

On 8 January 2018, the Board of Directors of the Bank decided to reorganize JSC NBK-
Bank in the form of merger to the Commercial Bank Moskommertsbank (JSC),
subsidiary of JSSCKazkommertsbank.

On 22 January 2018, the Board of Directors of the Bank approved voluntary
reorganization of JSC Kazakhinstrakh in the form of merger of JSC Insurance Company
Kazkommerts Policy, subsidiary of JSC Kazkommertsbank, to JSC Kazakhinstrakh.

On9February 2018, KKB had made an early repayment of the perpetual subordinated
Eurobonds issued in November 2005, with an initial placement amount of USD 100
million.The repayment was made from the KKB's own funds.
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LEAD
FROM THE FRONT!

VELOCITY OF LIGHT (PHOTON)

While it is hard to believe, studies of the speed of light began
inthe 17th century. Several hundreds of year later, the genius
Albert Einstein was the first to establish that light is the
absolute criterion for limiting velocity of particle motion.
Today, the speed of light (almost 300,000 km/s) is not only a
fundamental constant in physics, the subject of endless
research by scientists around the world and a popular topic
for fantastic work, but also a symbol of speed and efficiency.
In the fast-paced modern age, success often depends on
doing things at lightning speed, known as the"speed of light”.
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Joint Stock Company Halyk Savings Bank of Kazakhstan
REGISTERED ADDRESS

40 Al-Farabi Avenue, Almaty, A26M3K5, Kazakhstan
TELEPHONE

+77272590777

FAX

+77272590271

WEBSITE

www.halykbank.kz, http://www.halykbank.kz/ru/about/investors/reports

REGISTERED WITH

The Ministry of Justice of the Republic of Kazakhstan
REGISTERED NUMBER

3898-1900-A0

DATE OF RE-REGISTRATION

12 November 2003

SHAREHOLDERENQUIRIES

HOLDERS OF COMMON AND PREFERRED SHARES:
JSCThe Integrated Securities Registrar

30A/3, Satpayeva St.

Almaty

Kazakhstan

Tel:+7 (727) 272 4760

Fax: +7 (727) 272 4766 (ext. 230)

HOLDERS OF GDRS:

The Bank of New York Mellon
101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor,
New York

NY 10286 USA

Tel:+1212 8155021

SWIFT: IRVTUS3N

CONTACTINFORMATION

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Halyk Bank

Holders of GDRs:
Tel:+7 (727) 259 0430
Fax: +7 (727) 259 0271

HOLDERS OF COMMON SHARES:

Tel: +7 (727) 259 0599

HOLDERS OF GDRS:

The Bank of New York Mellon
101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor,
New York

NY 10286 USA

Tel:+1212 8155021

SWIFT: IRVTUS3N

AUDITOR

Deloitte LLP

36 Al-Farabi Ave,,
050059, Almaty
Kazakhstan

Tel: +7 (727) 258 1340
Fax: +7 (727) 258 1341

REGISTRAR

JSCThe Integrated Securities Registrar

30A/3, Satpayeva St.,

Almaty

Kazakhstan

Tel: +7 (727) 272 4760

Fax: +7 (727) 272 4766 (ext. 230)

DEPOSITARY

The Bank of New York Mellon
101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor,
New York

NY 10286 USA

Tel: +1212 8155021

SWIFT: IRVTUS3N
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REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN BEIJING,

PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

No.41 East Fourth Ring Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
Room 2006, A TOWER, Jia Tai International Mansion
Post code: 100026

Tel/Fax: +86 10 6504 7265

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON,

UNITED KINGDOM

68 Lombard Street, London EC3V 9LJ, United Kingdom
Tel: +44 (0) 20 7861 9530

Fax: +44 (0) 20 7861 9531

REGIONALBRANCHES

ASTANA REGIONAL BRANCH

17, Kabanbay Batyr St., Astana, 010000
Tel: 477172591114

Fax:+7 7172591148

AKTOBE REGIONAL BRANCH

168, Microdistrict 12, Aktobe, 030020
Tel: +7 7132 94 2403

Fax:+7 7132 94 2443

ALMATY REGIONAL BRANCH

101, Rozybakiyev St Almaty, 050046
Tel:+7 727 2597271

Fax:+7 727 330 1479

ATYRAU REGIONAL BRANCH
4, Satpayev Ave, Atyrau, 060011
Tel: 477122 27 0145

Fax:+7 712227 0143

EASTERN KAZAKHSTAN REGIONAL BRANCH
57a, Gorkiy St., Ust-Kamenogorsk, 070004
Tel: +7 7232 59 3538

Fax: +7 7232 59 3625

ZHAMBYLREGIONAL BRANCH
145, Zhamby! Ave, Taraz, 080000
Tel: +7 7262 59 5999

Fax:+7 7262 45 2523

ZHESKAZGAN REGIONAL BRANCH

31A, Garyshkerler Ave,, Zheskazgan, 100600
Tel: +7 7102 77 8484

Fax:+7 7102 77 8265

WESTERN KAZAKHSTAN REGIONAL BRANCH
194/1, Dostyk Ave., Uralsk, 090000

Tel: +7 711259 3920

Fax:+7 7112 59 3996

KARAGANDA REGIONAL BRANCH

56, Tishbek Akhanov St., Karaganda, 100008
Tel:+7 7212 58 9222, 56 3677

Fax:+7 7212 56 3677

KOSTANAY REGIONAL BRANCH

146, Tawelsizdik St, Kostanay, 110000
Tel: +7 7142 59 3388

Fax:+7 7142 54 0803

KYZYLORDA REGIONAL BRANCH
5, Kazybek bi St., Kyzylorda, 120001
Tel: +7 7242 55 0001
Fax: +7 7242 55 0002

MANGISTAU REGIONAL BRANCH
6, Microdistrict 9, Aktau, 130000
Tel:+7 7292 70 0101

Fax: +7 7292 42 9803

PAVLODARREGIONAL BRANCH
1/1, Lermontov St., Pavlodar, 140008
Tel: +7 7182 59 3685

Fax:+7 7182 32 3760

NORTHERN KAZAKHSTAN REGIONAL BRANCH
36, Konstitutsiya St., Petropavlovsk, 150008

Tel: +7 7152 59 5707

Fax:+7 7152 46 8320
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SEMEY REGIONAL BRANCH

109, Abaya Kunanbayeva St Semey, 071400
Tel: +7 7222 55 8803

Fax: +7 7222 55 8805

SOUTHERN KAZAKHSTAN REGIONAL BRANCH
3/10, Al-Farabi Ave., Shymkent, 160012

Tel:+7 7252 58 9779

Fax:+7 7252 53 0026

TALDYKORGAN REGIONAL BRANCH

22/1, Zhansugurov St, Taldykorgan, 040000
Tel: +7 7282 30 5702

Fax: +7 7282 30 5708

AKMOLA REGIONAL BRANCH
33, Gorky St., Kokshetau, 020000
Tel: +7 7162 59 5472

Fax:+7 7162311857

BAIKONYRREGIONAL BRANCH
16, Gorky St., Baikonyr, 468320
Tel: +7 33622 7 4654

Fax: +7 33622 7 0233

ZHANAOZEN REGIONAL BRANCH
15, Zhalyn Microdistrict, Zhanaozen, 359900
Tel/fax:+7 729 34 3 4237

EKIBASTUZ REGIONAL BRANCH

49A, Stroitelnaya St., Ekibastuz, 141200
Tel: +7 7187 34 8980

Fax: +7 7187 34 0794

TEMIRTAU REGIONAL BRANCH

26A, Respublika Ave, Temirtau, 101403
Tel: +77213 98 0439
Fax:+77213908118

SUBSIDIARIES

KAZAKHSTAN
HALYKCOLLECTION
109"B" Abay Ave,, Almaty
Tel: +7 727 357 29 27

HALYK-LEASING
26/118, Masanchi St., Almaty
Tel: 47 727 239 87 98

HALYK FINANCE
109"B’, Abay Ave,, Almaty
Tel: 47 727 244 65 40

KAZTELEPORT
109"B’, Abay Ave,, Almaty
Tel/Fax:+7 727 392 58 92

HALYK-LIFE
109"B’, Abay Ave,, Almaty
Tel: 47 727 244 62 22

KAZAKHINSTRAKH
109"B’, Abay Ave,, Almaty
Tel: 477273315072

HALYKPROJECT
109"B’, Abay Ave,, Almaty
Tel:+7 727 25965 78

ALTYNBANK
109"B’, Abay Ave,, Almaty
Tel: +7 727 259 69 00

KAZKOMMERTSBANK
34, Al-Farabi Ave.,, Almaty
Tel: +7 727 58 5145

GEORGIA

HALYKBANK GEORGIA

74, Kostava St., Thilisi 0171, Georgia
Tel: +995 32 224 07 07

KYRGYZSTAN

HALYK BANK KYRGYZSTAN

390, Frunze St, Bishkek, 720033, Kyrgyzstan
Tel: +996 312614 128

RUSSIA

NBK-BANK

20/1, Malaya Ordynka St.,
Moscow 119017, Russia
Tel: +7 495 961 24 70

MOSKOMMERTSBANK
3/1,22nd floor, Begovaya St.,
Moscow 125284, Russia

Tel: +7 495 363 22 22

TAJIKISTAN
KAZKOMMERTSBANKTAJIKISTAN
SAS Business Centre

24N, Ayni Ave,,

Dushanbe 734012, Tajikistan

Tel: +992 (44) 601 4042

USEFUL LINKS

NATIONAL BANK OF THE REPUBLIC
OF KAZAKHSTAN
www.nationalbank.kz

KAZAKHSTAN STOCK EXCHANGE (KASE)
www.kasekz

LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE (LSE)
www.londonstockexchange.com
FINANCIALCONDUCT AUTHORITY (FCA)
www.fca.org.uk

PRUDENTIAL REGULATION AUTHORITY (PRA)
http://www.bankofengland.co.uk/pra
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